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CAUTIONARY STATEMENT REGARDING FORWARD-LOOKING INFORMATION

Certain statements in this Annual Report on Form 20-F (the “Annual Report”) are or may be deemed to be, “forward-looking
statements” within the meaning of U.S. securities laws. These forward-looking statements are based on current
expectations, estimates, forecasts, and projections. These forff warr rd-looking statements appear in a number of places
throughout this Annual Report including, but not limited to “Risk Factors,” “Business Overview,” and “Results of Operations.”
Words such as “expect,” “anticipate,” “should,” “believe,” “hope,” “target,” “project,” “goals,” “estimate,” “potential,” “predict,”
“may,” “will,” “might,” “could,” “intend,” “shall” and variations of these terms and similar expressions are intended to identify
these forward-looking statements, although not all forward-looff king statements contain these identifying words. Forward-
looking statements are based on our management’s beliefs and assumpff tions and on information currently available to our
management.

By their nature, forward-looking statements involve risks and uncertainties because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that may or may not occur in the future. Forward-looking statements are not guarantees of future
performance and our actual results of operations, financial condition and liquidity, and the development of the industries in
which we operate may differ materially from those made in or suggested by the forward-looking statements contained in this
Annual Report. Important factors that could cause those differences include, but are not limited to:

• general global economic and geopolitical conditions;

• our ability to meet production requirements under long-term supply agreements (“LTAs”);

• our business and operating strategies and plans for the dff evelopment of existing and new businesses, ability to
implement such strategies and plans and expected time;

• our reliance on a small number of customers;

• our future business development, financial condition, and results of operations;

• the seasonality, volatility and cyclical nature of the semiconductor and microelectronics industry;

• expected changes in our revenue, costs or expenditures;

• our dividend policy;

• our assumptions and estimates regarding design wins;

• our expectations regarding demand for and market acceptance of our products and services;

• our expectations regarding our relationships with customers, contract manufacturers, component suppliers, third-
party service providers, strategic partners and other stakeholders;

• our expectations regarding our capacity to develop, manufacture and deliver semiconductor products in fulfillment
of our contractual commitments;

• our ability to conduct our manufacturing operations without disruptions;

• our ability to manage our capacity and production facilities effectively;

• our ability to develop new technologies successfully and remain a technological leader;

• our ability to maintain control over expansion and facility modifications;

• our ability to generate growth or profitable growth;

• our ability to maintain and protect our intellectual property;

• our ability to hire and maintain qualified personnel;

• our effective tax rate or tax liability;

• our ability to acquire required equipment and supplies necessary to meet customer demand;

• the increased competition from other companies and our ability to retain and increase our market share;

• the potential business or economic disruptions caused by current and future pandemics, such as the ongoing
COVID-19 pandemic;

• developments in, or changes to, laws, regulations, governmental policies, incentives and taxation affecting our
operations relating to our industry; and

• assumptions underlying or related to any of the foregoing.

We caution you that the foregoing list does not contain all of the forward-looking statements made in this Annual Report.
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Forwarrr d-looking statements include, but are not limited to, statements regarding our strategy and future plans, future
business condition and financial results, our capital expenditure plans, our capacity management plans, expectations as to
the commercial production using more advanced technologies, technological upgrades, investment in research and
development, future market demand, future regulatory or other developments in our industry, business expansion plans or
new investments as well as business acquisitions and financing plans. Please see “Item 3. Key Information—Risk Factors”
fof r a further discussion of certain factors that may cause actual results to differ materially from those indicated by our
fof rward-looking statements. Accordingly, you should norr t place undue reliance on these forward-looking statements. In any
event, these statements speak only as of their dates, and we undertake no obligation to update or revise any of them,
whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.rr

You should carefully consider the “Risk Factors” and subsequent public statements, or reports filed with or furnished to the
SEC, before making any investment decision with respect to our securities. If any of these trends, risks or uncertainties
actually occurs or continues, our business, financial condition or operating results could be materially adversely affected, the
trading prices of our securities could decline and you could lose all or part of your investment. All forward-looking statements
attributable to us or persons acting on our behalf are expressly qualified in their entirety by this cautionary statement.

As used in this Annual Report, all references to “we”, “us”, “our”, the “Company” and "GF” are to GlobalFoundries Inc. and its
consolidated subsidiaries.
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PART I

ITEM 1. IDENTITY OF DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND ADVISORS

Not applicable.

ITEM 2. OFFER STATISTICS AND EXPECTED TIMETABLE

Not applicable.

ITEM 3. KEY INFORMATION

A. Reserved.

B. Capitalization and Indebtedness

Not applicable.

C. Reasons for the Offer and Use of Proceeds

Not applicable.

D. Risk Factors Summary

The following important factors, and those factors described in other reports submitted to, or filed with, the SEC, among
other factors, could affect our actual results and could cause our actual results to differ materially from those expressed in
any forwarrr d-looking statements made by us or on our behalf, and such factors may adversely affect our business and
financial status and therefore the value of your investment:

Risks Related to our Business and Industry

• General global economic and geopolitical conditions could materially and adversely affect us.

• We have LTAs with certain customers that obligate us to meet specific production requirements, which may expose
us to liquidated and other damages, require us to return advanced payments, require us to provide products and
services at reduced or negative margins and constrain our ability to reallocate our production capacity to serve new
customers or otherwise.

• Our strategy of securing and maintaining LTAs and expanding our production capacity may not be successful.

• We depend on a small number of customers for a significant portion of our revenue and any loss of this or our other
key customers, including potentially through further customer consolidation, could result in significant declines in
our revenue.

• We rely on a complex silicon supply chain and breakdowns in that chain could affect our ability to produce our
products.

• Reductions in demand and average selling prices for our customers’ end products (e.g., consumer electronics) and
increases in inflation may decrease demand for our products and services.

• The seasonality and cyclical nature of the semiconductor industry and periodic overcapacity make us vulnerable to
significant and sometimes prolonged economic downturns.

• Overcapacity in the semiconductor industry may reduce our revenue, earnings and margins.

• Our competitors have announced expansions and may continue to expand in the United States and Europe, which
could materially and adversely affect our competitive position.

• The semiconductor industry is capital-intensive and, if we are unable to invest the necessary capital to operate and
grow our business, we may not remain competitive.

• We may not be able to implement our planned growth and development or maintain the differentiation of our
solutions if we are unable to recruit and retain key executives, managers and skilled technical personnel.

• We receive subsidies and grants in certain countries and regions in which we operate, and a reduction in the
amount of governmental funding available to us or demands for repayment could increase our costs and affect our
results of operations.
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• Sales to government entities and highly regulated organizations are subject to a number of challenges and added
risks, and we could fail to comply with these heightened compliance requirements, or effectively manage these
challenges or risks.

• The implementation of our restructuring plan is ongoing, and we may not achieve all of the plan’s expected
benefits, which could have a material adverse effect on our business, operations, financial conditions and results of
operation.

Risks Related to Manufacturing, Operations and Expansion

• If we are unable to manage our capacity and production facilities effectively, our competitiveness may be
weakened.

• Our manufacturing processes are highly complex, costly and potentially vulnerable to impurities and other
disruptions, and cost increases, which can significantly increase our costs and delay product shipments to our
customers.

• Our profit margin may substantially decline if we are unable to continually improve our manufacturing yields,
maintain high shipment utilization or fail to optimize the process technology mix of our wafer production.

• We may be unable to obtain manufacturing equipment in a timely manner and at a reasonable cost that is
necessary for us to remain competitive. If we are unable to obtain adequate supplies of raw materials in a timely
manner and at commercially reasonable prices, our revenue and profitability may decline.

• If we are unable to obtain adequate supplies of raw materials in a timely manner and at commercially reasonable
prices, our revenue and profitability may decline.

• Aging infrastructure, power grids and risks to the supply of natural gas, electricity or fresh water could interrupt
production.

• Failure to adjust our supply chain volume due to changing market conditions or failure to estimate our customers’
demand could adversely affect our sales and/or our gross margin and could result in additional charges for
obsolete or excess inventories or non-cancelable purchase commitments.

• The risk of cyberattacks and other data security breaches requires us to incur significant costs to maintain the
security of our networks and data, and, in the event of such breaches, may expose us to liability, adversely affect
our operations, damage our reputation, and affect our net revenue and profitability, and our efforts to combat
breach and misuse of our systems and unauthorized access to our data may not be successful.

Risks Related tii o Intellectual Property

• Any failure to obtain, maintain, protect or enforce our inff tellectual property and proprietary rights could impair our
ability to protect our proprietary technology and our brand.

• There is a risk that our trade secrets, know-how and other proprietary informff ation will be stolen, used in an
unauthorized manner, or compromised.

• The laws of some foreign countries may not be as protective of intellectual property rights as those in the United
States, and mechanisms for enforcement of intellectual property rights may be inadequate.

• We have been, and may continue to be, subject to intellectual property disputes, which are costly and may subject
us to significant liability and increased costs of doing business.

• Our success depends, in part, on our ability to develop and commercialize our technology without infringing,
misappropriating or otherwise violating the intellectual property rights of third parties and we may not be aware of
such infringements, misappropriations or violations.

• We may be unable to provide technology to our customers if we lose the support of our technology partners.

Political, Regulatory and Legal Risks

• We are subject to governmental export and customs compliance requirements that could impair our ability to
compete in international markets or subject us to liability if we violate the controls.

• We are currently are, and may in the future continue to be, subject to litigation that could result in substantial costs,
divert or continue to divert management’s attention and resources, and materially and adversely affect our results
of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.
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Risks Related to Our Status as a Controlled Company and Foreign Private Issuer

• Mubadala will continue to have substantial control over the Company, which could limit our ability to influence the
outcome of key transactions, including a change of control, and otherwise affect the prevailing market price of our
ordinary shares.

• We are a foreign private issuer and, as a result, are not subject to U.S. proxy rules but are subject to reporting
obligations that, to some extent, are more lenient and less frequent than those of a U.S. issuer.

Risk Factors

Risks Related to our Business and Industry

Generarr l global economic and geopolitical conditions could materially and adversely affect our rdd esults ofrr
operatirr ons, financial condition, businedd ss and prospects.

The semiconductor industry relies on a global supply chain and is considered strategically important by major trading
countries, including the United States, China, and countries in the European Union (“EU”). Political, economic and financial
crises have in the past negatively affected and in the future could negatively affect the semiconductor industry and its end
markets. Our business may also be materially affected by the impact of geopolitical tensions and related actions. Recently,
there have been political and trade tensions among, and between, a number of the world’s maja or economies, most notably
in our industry between the United States and China, with Hong Kong and Taiwan implicated in the tensions, and more
recently between Russia and the member nations of the North American Treaty Organization (“NATO”) and others. These
tensions have resulted in the implementation of trade barriers, including the use of economic sanctions and export control
restrictions against certain countries and individual companies. For example, the U.S. Department of Commerce’s Bureau of
Industry and Security (“BIS”) placed one of the largest mobile handset and 5G infrastructure providers in the world, Huawei,
and China’s largest semiconductor foundry, Semiconductor Manufacturing International Corporation (“SMIC”), on the BIS
Entity List. Moreover, on October 7, 2022, BIS vastly expanded export controls on advanced integrated circuits,
supercomputers, advanced computing items and semiconductor production equipment to China and Macau with an intent to
limit China’s ability to develop or produce such items.

Violations of these economic sanctions and export control restrictions can result in significant civil and criminal penalties.
These trade barriers have had a particular impact on the semiconductor industry and related markets. Prolonged or
increased use of trade barriers may result in a decrease in the growth of the global economy and semiconductor industry
and could cause turmoil in global markets, which in turn often results in declines in our customers’ electronic products sales
and could decrease demand for our products and services. Also, any increase in the use of economic sanctions, export
control restrictions or retaliatory state actions to target certain countries, industries and/or companies could impact our ability
to continue supplying products and services to customers and our customers’ demand for our products and services, and
could disrupt semiconductor supply chains. Finally, the recent conflict between Russia and Ukraine has created uncertainty
regarding supply of materials needed for our operations (including natural gas), particularly in Europe where we have
operations in both Germany and Bulgaria, as well as our customers’ potential sales of electronic products and components
to customers in Russia. The conflict has also created uncertainty about broader impacts that economic sanctions, export
control restrictions and continued geopolitical uncertainty may have on global supply chains and markets generally.

Any current and future systemic political, economic or financial crisis or market volatility, including interest rate fluctuations,
inflation or deflation, recession and changes in economic, trade, fiscal and monetary policies in major economies, could
cause revenue or profits for us or the semiconductor industry as a whole to decline dramatically. If the economic conditions
in the markets in which our customers operate or the financial condition of our customers were to deteriorate, the demand
foff r our products and services may decrease and impairments, write-downs and other accounting charges may be required,
which could reduce our operating income and net income. Further, in times of market instability, sufficient external financing,
including equity capital, debt financing, customer prepayments and government subsides, may not be available to us on a
timely basis, on commercially reasonable terms or at all. If sufficient external financing is not available when we need such
financing to meet our demand-driven capital requirements, we may be forced to curtail expansion, modify plans and delay
the deployment of new or differentiated technologies, products, or services until we obtain such financing. Further escalation
of trade tensions, the increased use of economic sanctions or export control restrictions or any future global systemic crisis
or economic downturn could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

We have LTAs with certain customers thrr at obligate us to meet specific production requirements, whicww h may expose
us to liquidated and other damages, require us to return advanced payments, require us to provide products andii
servrr ivv ces at reduced or negative margins and constrain our abitt lity to reallocate our producii tion capacity to serve
new customers or otherwise.

We have entered into multiple LTAs that provide for significant customer commitments in return for capacity reservation
commitments from us. In many cases, in connection with these arrangements we have received, or will receive, customer
advanced payments and capacity reservation fees. If we are unable to satisfy our obligations under these contracts, we may
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be forced to return such payments which could result in significant cash expenditures. Under most of our LTAs, we must
maintain sufficient capacity at our manufacturing facilities to meet anticipated customer demand for our proprietary products.ff
From time to time, this requires us to invest in expansion or improvements of those facilities, which often involves substantial
cost and other risks, such as delays in completion. Such expanded manufacturing capacity may still be insufficient, or may
not come online soon enough, to meet customer demand and we may have to limit the amount of products we can supply to
customers, forgo sales or lose customers as a result. Further, capacity reserved for certaff in customers could cause us to
breach obligations to other customers due to capacity constraints or prevent us from serving new customers. If we are
unable to satisfy our obligations under our customer agreements, we may be subject to significant liquidated damages or
penalties, which could result in significant cash expenditures and require us to raise additional capital. Conversely, if we
overestimate customer demand or a customer defaults on its purchase or payment obligations to us, we could experience
underutilization of capacity at these facilities without a corresponding reduction in fixed costs. Our inability to maintain
appropriate capacity could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

Our strategy of securinrr g and mainii taining LTAs and expanding our production capacity may not be successful.

We have undertaken, and will continue to undertake, various business strategies to sell a significant portion of our
production capacity through LTAs, grow our production capacity, and improve operating efficiencies and generate cost
savings. We cannot assure you that we will successfully implement those business strategies or that implementing these
strategies will sustain or improve and not harm our results of operations. In particular, our ability to implement our strategy to
enter into LTAs successfully is subject to certain risks, including:

• customers defaulting on their obligations to us, which may include significant payment obligations;

• our defaulting on our obligations to our customers (for example, due to raw materials shortages, production
disruptions, or our subcontractors’ default on test or packaging obligations), which could result in us owing
substantial penalties to our customers;

• customers seeking to renegotiate key terms of their contracts, such as pricing and specified volume commitments,
in the event market conditions change during the contract term; and

• our inability to extend contracts when they expire.

As a result, we cannot assure you that we will successfully implement this strategy or realize the anticipated benefits of
these contracts.

Against the backdrop of increasing macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainty, some customers under LTAs have
requested to adjust their 2023 demand outlook downward and seek renegotiation of their LTAs. If we are unsuccessful in
preserving the economic benefits of our existing LTAs in negotiations with our customers, such renegotiations could lead torr
reduction of our revenue and long-term outlook.

Additionally, the costs involved in implementing our strategies may be significantly greater than we currently anticipate. For
example, our ability to complete production capacity expansions or make other operational improvements as planned may
be delayed, interrupted or made more costly by the need to obtain environmental and other regulatory approvals, the
availability of semiconductor manufacturing equipment, labor and materials, unforeseen hazards, such as weather
conditions, and other risks customarily associated with construction projects. Moreover, the cost of expanding production
capacity could have a negative impact on our financial results until shipment utilization is sufficient to absorb the incremental
costs associated with the expansion.

Our ability to successfully implement these strategies depends on a variety of factors, including, among other things, our
ability to finance our operations, maintain high-quality and efficient manufacturing operations, respond to competitive and
regulatory changes, access semiconductor manufacturing equipment or quality raw materials in a cost-effective and timely
manner, and retain and attract highly skilled personnel. Further, some of our LTAs constrain our ability to change product mix
within short time frames, given “end of life” provisions in our agreements that require substantial notice periods before we
can cease production of existing products.

We depend on a small numbell r of customers for a signiff ficant portion of our revenue and any loss of thtt is or our
other key customers, including potentially thl rough further customer consolidation, could result in significant
declill nii es in our revenue.

We have been largely dependent on a small number of customers for a substantial portion of our revenue. Our ten largest
customers in 2022, 2021 and 2020 accounted for approximately 70%, 67% and 73% of our wafer shipment volume,
respectively. We expect that a significant portion of our revenue will continue to come from a relatively limited number of
customers. We cannot assure you that our revenue generated from these customers, individually or in the aggregate, will
reach or exceed historical levels in any future period. Loss or cancellation of business from, significant changes in scheduled
deliveries to, or a decrease of products and services sold to any of these customers could significantly reduce our revenue.
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We rely on a complex silicon supply chain and breakdowns in that chain could affect our ability to produce our
products and could materially and advevv rsrr ely affect our results of opel rations, financial condition, businestt s and
prorr sps ects.

We rely on a small number of suppliers foff r wafers, which is a key input into our products. In particular, only a limited number
of companies in the world are able to produce silicon-on-insulator (“SOI”) wafers. If there is an insufficient supply of wafers,
particularly SOI wafers, to satisfy off ur requirements, we may need to limit or delay our production, which could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects. If our limited source suppliers and
suppliers for wafer preparation were to experience difficulties that affected their manufacturing yields or the quality of the
materials they supply to us, it could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business
and prospects. In particular, we depend on Soitec S.A. (“Soitec”), our largest supplier of SOI wafers, for the timely provision
of wafers in order to meet our production goals and obligations to customers. Soitec supplied 54% of our SOI wafers inff
2022. Our supply agreements with Soitec impose mutual obligations, in the form of capacity requirements, minimum
purchase requirements and supply share percentages. We may be subject to penalties if we fail to comply with such
obligations. In November 2020, we agreed with Soitec on an addendum to our original materials supply agreement to secure
supply for 300 millimeter (“mm”) RF SOI, partially depleted SOI and Silicon Photonics wafers. If we are unable to obtain
300mm SOI wafers from Soitec for any reason, we expect that it would take us an extended period to find a replacement
supplier on commercially acceptable terms. While we are in the process of developing relationships with alternate suppliers,
we do not expect to be able to acquire a significant amount of SOI wafers from those suppliers in the near term, and there is
no assurance that we will ever be able to do so.

The ability of our suppliers to meet our requirements could be impaired or interrupted by factors beyond their control, such
as earthquakes or other natural phenomena, labor strikes or shortages, or political unrest or failure to obtain materials for
their suppliers. For example, Soitec is reliant on third-party providers to obtain raw silicon wafers—difficulties in obtaining
raw silicon wafers may result in Soitec’s inability to produce SOI wafers. In the event one of our suppliers is unable to deliver
products to us or is unwilling to sell materials or components to us, our operations may be adversely affected. Further,
financial or other difficulties faced by our suppliers, or significant changes in demand for the components or materials they
use in the products they supply to us, could limit the availability of those products, components, or materials to us. Any
breakdown of our wafer supply chain could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition,
business and prospects.

Reductions in demand and average sellinll g prices (“ASPs”) fPP or our cusff tomers’ end products (e.g., crr onsumer
electrtt orr nics) and increases in inflatioii n may decrease demand for our products and services and could materially
and adversely affeff ct our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.tt

The substantial majority of our revenue is derived from customers who use our products in intelligent and highly connected
devices in markets such as Smart Mobile Devices, Home and Industrial internet of things (“IoT”), Communications
Infrastructure & Datacenter, Automotive and Personal Computing. A deterioration or a slowdown in the growth of such end
markets, due to, among other things, a potential recession, resulting in a substantial decrease in the demand for overall
global semiconductor foundry services, including our products and services, could adversely affect our revenue and profit
margins. Semiconductor manufacturing facilities require substantial investment to construct and are largely fixed-cost assets
once they are in operation. Because we own our manufacturing facilities, a significant portion of our operating costs are
fixed. In general, these costs do not decline when customer demand or our shipment utilization rate drops, and thus declines
in customer demand, among other factors, may significantly decrease our profit margins. Our costs may also increase as a
result of, among other things, inflation, which may have a greater impact on our profit margins than ASPs. In the past, there
have been periods of sustained decline in ASPs of our customers’ end products and applications, and such periods have
sometimes coincided with periods of economic volatility, including recessions. A return to historical trends could place
downward pressure on the prices of the components, including our products, that go into such end products and
applications. If ASPs decline, potentially due to a recession, and our cost reduction programs and actions do not offset the
decrease or our costs increase due to inflation or otherwise and are not offset by an increase in ASPs, our results of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects may be materially and adversely affected.

ThTT e seasonality and cyclical nature of the semiconductor indii ustry and periodic overcavv pacity make us vulnerable to
sigi nificant and sometimes prolonged economic downturns.ww

The semiconductor industry has exhibited cyclicality in the past and, at various times, has experienced downturns from time
to time, as a result of global economic conditions as well as industry-specific factors, including inventory corrections, excess
capacity, price volatility in raw materials and other inputs, and changes in end-customer preferences. Fluctuations in our
customers’ demand drive significant variations in order levels for our products and services and can result in volatility in our
revenue and earnings. Because our business is, and will continue to be, largely dependent on the requirements of both
consumer and industrial high-end technology product suppliers for our services, doff wnturns in this broad industry will likely
lead to reduced demand for our products and services.

Demand for our customers’ end products is affected by seasonal variations in market conditions that contribute to the
fluctuations of demand and prices for semiconductor services and products. The seasonal sales trends for semiconductor
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services and products closely mirror those for automotive, consumer electronics, communication and computer sales. These
seasonal variations, and seasonal variation changes that we cannot anticipate, may result in increased volatility in our
results of operation and could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

Overcapacity in the semiconductor industry may reduce our revenue, earnings and margins.

The prices that we can charge our customers for manufacturing services are significantly related to the overall worldwide
supply of integrated circuits (“ICs”) and semiconductor products. The overall supply of semiconductors is based in part on
the capacity of other companies, which is outside of our control. For example, we and some other companies, including
competitors with access to material government support, have announced plans to increase capacity expenditures
significantly. Additionally, some nations, including China, are investing heavily in developing additional domestic capacity for
semiconductor fabrication. We believe such plans, if carried out as planned, will increase the industry-wide capacity and
could result in overcapacity in the future. In periods of overcapacity, if we are unable to offset the adverse effects of
overcapacity through, among other things, our technology and product mix, we may have to lower the prices we charge our
customers for our products and services and/or we may have to operate at significantly less than full capacity. Such actions
could reduce our margin and profitability and weaken our financial condition and results of operations. We cannot give any
assurance that an increase in the demand for foundry services in the immediate and short-term will not lead to overcapacity
in the future, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

If we are unable to attract customers with orr ur technology, respond to fast-changing semiconductff or market
dynamics or maintain our leadership in product quality, we will become less competitive.

The semiconductor industry and the technologies it brings to market are constantly being created and evolving. We compete
by developing process technologies that incorporate increasingly higher performance and advanced features, offering
increasing functionality depending upon the customer’s application requirements. If we do not anticipate these changes in
technology requirements and fail to rapidly develop new and innovative solutions to meet these demands, we may not be
able to provide foundry services on competitive terms with respect to cost, schedule or volume manufacturing capacity.
There is a risk that our competitors may successfully adopt new or more differentiated technology before we do, resulting in
us losing design wins (including in cases in which we have expended significant resources to pursue design wins) and
market share. If we are unable to continue to offer differentiated services and processerr s on a competitive and timely basis,
we may lose customers to competitors providing similar or better technologies.

A key differentiator in the marketplace is to significantly reduce the time in which differentiated technology products or
services are launched into the market. If we are unable to meet the shorter time-to-market requirements of our customers or
fail to impress them with our newer feature sets or differentiated technology solutions or are unable to allocate or develop
new production capacity to meet those customers’ demands in a timely manner, we risk losing their business and not
generating the market adoption needed to pay for our development efforts. These factors have also been intensified by the
shift of the global technology market to consumer-driven products and increasing concentration of customers and
competition. Further, the increasing complexity of technology also imposes challenges for achieving expected product
quality, cost and time-to-market expectations. If we fail to maintain quality, it may result in loss of revenue and additional
cost, as well as loss of business or customer trust. If we are unable to meet the expected production yields of a new
technology, we will not be able to meet the expected costs of that technology. In addition, the market prices for technology
and services tend to fall over time, except in times of extreme supply shortage. As a result, if we are unable to offer new
differentiated services and processes on a competitive and timely basis, we may need to decrease the prices that we set for
our existing services and processes. If we are unable to innovate new and differentiated technologies and bring them to a
cost-competitive volume manufacturing scale that meets the demand of our customers, we may become less competitive
and our revenue and margins may decline significantly.

External risks also exist that can impact our position as a technology leader. Differentiated technology offerings may rely
upon unique or specialized materials as compared to our competitors, including specialized wafers upon which some of our
technologies are currently manufactured, raw materials for wafer fabrication, and materials used in the packaging of ICs to
enable them to be used in the end products. A disruption in the availability of or quality of these new or unique materials
during technology development can impact time-to-market, or have impact on the quality or cost of finished goods in the
marketplace. Similarly, our technology roadmap relies on externally sourced design tools and component circuit designs that
allow our end customers to more readily realize their products in our technologies, and disruption or delays in our ability to
obtain those resources may impair our ability to compete effectively and serve our customers.

The rapidly changing nature of advanced semiconductor technology can also culminate in the emergence of highly
disruptive or unconventional technologies and new disruptive solutions using existing technologies, which can create a rapid
inflection point leaving those on a conventional technology roadmap path at a significant disadvantage and unprepared to
react in a timely manner.
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If we are unable trr o compete effectively wiff th other sophisticated players in the highly competitive foundry segmenti
of the semiconductor industry, we may lose customers and our profit margins and earnings may decrease.

We believe the foundry market is comprised of five major foundries (including four scaled pure-play foundries) that
accounted for the vast majority of worldwide foundry revenue in 2021. We define a scaled pure-play foundry as a company
that focuses on producing ICs for other companies, rather than those of its own design, with more than $2.5 billion of annual
fof undry revenue. Taiwan Semiconductor Manufacturing Company, Limited (“TSMC”) at $57.2 billion of revenue in 2021
accounted for more than 50% of the total market. Other key competitors include SMIC and United Microelectronics
Corporation (“UMC”), as well as the foundry operation services of some integrated device manufacturers, such as Samsung
and, more recently, Intel Corporation (“Intel”). Integrated Device Manufacturers (“IDMs”) principally manufacture and sell
their own proprietary semiconductor products but may also offer foundry services. Other smaller dedicated foundry
competitors include X-FAB Silicon Foundries, Tower Semiconductor Ltd., Vanguard International Semiconductor Corporation
(“Vanguard”) and WIN Semiconductors Corp. Some of our competitors may offer more advanced or differentiated
technologies than we do and some have greater access to capital and substantially greater production capacity, research
and development (“R&D”), marketing and other resources, including access to government subsidies and economic stimulus
(including protective demand-side measures), than we do. As a result, these companies may be able to compete more
aggressively over a longer period of time than we can.

The principal elements of competition in the wafer foundrff y market include:

• scale and the ability to access capital to fund future growth;

• capacity utilization;

• technical competence, including internal and access to external design enablement capabilities;

• technology leadership and differentiation;

• price;

• time-to-volume production and cycle time;

• time-to-market;

• investment in R&D and related quality of results;

• manufacturing yields;

• optimization of the technology mix of wafer production at particular process technology nodes;

• design/technology interaction and resulting chip reliability;

• customer service and design support;

• management expertise; and

• strategic alliances and geographic diversification.

Our ability to compete successfully also depends on factors partially outside of our control, including component supply,
intellectual property, including cell libraries that our customers embed in their product designs, and industry and general
economic trends.

Our competitors have announced expansions and may continue to expaee nd in the UnitUU ed States and Europe, which
could materially and adversely affect ouff r competitive position.

TSMC, Samsung and Intel have announced plans to develop new fabrication facilities (“fabs”) and substantially increase
their manufacturing capacity in the United States, and other competitors may seek to do likewise. Similarly, our competitors
may seek to develop new fabs in Europe and substantially increase their manufacturing capacity. Such expansions may
increase the attractiveness of our competitors to customers who wish to utilize fabs located in the United States or Europe,
use geographically dispersed suppliers or mitigate risks posed by geopolitical tensions and export controls. Further, it may
lead to increased competition for funding and talent in those jurisdictions. This increased competition could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

The semiconductor industry irr s cii apital-intensive and, if we are unable to invesww t the necessary capital to operate andtt
grorr w our business, we may not remain compii etitive.

To remain competitive and comply with evolving regulatory requirements, we must constantly improve our facilities and
process technologies and carry out extensive R&D, each of which requires investment of significant amounts of capital. The
costs of manufacturing facilities and semiconductor manufacturing equipment continue to rise. We expect to incur additional
capital expenditures in connection with our revenue expansion plans to expand our fabs in Dresden, Germany; Malta, New
York; and Singapore, and in connection with our planned expansion in Crolles, France. Our actual expenditures may exceed
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our planned spend due to global economic and industry-wide equipment or material price increases during the long lead
time to build capacity. Given the fixed-cost nature of our business, we have in the past incurred, and may in the future incur,
operating losses if our revenue does not adequately offset the impact of our capital expenditures and the cost of financing
these expenditures. Additionally, a significant portion of any operating income we do generate is needed to service our
outstanding debt.

We invest significantly in R&D, and to the extent our R&D efforts are unsuccessful, our competitive position may be harmed
and we may not be able to realize a return on our investments. To compete successfully, we must maintain a successful
R&D effort, develop new product technologies, features and manufacturing processes, and improve our existing products
and services, technologies and processes. Our R&D efforts may not deliver the benefits we anticipate. To the extent we do
not timely introduce new technologies and features relative to competitors, we could face cost, product performff ance, and
time-to-market disadvantages, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition,
business and prospects.

Financing, including equity capital, debt financing, customer co-investments and government subsidies, may not be
available on commercially acceptable terms or at all. Any additional debt financing we may undertake could require debt
service and financial and operational requiremrr ents that could adversely affect our business. If we are unable to generate
sufficient cash or raise sufficient capital to meet both our debt service and capital investment requirements, or if we are
unable to raise required capital on favorable terms when needed, we may be forced to curtail revenue expansion plans or
delay capital investment, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business
and prospects.

We may not be able to implement our planned growth and development or maintain the differentiation of our
solutions if we are unablww e to rerr crurr it and retain key executives, managers and skilled technical personnel.rr

We rely on the continued services and contributions of our management team and skilled technical and professional
personnel. In this industry, the competitive pressures to find and retain the most talented personnel are intense and
constant. The sources for highly skilled talent in the industry are often wff ell-known and pursued by competitors. In addition,
with the speed of technological and business change, skills need to be constantly refreshed and built upon. Our business
could suffer if we are unable to fulfill and sustain resource requirements with qualified individuals in required positions
globally. Fulfilling new resource needs on a timely basis continues to be a challenge in this highly competitive market for
semiconductor talent. Competition for talent exists in all of our operating regions, at all levels, emphasizing the importance of
strong employee retention, and if we fail to attract and retain highly skilled talent, our business and results of operations
could be materially adversely impacted.

We receive subsidies and graWW nts in certain crr ountries and regions in which we operate, and a reduction in thett
amount of governmental funding available to us or demands for repayment could increase our costs and affect our
rerr sults of ott perations.

As is the case with other large semiconductor companies, we receive subsidies and grants from governments in certain
countries and regions in which we operate. In response to increased geopolitical tensions, national security and supply chain
concerns, as well as recent supply shortages, the United States and the European Union are implementing new
semiconductor industry incentive programs. For example, in August 2022, the United States enacted the Creating Helpful
Incentives to Produce Semiconductors for America (“CHIPS”) and Science Act of 2022, which appropriates $52 billion in
funding to the domestic semiconductor industry. Similarly, the European Commission proposed the European Chips Act.
These programs represent potentially significant new sources of government funding for capital and R&D investment for our
industry. Historically, we have benefited from these kinds of government programs, and we intend to continue to benefit from
government programs to help fund our expansion efforts. However, we may be unable to secure government funding at the
levels we expect or at all, and the availability of government funding is outside our control. Moreover, should we terminate
any activities or operations related to government funds that we receive or upon which government funds have been
conditioned, we may face adverse consequences. In particular, government agencies could seek to recover subsidies or
grants from us, seek repayment of loans, or could cancel, reduce or deny our requests for future subsidies or grants. This
could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Strong government support in Cu hina for capacity expansion, combined with weaker demand froff m and strained
economic relations with that country, could lead to underutilization or significant ASP erosion for our fabs.

China’s aggressive investment in its “buy from China” initiatives have inflated the capital available for teff chnology
development in China and resulted in an expansion of fabrication capacity for semiconductors. China’s decision to build
capacity for China, to be sourced primarily from indigenous suppliers like SMIC, will have the effect of limiting the Chinese
market for other global suppliers like us, particularly in more mature technology nodes. Increases in China’s fabrication
capacity for semiconductors may also significantly increase the competition we face globally, which may make it more
difficult for us to retain and obtain new customers and lead to material reductions in ASPs.
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Any outbreak of contagious disease, such as the ongoing COVID-19 pandemic, could materially and adversel ly
affff eff ct our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Any outbreak of contagious disease, including, but not limited to, COVID-19, Zika virus, Ebola virus, avian or swine influenza
or severe acute respiratory syndrome, may disrupt our ability to adequately staff our business and may generally disrupt our
operations. The ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has slowed economic growth, including in regions of the world where we, our
customers and suppliers operate, and has negatively impacted the global supply chain, market and economies. We have
significant operations in the United States, Europe, and Singapore, including supply chain and manufacturing facilities and
sales and marketing channels and information technology (“IT”) design and other support services in ther se countries and
regions as well as other countries such as Japan, India, Bulgaria, Taiwan and China.

If the COVID-19 outbreak worsens or continues longer term, or new outbreaks of COVID-19 or other contagious diseases
occur, we may experience material adverse effects on our business, including, among other things:

• declines in sales activities and customer orders;

• significant fluctuations in demand for our products and services, which could in turn cause uncertainty for our
capacity planning, production delays and reduced workforce availability;

• difficulties in domestic and international travel and communications and interruption;

• delays in our planned expansion in Singapore, including from temporary governmental work stoppage orders to
control COVID-19 infection rates or as a result of border closures with Malaysia, both of which have occurred;

• delays in other potential expansion plans; or

• slowdown of R&D activities.

Likewise, such an outbreak of disease could slow or suspend the operations of our suppliers and cause them to be unable
to deliver needed raw materials as required. Any of these factors could materially aff nd adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Sales to government entities and highly regulated organizations are subject to a number of challenges and added
risrr kskk , and our failure to comply with these heightt tened compliance requirementll s, or effectiveltt y managl e these
challenges or risks, could impact our operations and financiaii l results.

We currently sell to the U.S. federal government and to customers in highly regulated industries, and may sell to state and
local governments and to foreign governmental agency customers in the future. Sales to such entities are subject to a
number of compliance challenges and risks, including regarding access to and required protection of classified information.
Failure to comply with Foreign Ownership, Control or Influence (“FOCI”) agreements could lead to a loss of our security
clearance and certain government business and reputational harm. Selling to governmental and highly regulated entities can
be highly competitive, expensive and time-consuming, often requiring significant upfront time and expense without any
assurance that these efforts will generate a sale. Government contracting requirements may change and in doing so restrict
our ability to sell into the government sector until we have attained any revised necessary certification or authorization.
Government demand and payment for our products and services are affected by public sector budgetary cycles and funding
authorizations, with funding reductions or delays adversely affecting public sector demand for our pff roducts and services.
Such sales are made more difficult by the fact that many of our product design and life cycles are very long, compared to
public fiscal budget calendars.

Further, governmental and highly regulated entities may demand contract terms that differ from our standard commercial
arrangements, and those contract terms may be in some respects less favorable than terms agreed to by private sector
customers. Governments routinely retain certain rights to IP developed in connection with government contracts. Such
entities may have statutory, contractual or other legal rights to terminate contracts with us or our partners for convenience or
for other reasons that are out of our control or influence. Any such terminations, or other adverse actions, may materially
adversely affect our ability to contract with other government customers, as well as our reputation, results of operations,
financial condition, business and prospects. In addition, our U.S. government contracts obligate us to comply with various
cybersecurity requirements. These requirements include ongoing investment in systems, policies and personnel, and we
expect these requirements to continue to impact our business in the future by increasing our legal, operational and
compliance costs.

Certain of our government contracts require us to notify the applicable governmental agency and discuss options with the
governmental agency before making certain potential transfers of intellectual property developed under those contracts, and
certain of our government contracts impose specific limitations on our use and licensing of certain of our intellectual
property. Additionally, production of sensitive, export-controlled products for governmental and highly regulated entities
requires adherence to strict export and security controls. In the event of a breach or other security event involving one of
these products, we may be subject to investigations to determine the extent and impact to such products, regulatory
proceedings, litigation, mitigation and other actions, as well as penalties, fines, increased insurance premiums,

11



indemnification expenditures and administrative, civil and criminal liabilities and reputational harm, each of which could
negatively impact operations for multiple products and future business, cause production and sales delays and materially
and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

The implementation of our restructuring plan is ongoing, and it is possible that we may not achieve all of the plan’s
expee ected benefits and, if we do not, thtt e plan may have a material adll verse effect on our businessrr , operations,
fiff nii ancial condition and resulii ts of operations.tt

We communicated and implemented a restructuring plan in order to realign our business and strategic priorities. This
worldwide restructuring plan includes a reduction in the number of full time employees, as well as a reduction in leased
workspaces and engagement of consultants for strategic support.

The implementation of the restructuring plan is ongoing, and it is possible that we may not be able to maintain all the cost
savings and benefits that are anticipated in connection with such plan.

Our reduction in workforce, or similar restructuring program actions, may present a number of significant
risks, including:

• actual or perceived disruption of our manufacturing and/or delivery processes;

• potential adverse effects on our internal control environment and inability to preserve adequate internal controls
relating to our general and administrative functions in connection with the decision to outsource certain business
service activities;

• actual or perceived disruption to distribution networks and other important operational relationships and the inability
to resolve potential conflicts in a timely manner;

• potential difficulty in or failure of meeting our financial or production targets;

• diversion of management attention from ongoing business activities and strategic objectives; and

• failure to maintain employee morale and retain key employees.

Because of these and other factors, we may not fully realize the purpose and anticipated operational benefits or cost
savings of any productivity actions and, if we do not, it may have a material adverse effect on our business, operations,
financial condition and results of operations.

We may be exposed to liabilities if it ill s determined that our compeii nsation arrangements do not comply with, or are
not exempt frff om, Section 409A of the Codrr e.

Section 409A (“Section 409A”) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended (“the Code”), sets forth the rules
governing non-qualified deferred compensation arrangements. Section 409A contains many technical, complicated and
ambiguous rules and regulations, including proposed but not yet finalized regulations that do not currently have the force of
law, making compliance with Section 409A difficult to assess and to ensure. While we have attempted to structure our
compensation arrangements (including our equity incentive awards) so that they either comply with, or are exempt from,
Section 409A, it is possible that some of these compensation arrangements are not so exempt or compliant. In some
instances, we have determined that amendments to certain of our compensation arrangements were advisable in order to
mitigate or eliminate potential Section 409A non-compliance risk, though there can be no assurance that such amendments
will mitigate or eliminate any such risk. If it is determined that any of our compensation arrangements are neither compliant
with, nor exempt from, Section 409A, we may be subject to significant liabilities and costs, including penalties for failing to
properly report deferred compensation arrangements under Section 409A and to withhold taxes payable by our servicerr
providers, including our employees, and we may be required to pay to the applicable governmental authorities the amount of
taxes we should have withheld and related interest and penalties. In addition, those of our service providers, including our
employees, participating in such arrangements may experience significant adverse tax consequences under Section 409A,
including a 20% federal penalty tax imposed on the amount of compensation involved (and, as applicable, similar excise
taxes under state law or foreign law). These liabilities may be significant and the imposition of such liabilities may materially
affect our employee relations. In addition, in the event any such liabilities were imposed on our service providers, includinrr g
our employees, we could decide to take remedial action, including making cash payments to adversely affected service
providers, including our employees. Any amounts so paid by us could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects.
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Improper disclosure of confidential informatII ion could negtt atively ivv mpii act our business.

In the ordinary course of our business, we maintain sensitive data on our networks, including our intellectual property and
proprietary or confidential business information relating to our business and that of our customers and business partners. In
addition, we regularly enter into confidentiality obligations with our customers, suppliers and parties that we license
intellectual property to or from. The secure maintenance of this information is critical to our business and reputation. We
have put in place policies, procedures and technological safeguards designed to protect the security of this information.
However, we cannot guarantee that this information will not be improperly disclosed or accessed. Disclosure of this
information could harm our reputation, subject us to liability under our contracts and harm our relationships with key
counterparties, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

Risks Related to Manufacturing, Operations and Expansion

If we are unable to manage our capacity and production faciliff ties effectively, our competitiveness may be
weakened.

We perform long-term market demanrr d forecasts for our products to manage, and plan for, our overall capacity. Because
market conditions are dynamic, our market demand forecasts may change significantly at any time. During periods of
decreased demand, certain manufacturing lines or tools in some of our manufacturing facilities may be idled or shut down
temporarily, to save costs while preserving capacity. However, if subsequent demand increases rapidly, we may not be able
to restore the capacity in a timely manner to take advantage of the upturn. In light of long-term market demand forecasts, we
have been adding capacity to meet market needs for our products. In some instances, we increase or otherwise manage
capacity by transferring technologies from one location to another. Expansion of our capacity will increase our costs. For
example, we will need to purchase additional equipment, and hire and train additional personnel to operate the new
equipment. In case of a technology transfer, we may also need to source new tooling and materials, train personnel to learn
and stabilize new processes and, depending on the technology, obtain government approval for such transfer. If demand
does not increase as planned or expansion is delayed, we may not increase our net revenue accordingly, which could
materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Because we own and operate high-tech manufacturing facilities, our operations have high costs that are fixed or difficult to
reduce in the short term, including our costs related to utilization of existing facilities, facility construction and equipment,
R&D, and the employment and training of a highly skilled workforce. To the extent demand decreases, capacity does not
increase in time to meet demand or we fail to forecast demand accurately, we could be required to write off inventory or
record underutilization charges, which would lower our gross margin. To the extent any demand decrease is prolonged, our
manufacturing capacity could be underutilized, and we may be required to write down our long-lived assets, which would
increase our expenses. We may also be required to shorten the useful life of under-used facilities and equipment and
accelerate depreciation.

Our manufacturing processes are highly complex, costly and potentially vurr lnerable to impurities and otherr r
disruptions, and cost increases, that can significantly increase our costs and delay product shipments to our
customers.

Our semiconductor manufacturing processes are highly complex, require advanced and costly equipment, are difficult to
transfer and are continuously being modified to improve manufacturing yields and product performance intended to improve
or protect our ability to achieve our revenue and profit plan. Disruptions in manufacturing operations could be caused by
numerous issues including impurities in our raw materials (such as chemicals, gases and wafers), supply chain changes to
support expansion plans, facilities issues (such as electrical power and water outages), equipment failures (such as
performance issues or defects) or IT issues (such as down computer systems and viruses). Any of these issues, and others,
could lower production yields or interrupt manufacturing, which could result in the loss of products in process that could
cause delivery delays, reduced revenue, increased cost or reduced quality delivered to our customers. These factors could
significantly affect our financial results as well as our ability to attract new and retain existing customers.

In the past, we have encountered, among other issues:

• capacity constraints due to changes in product mix or the delayed delivery of equipment critical to our production;

• construction delays during expansions of our clean rooms and other facilities;

• difficulties in upgrading or expanding existing facilities;

• failure of manufacturing execution system or automatic transportation systems;

• unexpected breakdowns in manufacturing equipment and/or related facilities;

• disruptions in connection with changing, transferring or upgrading our process technologies;

• electrical power outages;
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• raw materials shortages and impurities; and

• delays in delivery or shortages of spare parts used in the maintenance of our equipment.

If the above issues recur or we face similar challenges in the future, we may suffer delays in our ability to deliver our
products, which could have a material and adverse effect on our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects. In addition, we cannot guarantee that we will be able to increase our manufacturing capacity and efficiency in the
future to the same extent as in the past. On June 22, 2021, we announced fab expansion plans in Singapore, with the
addition of Module 7H, an extension of our existing 300mm Fab 7 operations. If the above issues recur or we face similar
issues in the future related to the Module 7H expansion, the ramp of production in Module 7H could be delayed, which could
have a material adverse effect on our operations, financial condition and business prospects. Additionally, increases in the
costs of key inputs to fabs, including raw materials, electric power and water, could materially and adversely affect our
results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

We are subjb ect to risii ks associated with the develovv pment and implementation of new manufacturing technologies.

Production of ICs is a complex process. We are continually engaged in the development of new manufacturing process
technologies and features. Forecasting our progress and schedule for developing new process technologies and features is
challenging, and at times we encounter unexpected delays due to the complexity of interactions among steps in the
manufacturing process, challenges in using new materials, and other issues. We may expend substantial resources on
developing new technologies that are ultimately not successful, which may result in our recognizing significant impairment
charges. Diagnosing defects in our manufacturing processes often takes a long time, as manufacturing throughput times can
delay our receipt of data about defects and the effectiveness of fixes. We are not always successful or efficient in developing
or implementing new technologies and manufacturing processes.

Our profit margin may srr ubstantially decline if we are unable to continually improve our manufacturing yields,ii
mainii tatt in high shipment utilization or faii il to optimize the process technology mix of our wafer production.rr

Our ability to maintain our profit margin depends, in part, on our ability to:

• maintain high capacity utilization;

• maintain or improve our production yields; and

• optimize the technology mix of our production by increasing the number of wafers manufactured by utilizing
different processing technologies.

Our shipment utilization affects our operating results because a large percentage of our operating costs is fixed. Our
manufacturing yields directly affect our ability to attract and retain customers, as well as the prices of our services. Different
technologies load the available capacity differently, and an increase of lower margin product demand could lower the
financial performance of a factory while still fully utilizing the available capacity. If we are unable to continuously maintain
high capacity utilization, improve our manufacturing yields or optimize the technology mix of our wafer production, our profit
margin may substantially decline.

Our manufacturing processes are highly complex, require advanced and costly equipment and are continuously being
modified in an effort to improve yields and product performance. Minute impurities or other difficulties in the manufacturing
process can lower yields. Further, at the beginning of each semiconductor technological upgrade, the manufacturing yield
utilizing the new technology may be lower than the yield under current technology. Our manufacturing efficiency is an
important factor in our profitability, and we cannot assure you that we will be able to maintain our manufacturing efficiency or
increase manufacturing efficiency to the same extent as our competitors.

In addition, as is common in the semiconductor industry, we have from time to time experienced difficulty in effecting
transitions to new manufacturing processes. As a consequence, we may suffer delays in product deliveries or reduced
yields. We may experience manufacturing problems in achieving acceptable yields or experience product delivery delays inr
the future as a result of, among other things, capacity constraints, upgrading or expanding our existing facilities or changing
our process technologies, any of which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition,
business and prospects.

We may be uWW nable to obtain manufacturing equipment in a timelii y manner and at a reasonal ble cost that is
necessary for us to rerr main competitive.

Our operations and ongoing revenue expansion plans depend on our ability to obtain complex and specialized
manufacturing equipment and related services from a limited number of suppliers in a market that is characterized from time
to time by limited supply and long delivery cycles. During such times, supplier-specific or industry-wide lead times for
delivery can be as long as twelve months or more. Further, growing complexities of the most valuable equipment may delay
the timely delivery of such equipment and parts needed to capitalize on time-sensitive and perishable business
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opportunities. Industry-wide demand increases for this equipment could increase its market price as well as the market price
of replacement parts and consumable materials needed to operate the equipment. Due in part to demand driven by
significant new sources of funding in China as well as potentially other governments (such as Korea, the United States and
Europe) and the bottleneck created by the most recent semiconductor supply shortage, the current demand for
semiconductor manufacturing equipment and equipment supply constraints are resulting in longer than normal lead times forff
such equipment. If we are unable to obtain equipment in a timely manner to fulfill our customers’ demand on technology and
production capacity, or at a reasonable cost, we may be unable to meet commitments under our contracts with customers,
which could expose us to substantial liquidated damages and other claims and could materially and adversely affect our
results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

If we are unable to obtain adequate supplies of raw materials in a trr imett ly manner and at commercially reasonable
prirr ces our revenvv ue and profitability may decline.

Our production operations require that we obtain adequate supplies of raw materials, such as silicon wafers, gases,
chemicals and photoresist, on a timely basis and at commercially reasonable prices, many of which are not commodities
easily replaced with substitutions. In the past, shortages in the supply of some materials, whether by specific vendors or by
the industry generally, have resulted in occasional industry-wide price adjustments and delivery delays. Moreover, major
natural disasters, trade barriers and political or economic turmoil occurring within the country of origin of such raw materials
may also significantly disrupt the availability of such raw materials or increase their prices. Further, since we procure some
of our raw materials from sole-sourced suppliers, including raw materials that are significant to our production operations,
there is a risk that our need for such raw materials may not be met or that back-up supplies may not be readily available. In
addition, recent trade tensions between the United States and China, as well as the conflict in Ukraine, have resulted in
substantial price volatility and reduced availability of raw materials, including rare earth metals and natural gas used in our
products or in our production operations. Tariffs, sanctions, export controls, other non-tariff barriers, and other measures
undertaken by state actors due to global or local economic conditions could also affect material cost and availability. If the
availability of such raw materials is disrupted, manufacturing lines may be stopped or significantly disrupted, impacting our
supply chain, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations. From time to time, including recently, we
are advised of shortages of raw materials that could impact our operations. We currently are seeking, and in the future will
continue to seek, alternative suppliers and substitute materials and work closely with our existing vendors to support their
efforts to provide us with uninterrupted supply.

Certain raw materials and other inputs, such as energy (e.g., electricity, natural gas, petroleum) and water, necessary for our
production operations have recently experienced and may continue to experience substantial price volatility, including
related to shortages or political or economic instability, in regions where we operate our fabs. We have recently experienced
and may continue to experience increases in electricity costs, particularly in Dresden, Germany and Singapore. Hedging
transactions foff r many of those raw materials and other inputs are not available to us, or are not available on terms we
believe are commercially acceptable. Hedges that we enter into with respect to certain inputs, such as electricity, or
alternative energy supplies we may seek to secure, may not be effective to avoid disruptions to our manufacturing
operations. Additionally, once our prices with a customer are negotiated, we are generally unable to revise pricing with that
customer until our next regularly scheduled price adjustment. As a result, if market prices for essential components increase,
we may be unable to pass the price increases through to our customers for products purchased under an existing
agreement. Consequently, we are exposed to the risks associated with the volatility of prices for these components and our
cost of revenue could increase and our gross margins could decrease in the event of price increases. Recently, as a result
of demand driven by the semiconductor supply shortage, the costs of raw wafers as well as certain other raw materials were
relatively high. Failure to obtain adequate supplies could result in our being unable to meet commitments under our
contracts with customers, which could expose us to substantial liquidated damages and other claims, which could materially
and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Aging infrastructure, power grids and risks to the supply of natural gas, electricity or fresh water could interrupt
prorr ductitt on.

The semiconductor fabrication process requires extensive amounts of fresh water and a stable source of electricity and
natural gas. In addition, it requires effective facilities to manage wastewater. As our production capabilities and our business
grow, our requirements for these factors will grow substantially. Although we have not, to date, experienced any instances of
lack of sufficient supplies of natural gas or water, or material disruptions in the electricity supply to, or wastewater processing
capacity of, any of our fabs beyond temporary or short-term stoppages, the recent conflict between Russia and Ukraine has
created a substantial risk of natural gas shortage in Europe, which may impact our manufacturing site in Dresden, Germany.
Further, we may not have access to sufficient supplies of natural gas, electricity, water or wastewater processing capacity to
accommodate our planned growth. Pipeline interruptions, power interruptions, electricity shortages, droughts, geopolitical
tensions, or government intervention, particularly in the form of rationing, are factors that could restrict our access to these
utilities in the areas in which our fabs are located. If there is an insufficient supply of fresh water, natural gas, electricity or
wastewater processing capacity to satisfy our requirements, we may need to limit or delay our production. In addition, a
power outage, even of very limited duration, could result in a loss of wafers in production and a deterioration in yield. Any of
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these occurrences could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

FaFF ilurii e to adjust orr ur supply chain volume due to changing market conditions or failudd re to estimate our customers’
demand could adversely affect our sales and/or our gross margin and coudd ld result in additional charges for
obsolete or exee cess inventories or non-cancelable purchase commitmenrr ts.

We make significant decisions, including determining the levels of business that we will seek and accept, production
schedules, personnel needs and other resource requirements, based on our estimates of customer requirements. The
possibility of rapid changes in demand for our customers’ products reduces our ability to accurately estimate our customers’
future requirements for our products. On occasion, our customers may require rapid increases in production, which can
challenge our resources. We may not have sufficient capacity at any given time to meet our customers’ demands.
Conversely, downturns in the semiconductor industry have in the past caused and may in the future cause our customers to
significantly reduce the amount of products ordered from us. Because many of our sales, R&D, and manufacturing expenses
are relatively fixed, a reduction in customer demand may decrease our gross margins and operating income, which could
materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

In addition, we base many of our operating decisions, and enter into purchase commitments, on the basis of anticipated
sales, which are highly unpredictable. Some of our purchase commitments are non-cancelable, and in some cases we are
required to recognize a charge representing the amount of material or capital equipment purchased or ordered that exceeds
our actual requirements. For example, we have non-cancelable purchase commitments with vendors and LTAs with certain
of our third-party wafer fabrication partners, under which we are required to purchase a minimum number of wafers per year
or face financial penalties. These types of commitments and agreements could reduce our ability to adjust our inventory to
address declining market demands. If demand for our products is less than we expect, we may experience additional excess
and obsolete inventories and be forced to incur additional charges. If sales in future periods fall substantially below our
expectations, or if we fail to accurately forecast changes in demand mix, we could again be required to record substantial
charges for obsolete or excess inventories or non-cancelable purchase commitments.

Moreover, during a market upturn, we may not be able to purchase sufficient supplies or components to meet increasing
product demand, which could prevent us from taking advantage of opportunities and reduce our sales. In addition, a supplier
could discontinue a component necessary for our design, extend lead times, limit supply or increase prices due to capacity
constraints or other factors. Our failure to adjust our supply chain volume or estimate our customers’ demands could
materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Historically, we do not typically operate with any significant backlog, except in periods of capacity shortage. The historic lack
of significant backlog and the unpredictable length and timing of semiconductor cycles makes it more difficult for us to
accurately forecast revenue in future periods. Moreover, our expense levels are based in part on our expectations of future
revenue, and we may be unable to fully adjust costs in a timely manner to compensate for revenue shortfalls.

Certain of our debt agreerr ments contain covenants that may constrain the operation of our business, and our failure
to comply with these covenants could materially and adversely affect oul r results of operations, financial condition,
business and prospects.

Restrictive covenants in our credit facilities may prevent us from pursuing certain transactions or business strategies,
including by limiting our ability to, in certain circumstances:

• incur additional indebtedness;

• pay dividends or make distributions;

• acquire assets or make investments outside of the ordinary course of business;

• sell, lease, license, transfer or otherwise dispose of assets;

• enter into transactions with our affiliates;

• create or permit liens;

• guarantee indebtedness; and

• engage in certain extraordinary transactions.

Failure to comply with any of the covenants in our debt agreements, including due to events beyond our control, could result
in an event of default. The holders of the defaulted debt could terminate commitmeff nts to lend and accelerate amounts
outstanding to be due and payable immediately. This could also result in cross-defaults under our other debt instruments,
significantly impacting our liquidity and ability to fund our operations. Any of these occurrences could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.
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We may be subject to the risii k of loss due to fire bii ecause the materials we use in our manufacturing processes areii
highly flammable.

We use highly flammable materials such as silane and hydrogen in our manufacturing processes and may therefore be
subject to the risk of loss arising from fires. The risk of fire associated with these materials cannot be completely eliminated.
We maintain insurance policies to reduce losses caused by fire, including business interruption insurance. However, our
insurance coverage is subjeb ct to deductibles and self-insured retention and may not be sufficient to cover all of our potential
losses. If any of our fabs were to be damaged or cease operations as a result of a fire, our manufacturing capacity would be
reduced, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Our operations are subject to the risii ks of earthquakkk es, fireskk , floods, severe weather inciii dents and other naturalrr
catatt strtt orr phic events, and to interruption by man-made problems such as power disrdd uprr tions, industrial accidents, or
terrorirr sii m.

Significant natural disasters such as earthquakes, fires, floods, severe weather incidents or acts of terrorism occurring in any
of our manufacturing or office locations, or where a business partner, such as a customer or supplier, is located, could
adversely affect our operational and financial performff ance. In addition, natural disasters, spills or hazardous exposure
incidents, accidents and acts of terrorism could cause disruptions in our business or our suppliers’ or customers’ businesses,
national economies or the global economy as a whole, and we may not have insurance coverage for these matters. Our
operations, as well as our computing systems, are vulnerable to interference, or interruption from terrorist attacks, natural
disasters or pandemics (including COVID-19), the effects of climate change (such as sea level rise, drought, flooding,
wildfires, increased average temperatures and increased storm severity), power loss, telecommunications failures, criminal
fraud or impersonation, inadvertent or intentional actions by our employees, or other attempts to harm or access our
systems. In the event of a major disruption caused by a natural disaster or any of the foregff oing, we may be unable to
continue our operations and may endure system interruptions, reputational harm, delays in our development activities,
lengthy interruptions in service, breaches of data security and loss of critical data or personal information, any of which could
materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects. We are also at risk of
data breaches, as further described below.

ThTT e risk of cyberattacks and other data security breaches requires us to incur significant costs to maintain the
securirr ty of our networks and data, and, in the event of such breaches, may expose us to liability, adversely affect
our operations, damage our reputation, and affect our net revenue and profitability, and our efforts to combat
breach and misuse of our systems and unauthorized access to our data may not be successful.

We rely on our IT systems and those of our service providers to conduct much of our business operations. Our and our
service providers’ IT and computer systems store and transmit customer information, trade secrets, corporate data and
personal information, and are otherwise essential to the operation of our production lines, which may make us a target for
cyberattacks. In addition, our accreditation as a Trusted Foundry by the Defense Microelectronics Activity (“DMEA”) and our
processing of sensitive information may make us an attractive target for attacks, including industrial or nation-state
espionage, organized criminals, and terrorist cyberattacks. Hackers may seek to disrupt our operations, blackmail us to
regain control of our systems, or spy on us for sensitive information. Further, we depend on our employees and the
employees of our service providers to appropriately handle confidential and sensitive data and deploy our IT resources in a
safe and secure manner that does not expose our network systems to security breaches or the loss of data. However, there
is always a risk that inadvertent disclosure or actions or internal malfeasance by our employees or those of our service
providers could result in a loss of data or a breach or interruption of our IT systems.

We are making significant investments in cybersecurity and data security, as well as other efforts to combat breach and
misuse of our systems and unauthorized access to our and our customers’ data by third parties. While we seek to
continuously review and assess our cybersecurity policies and procedures to ensure their adequacy and effectiveness, all IT
and computer systems are vulnerable to attacks, especially via methods that have not been observed yet or quickly evolve.
The risk of security breaches may be higher during times of a natural disaster or pandemic (including COVID-19) due to
remote working arrangements. We cannot guarantee that our IT and computer systems which control or maintain vital
corporate functions, such as our manufacturing operations and enterprise accounting, would be immune to cyberattacks. In
the event of a serious cyberattack, our systems may lose important customer information, trade secrets, corporate data or
personal information, or our production lines may be shut down pending the resolution of such an attack.

In addition, we employ certain third-party service providers for us and our affiliates worldwide with whom we need to share
highly sensitive and confidential information to enable them to provide the relevant services. While, to date, we have not
been subject to cyberattacks which, individually or in the aggregate, have been material to our operations or financial
conditions, some of our third-party service providers have experienced cyberattacks of which we have been made aware.

Despite requiring certain third-party service providers to comply with the confidentiality and security requirements in our
service agreements with them, there is no assurance that each of them will strictly fulfill any of their obligations or that they
will be successful in preventing further cyberattacks. The on-site network systems and the off-site cloud coff mputing networks
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such as servers maintained by these service providers and/or theirr r contractors are also subject to risks associated with
cyberattacks. While we attempt to take prompt action once we are alerted to a cyberattack against one of our third-party
service providers and implement steps designed to mitigate associated risks to our systems and data, we may in the future
not be made aware of such events in a timely manner or may be unable to successfully sever network connectivity or
otherwise limit the risk to our own systems.

If we or our service providers are not able to timely contain, remediate and resolve the respective issues caused by
cyberattacks and data breaches, or ensure the integrity and availability of our systems and data (or data belonging to our
customers or other third parties) or control of our or our service providr ers’ IT or computer systems, then such attacks,
breaches or failures could:

• disrupt the proper functioning of these networks and systems and, therefore, our operations and/or those of certain
of our customers;

• result in the unauthorized access to, and destruction, loss, theft, misappropriation or release of, proprietary,
confidential, sensitive or otherwise valuable information of ours, our customers or our employees, including trade
secrets, which could be used to compete against us or for disruptive, destructive or otherwise harmful purposes
and outcomes;

• result in litigation and governmental investigation and proceedings that could expose us to civil or criminal liabilities;

• compromise national security and other sensitive government functions;

• require significant management attention and resources to remedy the damages that result;

• result in our incurring significant expenses in implementing remedial and improvement measures to enhance our IT
network or computer systems;

• result in costs which exceed our insurance coverage and/or indemnification arrangements;

• subject us to claims foff r contract breach, damages, credits, penalties or termination; and

• damage our reputation with our customers (including the U.S. government) and the general public.

Further, remediation efforts may not be successful and could result in interruptions, delays or cessation of service,
unfavorable publicity, damage to our reputation, customer allegations of breach-of-contract, possible litigation, and loss of
existing or potential customers that may impede our sales or other critical functions. Additionally, any such attack or
unauthorized access may require spending resources on correcting the breach and indemnifying the relevant parties and
litigation, regulatory investigations, regulatory proceedings, increased insurance premiums, lost revenue, penalties fines and
other potential liabilities.

Any of the foregoing factors could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

Compliance with applicable data security and data privacrr y laws and regulc ations may be costlll y anl d, in the case of a
brerr ach of applicable law, could harm our reputation.

In the United States, federal and state laws impose limits on, or requirements regarding the collection, distribution, use,
security and storage of personal information of individuals, and there has been increased regulation of data privacy and
security particularly at the state level, including the California Consumer Privacy Act (effective on January 1, 2020), and the
California Privacy Rights Act (effective on January 1, 2023). Currently, many states are actively considering or enacting
similar laws and we operate in many of these jurisdictions. Outside the United States, the European Union and other
countries in which we operate also have privacy and data protection laws, regulations and standards.

The interpretation and application of many of these existing or recently enacted laws and regulations are increasingly
complex, uncertain and fluid, and could be inconsistent with our existing data management practices. For example, recent
developments in Europe have created complexity and uncertainty regarding transfers of personal data from the European
Economic Area (“EEA”) and the United Kingdom (“UK”) to the United States and other jurisdictions. Furthermore, the long-
term regulation of data transfers between the EEA and the UK is uncertain, as a relevant adequacy decision enabling such
transfers is due to expire. These developments could lead to substantial costs, require significant changes, divert the
attention of our technology personnel, adversely affect our margins, increase costs and subject us to additional liabilities. If
we are unable to transfer personal data between and among countries and regions in which we operate, it could affect the
geographical location or segregation of our relevant systems and operations, and could adversely affect our financial results.
In addition, the existing EU and UK privacy laws on cookies and e-marketing are also in flux and are likely to be replaced by
new regulations, which may introduce more stringent requirements for using cookies and similar technologies for directff
marketing and significantly increase fines for non-compliance in-line with the General Data Protection Regulation (“GDPR”).
Stricter enforcement of such laws could limit the effectiveness of our marketing activities, divert the attention of our
technology personnel, increase costs and subject us to additional liabilities.
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Inappropriate disclosure of personal and other sensitive data, even if inadvertent, or other actual or perceived violations of or
noncompliance with such laws and regulations could expose us to significant administrative, civil or criminal liability as well
as reputational harm. For example, a breach of the GDPR could result in fines of up to 20 million euros (“EUR”) under the
European GDPR or British pound sterling (“GBP”) 17.5 million under the U.K. GDPR or up to 4% of the annual global
revenue of the infringer, whichever is greater, as well as regulatory investigations, reputational damage, orders to cease or
change our processing of personal data, enforcement notices and/or assessment notices (for a compulsory audit). Privacy-
related claims or lawsuits initiated by governmental bodies, employees or other third parties, whether meritorious or not,
could be time-consuming, result in costly regulatory proceedings, litigation, penalties and fines, or require us to change our
business practices, sometimes in expensive ways, or other potential liabilities.

Additionally, a failure to comply with the National Institute of Standards and Technology Special Publication 800-171 or the
Department of Defense (”DoD”)’s cybersecurity requirements, including the Cyber Security Material Model Certificate
(“CMMC”), which will require all contractors to receive specific third-party cybersecurity certifications to be eligible for
contract awards, could restrict our ability to bid for, be awarded and perform on DoD contracts. The DoD expects that all new
contracts will be required to comply with the CMMC by 2026, and initial requests for information and for proposal have
already begun. We are in the process of evaluating our readiness and preparing for the CMMC. To the extent we, or our
subcontractors or other third parties on whom we rely are unable to achieve certification in advance of contract awards that
specify the requirement, we may be unable to biff d on contract awards or follow-on awards for existing work with the DoD,
which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects. We will
also be required to go through a recertification process every two years. In addition, any obligations that may be imposed on
us under the CMMC may be different from or in addition to those otherwise required by applicable laws and regulations,
which may cause additional expense for compliance.

Our products may contain defects that could harm our reputation, be corr stly to correct, delay revenrr ue and exposexx
us to lititt gi ation.

Our products are highly complex and sophisticated and, from time to time, may contain defects, errors, hardware failures or
other failures that are difficult to detect and correct. Errors, defects and other failures may be found in new solutions,
products or services or improvements to existing solutions, products or services after delivery to our customers. If these
defects, errors and failures are discovered, we may not be able to successfully correct them in a timely manner or otherwise
mitigate or eliminate the impact of the error or failure. The occurrence of errors, defects and other failures in our products
could result in the delay or the denial of market acceptance of our products and alleviating such errors, defects and other
failures may require us to make significant expenditure of our resources. Our products are often used for critical business
processes and as a result, any defect in or failure of our products may cause customers to reconsider renewing their
contract with us, cause significant customer dissatisfaction and possibly giving rise to claims for indemnification or other
monetary damages. The harm to our reputation resulting from errors, defects and other failures may be material. Any claims
for actual or alleged losses to our customers’ businesses may require us to spend significant time and money in litigation or
arbitration or to pay significant settlements or damages. Defending a lawsuit, regardless of merit, can be costly and divert
management’s attention and resources. Accordingly, any such claim could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Any problem in the semiconductor outsourcing infrastrutt cture could materially and adversely affect our resuff lts of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Many of our customers depend on third parties to provide assembly, testing and other related services. Many of theserr
services are geographically concentrated primarily in Asia. If these customers cannot timely obtain those services on
reasonable terms, they may not order foundry products and services from us, which could materially and adversely affect
our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Risks Related to Intellectual Property

Any failure to obtain, maintain, protect or enforce our intellectll ual property and proprietary rights could impair our
ability to protect our proprietary technology and our brand.

Our success depends to a significant degree on our ability to obtain, maintain, protect and enforce our intellectual property
rights. We rely on a combination of patents, trade secrets, copyrights, trademarks, service marks, and other forms of
intellectual property, contractual restrictions and confidentiality procedures to establish and protect our proprietary rights.
However, the steps we take to obtain, maintain, protect and enforce our intellectual property rights may be inadequate. We
may not be able to protect our technology, know-how, and/or brand if we are unable to enforce our rights for whatever
reason or if we do not detect unauthorized use of our intellectual property rights. If we fail to protect our intellectual property
rights adequately, our competitors may gain access to our proprietary technology and develop and commercialize
substantially similar products, services or technologies, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial condition, business and prospects.
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We have filed various applications for certain aspects of our intellectual property in the United States and other countries,
and we have built a comprehensive patent portfolio of approximately 9,000 worldwide patents. In the future, we may acquire
additional patents or patent portfolios, license patents from third parties or agree to license the technology of third parties,
which could require significant cash expenditures. Our patents do not cover all of our technologies, systems, products and
product components and our competitors or others may design around our patented technologies. Further, when we seek
patent protection fof r a particular technology, there is no assurance that the applications we file will result in issued patents or
that if patents do issue as a result that they will be found to be valid and enforceable or thff at they will effectively block
competitors from creating competing technology. In addition, we may need to license technology from third parties to
develop and market new products and we cannot be certain that we could license that technology on commercially
reasonable terms or at all. Our inability to license this technology could harm our ability to compete and materially and
adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Some of our know-how or technology is not patented or patentable and may constitute trade secrets. To protect our trade
secrets, we have a policy of requiring our employees, consultants, advisors and other collaborators who contribute to our
material intellectual property to enter into confidentiality agreements. We also rely on customary contractual protections with
our suppliers and customers, and we implement security measures intended to protect our trade secrets, know-how and
other proprietary information. However, no assurances can be given that those contracts will not be breached. Further, those
contracts and arrangements may be ineffective in protecting our intellectual property and may not prevent unauthorized
disclosure. See also “—There is a risk that our trade secrets, know-how and other proprietary information will be stolen,
used in an unauthorized manner, or compromised, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial condition, business and prospects.” In addition, third parties may independently develop technologies that may be
substantially equivalent or superior to our technology.

ThTT ere is a rrr irr sk that our trade secretii s, know-htt ow and other proprietary information will be stolen, used in an
unauthtt orirr zeii d manner, or compromirr sii ed, which could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial condition, business and prospects.ii

Our trade secrets, know-how and other proprietary information may be stolen, used in an unauthorized manner, or
compromised through a direct intrusion by private parties or foreign actors, including those affiliated with or controlled by
state actors, through cyber intrusions into our computer systems, physical theft through corporate espionage or other
means, or through more indirect routes, including by joint venture partners, licensees that do not honor the terms of the
license, potential licensees that were ultimately not licensed, or other parties reverse engineering our company’s solutions,
products or components. Any of the foregoing factors could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial condition, business and prospects.

The laws of some foreign countries may not be as protective of intellectual property rights as those in the United
States, and mechanisms for enforcement of intellectual property rights may be inadequate.

The absence of internationally harmonized intellectual property laws and different enforcement regimes makes it more
difficult to ensure consistent protection of our proprietary rights. Our strong international presence may lead to increased
exposure to unauthorized copying and use of our manufacturing technologies and proprietary information. Moreover,
policing unauthorized use of our technologies, trade secrets, and intellectual property may be difficult, expensive and time-
consuming, particularly in fof reign countries where the laws may not be as protective of intellectual property rights as those in
the United States and where mechanisms for enforcement of intellectual property rights may be weak. Accordingly, despite
our efforts, we may be unable to prevent third parties from infringing upon, misappropriating or otherwise violating our
intellectual property rights. Our inability to secure or enforce our intellectual property rights could materially and adversely
affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

We have been, and may continii ue to be, subject to intellectual property disputrr es, which are costly and may subject
us to significant liability and increased costs of doing business.

The semiconductor industry is subjb ect to claims of infringement by patent owners and is characterized by frequent litigation
regarding patent rights. From time to time, we receive communications from third parties that allege that our products or
technologies infringe their patent or other intellectual property rights and we have had patent infringement lawsuits filed
against us claiming that certain of our products, services, or technologies infringe the intellectual property rights of others.
We may continue to become subject to such intellectual property disputes in the future. Further, we have entered into
licenses, including patent licenses with third parties in settlements of claims or in order to avoid intellectual property disputes
and the loss of license rights, including as a result of a termination or expiration of such licenses, may limit our ability to use
certain technologies in the future, which could cause us to incur significant costs, prevent us from commercializing certain of
our products or otherwise have a material adverse effect on us. In addition, there may be issued patents held by third parties
that, if fof und to be valid and enforceable, could be alleged to be infringed by our current or future technologies or products.
There also may be pending patent applications of others that may result in issued patents, which could be alleged to be
infringed by our current or future technologies or products.
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In order to protect our intellectual property rights, we may be required to spend significant resources to monitor and protect
those rights. Litigation brought to protect and enforce our intellectual property rights could be costly, time-consuming and
distracting to management. Further, our efforts to enforce our intellectual property rights may be met with defenses,
counterclaims and countersuits attacking the validity and enforceability of our intellectual property rights, and if such
defenses, counterclaims or countersuits are successful, we could lose valuable intellectual property rights. Our inability torr
protect our proprietary technology against unauthorized copying or use, as well as any costly litigation or diversion of our
management’s attention and resources, could delay the implementation of our manufacturing technologies, delay
introductions of new solutions or injure our reputation and could have a material and adverse effect on our results of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Further, many of our agreements with our customers and partners, the terms of which often survive termination or expiration
of the applicable agreement, require us to defend such parties against certain intellectual property infringement claims and
indemnify them for damages and losses arising from certain intellectual property infringement claims against them, which
have in the past resulted, and could in the future result, in increased costs for defending such claims or significant damages
if there is an adverse ruling in any such claims. These defense costs and indemnity payments could materially and
adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects. Such customers and partners may
also discontinue the use of our products, services, and solutions, as a result of injunctions or otherwise, which could result in
loss of revenue and adversely affect our business. We may also have to seek a license for the technology, which may not be
available on reasonable terms, if at all, and may significantly increase our operating expenses or may require us to restrict
our business activities and limit our ability to develop and deliver our products. As a result, we may also be required to
develop alternative non-infringing technology, which could require significant effort and expense or which may not be
possible, which could negatively affect our business. Moreover, intellectual property indemnities provided to us by our
suppliers, when obtainable, may not cover all damages and losses suffered by us and our customers arising from intellectual
property infringement claims. Even if we were to prevail in such a dispute, any litigation regarding our intellectual property
could be costly and time-consuming and divert the attention of our management and key personnel from our business
operations.

Any of the fof regoing factors could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

Our success depends, in part, on our ability tll o develop and commercialize ouii r technology withww out infringing,
misappropriating or otherwise violating the intellectual property rights of third parties and we may not be aware of
such infringements, misappropriations or viorr lations.

Third parties may bring claims alleging infringement, misappropriation or violation of intellectual property rights. We cannot
guarantee that we have not, do not or will not infringe, misappropriate or otherwise violate the intellectual property rights of
others. Our technologies may not be able to withstand any third-party claims against their use. In addition, some companies
may have the capability to dedicate substantially greater resources to enforce their intellectual property rights and to defend
claims that may be brought against them. Furthermore, third parties have and may continue to assert infringement claims
against us in the future, including the sometimes aggressive and opportunistic actions of non-practicing entities whose
business model is to obtain patent-licensing revenue from operating companies such as us. Regardless of the merit of such
claims, any claim that we have violated intellectual property or other proprietary rights of third parties, whether or not it
results in litigation, is settled out of court or is determined in our favor, could be expensive and time-consuming, and could
divert the time and attention of management and technical personnel from our business. The litigation process is subject to
inherent uncertainties, and we may not prevail in litigation matters regardless of the merits of our position. In some
jurisdictions, plaintiffs can also seek injunctive relief that maff y limit the operation of our business or prevent the marketing
and selling of our services that infringe or allegedly infringe on the plaintiff’s intellectual property rights. If a third party is able
to obtain an injunction preventing us from using our technology, accessing third-party intellectual property rights, or if we
cannot license or develop alternative technology for any infringing aspect of our business, we could be forced to limit or stop
manufacturing activities or sales of our products or cease other business activities related to such intellectual property. To
resolve these claims, we may enter into licensing agreements with restrictive terms or significant fees, stop selling our
products or services or be required to implement costly or inferior redesigns to the affected products or services, or pay
damages to satisfy contractual obligations to others. If we do not resolve these claims in advance of a trial, there is no
guarantee that we will be successful in court. These outcomes could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

We may be unable to provide technology to ogg ur customers if we lose the support of orr ur technology partners.

Enhancing our manufacturing process technologies is critical to our ability to provide services for our customers. We intend
to continue to advance our process technologies through internal R&D and alliances with other companies. In addition to our
internal R&D focused on developing new and improved semiconductor manufacturing process technologies, our business
involves collaboration, including customization and other development of technologies and intellectual property, with and for
our customers, vendors and other third parties. We frequently enter into agreements with customers, vendors, equipment
suppliers and others that involve customization and other development of technologies and intellectual property. As a result
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of these agreements, we may be required to limit use of, or refrain from using, certain technologies and intellectual property
rights in parts of our business. Determining inventorship and ownership of technologies and intellectual property rights
resulting from development activities can be difficult and uncertain.

Disputes may arise with customers, vendors and other third parties regarding ownership of and rights to use and enforce
these technologies and intellectual property rights or regarding interpretation of our agreements with these third parties, and
these disputes may result in claims against us or claims that intellectual property rights are not owned by us, are not
enfof rceable, or are invalid. The cost and effort to resolve these types of disputes, or the loss of rights in technologies in
intellectual property rights if we lose these types of disputes, could harm our business and financial condition. In addition,
our customers, vendors and other third parties may suffer delays, quality issues, or other problems affecting their
development activities and ability to supply us with certain technology and intellectual property, which could adversely affect
our business and operating results. Further, if we are unable to continue any of our joint development arrangements or other
agreements, on mutually beneficial terms, or if we cannot re-evaluate the technological and economic benefits of such
relationships with these partners, vendors or suppliers in a timely manner sufficient to support our ongoing technology
development, we may be unable to continue providing our customers with leading edge or differentiated mass-producible
process technologies and may, as a result, lose important customers, which could have a materially adverse effect on our
results of operations, financial condition, businesses and prospects.

Risks Related to Strategic Transactions

We are in the process of implementinrr g a strategic collaboration with ST Microelectronics (“ST”) pursuant to whichMM
ST and the Company are building out a new fab in Crolles, France. Faiii lure to suii ccessfully implement and managell
the strategic collall boration may adversely affect our results of operation, finaff ncial conditions, business andii
prorr sps ectstt .

In August 2022, we entered into a Commercial and Cooperation Agreement with STMicroelectronics (Crolles 2) SAS, a
French company, for the buildout and joint operation of a new 300mm semiconductor manufacturing facility. This facility is
targeted to ramp to 620,000 300mm wafers per year production at full build-out. Implementing this strategic collaboration is
a complex and lengthy process that requires, among other things, obtaining regulatory approvals, substantial government
funding (which requires EU approval), paying their respective share of certain capital investments, and cooperating on the
joint operation of the facility. We may not be successful in our efforts to build and operate this new facility, and we may not
achieve the expected benefits that we expected to achieve.

We may, at any time, have disagreements with ST or have interests or goals that are inconsistent with ST’s goals, which
may result in conflicting views as to the buildout and operation of the facility, which disagreements or conflicts may not be
resolved in our favor. Because ST will own the building for the manufacturing facility, we inherently have a lesser degree off
control over business operations, thereby increasing the financial, legal, operational, and/or compliance risks to us. We may
not be able to oversee all aspects of the buildout and operation, which may lead to a potential inability to implement
adequate internal controls covering the collaboration. Additionally, we will depend on ST to commit sufficient resources to the
project, over which we will have no control. The collaboration requires us to partially rely on the financial condition of ST and
could be adversely affected by any significant change in its financial conditions.

The collaboration is also subjb ect to the risk that we or ST may not obtain the substantial government funding that is needed
to make the project a success, which funding is subject to many practical, legal and political challenges that are outside of
our control.

If any of the above risks come to fruition, we may be delayed or may be unsuccessful in our efforts to implement this
collaboration or jointly operate the facility, or we may incur losses on the project, all of which could have a material adverse
effect on our results of operations and our financial condition.

We may make strategic acquisitions, aWW nd such acquisitions may introduce significant risii ks and uncertainties,
includidd nii g risks related to integrating the acquired companies, assets or businesses.

We have in the past sought, and may in the future seek, to acquire or invest in businesses, joint ventures and technologies
that we believe could complement or expand our capacity, enhance our technology offerings or otherwise offer growth
opportunities. These efforts may divert the attention of management and cause us to incur various expenses in identifying,
investigating and pursuing suitable opportunities, whether or not the transactions are completed, and may result in
unfoff reseen operating difficulties and expenditures. These transactions, particularly acquisitions, may be subjb ect to regulatory
approvals, including approval from the Committee on Foreign Investment in the United States (“CFIUS”) and approvals from
antitrust authorities. With regard to CFIUS, our transactions may be more likely to require CFIUS review given the expansion
of CFIUS jurisdiction to critical technologies. Failure to obtain CFIUS approval, as applicable, and other required regulatory
approvals may delay or otherwise limit our ability to make strategic transactions. Our integration efforts may periodically
expose deficiencies in the controls and procedures relating to cybersecurity and the compliance with data privacy and
protection laws, regulations and standards of an acquired company or business that were not identified in our due diligence
undertaken prior to consummating the acquisition. Additionally, we may encounter difficulties assimilating or integrating the

22



businesses, technologies, products, personnel or operations of any acquired companies, particularly if the key personnel of
an acquired company cannot be retained, or we have difficulty preserving the customers of any acquired business. Any such
transactions that we are able to complete may not result in the synergies or other benefits we expected to achieve, which
could result in substantial impairment charges. These transactions could also result in dilutive issuances of equity securities
or the incurrence of debt, which could adversely affect our results of operations. Any of the foregoing factors could materially
and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Political, Regulatory and Legal Risks

Environmental, health and safety laws and regulations expose us to liability and risk oii f non-compliance, and any
such liability or non-complianll ce could adversely afferr ct our business.

In each jurisdiction in which we operate, our operations are subject to diverse environmental, health and safety laws and
regulations that govern, among other things, emissions of pollutants into the air, wastewater discharges, the use and
handling of hazardous substances, waste disposal, the investigation and remediation of soil and ground water contamination
and the health and safety of our employees. Semiconductor manufacturing depends on a wide array of process materials,
including hazardous materials that are subject to local, state, national or international regulations. These materials, our
manufacturing operations and our products and services are subject to diverse environmental, health and safety laws,
regulations and regulatory requirements. Sourcing of materials could also present reputational risks if our direct or indirect
suppliers are found to be in violation of environmental health and safety regulations, or of ethical or human rights regulations
or standards.

Regulatory changes, including restrictions on new or existing materials critical to our manufacturing processes, such as per-
and polyfluoroalkyl substances, increased restrictions related to wastewater, air emissions and hazardous substances,
changes to necessary permitting requirements, or changes in interpretations, could cause disruptions to our operations or
necessitate additional costs or capital expenditures, such as those associated with identifying and qualifying substitute
materials or processes, or with installing additional controls related to wastewater, air emissions or waste management.
Regulatory limitations or restrictive covenants at contaminated properties could affect our ability to expand manufacturing
operations or capacities and may affect our ability to import materials or equipment.

Industrial accidents or releases, including those associated with storage, use, transportation or disposal of hazardous
materials or wastes, could expose us to liabilities or remediation obligations and we may not have insurance coverage for
such matters. Non-compliance with environmental, health and safety regulations or associated permit requirements may
result in liabilities or monetary penalties. Non-compliance with or public controversy regarding environmental, health and
safety matters could result in reputational harm.

Certain environmental laws, including the Comprehensive Environmental Response, Compensation and Liability Act, the
Resource Conservation and Recovery Act and state equivalents, make us potentially liable on a strict, joint and several
basis for the investigation and remediation of contamination at, or originating from, facilities that are currently or formerly
owned or operated by us and third-party sites to which we send or have sent materials for disposal or materials for recycling,
along with related natural resources damages. We could become subject to potential material liabilities for tff he investigation
and cleanup of historic contamination on the U.S. properties where we operate should the currently responsible parties
cease their ongoing remediation efforts notwithstaff nding their contractual obligations to us.

Regulations and customer-imposed requirements in response to climate change could result in additional costs related to
changes in process materials, control of process emissions, “carbon taxes” or related fees, and sourcing of energy supplies.
Increased frequency of extreme weather events, and chronic conditions like higher temperatures and droughts could cause
disruptions to our manufacturing facilities, non-manufacturing operations and supply chain.

We have policies, controls, and procedures designed to help ensure compliance with applicable laws, including as part of
our Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG”) initiatives. However, there can be no assurance that our employees,
contractors, suppliers or agents will not violate such laws or our policies. Violations of these laws and regulations can result
in fines, criminal sanctions against us, our officers, or our employees, prohibitions on the conduct of our business, and
damage to our reputation. Any of the foregoing factors could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial condition, business and prospects.

We are subject to anti-corruption, anti-bribery, anti-money laundering, cott unter-terrorist finanrr cing laws and similar
lall ws and regulations, and non-compliance with such laws, regulations and stll andards can subject us tott
administrative, criminal ovv r civil liabvv ility and harm our business, finanll cial condition, results of operations and
rerr pe utation.

We are subject to the U.S. Foreign Corrupt Practices Act of 1977, as amended, U.S. anti-bribery laws and other anti-
corruption, anti-bribery, anti-money laundering and counter-terrorist financing laws and regulations in the countries in which
we conduct business. Anti-corruption and anti-bribery laws have been enforced aggressively in recent years and are
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interpreted broadly to generally prohibit companies, their employees and their third-party intermediaries from authorizing,
offering or providing, directly or indirectly, improper payments or benefits to recipients in the public or private sectors. In
connection with our international sales and business and sales to the public sector, we may engage with business partners
and third-party intermediaries to market our products and services and to obtain necessary permits, licenses, and other
regulatory approvals. In addition, our third-party intermediaries, or other business partners, may have direct or indirect
interactions with officials and employees of government agencies or state-owned or affiliated entities. We can be held liable
for corrupt or other illegal activities of these third-party intermediaries or other business partners, their employees,
representatives, contractors, partners, and agents, even if we do not explicitly authorize such activities. Although we have
policies and procedures to address compliance with such laws and regulations, there is a risk that our employees and
agents will take actions in violation of our policies and applicable law, for which we may be ultimately held responsible.

Detecting, investigating and resolving actual or alleged violations of anti-corruption laws can require a significant diversion of
time, resources and attention from senior management. In addition, noncompliance with anti-corruption, anti-bribery, anti-
money laundering or counter-terrorist financing laws and regulations could subject us to whistleblower complaints,
investigations, sanctions, settlements, prosecution, enforcement actions, fines, damages, other civil or criminal penalties or
injunctions, suspension or debarment from contracting with certain persons, reputational harm, adverse media coverage and
other collateral consequences. If any subpoenas or investigations are launched, or governmental or other sanctions are
imposed, or if we do not prevail in any possible civil or criminal proceeding, our results of operations, financial condition,
business and prospects could be materially and adversely affected. Even in the event of a positive outcome in such an
investigation or proceeding, the cost of the investigation or defense could be significant and negatively affect our financial
perfrr of rmance.

These laws, regulations and standards are driving the review and updating of many corporate policies and systems, often at
significant expense. Until there is a settling of a consistent and stable global approach, our company, with customers and
employees around the world, will be exposed to financial risk in complying with these requirements. Any of the foregoing
factors could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

We are subject to govevv rnmental exprr ort and customs compliance requiremerr nts that could impii air our ability tt o
compete in international markets or subjeb ct us to liability if we vill olate the controls.

Our products and technology are subject to export controls in the jurisdictions where we do business. For example, in the
United States, we are subject to the Export Administration Regulations and the International Traffic in Arms Regulations
(“ITAR”). Under these regulations, certain commodities, software and technology may be exported only with the required
export authorizations. Some technology and software that we create or possess is controlled under these regulations, and in
certain cases, we are required to maintain controls limiting the access to such technology and software, even among our
own employees. Furthermore, our activities are subject to economic sanctions laws and regulations, including U.S.
economic sanctions laws and regulations administered by the U.S. Department of the Treasury’s Office of Foreign Assets
Control that prohibit or restrict dealings that are within U.S. jurisdiction with, in or involving certain jurisdictions subject to
comprehensive U.S. sanctions and certain designated persons and entities. We have corporate policies and procedures in
place reasonably designed to ensure compliance with all applicable export control and economic sanctions laws and
regulations.

In some cases, our compliance obligations may result in the loss of sales opportunities. In other cases, we may experience
delays in our ability to conduct business as we await government authorization. Violations of economic sanctions or export
control regulations can result in significant administrative fines or penalties or even criminal prosecution.

We cWW urrrr err ntly are, and mtt ay in the fuff ture continue to be, subject to litigation that could resurr lt in substantial costs,
didd vert orr r continue to divert management’s attention and resources, and materitt ally aii nd adversely affect our resuff lts
of operations, financial condition, budd siness and prospects.rr

On June 7, 2021 we filed a complaint in the Supreme Court of New York seeking declaratory judgment that we had not
violated certain agreements entered into with International Business Machines Corporation (“IBM”) relating to our acquisition
of IBM’s Microelectronics division in 2015, and subsequent development and research activities and sales of our products to
IBM. On June 8, 2021, IBM filed a complaint in the Supreme Court of New York asserting intentional breach of contract and
fraudulent misrepresentation claims under the same set of agreements. IBM argues that it is entitled to a return of its $1.5
billion payment to the company and at least $1 billion in damages. On September 14, 2021, the Court granted our motion to
dismiss IBM’s claims of fraud, unjust enrichment and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing. Our
complaint seeking declaratory judgment was dismissed. On April 7, 2022, the Appellate Division reversed the lower court's
dismissal of the fraud claim. The case is proceeding based on IBM’s breach of contract, promissory estoppel, and fraud
claims. We believe, based on discussions with legal counsel, that we have meritorious defenses against IBM’s claims. We
dispute IBM’s claims and intend to vigorously defend against them.

In addition, we have been, and may continue to be, subject to legal proceedings and claims that arise in the ordinary course
of business, such as claims brought by our customers in connection with commercial disputes, product liability claims,
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employment claims made by our current or former employees or claims of infringement raised by intellectual property
owners, in connection with the technology used in our manufacturing operations. The risk of such litigation may increase due
to use of our products in safety-related systems of other advanced technologies, including automobiles.

Any existing or future disputes, claims or proceedings could result in substantial costs and may divert management’s
attention and resources. Insurance might not cover such claims, might not provide sufficient payments to cover all the costs
to resolve one or more such claims and might not continue to be available on terms acceptable to us. A claim brought
against us that is uninsured or underinsured could result in unanticipated costs, potentially harming our business, financial
position and results of operations. Any of the foregoing factors could materially and adversely affect our results of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects. Further, negative publicity arising from disputes, claims or
proceedings may damage our reputation and adversely affect the image of our brand and our products. In addition, if any
verdict or award is rendered against us, we could be required to pay significant monetary damages, assume other liabilities
and even to suspend or terminate related business ventures or projects.

If regular or statutory consultatt tion processes with ett mployee representatives such as works councils fail or arerr
delall yeyy d, or if our employees were to engage idd n a striii ke or oii ther work stoppage, our results of operatt tions, financial
condidd tion, business and prospects could be materially and adversely afii fectff ed.

We may be required to consult with our employee representatives, such as works councils, on items such as work hours,
restructurings, acquisitions and divestitures. Although we believe that our relations with our employees, employee
representatives and works councils are satisfactory, no assurance can be given that we will be able to successfully extend or
renegotiate these agreements as they expire from time to time or, in the case of transactions, to conclude potential
consultation processes in a timely way. Also, if we fail to extend or renegotiate our labor agreements and social plans, if
significant disputes with unions arise, or if our workers engage in a strike or other work stoppage, we could incur higher
ongoing labor costs or experience a significant disruption of operations. We have experienced minor work stoppages
involving a small number of employees at our Dresden, Germany manufacturing facility. Although those work stoppages did
not materially impact production, future work stoppages, if more frequent or on a larger scale, could impact our production
and our ability to timely provide products to our customers. Any of the foregoing factors could materially and adversely affectff
our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Currency and Interest Rate Risks

We are exposed to foreign currency risk, which could materialc ly all dversely affect our expenses and profit margins
and could result in exchange losses.

The majority of our sales are denominated in U.S. dollars, and therefore, our revenue is not subject to foreign currency risk.
However, an increase in the value of the U.S. dollar can increase the real cost to our customers of our products and services
in those markets outside of the United States where we sell in U.S. dollars. Conversely, a weakened U.S. dollar can
increase the cost of expenses such as our direct labor, raw materials and overhead that are incurred outside of the United
States. These operating expenses are denominated in foreign currencies and are subject to fluctuations due to changes in
foreign currency exchange rates. Additionally, this could impact our capital expenditures with foreign suppliers we pay in
non-U.S. dollar currencies. We also engage in financing activities in local currencies. Our hedging programs may not be able
to effectively offset any, or more than a portion, of the impact of currency exchange rate movements. As a result, unfavorable
changes in exchange rates could materially and adversely affect our results of operations, financial condition, business and
prospects.

LIBOR and certain other interest rate “benchmarks” may be subject to regulb atory guidance and/or reform that
could cause interest rates under our current or future debt agreements to perform differently trr han in the past or
cause other unanticipated consequences.

Because a majority of our debt is primarily based on floating interest rate benchmarks (including the London Interbank
Offered Rate, or “LIBOR”), fluctuations in interest rates could have a material effect on our business. We currently utilize,
and may in the future utilize, derivative financial instruments such as interest rate swaps or interest rate caps to hedge some
of our exposure to interest rate fluctuations, but such instruments may not be effective in reducing our exposure to interest
fluctuations, and we may discontinue utilizing them at any time. As a result, we may incur higher interest costs if interest
rates increase. These higher interest costs could have a material adverse impact on our financial condition and the levels of
cash we maintain for working capital.

In addition, LIBOR and certain other interest rate “benchmarks” may be subject to regulatory guidance and/or reform that
could cause interest rates under our current or future debt agreements to perform differently than in the past or cause other
unanticipated consequences. Since December 31, 2021, the one week and two-month USD LIBOR tenors have
permanently ceased to be determined or published. The United Kingdom’s Financial Conduct Authority (“FCA”), which
regulates LIBOR, has announced that, after June 30, 2023, the overnight and twelve-month tenors of USD LIBOR will
permanently cease to be determined or published and, while the remaining USD LIBOR tenors (that is, one, three and six
months) will continue to be published, they will be calculated using an unrepresentative “synthetic” methodology with the
relevant rates comprising (1) the relevant Term SOFR (as defined below) rate, plus (2) the relevant spread adjustment that
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applies as part of the International Swap and Derivative Association (“ISDA”) IBOR fallback regime (as published for the
purpose of the ISDA 2020 Fallbacks Protocol and ISDA IBOR Fallbacks Supplement). The FCA has prohibited use of the
continuing USD LIBOR settings by UK-supervised entities in new regulated financial contracts, instruments and/or
investment fund performance measurement, although there are some exceptions. Other regulatory authorities have imposed
restrictions on new use of the continuing USD LIBOR settings.

If USD LIBOR ceases to exist or if the methods of calculating USD LIBOR change from their current form before the end of
June 2023, interest rates on our current or future debt obligations may be adversely affected.

If a published USD LIBOR rate is unavailable, we may be required to substitute an alternative reference rate, such as a
different benchmark interest rate or the Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR"), in lieu of LIBOR. The Alternative
Reference Rates Committee ("ARRC") proposed SOFR as its recommended alternative to LIBOR and the Federal Reserve
Bank of New York began publishing SOFR rates in April 2018. SOFR is intended to be a broad measure of the cost of
borrowing cash overnight that is collateralized by U.S. Treasury securities. However, because SOFR is a broad U.S.
Treasury repo financing rate that represents overnight secured funding transactions, it differs fundamentally from LIBOR. For
example, SOFR is a secured overnight rate, while LIBOR is an unsecured rate that represents interbank funding over
different maturities. In addition, SOFR is a backward-looking rate, in that by the time it is published each day, all the
transactions on which it is based will have matured, whereas LIBOR is forward-looking. In July 2021, ARRC formally
recommended CME Group's forward-looking SOFR term rates ("Term SOFrr R"). Term SOFR also differs fundamentally from
LIBOR as it represents market expectations (implied from the derivatives markets) of overnight SOFR over a forward-looking
period. Because of these and other differences, there is no assurance that SOFR or Term SOFR will perform in the same
way as LIBOR would have performed at any time, and there is no guarantee that any of these is a comparable substitute for
LIBOR. A change from LIBOR to any of the proposed alternative reference rates could result in interest obligations that are
more than or that do not otherwise correlate over time with the payments that would have been made on our debt if USD
LIBOR were available in its current form. Any of these changes could have a material adverse effect on our financing costs.
Moreover, the phase-out of LIBOR may adversely affect our assessment of effectiveness or measurement of ineffectiveness
fof r accounting purposes of any interest rate hedging agreements indexed to LIBOR.

Risks Related to Changes in Effective Tax Rate and Accounting Principles

Changes in our effff ectivff e tax rvv ate or tax liability may hrr ave an adverse effect on our results of operatiff ons.

Our effective tax rate could increase due to several factors, including, but not limited to:

• changes in the relative amounts of income before taxes in the various jurisdictions in which we operate that have
differing statutory tax rates;

• changes in tax laws, tax treaties and regulations or the interpretation of them;

• changes to our assessment about our ability to realize our deferred tax assets that are based on estimates of our
future results, the prudence and feasibility of possible tax planning strategies, and the economic and political
environments in which we do business;

• the outcome of current and future tax audits, examinations or administrative appeals; and

• limitations or adverse findings regarding our ability to do business in some jurisdictions.

Changes such as these that affect our effective tax rate could materially and adversely affect our results of operations and
financial condition.

Our international operations subject us to potentially adverse tax consequences.

We generally conduct our international operations through subsidiaries and report our taxable income in various jurisdictions
worldwide based upon our business operations in those jurisdictions. Our intercompany relationships are subject to complex
transfer pricing regulations administered by taxing authorities in various jurisdictions. The relevant taxing authorities may
disagree with our determinations as to the value of assets sold or acquired or income and expenses attributable to specific
jurisdictions. If such a disagreement were to occur, and our position were not sustained, we could be required to pay
additional taxes, interest, and penalties, which could result in one-time tax charges, higher effective tax rates, reduced cash
flows, and lower overall profitability of our operations. There is also a high level of uncertainty in today’s tax environment
stemming from both global initiatives put forth by the Off rganisation for Economic Co-operation and Development, or the
“OECD”, and unilateral measures being implemented by various countries due to a historic lack of consensus on these
global initiatives. As an example, the OECD has put forth two proposals—Pillar One and Pillar Two—that revise the existing
profit allocation and nexus rules (profit allocation based on location of sales versus physical presence) and ensure a minimal
level of taxation, respectively. Changes in multilateral agreements and the tax laws of foreign jurisdictions could arise as a
result of the base erosion and profit shifting project undertaken by the OECD and could significantly increase our tax
provision, cash taxes paid, and effective tax rate. A global minimum corporate tax rate and any other implemented changes
could significantly increase tax uncertainty due to differing interpretations and increased audit scrutiny. We will continue to
monitor and evaluate the impact of OECD policy changes. On August 16, 2022, the U.S. federal government enacted the

26



Inflation Reduction Act of 2022 (“IRA”) into law effective for tax years starting after December 31, 2022. The IRA includes a
variety of incentives to promote clean energy but also adds a new corporate alternative minimum tax of 15% on adjusted
financial statement income. We are in the process of assessing whether the book minimum tax would impact our effective
tax rate.

Risks Related to Our Status as a Controlled Company and Foreign Private Issuer

Our maja orirr ty st hareholder, Mrr ubadala Investment Company PJSC (“Mubadala”) will continue to have substantial
contrtt orr l of the business, which could limit yii our ability to influence the outcome of key tranyy sactions, including a
change of control, and otherwise affect the prerr vailing market prirr ce of our ordinary shares.

Mubadala beneficially owns, in the aggregate, approximately 85.7% of our outstanding ordinary shares. See “Item 7. Major
Shareholder and Related Party Transactions.” In addition, we have entered into a shareholder’s agreement with Mubadala,
which will entitle Mubadala, subject to the level of Mubadala’s beneficial ownership of our ordinary shares, to certain consent
rights and director nomination rights. As a result, Mubadala will continue to have significant influence over the management
and affairs of our company, as well as the ability to control the outcome of matters submitted to our shareholders for
approval, including the election of directors and the approval of significant corporate transactions, including any merger,
consolidation or sale of all or substantially all of our assets and the issuance or redemption of equity interests in certain
circumstances. The interests of Mubadala may not always coincide with, and in some cases may conflict with, our interests
and the interests of our other shareholders. For instance, Mubadala could attempt to delay or prevent a change in control of
our company, even if such change in control would benefit our other shareholders, which could deprive our shareholders of
an opportunity to receive a premium for their ordinary shares. This concentration of ownership may also affect the prevailingff
market price of our ordinary shares due to investors’ perceptions that conflicts of interest may exist or arise, and because
Mubadala may sell, or investors may perceive that Mubadala is likely to sell, a significant amount of our ordinary shares.

As a foff rerr igi n private issuer and a controlled company, we are nww ot subject to certain corporate governance rules
applill cable to U.S. listed companies.

As a foreign private issuer that has listed our ordinary shares on the Nasdaq, we rely on a provisirr on in the Nasdaq corporate
governance listing standards that allows us to follow Cayman Islands law with regard to certain aspects of corporate
governance. This allows us to follow certain corporate governance practices that differ in significant respects from the
corporate governance requirements applicable to U.S. companies listed on the Nasdaq.

For example, we are exempt from Nasdaq regulations that require a listed U.S. company to:

• have a majority of the board of directors consist of independent directors;

• require non-management directors to meet on a regular basis without management present;

• have an independent compensation committee;

• have an independent nominating committee; and

• seek shareholder approval for the implementation of certain equity compensation plans and issuances of ordinary
shares.

As a foreign private issuer, we are permitted to follow home country practice in lieu of the above requirements. Our audit,
risk and compliance committee is required to comply with the provisions of Rule 10A-3 of the Securities Exchange Act of
1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), which is applicable to U.S. companies listed on the Nasdaq. Accordingly, we have
a fully independent Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee.

We are a foreign privavv te issuer and, as a redd sult, are not subject to U.S. proxy rules but are subject to reporting
obligatiott ns that, to some extent, are more lenient and less frequenrr t than those of a U.S. issuer.

We are a non-U.S. company with foreign private issuer status. Because we qualify as a foreign private issuer under the
Exchange Act, and although we follow the laws and regulations of the Cayman Islands with regard to such matters, we are
exempt from certain provisions of the Exchange Act that are applicable to U.S. public companies, including: (i) the sections
of the Exchange Act regulating the solicitation of proxies, consents or authorizations in respect of a security registered under
the Exchange Act, (ii) the sections of the Exchange Act requiring insiders to file public reports of their stock ownership and
trading activities and liability for insiders who profit from trades made in a short period of time and (iii) the rules under the
Exchange Act requiring the filing of quarterly reports on Form 10-Q containing unaudited financial and other specified
infof rmation, or current reports on Form 8-K, upon the occurrence of specified significant events. Foreign private issuers are
required to file their annual report on Form 20-F within four months after the end of each fiscal year. Foreign private issuers
are also exempt from the Regulation Fair Disclosure, aimed at preventing issuers from making selective disclosures of
material information. As a result of the above, you may not have the same protections afforded to shareholders of
companies that are not foreign private issuers. This may be the case even though we intend to make interim reports
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available to our shareholders, copies of which we are required to furnish to the SEC on a Form 6-K, and even though we are
required to file reports on Form 6-K disclosing whatever information we have made or are required to make public pursuant
to Cayman Islands law or distribute to our shareholders and that is material to us.

We are a Cayman Islands company and, because judicial precedent regarding the rights of shareholders is more
limited under Cayman Islands law than that under U.S. law, you may have less protection for your shareholdertt
rigi hts than you would under U.S. law.

Our corporate affairs are governed by our Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association (the
“Memorandum and Articles of Association”), as amended and restated from time to time, the Cayman Islands Companies
Act (as amended) (the “Cayman Companies Act”) and the common law of the Cayman Islands. The rights of shareholders to
take action against the directors, actions by minority shareholders and the fiduciary responsibilities of our directors to us
under Cayman Islands law are to a large extent governed by the common law of the Cayman Islands. The common law of
the Cayman Islands is derived in part from comparatively limited judicial precedent in the Cayman Islands as well as that
from English common law, which has persuasive, but not binding, authority on a court in the Cayman Islands. The rights of
our shareholders and the fiduciary responsibilities of our directors under Cayman Islands law are not as clearly defined as
they would be under statutes or judicial precedent in some jurisdictions in the United States. In particular, the Cayman
Islands has a less prescriptive body of securities laws than the United States. In addition, some U.S. states, such as
Delaware, have more fulsome and judicially interpreted bodies of corporate law than the Cayman Islands. As a result of all of
the above, public shareholders may have more difficulty in protecting their interests in the face of actions taken by
management, members of the board of directors or controlling shareholders than they would as shareholders of a
corporation incorporated in a jurisdiction in the United States.

Our officers and directors presently have, and any of them in the future may have, additional fiduciary or
contractual obligi ations to other entities, and, accordingly, may have conyy flicts of interest in determining to which
entity a particular business opportunii ity should be presented.

Our directors and officers presently have, and any of them in the future may have, additional fiduciary or contractual
obligations to other entities pursuant to which such officer or director is or will be required to present a business opportunity
to such entity, subject to his or her fiduciary duties under Cayman Islands law. Accordingly, they may have conflicts of
interest in determining to which entity a particular business opportunity should be presented. These conflicts may not be
resolved in our favor and a potential business opportunity may be presented to another entity prior to its presentation to us,
subject to their fiduciary duties under Cayman Islands law.

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that, to the fullest extent permitted by applicable law: (i) no individual
serving as a director or an officer shall have any duty, except and to the extent expressly assumed by contract, to refrain
from engaging directly or indirectly in the same or similar business activities or lines of business as us; (ii) we renounce any
interest or expectancy in, or in being offered an opportunity to participate in, any potential transaction or matter which may
be a corporate opportunity for any director or officer, on the one hand, and us, on the other; and (iii) no individual serving as
a director or an officer shall have a duty to communicate or offer any such corporate opportunity to us, nor shall such
individuals be liable to us for a breach of fiduciary duty solely by reason of the fact that such party pursues or acquires such
corporate opportunity for himself or herself, directs such corporate opportunity to another person, or does not communicate
infof rmation regarding such corporate opportunity to us.

For a complete discussion of our executive officers’ and directors’ business affiliations and the potential conflicts of interest
that you should be aware of, please see “Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees” and “Item 7. Majora
Shareholders and Related Party Transactions.”

ThTT e Cayman IslandII s Economic Substance Act may affect our operations.dd

The Cayman Islands has recently enacted the International Tax Co-operation (Economic Substance) Act, or the Cayman
Economic Substance Act. The Cayman Economic Substance Act generally requires legal entities domiciled or registered in
the Cayman Islands which conduct certain geographically mobile activities to have demonstrable substance in the Cayman
Islands. The Cayman Economic Substance Act was introduced by the Cayman Islands to ensure that it meets its
commitments to the European Union, as well as its obligations under the OECD’s global Base Erosion and Profit Shifting
initiatives. We are required to comply with the Cayman Economic Substance Act.

As we are a Cayman Islands company, compliance obligations include filing annual notifications for us, which need to state
whether we are carrying out any relevant activities and, if so, whether we have satisfied economic substance tests to the
extent required under the Cayman Economic Substance Act. As it is a relatively new regime, it is anticipated that the
Cayman Economic Substance Act will evolve and be subjb ect to further clarification and amendments. We may need to
allocate additional resources to keep updated with these developments, and may have to make changes to our operations in
order to comply with all requirements under the Cayman Economic Substance Act. Failure to satisfy these requiremeff nts may
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subject us to penalties under the Cayman Economic Substance Act. The Cayman Islands Tax Information Authority shall
impose a penalty of CI$10,000 (or US$12,500) on a relevant entity for failing to satisfy the economic substance test or
CI$100,000 (or US$125,000) if such failures are not remedied in the subsequent financial year after the initial notice of
failure. Following failure after two consecutive years the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands may make an order requiring
the relevant entity to take specified action to satisfy the econoff mic substance test or ordering it that it is defunct or be struck
off. Pursuant to the Companies Act, any property vested in or belonging to a company which has been struck off shall vest in
the Cayman Islands government.

During 2022, the Company received a notice of failure to satisfy the economic substance test for the 2020 financial year, and
a penalty of CI$10,000 (or US$12,500). During 2023, the Company received a second notice of failure to satisfy the
economic substance test for the 2020 financial year, and a further penalty of CI$10,000 (or US$12,500).The Company has
taken appropriate remedial steps during 2022 and 2023 such that such failures have been or will be remedied in the
subsequent financial years after the initial notice of failure, being the 2023 and 2024 financial years.

Risks Related to Operating as a Public Company

We are incurring increased costs and expenses as a result of operating as a public company and our management
is required to devote substantial time to compliance with our public company responsibilities and corporate
govevv rnrr ance practices.

As a public company, we are incurring greater legal, accounting and other expenses than we incurred as a private company.
We are subject to the reporting requirements of the Exchange Act, the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 (“SOX”), the Dodd-Frank
Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act of 2010 (the “Dodd-Frank Act”), and the rules and regulations of the
Nasdaq, which impose various requirements on public companies, including establishment and maintenance of effective
disclosure and financial controls and corporate governance practices. These requirements increase our legal, accounting,
and financial compliance costs and make some activities more difficult, time-consuming, and costly, and place significant
strain on our personnel, systems and resources.

We are continuing to evaluate these rules and regulations and cannot predict or estimate the amount of additional costs or
the timing of such costs. These rules and regulations are often subject to varying interpretations, in many cases due to their
lack of specificity, and, as a result, their application in practice may evolve over time as new guidance is provided by
regulatory and governing bodies. This could result in continuing uncertainty regarding compliance matters and higher costs
necessitated by ongoing revisions to disclosure and governance practices.

If we fail to establish and maintain proper and effective internal control over financial reportrr ing, our operatingtt
rerr sults and our ability to operate our business could be harmedrr .dd

Ensuring that we have adequate internal financial and accounting controls and procedures in place so that we can produce
accurate financial statements on a timely basis is a costly and time-consuming effort that needs to be re-evaluated
frequently. Our internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles. Beginning with our initial public offering (“IPO”), we continue the process of documenting, reviewing and
improving our internal controls and procedures for compliance with Section 404 of SOX, which requires annual
management assessment of the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting. Implementing any appropriate
changes to our internal controls may distract our officers and employees, entail substantial costs to modify ouff r existing
processes and take significant time to complete. These changes may not, however, be effective in maintaining the adequacy
of our internal controls, and any failure to maintain that adequacy, or consequent inability to produce accurate financial
statements on a timely basis, could increase our operating costs and harm our business. In addition, investors’ perceptions
that our internal controls are inadequate or that we are unable to produce accurate financial statements on a timely basis
may harm the trading price of our ordinary shares and make it more difficult for us to effectively market and sell our service
to new and existing customers.

Risks Related to our Ordinary Shares

Future sales or distributitt ons of our shares by Mubadala could depress the price of our ordinary shares.

Sales by Mubadala in the public market or other distributions of substantial amounts of our ordinary shares, or the filing of a
registration statement relating to a substantial amount of our ordinary shares, could depress our ordinary share price. In
addition, in connection with our IPO, we have entered into agreements with Mubadala that provide a framework for our
ongoing relationship, including a Shareholder’s Agreement and Registration Rights Agreement. Under the Registration
Rights Agreement, Mubadala has the right, subject to certain conditions, to require us to file registration statements covering
its shares or to include its shares in other registration statements that we may file. By exercising its registration rights and
selling a large number of shares, Mubadala could cause the price of our ordinary shares to decline.rr
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We do not expect to declare or pay any divirr dends on our ordinary shdd ares for the foreseeable future.

We do not intend to pay cash dividends on our ordinary shares for the foreseeable future. Consequently, investors must rely
on sales of their shares of our ordinary shares after price appreciation, which may never occur, as the only way to realize
any future gains on their investment. Investors seeking dividends should not purchase shares of our ordinary shares. Any
future determination to pay dividends will be at the discretion of our board of directors and subject to, among other things,
our compliance with applicable law, and depending on, among other things, our business prospects, financial condition,
results of operations, cash requirements and availability, debt repayment obligations, capital expenditure needs, the terms of
any preferred equity securities we may issue in the future, covenants in the agreements governing our current and future
indebtedness, other contractual restrictions, industry trends and any other factors or considerations our board of directors
may regard as relevant. See “Item 8. Financial Information—Dividends and Dividend Policy.”

Anti-takeover provisions in ouii r organizational documents and Cayman Islands law may discourage or prevent a
change of controrr l, even if an acquisition would be beneficial to our shareholders, whrr ich could depress the price of
our ordinary shares and prerr vent attempts by our shareholders to replace or remove our current management.

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association contain provisions that may discourage unsolicited takeover proposals that
shareholders may consider to be in their best interests. Our board of directors is divided into three classes with staggered,
three-year terms. Our board of directors has the ability to designate the terms of and issue preferred shares without
shareholder approval. We are also subject to certain provisions under Cayman Islands law that could delay or prevent a
change of control. Together these provisions may make more difficult the removal of management and may discourage
transactions that otherwise could involve payment of a premium over prevailing market prices for our ordinary shares.rr

Our Memorarr ndum and Articles of Association provide that the courts of trr he Catt yman Islands will be the excluww sive
forum for certain disputes between us and our shareholders, which could limit our shareholders’ ability to obtain arr
faff vovv rarr ble judicial forum for complaints against us or our directors, officers or employees.rr

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that unless we consent in writing to the selection of an alternative
fof rum, the courts of the Cayman Islands will, to the fullest extent permitted by the law, have exclusive jurisdiction over any
claim or dispute arising out of or in connection with our Memorandum and Articles of Association or otherwise related in any
way to each shareholder’s shareholding in us, including but not limited to (i) any derivative action or proceeding brought on
our behalf, (ii) any action asserting a claim of breach of any fiduciary or other duty owed by any of our current or former
directors, officers or other employees to us or our shareholders, (iii) any action asserting a claim arising pursuant to any
provision of the Cayman Companies Act or our Memorandum and Articles of Association, and (iv) any action asserting a
claim against us governed by the “Internal Affairs Doctrine” (as such concept is recognized under the laws of the United
States) and that each shareholder irrevocably submits to the exclusive jurisdiction of the courts of the Cayman Islands over
all such claims or disputes. Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that, unless we consent in writing to the
selection of an alternative forum, to the fullest extent permitted by law, the federal district courts of the United States will be
the exclusive forum for the resolution of any complaint asserting a cause or causes of action arising under the Securities Act
of 1933, as amended (“Securities Act”), or Exchange Act, including all causes of action asserted against any defendant
named in such complaint.

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association also provide that, without prejudice to any other rights or remedies that we
may have, each of our shareholders acknowledges that damages alone would not be an adequate remedy for any breach of
the selection of the courts of the Cayman Islands as exclusive forum anff d that accordingly we shall be entitled, without proof
of special damages, to the remedies of injunction, specific performance or other equitable relief for any threatened or actual
breach of the selection of the courts of the Cayman Islands as exclusive forum.

This choice of forum provision may increase a shareholder’s cost and limit the shareholder’s ability to bring a claim in a
judicial forum that it finds favorable for disputes with us or our directors, officers or other employees, which may discourage
lawsuits against us and our directors, officers and other employees. Any person or entity purchasing or otherwise acquiring
any of our shares or other securities, whether by transfer, sale, operation of law or otherwise, shall be deemed to have
notice of and have irrevocably agreed and consented to these provisions. There is uncertainty as to whether a court would
enforf ce such provisions, and the enforceability of similar choice of forum provisions in other companies’ charter documents
has been challenged in legal proceedings. It is possible that a court could find this type of provisions to be inapplicable or
unenforceable, and if a court were to find this provision in our Memorandum and Articles of Association to be inapplicable or
unenforceable in an action, we may incur additional costs associated with resolving the dispute in other jurisdictions, which
could have adverse effect on our business and financial performaff nce.
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Our Memorarr ndum and Articles of Association provide for indemnification of officers and dirtt ectorr rs at our expense,
whww ich may result in a major cost to us and hurt the interests of our shtt areholders because corporate resourr rces may
be expended for the benefit of officers and/or directors.rr

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association and applicable law of the Cayman Islands provide for the indemnification of
our directors and officers, under certain circumstances, against any liability, action, proceeding, claim, demand, costs,
damages or expenses, including legal expenses, whatsoever which they or any of them may incur as a result of any act or
failure to act in carrying out their functions in connection with our company, other than such liability (if any) that they may
incur by reason of their own actual fraud, dishonesty, willful neglect or willful default. We will also bear the expenses of such
litigation for any of our directors or officers, upon such person’s undertaking to repay any amounts paid, advanced, or
reimbursed by us if it is ultimately determined that any such person shall not have been entitled to indemnification. This
indemnification policy could result in substantial expenditures by us that we will be unable to recoup.

We have been advised that, in the opinion of the SEC, indemnification for liabilities arising under federal securities laws is
against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act, and is, therefore, unenforceable.

ITEM 4. INFORMATION ON THE COMPANY

A. History and Development of the Company

Our History

We were established in 2009 when a subsidiary of Mubadala acquired the manufacturing operations of Advanced Micro
Devices, Inc. (“AMD”) in Dresden, Germany, and their fab project site in Malta, New York. Since our inception, we have
grown through a combination of acquisitions, greenfield expansions and strategic partnerships. In 2010, we combined with
Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing, the third-largest foundry by revenue at the time, forming the basis for our
Singapore manufacturing hub. In 2015, we acquired IBM’s Microelectronics division with manufacturing facilities in New York
and Vermont, adding distinctive technology capabilities, including more than 2,000 IBM engineers. By 2017, we had
successfully ramped our most advanced manufacturing site in Malta, New York.

In 2018, we undertook a strategic pivot to focus on the pervasive foundry market opportunity and the growing demand for
specialized process technologies. As part of this strategic pivot, we streamlined our manufacturing footprint by divesting
three assets that were not aligned with our strategic priorities, including the sale of our East Fishkill (“EFK”) business to ON
Semiconductor, which closed on December 31, 2022 for a gain of $403 million.ff

On November 1, 2021, we completed our initial public offering. Our ordinary shares have been listed on the Nasdaq under
the symbol “GFS” since October 28, 2021.

On August 4, 2022, we entered into a Commercial and Cooperation agreement with ST to build a jointly-operated 300mm
manufacturing facility in Crolles, France. This facility is targeted to ramp at full capacity by 2026, with up to 620,000 300mm
wafers per year production at full build-out. The project remains subject to regulatory approvals.

Through our organic and strategic growth initiatives, we increased manufacturing capacity and now have a global footprint
with foff ur manufacturing sites on three continents with approximately 14,000 employees and approximately 9,000 worldwide
patents. In 2022, we shipped approximately 2.5 million 300mm equivalent semiconductor wafers. With this level of market
presence and capability, our technologies are found across most semiconductor end markets in devices used on a daily
basis.

Today, we focus on feature-rich solutions for the pervasive semiconductor market, where we are trusted to reliably innovate
and deliver premium performance, functionality, efficiency and quality, rather than focusing merely on transistor density and
processing speed.

For a description of our principal capital expenditures in the last three fiscal years and a discussion of our acquisitions and
dispositions, see “Item 5. Operating and Financial Review and Prospects.”

Corporate Information

Our legal and commercial name is GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. We are an exempted company incorporated in the Cayman
Islands with limited liability on October 7, 2008. We have appointed Corporation Service Comrr pany as our agent to receive
service of process with respect to any action brought against us in the United States under the federal securities laws of the
United States or of any state in the United States. The address of Corporation Service Company is 251 Little Falls Drive,
Wilmington, DE 19808. Our principal executive offices are located at 400 Stonebreak Road Extension, Malta, New York
12020, United States, and our telephone number is (518) 305-9013.
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Our website address is www.gf.com. Information contained on, or that can be accessed through, our website is not
incorporated by reference into this Annual Report, and you should not consider information on our website to be part of this
Annual Report. In addition, the SEC maintains an Internet website that contains reports and other information about issuers,
like us, that file electronically with the SEC. The address of that website is www.sec.gov.

The GF design logo, “GF” and our other registered or common law trademarks, service marks, or trade names appearing in
this Annual Report are the property of GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. Other trade names, trademarks and service marks urr sed in
this Annual Report are the property of their respective owners.

B. Business Overvrr iew

We are one of the world’s leading semiconductor foundries. We manufacture complex, feature-rich ICs that enable billions of
electronic devices that are pervasive throughout nearly every sector of the global economy. With our specialized foundry
manufacturing processes, a library consisting of thousands of qualified circuit-building block designs (known as IP titles or IP
blocks), and differentiated transistor and device technology, we serve a broad range of customers, including the global
leaders in IC design, and provide optimized solutions for the function, performance and power requirements of critical
applications driving key secular growth end markets. As the only scaled pure-play foundry with a global footprint that is not
based in China or Taiwan, we help customers mitigate geopolitical risk and provide greater supply chain certainty. We define
a scaled pure-play foundry as a company that focuses on producing ICs for other companies, rather than those of its own
design, with more than $2.5 billion of annual foundry revenue.

We provide differentiated foundry solutions that enable the era of data-centric, connected, intelligent and secure
technologies. We are redefining the foundry model with feature-rich solutions that enable our customers to develop
innovative products for an increasingly wide variety of applications across broad and pervasive markets. We unlock value for
our customers by helping drive technology in multiple dimensions, making their products more intelligent and intuitive, more
connected and secure, and more powerful and energy-efficient. Our objective is to be the global leader in feature-rich
semiconductor manufacturing—the foundry of choice for the pervasive semiconductor market.

Since our foff unding in 2009, we have invested over $23 billion in our company to build a global manufacturing footprint with
multiple state-of-the-art faciff lities across three continents, offering customers the flexibility and security their supply chains
require. As semiconductor technologies become more complex with advanced integration requirements, we are also able to
offer comprehensive, state-of-the-art design solutions and services that provide our customers with a high-quality, cost-
effective and faster path to market. We continue to add new ecosystem partners spanning IP, electronic design automation,
outsourced assembly and test and design services. Building on an existing library of more than 4,600 IP titles, we currently
have more than 800 IP titles in active development across 30 process nodes and more than 30 IP partners.

We focus on feature-rich devices that include digital, analog, mixed-signal, radio frequency (“RF”), ultra-low power and
embedded memory solutions that connect, secure and process data, and efficiently power the digital world around us. As the
semiconductor and technology industries become more complex, we expect to become an even more vital partner to fabless
semiconductor design companies, IDMs and original equipment manufacturers (“OEMs”), bringing their designs to life in
physical hardware. Our core technology portfoliff o includes a range of differentiated technology platforms, including our
industry-leading RF SOI solutions, advanced high-performance Fin Field-Effect Transistor (“FinFET”), feature-rich
Complementary Metal-Oxide Semiconductor (“CMOS”), our proprietary FDXTMX , high-performance Silicon Germanium
(“SiGe”) and Gallium Nitride (“GaN”) products and Silicon Photonics (“SiPh”), all of which can be purposely engineered,
innovated and designed for a broad set of demanding applications. Customers depend on us for feature-rich solutions based
on these differentiated technologies in a growing number of applications that require low power, real-time connectivity and
on-board intelligence.

The combination of our highly-differentiatf ed technology and our scaled manufacturing footprint enables us to attract a large
share of single-sourced products and LTAs, providing a high degree of revenue visibility and significant operating leverage,
resulting in improved financial performance and bottom line growth. As of December 31, 2022, the aggregate remaining long
term revenue commitment reflected by these agreements amounted to more than $22 billion, including more than $13 billion
during the period from January 2023 through December 2024, and more than $5 billion in advanced payments commitments
and capacity reservation fees. These agreements include binding, multi-year, reciprocal annual (and, in some cases,
quarterly) minimum purchase and supply commitments with wafer pricing and associated mechanics outlined for the
contract term. Through an intense focus on collaboration, we have built deep strategic partnerships with a broad base of
more than 250 customers as of December 31, 2022, many of whom are the global leaders in their field.

For the year 2022, our top ten customers, based on wafer shipment volume, included some of the largest semiconductor
companies in the world: Advanced Micro Devices, Inc. (“AMD”), Cirrus Logic, Inc. (“Cirrus Logic”), Infineon Technologies AG
(“Infineon”), Marvell Technology Inc., MediaTek Inc. (“MediaTek”), NXP Semiconductors N.V. (“NXP”), Qorvo, Inc. (“Qorvo”),
Qualcomm Inc. (“Qualcomm”), Samsung Electronics Co., Ltd. (“Samsung”), and Skyworks Solutions, Inc. (“Skyworks”). A
key measure of our position as a strategic partner to our customers is the mix of our wafer shipment volume attributable to
single-sourced business, which represented approximately 65% of wafer shipment volume in 2022, up from 62% in 2021.
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We define single-sourced products as those that we believe can only be manufactured with our technology and cannot be
manufactured elsewhere without significant customer redesigns.

In addition to our highly-differentiated technology platforms, our capital-efficient, scaled manufacturing footprint gives us the
flexibility and agility to meet the dynamic needs of our customers around the globe, help them mitigate geopolitical risk and
provide greater supply chain certainty. We are also one of the most advanced accredited foundry providers to the U.S. DoD
and have the ability to extend this high-assurance model to serve commercial customers and to enhance supply chain
security and resilience at a time when they are becoming more critical to national and economic security. Since foundry
production is concentrated in China and Taiwan, we believe our global manufacturing footprint is a key differentiator that
makes us the ideal partner foff r local and regional government stakeholders at a time when many regions, in particular the
United States and Europe, have passed legislation contemplating significant funding to secure and grow their respective
domestic semiconductor manufacturing capabilities.

We currently operate four manufacturing sites in the following locations: Dresden, Germany; Singapore; Malta, New York;
and Burlington, Vermont. On December 31, 2022 we completed the sale of our East Fishkill (“EFK”) business to ON
Semiconductor. With four world-class manufacturing sites on three continents, we provide the scale, technology
differentiation and geographic diversification that we believe are critically important to our customers’ success. In 2022, we
shipped approximately 2.5 million 300 millimeter (“mm”) equivalent semiconductor wafers.

Technology Platforms

We offer a wide range of feature-rich solutions that can address the needs of mission-critical applications in Smart Mobile
Devices, Home and Industrial IoT, Communications Infrastructure & Datacenter, Automotive and Personal Computing. To
solve our customers’ most complex challenges, we have developed a broad range of sophisticated technology platforms that
leverage our extensive patent portfolio and deep technical expertise in digital, analog, mixed-signal, RF and embedded
memory.

We devote the majority of our R&D efforts to our seven primary differentiated technology platforms:

• RF SOI: Our industry-leading RF SOI technologies are utilized in high-growth, high-volume wireless and Wi-Fi
markets and are optimized for low power, low noise and low latency/high frequency applications that enable longer
battery life for mobile applications and high cellular signal quality. Our RF SOI technologies are found in almost allff
cellular handsets from major manufacturers and in cellular ground station transceivers.

• FinFET: Our FinFET process technology is purpose-built for high-performance, power-efficient Systems-on-a-Chip
(“SoCs”) in demanding, high-volume applications. Advanced features such as RF, automotive, ultra-low power
memory and logic provide a best-in-class (12 to 16 nanometer (“nm”)) combination of performance, power and
area, and are well-suited for compute and AI, mobile/consumer and automotive processors, high-end IoT
applications, high performance transceivers and wired/wireless networking applications.

• Feature-Rich CMOS: Our CMOS platforms combined with foundational and complex IP and design enablement
offer mixed-technology solutions on volume production-proven processes and are well-suited for a wide variety offf
applications. Technology features include Bipolar-CMOS-DMOS (“BCD”) for power management, high-voltage
triple-gate oxide for display drivers, and embedded non-volatile memory for micro-controllers.ff

• FDXTM: Our proprietary FDXTM process technology platform is especially well-suited for efficient single-chip
integration of digital and analog signals delivering cost-effective performance for connected and low-power
embedded applications. A full range of features, such as Ultra-Low Power (“ULP”), Ultra-Low Leakage (“ULL”), RF
and mmWave, embedded Magnetoresistive Random Access Memory (“MRAM”) and automotive, makes our FDXTMX
process technology platform especially well-matched for IoT/wireless, 5G (including mmWave), automotive radar,
and satellite communications applications.

• SiGe: Our SiGe Bipolar CMOS (“BiCMOS”) technologies are uniquely optimized for either power amplifier
applications or very-high-frequency applications for optical and wireless networking, satellite communications and
communications infrastructure. Our SiGe technologies are performance-competitive with more costly compound
semiconductor technologies while taking full advantage of being integrated with conventional Silicon CMOS (“Si
CMOS”).

• GaN: Our next-generation GaN on silicon technology will enable a wide range of future power conversion and RF
applications. With their unique ability to handle significant heat and power levels, GaN semiconductors are
positioned to enable game-changing performance and efficiency in applications including 5G and 6G smartphones,
RF wireless infrastructure, electric vehicles, power grids, solar energy, and other technologies.

• SiPh: Our SiPh platforms address the increasing need for data centers to handle ever higher data rates and
volumes with greater power efficiency, as conventional copper wire connections are becoming prohibitive from a
power consumption perspective. Our SiPh platforms integrate photonics components with CMOS logic and RF to
enable a fully integrated, monolithic electrical and optical computing and communications engine. Our SiPh
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technologies are also being extended to applications such as Light Detection and Ranging (“LiDAR”), quantum
computing and consumer optical networks.

Recent Industry and Market Dynamics

Semiconductor Industry Invevv ntory Correction

In 2022, the semiconductor industry began the year with continued shortages that impacted several end markets. Starting in
the first half of 2022, the industry started to experience an excess of inventory across certain end-markets, induced by
slowdowns largely driven by a slowing macro-economic environment. This inventory correction by our customers
accelerated in the second half of 2022 and is expected to run through at least the first half of 2023.

Government Incentives to Secure Supply

Governments have created bold new incentive programs to fund and secure their local semiconductor manufacturing
industries. In the United States, the CHIPS and Science Act of 2022, which was signed into law by the President of the
United States of America in August 2022, appropriates $52 billion in funding to the domestic semiconductor industry, with
approximately two-thirds directed toward semiconductor manufacturing. The EU has proposed the European Chips Act,
which is intended to provide significant funding to strengthen the EU’s semiconductor industry.

Similarly, we believe that foundry customers are increasingly seeking to diversify and secure their semiconductor supply
chains, and are looking for foundry partners with manufacturing footprints in Europe, the United States and Asia, outside of
China and Taiwan. Fabless companies, IDMs and OEMs increasingly view their foundry relations as highly strategic and are
looking to secure long-term capacity contracts by paying to access capacity expansions at their foundry partners. This trend
has the potential to help balance the geographical distribution of manufacturing and drive increased long-term visibility and
profitability of the foundry industry.

Technology Megatrends

Semiconductors are the core building blocks of electronic devices and systems, including those used in mobile devices,
automobiles, consumer electronics, wearables, smart home devices, 5G wireless infrastructure, robotics, PCs, cloud
computing, data networking and others. Historically, semiconductor innovation was driven by a few select compute-centric
applications—initially PCs and later the internet and mobile phones. Mobile devices have evolved from a convenient
communication appliance to a feature-rich, always-connected device, enabling users to do and control nearly everything in
their lives. This has driven significant growth in semiconductor demand.

Another significant driver of semiconductor demand has been, and we believe will continue to be, the tremendous growth in
the deployment of intelligent software which is increasingly transforming a wide variety of business functions across all
sectors. Semiconductors enable the functionality that software delivers. With wide-scale adoption of mobile devices andff
software solff utions, society has grown to expect high-speed connectivity, convenience and security in all applications,
providing a catalyst for increased semiconductor content in nearly every industry. These trends were accelerated by the
COVID-19 pandemic, which emphasized the criticality of connectivity to allow the world to continue to work, communicate,
educate, and deliver goods and services. We believe that accelerated adoption of technologies such as video conferencing,
telemedicine, e-education and e-commerce will serve to drive increased requirements for these technologies going forward.

Semiconductors are enabling the transformation of other sectors of the economy as well. In particular, the electrification of
automobiles, including autonomous driving applications are driving a sharp increase in semiconductor sensors.
Semiconductors are increasingly integral to the performance, safety and comfort of vehicles, and we believe the continued
electrification of automobiles will only further accelerate this trend.

Semiconductors have become mission-critical to the functionality, safety, transformation and success of many industries in
addition to the automotive industry. As a result, the diversification of semiconductor demand across a wide range of
industries has made the sector more foundational and central to the broader economy and in turn less vulnerable to
cyclicality.

Technology megatrends including IoT, 5G, cloud, artificial intelligence (“AI”) and next-generation automotive are reshaping
the global economy and driving a new golden age for semiconductors. Semiconductors have become ubiquitous, powering a
broad range of applications from consumer devices to enterprise and industrial applications. Semiconductor innovation is
essential to the growth and development of many parts of the technology ecosystem. This includes the software and AI
revolution and data collection, transmission and processing at an unprecedented scale, as well as increasing use of
advanced driver-assistance systems (“ADAS”) and electrification of automobiles. Semiconductor innovation is also essential
for many industrial applications. As the manufacturing backbone of the semiconductor industry, foundries are the bedrock of
the global technology ecosystem, and, by extension, the world economy. Foundries such as GF drive innovation by
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providing advances in process technologies, materials science and IC design IP within the global supply chain to enable
customers to develop ICs, accelerate time-to-market and offer value-added services.

Impact of COVID-19

The COVID-19 pandemic has had significant and unprecedented impacts around the world, including prompting
governments and businesses to temporarily close businesses, impose quarantines and shelter-in-place orders and place
restrictions on travel.

Today, all of our manufacturing faf cilities continue to remain open and are operating at normal production levels. We have
taken all appropriate measures to ensure a healthy and safe environment.

We continue to closely monitor the business environment for changes and are prepared to adjust capital and operational
spending as appropriate.

Key Strengths

We have several distinct advantages that we believe differentiate us from our peers:

• Scaled manufacturing capabilities. In 2022, we shipped approximately 2.5 million 300mm equivalent
semiconductor wafers. We believe that our scaled global manufacturing footprint enables our customers to
leverage the security of our fabs and ensure a trusted supply of critical semiconductors.

• Differentiated technology platforms and ecosystem.We deliver highly-differentiated solutions to meet customer
demand for superior performance, lower power consumption and better thermal efficiency for mission-critical
applications across IoT, 5G, cloud, AI, next-generation automotive and other secular growth markets that are
driving the economy of the future.

• Diversified and secure geographic footprint. Our scaled global manufacturing footprint helps mitigate
geopolitical, natural disaster and competitive risks. We are the only U.S.-based scaled semiconductor foundry with
a global fooff tprint. We believe that this geographic diversification is critical to our customers as well as governments
around the world as they look to secure semiconductor supply. Furthermore, a significant number of our technology
platforms are qualified across our manufacturing footprint, providing our customers with a geographically diverse
one-stop supply chain solution.

• Market-centric solutions driving deep customer relationships. We are pioneering a new sustainable foundry
relationship with fabless companies, IDMs and OEMs by partnering with customers to redefine the supply chain
and economics for the entire value chain. The insights we gain through our market-centric approach enable us to
focuf s on and invest in the markets and applications in which we believe we can achieve a clear leadership position.

• Capital-efficient model. Our focus on the pervasive semiconductor market results in lower capital requirements
compared to foundries that focus on processor-centric compute semiconductors and are therefore obligated to
invest significant capital to transition from node to node. Additionally, as the only scaled pure-play foundry with
existing manufacturing capacity in the United States and Europe, we are well-positioned to benefit from
government support, as governments around the world implement or contemplate large aid packages to encourage
manufacturers such as us to increase their local capacities in these regions.

• World-class team and focus on sustainability.We have a highly technically proficient, talented and experienced
management team of executive officers and key employees with average industry experience of 20 years. We are
dedicated to ethical and responsible business practices, the personal and social well-being of our diverse and
highly-skilled employee base, and supply chain and environmental stewardship. As of December 31, 2022, we
employed approximately 14,000 employees, and approximately 70% of our employees were engineers or
technicians.

Our Growth Strategies

Key elements of our growth strategies include:

• Deepen relationships with key customers. We operate a customer-focused partnership model in which we work
closely with our customers to better understand their requirements in order to invest in and develop tailored
solutions to suit their specific needs. We intend to expand our customer base and increase market share by
leveraging our core IP, comprehensive portfolio, scale and flexibility to redefine the fabless-foundry model.

• Expand portfolio of differentiated, feature-rich technologies. We believe that maintaining and enhancing our
leadership position in differentiated technologies is critical to attracting and retaining customers, which increasingly
rely on specific silicon features to differentiate their products. We will continue to invest in R&D across our seven
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key technology platforms, which we believe will lead to continued innovation and growth within our addressable
market for the foreseeable future.

• Disciplined capacity expansion. We believe that we have a capital-efficient model that allows us to expand
capacity in a disciplined and economically attractive manner. Our focus on the pervasive semirr conductor market
requires lower capital intensity than that of the compute-focused foundrff ies to drive revenue growth.

• Strengthen government partnerships. We intend to continue expanding our existing footprint by building on the
strength of our public/private investment partnerships. As regions around the world work to establish domestic
semiconductor supply, we believe governmental funding to secure local manufacturing will continue.

• Continued operational excellence. Through intensive management focus on operational efficiency, we will
continue to implement efficiency measures aimed at expanding margins, improving our bottom line, and generating
higher returns on investment. We expect our business model to provide significant bottom line benefits as revenue
scales at each of our existing locations.

Raw Materials

One of the most important raw materials used in our production processes is silicon wafers, which is the basic raw material
from which integrated circuits are made. In recent years, the silicon substrate market has experienced price volatility and
supply shortages. The principal suppliers for our wafers are GlobalWaferff s Singapore Pte. Ltd. (“GlobalWafers”), Shin-Etsu
Handotai (“S.E.H.”), Siltronic AG, SK Siltron, Inc., Soitec and Sumco Corporation. In order to secure a reliable and flexible
supply of high-quality wafers, we have entered into multiple long-term agreements with the majority of our principal
suppliers, the largest of which is Soitec. We have entered into multiple long-term agreements with Soitec across a wide
spectrum of SOI products. See also “Item 3. Risk Factors—We rely on a complex silicon supply chain and breakdowns in
that chain could affect our ability to produce our products and could materially and adversely affect our results of operations,
financial condition, business and prospects.”

Research and Development

We have a strong heritage of innovation, stemming from our roots at AMD, Chartered Semiconductor and IBM, and have
built a comprehensive technology portfolio supported by approximately 9,000 worldwide patents. As of December 31, 2022,
we had approximately 1,500 employees dedicated to R&D. We have a strong commitment to R&D, and, since our strategic
repositioning in 2018, have been able to invest more efficiently, focusing our R&D efforts primarily on delivering a
comprehensive and expanded portfolio of highly-differentiated, feature-rich solutions for our customers, including RF,ff
FinFET, feature-rich CMOS, FDXTM, SiGe, GaN and SiPh. Our investments cover a broad range of innovation vectors,
including materials and substrates, architecture, integration, services, including packaging, and the development of our
ecosystem. We have developed and continue to develop resources that allow our customers to develop innovative products
to fuel the global economy. In 2022, 2021 and 2020, we spent $482 million, $478 million and $476 million, respectively, on
R&D, which represented 6%, 7% and 10% of our net revenue in each respective year.

Intellectual Property

We rely on IP rights, particularly patents and trade secrets, as well as contractual arrangements, to protect our core process
and design enablement technologies and provide our customers with protected technology to enable their mission-critical
offerings. On average, we file hundreds of new patent applications annually, and approximately 90% of our filed patent
applications have successfully been issued as patents (based on U.S. patent applications filed between 2017 and 2021),
which reflects the innovation of our engineers. Following our 2018 pivot to focus on differentiated technologies, our recent
patent applications have closely tracked our areas of focus, inf cluding RF, FDXTMX , SiGe, GaN and SiPh. We file our patent
applications in the United States and in key countries such as Taiwan, Korea, China and Germany based on the location of
other semiconductor manufacturers or major markets. In addition to patents invented by our engineers, we have also
acquired thousands of patents from other leading semiconductor manufacturers, including AMD, Chartered Semiconductor
and IBM. We periodically conduct in-depth reviews of our patents and the industry’s manufacturing technologies, and we cull
patents having limited or no value, yielding both savings in patent office maintenance fees and a strong, active patent
portfolio.

Over the years, we have used our patent portfolio to successfully fend off operating companies seeking to extract patent
license fees from us. We have also entered into patent cross-licenses with a number of other leading advanced
semiconductor companies, including AMD, Samsung and IBM. These cross-licenses provide us with valuable freedom of
operation under patents owned or subsequently divested by such companies. As is the case with many companies in the
semiconductor industry, we have from time to time received communications from third parties, in particular, so-called non-
practicing entities, asserting patents that allegedly cover certain of our technologies, and we expect to receive similar
communications in the future. Some of the patents that others have chosen to assert against us are not valid based on pre-
existing prior art, and we have successfully defended ourselves using inter partesrr review (“IPR”) and other procedures in the
U.S. Patent and Trademark Office. Regardless of the validity or the successful assertion of such claims, we could incur
significant costs and devote significant management resources to the defense of these claims, which could seriously harm
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our company. Additionally, many of our agreements with our customers and partners require us to defend such parties
against certain IP infringement claims and indemnify them for damages and losses arising from certain intellectual property
infringement claims against them. See “Item 3. Key Information—Risk Factors—Intellectual Property—We have been, and
may continue to be, subject to intellectual property disputes, which are costly and may subject us to significant liability and
increased costs of doing business.”

Environmental, Social and Governance (ESG) Initiatives

We are dedicated to ethical and responsible business practices, the personal and social well-being of our employees, and
supply chain and environmental stewardship. ESG is fundamental to our culture and our value proposition to our customers,
the communities in which we live and do business, and our full range of global stakeholders.

Employee Safety, Health and Well-being

Our Journey to Zero commitment is the leading theme of our Global Environmental Health and Safety (“EHS”) Policy and
Standards, which serves as the foundation of health and safety programs at each of our manufacturing locations. We strive
to continuously reduce occupational injuries and illnesses in all of our operations, and aspire to achieve the goal of zero
annual incidents. In November 2020, we received the America’s Safest Companies award from EHS Today. Our enterprise-
wide health and safety management system is certified to the ISO 45001:2018 standard.

Envivv rii orr nmentally Sustainable Manufacturing and Operationsrr

Semiconductor manufacturing is generally resource-intensive. Therefore, our Journey to Zero commitment also represents
our pursuit of sustainable and environmentally efficient manufacturing operations, seeking to minimize environmental- and
climate-related impacts from our operations through pollution prevention and resource conservation. Our Global EHS Policy
and Standards establish a continual improvement process and performance requirements that apply throughout the
company. Our enterprise-wide environmental management system is certified to the ISO 14001:2015 standard. In August
2021, we launched our Journey to Zero Carbon commitment that aims to reduce greenhouse gas emissions by 25% by
2030, compared to a 2020 baseline.

Responsible Sourcing

As a member of the Responsible Business Alliance (“RBA”), we are committed to responsible sourcing practices. We
progressively apply the RBA Code of Conduct to our major suppliers and monitor its application. We encourage and support
our suppliers to do the same in our continuous pursuit of excellence in corporate responsibility and extension of responsible
practices throughout the supply chain.

TeTT chnology Solutions for Humanitgg yt

We are focused on creating innovations in the largest and most pervasive segments of the semiconductor industry. As power
efficiency has become a critical success factor for our industry, we strive to develop solutions that can lower the power
consumption of digital technology.

Human Capital: Diversity & Inclusion and TaTT lent Development

We believe that our success rests on empowering employees to bring their whole selves to the company and that building a
culture of inclusion drives better business outcomes. As a global company, we recognize and value the wide variety of
cultural values, traditions, experiences, education and perspectives of our team and communities. We previously established
a Diversity & Inclusion office and as of December 31, 2022, we employed a multicultural workforce across three continents,
representing more than 83 nationalities across 13 countries. We believe that our culture of inclusion leads to higher levels of
belonging, engagement and ultimately, higher-performing teams. We strive to focus on all aspects of the employee lifecycle,
including recruitment, retention, professional development, and advancement of diverse talent. As part of this effort, we
established our first employee resource group, GLOBALWOMEN, in 2013 to have a positive impact on our business through
the enrichment of our female employees. Since then, we have established the Black Resource Affinity Group (“B.R.A.G.”),
Globalfamilies, the United States Veteran’s Resource Group (“VRG”), Early Career and Tenure Resource Group, Asian
Society for Inclusion and Awareness, Unidos, Pride and Remote Group. Employee driven, our employee resource groups
support our diversity and inclusion strategy. We use an annual engagement surverr y process to help measure employee
engagement and our diversity and inclusion strategy progress.

Community Support and Engagement

We have a long history of community involvement, with well-established programs and global and local teams dedicated to
enriching the lives of the people in our communities around the world. Through our worldwide GlobalGives program, we
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provide employees with the opportunity to make a positive impact in their local communities through personal donations,
company-matched donations as well as through volunteering their time.

Stakeholder EngagementEE

Our key stakeholders have a significant interest in our business and help shape our company and the products and services
we provide. We regularly engage with our employees, customers, communities, suppliers, and industry peers, sharing
perspectives and gaining valuable insight relevant to our business and operations.

C. Organizational Structure

The following is a chart of our current corporate structure as of December 31, 2022:

* Please refer to No 28 tote o r Anu nual Consolidated Financial Statements for more information on our subsidiaries.
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D. Property, Plant and Equipment

Fab Facilities

In 2022, we shipped approximately 2.5 million 300mm equivalent semiconductor wafers. We currently operate four
manufacturing sites in the following locations: Dresden, Germany; Singapore; Malta, New York; and Burlington, Vermont.

Global Footprint

Our focus on highly-differentiated solutions, quality, security and reliability requires world-class manufacturing capabilities.
Since our strategic repositioning in 2018, we have shifted focus to digital, analog, mixed-sigff nal and RF technologies, where
we believe we can add significant value. We are streamlining and aligning our manufacturing footprint with this priority.
Subsequent to the sale of the EFK business, we have four world-class manufacturing sites on three continents, providing the
scale, technology differentiation and geographic diversification that we believe are critically important to our customers’
success. OO gn August 4, 2022, we agreed on a Commercial and Cooperatio, we agreed on a Commercial and Cooperatio gn agreement with ST to build a joinith ST to build tly-operated
300mm manufacturing facility in Crolles, France. This facility is targeted to ramp at full capacity by 2026, with up to 620,000
300mm wafers per year production at full build-out. The project is subject to regulatory approvals.

At the end of 2022, excluding the sale of the EFK business, our manufacturing sites currently occupy an aggregate area of
approximately 4.3 million square meters. The total clean room space is approximately 199,000 square meters spread across
four manufacturing sites.

Location Site area (sqm)
Malta, New York 976,000

Burlington, Vermont 2,700,000

Dresden, Germany 407,000

Singapore 189,000
Total 4,272,000

Each site is equipped with thousands of highly sophisticated manufacturing equipment and tools. We currently have more
than 7,500 tools across all of our fabs. Each site has dedicated power, water, gas and chemical distribution systems.

Our products have applications that span the global markets from mobility to wireless, wired and satellite communication, to
automotive, industrial, consumer electronics, to personal computing, data center, to power, power management, photonics
and more, with sizes that range from just a few millimeters square to 400 millimeters square, across our seven differentiated
technology platforms.
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Dresden Facility

Our Dresden facility is one of the largest semiconductor manufacturing sites in Europe, with approximately 650,000 300mm
equivalent semiconductor wafers shipped in 2022. The facility occupies an area of approximately 407,000 square meters,
with clean room extending over an area of approximately 52,000 square meters, which is home to our CMOS and FDXTMX
process technologies from 55nm down to the 28/22nm node.

As of December 31, 2022, in Germany and the rest of Europe, we employed approximately 3,500 people.

40



Singapore Facilityll

Our Singapore facility is one of the largest semiconductor foundry manufacturing sites in South-east Asia, with
approximately 1,060,000 300mm equivalent semiconductor wafers shipped in 2022. The facility occupies an area of
approximately 189,000 square meters, with clean room extending over an area of approximately 60,000 square meters,
which is home to process technology of 40nm to 0.6 micrometer (“μm”).

As of December 31, 2022, we employed approximately 3,900 people in Singapore, which we believe makes us one of the
largest semiconductor-related employer and the largest foundry employer in the country.
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Maltatt , New York Facility

Our Malta, New York facility is the largest and most advanced 300mm pure-play foundry site in the United States, withff
approximately 390,000 300mm equivalent semiconductor wafers shipped in 2022. The facility occupies an area of
approximately 976,000 square meters, with clean room extending over an area of approximately 42,600 square meters,
which is home to our FinFET process technology at the 14nm and 12nm nodes. We believe that our Malta facility is the most
advanced ITAR-compliant semiconductor manufacturing facility of its kind in the world.

As of December 31, 2022, we employed approximately 2,500 people in Malta, which we believe makes the facility one of the
largest manufacturing employers in the area.
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Burlington, Vermont Facility

Our Burlington, Vermont facility is the largest 200mm pure-play foundry site in the United States with approximately 231,000
300mm equivalent semiconductor wafers shipped in 2022. The facility occupies an area of approximately 2.7 million square
meters, with clean room extending over an area of approximately 44,000 square meters, which is home to most of our RF
process technologies from 180nm and 90nm node. Our Burlington facility is an accredif ted member of the DoD’s Trusted
Foundry Program.

As of December 31, 2022 we employed approximately 2,000 people in the State of Vermont, which makes us one of the
largest private-sector employers in the state.
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The following table describes each of our core manufacturing facilities as of December 31, 2022:

Our Global Manufacturing Footprint

Wafer Size
(mm)

2022 Shipments
(kwpa, 300mm
equivalent)

Malta, New York 300 ~390
Burlington, Vermont 200 ~231
Dresden, Germany 300 ~650
East Fishkill, New York(1) 300 ~140
Singapore(2) 300, 200 ~1060

____ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___ ___
(1) On December 31, 2022, we completed the sale of the EFK business.
(2) Excludes Fab 7 Module 7H 450 kwpa.

In early 2021, we announced plans to accelerate the buildout of capacity within our existing fabs to meet committed
customer demand. For new fab expansions that require additional construction beyond our existing clean rooms, our
strategy is to continue to build scale in each of our locations through public/private partnerships, coupled where possible
with deep customer commitments, as well as advanced payments and capacity reservation fees to secure supply for our
customers.

On June 22, 2021, we announced fab expansion plans in Singapore, with the addition of Module 7H, an extension of our
existing 300mm Fab 7 operations. In 2022, we made significant progress towards the completion of Module 7H, investing
approximately $4 billion to build and fit out the new module. We expect to begin production in 2023. This expansion is
funded in part by the Singapore Economic Development Board (“EDB”) in the form of long-term developmental loans and
grants. Once fully ramped, we anticipate having an additional 450,000 wafers of 300mm capacity.

On July 19, 2021, we announced fab expansion plans in Malta, New York, including the construction of a new fab on the
same campus. We expect to invest approximately $1.0 billion in capital investments to expand the capacity of the existing
fab by approximately 150,000 wafers per year, to be followed by the construction of an additional fab that we expect to
double existing capacity. We are planning to fund the expansion through private/public partnerships in the United States.

On August 4, 2022, we agreed on a Commercial and Cooperatn August 4, 2022, we agreed on a Commercial and Cooperation agreement with ST to bon agreement with ST to build a jld ointly-operated 300mm
manufacturing facility adjacent to ST’s existing 300mm facility in Crolles, France. This facility is targeted to ramp to 620,000
300mm wafers per year production at full build-out. The project remains subject to regulatory approvals.

ITEM 4A. UNRESOLVED STAFF COMMENTS

None.
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ITEM 5. OPERATING AND FINANCIAL REVIEWS AND PROSPECTS

You should read the following discussion and analysis together with our consolidated financial statements, including the
related notes, set forth beginning on page F-1.

A discussion of the changes in our results between the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2021, has been omitted from
this GlobalFoundries 2022 Form 20-F (see “Item 5: "Operating and Financial Review and Prospects—A. Operating Results”
and “Item 5. Operating and Financial Reviews and Prospects—B. Liquidity and Capital Resources”), of the GlobalFoundries
2021 Form 20-F for the year ended December 31, 2021, filed with the SEC on March 31, 2022, which is available on the
SEC’s website at www.sec.gov and our website at https://gf.com/.

Executive Overview and Other Recent Events

GlobalFoundries is one of the world’s leading semiconductor foundrff ies. We manufacture complex, feature-rich integrated
circuits (“ICs”) that enable billions of electronic devices that are pervasive throughout nearly every sector of the global
economy. With our specialized foundry manufacturing processes, a library consisting of thousands of IP titles, and
differentiated transistor and device technology, we serve a broad range of customers, including the global leaders in IC
design, and provide optimized solutions for the function, performance and power requirements of critical applications driving
key secular growth end markets.

The combination of our highly-diffef rentiated technology and our scaled manufacturing footprint enables us to attract a large
share of single-sourced products and LTAs, providing improved revenue visibility and significant operating leverage,
resulting in improved financial perfoff rmance. As of December 31, 2022, the aggregate remaining long term revenue
commitment reflected by these agreements amounted to more than $22 billion, including approximately $13 billion during
the period from January 2023 through December 2024, and more than $5 billion in advanced payments and capacity
reservation fees, These agreements include binding, multi-year, reciprocal annual (and, in some cases, quarterly) minimum
purchase and supply commitments with wafer pricing and associated mechanics outlined for the contract term. Through an
intense focus on collaboration, we have built deep strategic partnerships with a broad base of more than 250 customers as
of December 31, 2022, many of whom are the global leaders in their field.

The principal source of our revenue is wafer fabrication and sales of finished semiconductor wafers, which accounted for
approximately 94% of our net revenue in 2022. The rest of our net revenue was mainly derived from photomask
manufacturing, sourcing services and pre-fab manufacturing services.

The semiconductor industry is susceptible to uncertain economic conditions that could impact demand. We remain cautious
regarding the macroeconomic headwinds facing our industry in the first half of 2023. We continue to implement a long-term
partnership-driven model with our industry, which is driving improved visibility for our business through this period of
uncertainty.

Components of Results of Operations

Net Revenue

We generate the majority of our revenue from volume production and sales of finished semiconductor wafers, which are
priced on a per-wafer basis for the applicable design. We also generate revenue from pre-fabrication services such as
rendering of non-recurring engineering (“NRE”) services, mask production and pre-fabrication services such as bump, test,
and packaging. Pricing is typically agreed prior to production and then updated based on subsequent period negotiations.

We recognize the vast maja ority of our revenue upon shipment of finished wafers to our customers. Prior to 2020, we
recognized wafer revenue primarily on a Percentage-of-Completion basis. In 2020, the majority of our customers contractual
terms were amended in a manner that resulted in moving to recognizing revenue on a Wafer Shipment basis. This resulted
in a one-time, non-recurring reduction in net revenue recognized in 2020.

Cost of Revenue

Cost of revenue consists primarily of material expenses, depreciation and amortization, employee-related expenses, facility
costs and costs of fixed assets, including maintenance and spare parts. Material expenses primarily include the costs of raw
wafers, test wafers, photomasks, resists, process gases, process chemicals, other operating supplies and external service
costs for wafer manufacturing. Costs related to NRE servicerr s are also included within the cost of revenue. As it pertains to
inflation and inflationary-headwinds we are facing within our business, we have experienced an increase in costs for
materials and energy in the current period, and we expect these increases to continue to have an adverse impact on our
financial results of operations, while these economic conditions persist.

Depreciation and amortization charges primarily include the depreciation of clean room production equipment. Employee-
related expenses primarily include employee wages and salaries, social security contributions and benefit costs for
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operators, maintenance technicians, process engineers, supply chain, IT production, yield improvement and health and
safety roles. Facility costs primarily consist of the costs of electricity, water and other utilities and services.

Operarr titt nii g Expenses

Our operating expenses consist of R&D, selling, general and administrative expenses, and restructuring charges. Personnel
costs are the most significant component of our operating expenses and consist of salaries, benefits, bonuses, share-based
compensation, and commissions.

Research and Development (“R&D”)

Our R&D efforts are focused on developing highly-differentiated process technologies and solutions. As part of our strategic
repositioning, we shifted our R&D efforts to focus on technologies where we can deliver highly-differentiated solutions and
discontinued our R&D-intensive single-digit node program. Our R&D expense includes personnel costs, material costs,
software license and intellectual property expenses, facility costs, supplies, professional and consulting fees, and
depreciation on equipment used in R&D activities. Our development roadmap includes new platform investments, platforff m
features and extensions, and investments in emerging technology capabilities and solutions. We expense R&D costs as
incurred. We believe that continued investment in our technology portfolio is important for our future growth and acquisition
of new customers. We expect our R&D expense as a percentage of revenue to moderately decline over time as revenue
increases.

Sellll ill ngii , General and Administrative (“SG&A”)

SG&A expenses consist primarily of personnel-related costs, including sales commissions to independent sales
representatives and professional fees, including the costs of accounting, audit, legal, regulatory and tax compliance.
Additionally, costs related to advertising, trade shows, corporate marketing and allocated overhead costs are also included
in SG&A expenses. We expect our SG&A expenses to decrease as a percentage of net revenue.

Since we became a publicly-traded company in October 2021, we have and will continue to incur increased audit,
accounting, legal, information technology, regulatory, compliance, director and officer insurance costs as well as investor and
public relations expenses associated with operating as a public company.

Restructuring Charges

We incur restructuring charges related to a reduction in our global workforce, reduction in leased workspace and engaging
consultants for strategic support.

Other Operating Chargesii

FiFF nii ance Income

Finance income consists primarily of income related to investing activities.

Finii ance Expenses

Finance expenses consists primarily of interest on borrowings, amortization of debt issuance costs under our term loans,
revolving credit facility, finance leases and the other credit facilities we maintain with various financial institutions.

Gain on Sale of a Business

Gain on sale of a business relates to the sale of the EFK business in December 2022.

Other Income (Expense), net

Other income (expense), net consists of one-time gains and losses and other miscellaneous income and expense items
unrelated to our core operations. Included are tool sales to third party, as well as gains and losses relating to hedging
activities.
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Income Tax Expense

Income tax expense consists primarily of income taxes in certain foreign jurisdictions in which we conduct business, which
mainly include Germany, Singapore and U.S. federal and state income taxes.

The following discussion covers items for and a comparison between the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

A. Operating Results

The following table sets forth our consolidated statements of operations data for the periods indicated:

For the year ended December 31,
2022 2021

(in millions)
Net revenue $ 8,108 $ 6,585
Cost of revenue (1) 5,869 5,572
Gross profit 2,239 1,013
Operating expenses
Research and development(1) 482 478
Selling, general and administrative(1) 496 595
Restructuring charges 94 —
Operating expenses 1,072 1,073
Income (Loss) from operations 1,167 (60)
Finance income 51 6
Finance expenses (111) (114)
Gain on sale of the EFK business 403 —
Other income (expense), net 22 (8)
Income (Loss) before income taxes 1,532 (176)
Income tax expense (86) (78)
Net income (loss) 1,446 (254)( )( )

(1)Includes share-based compensation expense as follows:

For the year ended December 31,
(in millions) 2022 2021

Cost of revenue $ 64 $ 55
Research and development $ 27 $ 22
Selling, general and administrative $ 92 $ 151

Comparison of Years Ended December 31, 2022 and December 31, 2021p , ,

Net Revenue

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021 2022 vs 2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Net revenue $ 8,108 $ 6 23.1 %,585 $ 1,523

Net revenue increased by $1,523 million, or 23.1%, for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared to the year ended
December 31, 2021. The increase was primarily a result of higher wafer shipment volumes and ASPs. For the year ended
December 31, 2022, wafer shipments were approximately 2.5 million (300mm equivalent), a 4.1% increase from the prior
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year. ASP per wafer increased 17% year over year, driven by ramping long-term customer agreements with better pricing,
and continued improvement in product mix.

Cost of Revevv nue

(in millions)

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021
2022 vs
2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Cost of revenue $ 5,869 $ 5,572 $ 297 5.3 %
Gross margin % 27.6 % 15.4 % +1,220bps

Cost of revenue increased by $297 million, or 5.3%, for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared to the year ended
December 31, 2021. The year-over-year change was driven by $9 million increase in share-based compensation, 4.1%
increase in wafer shipments partially offset by increased fixed cost absorption from higher factory utilization.

Our improvement in gross margin to 27.6% for the year ended December 31, 2022 from 15.4% for the year ended
December 31, 2021 was largely attributable to higher ASPs and a better product mix.

Research and Development Expensesxx

(in millions)

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021 2022 vs 2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Research and development expenses $ 482 $ 478 $ 4 0.8 %
As a % of revenue 5.9 % 7.3 %

Research and development expenses increased by $4 million, or 0.8%, for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared
to the year ended December 31, 2021. The year-over-year change was primarily driven by a $14 million increase in R&D
technology portfolio investments, $5 million increase in share-based compensation and employee-related expenses, partially
offset by $14 million reduction in R&D pre-production costs.

Sellill nii g, General agg nd Administrativtt e Expensesvv

(in millions)

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021
2022 vs
2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Selling, general and administrative expenses $ 496 $ 595 $ (99) (16.6)%
As a % of revenue 6.1 % 9.0 %

Selling, general and administrative expenses decreased by $99 million, or 16.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2022,
compared to the year ended December 31, 2021. The decrease was primarily driven by a $73 million reduction in employee-
related expenses, which was impacted by restructuring activities and lower share-based compensation of $59 million. This
was offset by a $38 million increase in professional services associated with operating as a public company.
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Restructuring Chargesrr

(in millions)

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021
2022 vs
2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Restructuring charges $ 94 $ — $ 94 NM

Restructuring charges were $94 million foff r the year ended December 31, 2022. In the fourth quarter 2022, the Company
communicated and implemented a restructuring plan, which included charges related to a reduction in our global workforce,
reduction in leased workspace and engaging consultants for strategic support.

FiFF nii ance income
Year ended
December 31,

2022 vs
2021

2022 vs
2021

(in millions) 2022 2021 Change % Change

Finance Income $ 51 $ 6 $ 45.00 NM

Finance income increased by $45 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared to the year ended December
31, 2021. The increase was primarily driven by higher interest income generated from money market funds and investments
in marketable securities.

FiFF nii ance expense

(in millions)

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021 2022 vs 2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Finance expenses $ ( $ (1111) $ 314) (2.6)%

Finance expenses decreased by $3 million, or 2.6%, for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared to the year ended
December 31, 2021. This decrease was primarily a result of lower interest expense driven by the maturity of higher interest
rate loans over the course of the year.

Gain on the sale of a business

(in millions)

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021
2022 vs
2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Gain on sale of a business $ 403 $ — $ 403 NM

Gain on the sale of a business was $403 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, as we completed the sale of the
EFK business in 2022.
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Other Income (e(( xee pense), netxx

(in millions)

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021
2022 vs
2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Other income (expense), net $ 22 $ (8) $ 30 NM

Other income (expense), net increased by $30 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared to the year ended
December 31, 2021. The year-over-year change is primarily attributable to a $34 million provision for settlement with our
previous joint venture in China in 2021, approximately $38 million due to hedging activities in 2022, offseff t by $40 million
increase in tool sales to third parties.

InII come tax exee pxx ense

(in millions)

Year ended
December 31, 2022 vs

2021
2022 vs
2021

2022 2021 Change % Change

Income tax expense $ (86 10.3 %$ (8)$ (78))

Income tax expense increased by $8 million, or 10.3% for the year ended December 31, 2022, comf pared to the year ended
December 31, 2021. The increase is primarily the result of $16 million in additional withholding tax, offset by an $8 million
reduction in tax expense due to a change in the mix of taxable income in jurisdictions with lower tax rates.

B. Liquidity and Capital Resources

We have financed operations primarily through cash and cash equivalents, marketable securities, as well as cash generated
from our business operations, including prepayments under LTAs, debt and government funding. As of December 31, 2022,
our cash and cash equivalents and marketable securities balances of $3,346 million included $2,352 million of cash and
cash equivalents and $994 million of marketable securities. As of December 31, 2021, our principal source of liquidity was
our cash balance of $2,939 million.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, we had an undrawn revolving credit facility of $1,000 million. In addition to our available
revolvers, we had $2,511 million and $2,013 million of debt outstanding as of December 31, 2022, and 2021, respectively,
which was primarily comprised of multiple term loans in various currencies. Our future capital requirements will depend on
many factors, including our revenue growth rate, the timing and the amount we receive from customers, the timing and
extent of spending to support development efforts, the introduction of new and enhanced products and solutions, and the
continuing market adoption of our platform. We may from time to time seek to raise additional capital to support our growth.
As of December 31, 2022, we believe that our existing cash, cash equivalents, investment in marketable securities, credit
under our revolving credit facility, and expected cash generated from operations are sufficient to meet our capital
requirements.

The fof llowing table shows a summary of our term loan facilities, other debt facilities, which consist primarily of equipment
financing and our committed undrawn revolvers.

For the year ended December 31,
2022 2021

(in millions)
Term loan facilities $ 1,456 $ 1,603
Other debt facilities 1,055 410
Revolvers and letters of credit 1,012 1,009

We entered into loan facilities with Mubadala during the period 2012 to 2016 (collectively, the “Shareholder Loans”). The
Shareholder Loans were non-interest bearing and principal repayment, in whole or in part, was entirely at our discretion. The
Shareholder Loans had no maturity date. Further, there were no contingent settlements in the agreements. Since the
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Shareholder Loans did not contain any contractual obligations to deliver cash, but rather allowed us to make repayment at
our absolute discretion and further prohibited Mubadala from demanding repayment, we classified the Shareholder Loans as
equity within the consolidated financial statements. On October 1, 2021, our board approved an agreement with Mubadala
to convert the previously outstanding $10.1 billion of the Shareholder Loan balance into additional paid-in-capital (the
“Conversion”). The Conversion did not have an impact on shares outstanding or have any dilutive effects, as no additional
shares were issued.

Government grants are also a source of capital. Those grants are primarily provided in connection with construction and
operation of our wafer manufacturing facilities, employment and R&D. For the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and
2020, we received $93 million, $83 million and $312 million, respectively, in proceeds from government grants. The change
in grants relates primarily to the wind down of historical grant programs in New York and Dresden.

We monitor capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. Our policy is to keep the
gearing ratio within a range to meet our business needs. Our future capital requirements will depend on many factors,
including our revenue growth rate, the timing and the amount of cash received from customers, the timing and extent of
spending to support development effoff rts, the introduction of new and enhanced products and solutions, and the continuing
market adoption of our platform. We may from time to time seek to raise additional capital to support our growth. Any equity
financing we may undertake could be dilutive to our shareholders, and any additional debt financing we may undertake
could require debt services and fr inancial and operational requirements that could adversely affect our business. We cannot
provide any assurance that we would be able to obtain future financing on favorable terms or at all.

Cash Flows

The following table shows a summary of our cash flows for the periods presented:

Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021

(in millions)
Cash provided by operating activities $ 2,624 $ 2,839

Cash used in investing activities $ (4,058) $ (1,450)

Cash provided by financing activities $ 842 $ 650

Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash equivalents $ 5 $ (8)

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (587) $ 2,031

Operating Activities

Cash provided by operating activities for the year ended December 31, 2022 of $2,624 million was primarily related to a
higher net income of $1,446 million, adjusted primarily for $1,623 million of depreciation and amortization of intangible
assets. Other significant adjustments for the period include $181 million of share-based compensation expense as well as
$403 million gain from the sale of EFK. Unfavorable changes in working capital of $166 million included an increase in
inventory of $261 million offset by an increase in trade and other payables of $60 million and a decrease in receivables and
other assets of $35 million.

InII vesvv tintt g Activities

Cash used in investing activities was $4,058 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared to cash used in
investing activities of $1,450 million for the year ended December 31, 2021, reflecting a $2,608 million increase. The year-
over-year change was primarily attributable to an increase in purchases of property, plant, equipment and intangibles of
$1,292 million, principally associated with activities to expand capacity within certain of our fabrication facilities and net
purchases of marketable securities of $996 million and reduced proceeds from the sale of property, plant, equipment and
intangible assets of $283 million.

FiFF nii ancing Activities

Cash provided by financing activities were $842 million for the year ended December 31, 2022, compared to $650 million for
the year ended December 31, 2021 reflecting a $192 million increase. The year-over-year changes were primarily due to
shareholder loan repayments in 2021 which did not happen in 2022, debt and finance lease obligations of $1,138 million and
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increased proceeds from borrowings of $354 million, partially offset by reduced proceeds for the issuance of equity of
$1,276 million.

Contractual Obligations

As of December 31, 2022, we had $6,361 million of unconditional purchase commitments, $2,774 million of which related to
contracts for capital expenditures, and $3,587 million of contracts related to operating expenditures. Of the total balance as
of December 31, 2022, $2,732 million is due within the next 12 months. See Note 26 to our Annual Consolidated Financial
Statements for additional details.

C. Research and Development, Patents and Licenses

Refer to “Item 4. Information on the Company”, for discussion on our research and development, aff nd intellectual property.

D. Trend information

Our financial condition and results of operations have been, and will continue to be, affected by numerous factors and
trends, including the following:

Global Demand for Semiconductor Products

Demand for our products is dependent on market conditions in the end markets in which our customers operate, which are
generally subject to seasonality, as well as cyclical and competitive conditions. Additionally, we derive a portion of our net
revenue from sales to customers that purchase large volumes of our products. Customers generally provide periodic
fof recasts of their requirements, but these forecasts do not commit such customers to minimum purchases except when
long-term contracts are in place.

The semiconductor industry is susceptible to uncertain economic conditions that could impact demand. We remain cautious
regarding the macroeconomic headwinds facing our industry in the first half of 2023. We continue to implement a long-term
partnership-driven model with our industry, which is driving improved visibility for our business through this period of
uncertainty.

Increasing Design Wins wii th New and Existing Customers

We believe that we provide highly-differentiated solutions that enable our customers to innovate and deliver exceptional
products to the marketplace. A key measure of our success is customer design wins, and as our number of design wins has
increased, our customer base has become larger and more diverse, having grown from only one customer, AMD, in 2009, to
a global base of more than 250 customers as of December 31, 2022. As design wins for our highly-differentiated solutions
are put into production we expect to obtain premium ASP for those solutions. We define a design win as the successful
completion of the evaluation stage, where a customer has assessed our technology solution, verified that it meets its
requirements, qualified it for their products and confirmed to us their selection.

Increasing Single-sourced Revenue Mix

We manufacture products based on a combination of our own technologies and our customers’ IP, resulting in a significant
number of products that can only be sourced from us. Our sales and marketing strategy centers on deepening relationships
with top customers and investing in technologies to become their single-source supplier for mission-critical applications. We
believe a key measure of our success as a differentiated technology partner to our customers is the mix of our wafer
shipment volume attributable to single-sourced business, which represented approximately 65% of wafer shipment volume
in 2022, up from 62% in 2021. We define single-sourced products as those that we believe can only be manufactured with
our technology and cannot be manufactured elsewhere without significant customer redesigns.

TeTT chnology Solution Mix and Pricing

Product mix is among the most important factors affecting revenue and margins, as our wafer price varies significantly
across technology platforms. The value of a wafer is determined principally by the uniqueness and complexity of the
technology, performance characteristics, yield and defect density. Devices with richer feature sets, higher performance,
better yields and greater system-level integration require more substantial R&D investments and more complex
manufacturing expertise and equipment, and thus generally command higher wafer prices.

Pricing and margins depend on the volumes and featuf res of the solutions we deliver. We continually monitor and work to
reduce the cost of our products and improve the potential value that our solutions deliver to our customers as we target new
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design win opportunities. While individual product prices may decline, we believe our R&D investments, differentiated
product and single-sourced strategy should lead to improvements in pricing mix and overall ASPs if we compete effectively.
We establish pricing levels for specific periods of time with our customers, some of which are subject to adjustment during
the course of that period to take into account market conditions and other factors. We believe our efforts to provide a wide
range of highly-differentiated solutions support our premium position in the marketplace.

Long Term Agreements.

We have entered into multiple LTAs with leading companies in the industry. Many of these contracts include customer
advanced payments and capacity reservation fees in order to secure future supply. We have approximately $22 billion in
aggregate lifetime revenue commitment, as of December 31, 2022. These revenue commitments provide significant visibility
for us with regard to future revenue.

Government Polill cy and Grants

We have received investment grants from the Federal Republic of Germany, the State of Saxony, various agencies of the
Government of Singapore and the Empire State Development Corporation in New York. These grants are primarily provided
in connection with construction and operation of our wafer manufacturing facilities, employment and R&D. We incorporate
committed government grants into our planning process for future expansions.

Shipment Utilization

We define shipment utilization as the ratio of wafer shipment volume divided by our estimated total capacity for wafer
manufacturing in a specified period. Shipment utilization remains a very important factor in driving our financial performance,
as we incur significant costs regardless of the number of wafers we actually produce. These fixed costs include staffing,
electricity, infrastructure, depreciation and maintenance costs at each fab.

Our average shipment utilization rate across our 300mm fabs was 103% and 106% for the years ended December 31, 2022
and 2021, respectively. Factors affecting shipment utilization rates include efficiency in production facilities, complexity and
mix of wafer types ordered by customers, including the impact of export controls and other regulatory changes affecting
customers and competitors. Our production capacity is determined based on the capacity ratings of the equipment in the
fab, adjusted for expected down time due to set up for production runs and maintenance and R&D. In 2022, we exceeded
our production capacity in order to meet customer demand; this was largely achieved through a continuous improvement
focus on the overall efficiency and productivity of our manufacturing operations.

E. Critical Accounting Policies and Estimates

Our Annual Consolidated Financial Statements and the related notes included elsewhere in this Annual Report are prepared
in accordance with IFRS. The preparation of our Annual Consolidated Financial Statements requires us to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, costs and expenses, and related
disclosures. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that are available to us at the
time, which we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ significantly from the estimates
made by management. To the extent there are differences between our estimates and actual results, our future financial
statement presentation, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows will be affected.

We believe that the accounting policies described below involve a greater degree of judgment and complexity. Accordingly,
these are the policies we believe are the most critical to aid in fully understanding and evaluating our consolidated financial
condition and results of operations.

Revenue Recognition

We recognize revenue when control of the promised goods or services is transferred to customers for an amount that
reflects the consideration that we expect to receive in exchange for those goods or services. Generally, our customers
obtain control at the point of shipment from our facilities for wafeff rs, and over time for pre-fabrication services such as non-
recurring engineering services and mask productg engineering ion based on a percentage of costs incurred over total expected costs.
Sales taxes collected from customers and remitted to governmental authorities are accounted for on a net basis and
therefore excluded from revenue in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss). We
recognized the costs and revenue when we satisfy our performance obligatff ions to customers upon transfer of control of
promised goods and services.

Revenue is reduced for estimated sales returns and allowances based on historical experience having determined that a
significant reversal in the amount of cumulative revenue recognized is not probable to occur. We recognize refund liabilities
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fof r estimated sales returns and allowances based on the customer complaints, historical experience and other known
factors.

We recognize accounts receivable when we transfer control of the goods or services to customers and have a right to an
amount of consideration that is unconditional. Such accounts receivable are short term and do not contain a significant
financing component. For certain contracts that do not provide us unconditional rights to the consideration, and the transfer
of controls of the goods or services has been satisfied, we recognize contract assets and revenue. We account for
consideration received from customers prior to having satisfied our performff ance obligations as contract liabilities which are
transferred to revenue after the performance obligations are satisfied. This includes upfront non-refundable capacity access
fees under certain long-term supply agreements with customers which are accounted for as additional wafer price
considerations and recognized as revenue upon satisfaction of performance obligations for wafers over the expected term of
the agreements.

Invevv ntory Valuationrr

As a build-to-order foundry, we procure raw materials based on forecasted demand and produce work-in-progress and
finished goods inventory against specific customer purchase orders. We state inventories at the lower of cost or net
realizable value fof r finished goods, work-in-progress, raw materials, and spare parts. fThe cost of supplies is determined
based on a weighted-average cost formulsed on a weighted-average cost formula. We make inventory w. rite-downs on an item-by-item basis, except where it may
be appropriate to group similar or related items.

A significant amount of our manufacturing cost is fixed because our global footprint of manufacturing facilities that are the
source of our production capacity require substantial investment for construction and fit up. These are largely fixed-cost
assets once they become operational. Utilization of these assets can have a material impact on product cost of revenue and
inventory valuations. Our objectives foff r inventory are to maintain high levels of customer service, maintain stable and
competitive lead times, minimize inventory obsolescence and optimize manufacturing asset utilization.

We value work-in-process and finished goods product cost based on a standard costing approach. We base standard cost
on the planned utilization of installed factory capacity and adjust it annually as factory capacity conditions change and cost
efficiencies are realized. We make allowances for saleability quarterly based on the aging characteristics of our inventory.
Additionally, we make allowances where necessary to ensure saleable inventory is valued at a realizable value based on
customer pricing agreements.

Realill zation of Deferred Incii ome Tax Assetstt

When we have temporary differences in the amount of tax expenses recorded for tax purposes and financial reporting
purposes, we may be able to reduce the amount of tax that we would otherwise be required to pay in future periods. We
generally recognize deferred tax assets to the extent that it is probable that sufficient taxable income will be available in the
future to utilize such assets. We record the income tax benefit or expense when there is a net change in our total deferred
tax assets and liabilities in a period. The ultimate realization of the deferred tax assets depends upon the generation of
future taxable income during the periods in which the temporary differences may be utilized. Specifically, the realization of
deferred income tax assets is impacted by our expected future revenue growth and profitability, tax holidays and the amount
of tax credits that can be utilized within the statutory period. In determining the amount of deferred tax assets as of
December 31, 2022 and 2021, we considered past performance, the general outlook of the semiconductor industry,
business conditions, future taxable income and prudent and feasible tax planning strategies.

Because the determination of the amount of deferred tax assets that can be realized is based, in part, on our forecast of
future profitability, it is inherently uncertain and subjective. Changes in market conditions and our assumptions may cause
the actual future profitability to differ materially from our current expectation, which may require us to increase or decrease
the deferred tax assets that we have recorded. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, deferred tax assets were $292 million
and $353 million, respectively. The deferred tax assets recorded are primarily in Singapore, with significant unrecognized
deferred tax assets in the United States and Germany.

Property, Plant and Equipment

We make estimates and assumptions when accounting for property, plant and equipment. We compute depreciation using
the straight-line method over the estimated useful life of the assets, and our depreciation expense is highly dependent on
the assumptions we make about the estimated useful life of our assets. We estimate the useful life of our property, plant and
equipment based on our experience with similar assets and our estimate of the usage of the asset. Whenever events or
circumstances occur that change the estimated useful life of an asset, we account for the change prospectively. We must
also make judgments about the capitalization of costs. We capitalize costs of major improvements, while we charge costs of
normal repairs and maintenance to expense as incurred. If an asset or asset group is disposed of or retired before the end
of its previously estimated useful life, we may be required to accelerate our depreciation expense or recognize a loss on
disposal.
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During the first quarter of 2021, we revised the estimated useful life of certain production equipment and machinery from a
range of five to eight years, to ten years. We made this change to better reflect the expected pattern of economic benefits
from the use of the equipment and machinery over time, based on an analysis of production equipment’s current use,
historical age patterns, and future plans and technology roadmaps, as well as an analysis of industry trends and practices.
The analysis concluded that an increase in useful lives was warranted, and consistent with the Company’s continuing
portfolio shift from leading-edge to feature-rich trailing edge technologies. The change in estimated useful life is a change in
accounting estimate that was applied prospectively from January 1, 2021. Refer to Note 3 to our Annual Consolidated
Financial Statements included elsewhere in this Annual Report for additional details.

Share-rr Based Compensation

We measure and recognize share-based compensation expense based on the fair value of stock options and other equity
awards on the date of the grant. We estimate the options’ fair value at the date of grant using the Black-Scholes option
pricing model and Monte Carlo simulation model for Performance Share Units (“ff PSUs”). Both models require management
to make certain assumptions of future expectations based on historical and current data. The assumptions include the
expected term of the awards, expected volatility, dividend yield, and risk-free interest rate. The expected term represents the
amount of time that awards granted are expected to be outstanding, based on forecasted exercise behavior at the time of
valuation. The risk-free rate used for the option awards is based on the rate at grant date of zero-coupon U.S. Treasury
notes with a term comparable to the expected term of the options. For PSUs, the risk-free rate is based on the continuous
U.S. Treasury rate, commensurate with the remaining term of the PSUs. We estimate expected volatility based on the
historical volatility of comparable public entities’ share price from the same industry. We base our dividend yield on
forecasted expected payments, which we expect to be zero for the immediate future. We recognize compensation expense
over the vesting period of the options and performance period of the PSUs on a graded attribution basis, and we estimate
forfeitures.

We will continue to use judgment in evaluating the assumptions related to our share-based compensation on a prospective
basis. As we continue to accumulate additional data related to our ordinary shares, we may have refinements to our
estimates, which could materially impact our future share-based compensation expense.

See Note 29 to our Annual Consolidated Financial Statements for more information.

Off Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not have, and we do not currently have, any off-balance sheet financing arrangements
or any relationships with unconsolidated entities or financial partnerships, including entities sometimes referred to as
structured finance or special purpose entities, that were established for the purpose of facilitating off-balance sheet
arrangements or other contractually narrow or limited purposes.

Safe Harbor

See “Cautionary Statement Regarding Forward-Looking Information”.
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ITEM 6. DIRECTORS, SENIOR MANAGEMENT AND EMPLOYEES

A. Directors and Senior Management

The following table sets forth information for our executive officers and directors as of the date of this Annual Report:

Name Age Title

Executive Officers

Dr. Thomas Caulfield 64 President and Chief Executive Officer, Board Director

David Reeder 48 Chief Financial Officer

Kay Chai (KC) Ang 64 Chief Manufacturing Officer

Saam Azar 46 General Counsel

Juan Cordovez 44 Chief Commercial Officer

Pradheepa Raman 42 Chief People Officer

Board of Directors

Ahmed Yahia 50 Chairman

Dr. Thomas Caulfield 64 President and Chief Executive Officer, Board Director

Ahmed Saeed Al Calily 49 Board Director

Tim Breen 45 Board Director

Glenda Dorchak 68 Board Director

Martin L. Edelman 81 Board Director

David Kerko 50 Lead Independent Director

Jack Lazar 57 Board Director

Elissa E. Murphy 54 Board Director

Carlos Obeid 58 Board Director

Bobby Yerramilli-Rao 56 Board Director

Executive Officers

Dr. Thomas Caulfield is the President and Chief Executive Officer (“CEO”) of GF and was elected to the board of directors
in March 2018. Dr. Caulfield joined the Company in May 2014 as Senior Vice President and General Manager of the
Company’s Fab 8 semiconductor wafer manufacturing facility in Malta, NY, where he led operations, expansion and the
ramp-up of semiconductor manufacturing production, and the process development organization. Dr. Caulfield has an
extensive career spanning engineering, executive management and global operational leadership with leading technology
companies. Prior to joining GF, Dr. Caulfield served as President and Chief Operations Officer (“COO”) at Soraa from May
2012 to May 2014, the world’s leading developer of GaN on GaNTM (gallium nitride on gallium nitride) solid-state lighting
technology. Before Soraa, Dr. Caulfield served as President and COO of Ausra from 2009 to 2010, a leading provider of
large-scale concentrated solar power solutions for electrical power generation and industrial steam production. Prior to
leading at Ausra, Dr. Caulfield served as Executive Vice President of Sales, Marketing and Customer Service at Novellus
Systems, Inc. Before that, Dr. Caulfield spent 17 years at IBM in a variety of senior leadership roles, ultimately serving as
Vice President of 300mm semiconductor operations for IBM’s Microelectronics division, leading its wafer fabrication and
R&D operations in East Fishkill, NY. He currently serves as a member of the board of directors for Western Digital
Corporation. Dr. Caulfield earned a Bachelor of Science in Physics from St. Lawrence University before entering Columbia
University’s Fu Foundation School of Engineering and Applied Science, where he earned both his Bachelor and Master of
Science in Materials Science and Engineering as well as a Doctorate in Materials Science and Engineering. Dr. Caulfield
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was also a postdoctoral fellow at Columbia’s Engineering Center for Strategic Materials.

David Reeder is Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”) of GF, responsible for the Company’s financial strategy and leading the
global financial, information technology, supply chain and procurement organizations. He joined GF in August 2020 and has
extensive experience in the semiconductor industry and other fields. Previously, he was Chief Executive Officer for Tower
Hill Insurance Group from 2017 to 2020. Prior to that, he was President and CEO for Lexmark International, Inc. from 2015
to 2017. Earlier in his career, Mr. Reeder was CFO at Electronics for Imaging from 2014 to 2015 and Cisco’s Enterprise
Networking Division from 2012 to 2014, and held executive positions at Broadcom and Texas Instruments. Mr. Reeder
currently serves as a member of the board of dirr ectors of the National Action Council for Minff orities in Engineering and
previously server d as a member of the Audit Committee for Milacron Holdings Corp. He holds a Bachelor of Science degree
in Chemical Engineering from University of Arkansas and a Master of Business Administration degree from Southern
Methodist University.

Kay Chai (KC) Ang is Chief Manufacturing Officer for GF, a position he was appointed to in 2022. Mr. Ang joined GF in July
2009 and has served in a variety of senior leadership roles for the Company including head of all of our Singapore
operations from 2012 to 2020 and as head of the Fab 1 manufacturing facility, customer engineering and corporate quality
organizations. Mr. Ang has more than 30 years of foundry industry experience with a proven track record in manufacturing
operations, fab start-up, and technology transfer. Prior to joining the company, he held senior leadership positions at
Chartered Semiconductor Manufacturing from 1988 to 2009, including Senior Vice President of Sales and Marketing with
responsibility for global sales, marketing, services, customerr r support and regional business operations, and Senior Vice
President of Fab Operations, with responsibility for manufactff uring strategy and operational excellence. He is also the SEMI
Southeast Asia Regional Advisory Chairman and the Board Advisor to Singapore Semiconductor Industry Association. Mr.
Ang holds a bachelor’s degree in Mechanical Engineering from National Taiwan University and a master’s degree in
Engineering from University of Texas.

Saam Azar is General Counsel for GF since January 2017. He oversees all legal, compliance, government relations,
environmental health security and safety matters worldwide, including GF’s ESG program. Mr. Azar also serves as Secretary
to the GF board of directors and has been involved with the Company since its founding in 2009. From 2006 to 2017, Mr.
Azar has also served in various roles for GF’s majority shareholder, Mubadala Investment Company, as a senior member of
the Legal & Compliance Unit, working primarily on complex, cross border partnerships. Prior to Mubadala, he worked as a
corporate associate at the international law firm of Cleary Gottlieb in New York, where he supported numerous corporate
transactions with an emphasis on debt and equity capital markets. Mr. Azar holds a J.D. from New York University School of
Law and a Bachelor of Science degree in Civil and Environmental Engineering from Duke University.

Juan Cordovez is Chief Commercial Officer at GF since 2022, responsible for the end-to-end customer journey across
business development, customer technical delivery and management of strategic partnerships. Mr. Cordovez also oversees
customer solutions, tape operations, commercial strategy, and commercial operations. Prior to his current role, Mr. Cordovez
was Senior Vice President of Global Sales. Before being appointed to that position, he led GF’s EMEA and later APAC sales
from 2016 to 2019. Prior to that, Mr. Cordovez led GF’s Customer Design Enablement Team including the PDK, device
modeling and field applications engineering teams from 2013 to 2016. Prior to joining GF, Mr. Cordovez was founder and
Vice President of Sentinel IC Technologies from 2008 to 2013 and Manager of Design Enablement at Jazz Semiconductor
from 2002 to 2008. He holds a Master of Science degree in Electrical and Computer Engineering from the University of
Califoff rnia, Irvine.

Pradheepa Raman is Chief People Officer at GF since September 2022 and has global responsibility for GF’s human
resources practice areas including talent acquisition, development and retention, creation and delivery of people solutions,
total rewards, organizational development and expanding on GF’s culture of innovation, diversity, inclusion and safety. Prior
to joining GF, Ms. Raman was Global Head of Human Resources and Chief Transformation Officer for the Global Toof ls &
Storage business unit of Stanley Black & Decker, where she led a comprehensive effort to deliver a best-in-class employee
experience, built organizational resiliency through skills and leadership development, and helped enable business growth
and innovation across the business unit. Before holding that position, she was the Chief Talent Officer for Stanley Black &
Decker and held senior human resource positions at Samsung Electronics America and Avaya. Ms. Raman holds a
bachelor’s degree in Electronics and Communication Engineering from Anna University in Tamil Nadu, India, and a master’s
degree in Human Resources Management from Rutgers in New Jersey.

Board of Directors

Ahmed Yahia was elected to the board of directors as Chairman in December 2013. Mr. Yahia is currently the Chief
Executive Officer, Direct Investments at Mubadala Investment Company with oversight of the Energy, Technology, Life
Sciences, Consumer, Industrial & Business Servicerr s and Financial Services prr ortfolios. Mr. Yahia is also a member of
Mubadala's Investment Committee, which develops Mubadala's investment policies and reviews proposed projects. He is
also a member of Mubadala's Investment & Business Planning Committee, which approves transactions within certain
financial thresholds in addition to overseeing Mubadala’s consolidated business planning and performance monitoring
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processes. Prior to joining Mubadala, Mr. Yahia was a Partner at McKinsey & Company, where he co-led the Principal
Investor practice and was also the Managing Partner of the Abu Dhabi practice. He was formerly a Marketing Manager at
Procter & Gamble, where he led several flagship brands. He also serves as the Chairman of the board of directors of
Compañía Española de Petróleos (“Cepsa”), and of NOVA Chemicals, and is a member of the board of directors of Abu
Dhabi Investment Council (“ADIC”), Mubadala Capital, PCI Pharma Services and Emirates Global Aluminium. Previously,
Mr. Yahia served as a board member for Aff MD from 2012 to 2019. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Industrial Engineering
from École Centrale Paris and a Master of Science in Mechanical Engineering/Product Strategy from the Massachusetts
Institute of Technology. Mr. Yahia is an independent, non-executive director pursuant to applicable Nasdaq rules.

Dr. Thomas Caulfieff ld is the President and Chief Executive Officer (CEO) of GF and was elected to the board of directors in
March 2018. Please see above under “Executive Officers” for a description of the business experience of Dr. Caulfield.

Ahmed Saeed Al Calily was elected to the board of directors in March 2018. Mr. Al Calily is the Chief Strategy & Risk
Officer for Mubadala Investment Company “(Mubadala”) with oversight over portfolio strategy, enterprise risk management,
and responsible investing. Prior to that, Mr. Al Calily was the Chief Executive Officer of Energy at Mubadala, where he
oversaw the company’s energy assets. Prior to re-joining Mubadala, Mr. Al Calily was director general of the Abu Dhabi
Technology Development Committee and Chief Executive Officer and managing director of the Abu Dhabi Ports Company.
Mr. Al Calily also served as deputy director of the infrastructure and services unit at Mubadala. He currently serves as arr
member of the board of directors at Abu Dhabi Future Energy Company (“Masdar”), Abu Dhabi Investment Council (“ADIC”),
Cleveland Clinic Abu Dhabi LLC (“CCAD”), Mubadala Capital and Emirates Global Aluminum (“EGA”). Mr. Al Calily holds a
bachelor’s degree in Economics and Political Science from Boston University. Mr. Al Calily is an independent, non-executive
director pursuant to applicable Nasdaq rules.

Tim Breen was elected to the board of directors in January 2018. Mr. Breen also currently serves as senirr or advisor to the
CEO of GF. In 2020, he served as Executive Vice President of Strategy and Business Performance and as senior counselor
to the Chief Executive Officer. Prior to that, he served as the Executive Vice President of Strategy and Business
Transformation from 2018 to August 2020. He is currently a member of the senior leadership team of Mubadala Investment
Company and head of its New York Office, responsible for the firm’s direct investments in the technology and consumer
sectors and serves on the board of directors of a number of Mubadala’s North American investments, including NOVA
Chemicals. Prior to joining Mubadala, Mr. Breen was a Partner with McKinsey in Abu Dhabi. He holds a Master of Business
Administration degree from London Business School.

Glenda Dorchak was elected to the board of directors in June 2019. Ms. Dorchak spent over thirty years in operational
leadership roles in the technology industry, most recently as Executive Vice President and General Manager of Global
Business with Spansion, Inc., a flash memory manufacturer. She started her career with 20 years at IBM where she held a
range of operating roles including General Manager PC Direct. She eventually moved to e-retail startup Value America
where she was part of the IPO team eventually becoming Chairman and CEO. She subsequently joined Intel Corp. as Vice
President and COO of Intel Communications Group, then went on to serve as Vice President and General Manager,
Broadband Products Group and later, Vice President and General Manager, Consumer Electronics Group. After Intel, Mff s.
Dorchak was Chairperson and Chief Executive Officer of Intrinsyc Software and Vice Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
of VirtualLogix. Ms. Dorchak currently does advisory ar nd board work and serves as a member of the board of directors at
ANSYS, Inc. and Wolfspeed Inc. Ms. Dorchak is an independent, non-executive director pursuant to applicable Nasdaq
rules.

Martin L. Edelman was elected to the board of directors in February 2017 and is a Mubadala designee. Mr. Edelman servesrr
as “Of Counsel” in the real estate practice of Paul Hastings LLP. He has been an advisor to Grove Investors and is a partner
at Fisher Brothers, a real estate partnership. Mr. Edelman is a Director of Equity Commonwealth and Aldar Properties and
currently serves on the boards of various nongovernmental organizatiorr ns. Previously, Mr. Edelman served as a board
member for AMD from 2013 to 2017. He has more than 40 years of experience and concentrates his practice on real estate
and corporate mergers and acquisitions transactions. Mr. Edelman holds a Bachelor of Arts degree from Princeton
University and a law degree from Columbia Law School. Mr. Edelman is an independent, non-executive director pursuant to
applicable Nasdaq rules.

David Kerko was elected to the board of directors in January 2018. Mr. Kerko is Head of North America Private Equity at
Elliott Investment Management L.P. Prior to joining Elliott, Mr. Kerko was an advisor, member and co-head of the Technology
Group at Kohlberg Kravis Roberts & Co. Inc. (“KKR”). Prior to joining KKR, he worked for Gleacher NatWest Inc. on mergers
and acquisition transactions and financing. Mr. Kerko is a member of the board of directors of Cubic Corporation, Nielsen
and Cloud Software Group (“CSG”). Mr. Kerko holds a Bachelor of Science degree and a Bachelor of Science in
Engineering degree, summa cum laude, from the University of Pennsylvania. Mr. Kerko is an independent, non-executive
director pursuant to applicable Nasdaq rules and serves as Lead Independent Director.
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Jack Lazar was elected to the board of directors in July 2021. Mr. Lazar has spent over thirty years in operational and
finance leadership roles at technology companies across multiple industries, most recently as Chief Financial Officer of
GoPro, Inc., which he helped to take public in 2014. Prior to GoPro, Mr. Lazar served as Senior Vice President of Corporate
Development and General Manager of Qualcomm Atheros, Inc. From 2003 until the time in which it was acquired by
Qualcomm in 2011, he served in a variety of leadership roles at Atheros Communications, Inc. most recently as Chief
Financial Officer and Senior Vice President of Corporate Development. In 2004, Mr. Lazar was part of the team that took
Atheros public. He also served in leadership roles at NetRatings, Apptitude, and Err lectronics for Imaging, Inc. Mr. Lazar
currently serves as a member of the board of directors of several publicly traded companies including Box, Inc., Resideo
Technologies Inc., and thredUP Inc. He holds a Bachelor of Science in Commerce degree with an emphasis in Accounting
from Santa Clara University and is a certified public accountant (inactive). Mr. Lazar is an independent, non-executive
director pursuant to applicable Nasdaq rules.

Elill sii sa E. Murphy was elected to the board of directors in September 2021. Ms. Murphy is Senior Vice President at Cisco
Systems, Inc. Prior to Cisco, she served as a Vice President of Engineering at Google, Inc. from 2016 to early 2023. Before
Google, she was the Chief Technology Officer and Executive Vice President of Cloud Platforms at GoDaddy from 2013 to
2016. Ms. Murphy previously served as Vice President of Engineering at Yahoo! from late 2010 to 2013, where she oversaw
the world’s largest private Hadoop cluster, a technology essential to massive-scale computing that is the basis of big data
today. Prior to her time at Yahoo!, Ms. Murphy spent 13 years at Microsoft in varioff us engineering positions including part of
the original team responsible for Microsoft’s shift to the cloud, which led to the creation of Azure, and as a member of the
High Performance Computing team. Ms. Murphy began her technology career designing and building many of the best-
selling computer security and system utilities with 5th Generation Systems, Quarterdeck and the Norton Group, a division at
Symantec responsible for Norton Antivirus and other Norton products. Previously, Ms. Murphy served on the board of
directors of Inphi. Ms. Murphy brings expertise in global-scale platforms, big data and predictive analytics to our Board. She
currently has over 30 patents issued with several more pending in the areas of distributed systems, cloud, machine learning
and security. Ms. Murphy is an independent, non-executive director pursuant to applicable Nasdaq rules.

Carlos Obeid was elected to the board of directors in January 2012. Mr. Obeid is currently the Chief Financial Officer of
Mubadala Investment Company, with oversight of its commercial functions including treasury, investor relations, financial
planning, business performance, financial governance and reporting. Before joining Mubadala, Carlos worked with the
United Arab Emirates Offset Program Bureau where he led a wide range of initiatives including privatization, utilities and
financial services. He serves as the chrr airman of the board of directors of Mubadala Infrastructure Partners Ltd. and is a
member of the board of directors of Cleveland Clinic Abu Dhabi LLC, Mubadala Capital LLC and Abu Dhabi Commercial
Bank PJSC. Carlos holds a Bachelor of Science in Electrical Engineering degree from American University of Beirut,
Lebanon, and a Master of Business Administration degree from INSEAD in Fontainebleau, France. Mr. Obeid is an
independent, non-executive director pursuant to applicable Nasdaq rules.

Bobby Yerramilli-Rao was elected to the board of directors in March 2022. Dr. Yerramilli-Rao has served as Chief Strategy
Officer and Corporate Vice President, Corporate Strategy at Microsoft Corporation since 2020. Prior to Microsoft, he was
Co-founder and Managing Partner of Fusion Global Capital, from 2011 to 2020. Dr. Yerramilli-Rao previously served as
Corporate Strategy Director and Internet Services Director of Vodafone, from, 2006 to 2010, where he was responsible for
strategy and acquisitions related to digital services, serving on the company’s investment committee. Prior to his time at
Vodafone, Dr. Yerramilli-Rao spent more than a decade at McKinsey, having been elected partner in 2000. He helped co-
lead the telecom, media and technology practice. Dr. Yerramilli-Rao previously served as a member of the board of directors
of Cambridge Epigenetix. He holds a Master of Arts degree in Electrical Engineering from the University of Cambridge and a
Doctorate in Robotics from the University of Oxford. Mr. Yerramilli-Rao is an independent, non-executive director pursuant to
applicable Nasdaq rules.

B. Compensation

Under Cayman Islands law, we are not required to disclose compensation paid to our directors and executive officers on an
individual basis and we have not otherwise publicly disclosed thirr s information elsewhere.

Executive Compensation Philosophy

Our executive compensation programs are designed to attract, motivate, reward and retain the high-caliber executives
necessary to accomplish our strategy. GF’s compensation philosophy includes the following key design principles:

• Align with shareholder interest;

• Strong link between pay and performance; and

• Motivate our talent to achieve short-term and long-term goals that lead to sustainable long-term shareholder
value creation.
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Our executive officers receive fixed and variable compensation. They also receive benefits in line with market practice and
with the benefits extended to our broad-based employee population.

Certain of our executive officers are entitled to certain benefits upon termination, including a cash severance payment if we
terminate their employment without cause.

Base Salary

The fixed component of compensation consists of base salary. This provides a fixed source of income and acts as the
foundation for other pay components. The base salary is reflective of the executive role, responsibility, and individual
perforr rmance, and it is designed to be market-competitive at the median of our peer group and industry and attract and retain
critical talent. We review base salaries annually, and make adjustments as appropriate based on market, performance and
any change in responsibility.

Variable Incentive Programs

In 2022, the variable pay elements of our executive officers’ compensation consisted of an annual incentive program (“AIP”)
and awards of performance stock units (“PSUs”) and restricted stock units (“RSUs”) under our 2021 Equity Compensation
Plan.

Aggregate Compensation

For the year ended December 31, 2022, the aggregate compensation paid by us and our subsidiaries for our directors and
executive officers for services in all capacities to us and our subsidiaries was $46.4 million which includes both benefits paid
in kind and compensation, as well as grants of, in the aggregate, 282,993 RSUs and 312,277 PSUs, pursuant to the terms
and conditions of our 2021 Equity Compensation Plan. RSUs and PSUs vest as set forth in “2021 Equity Compensatff ion
Plan” below.

Of the amounts above, foff r the year ended December 31, 2022, $70,000 was set aside or accrued by us or our subsidiaries
to provide defined contribution retirement benefits or similar benefits to our directors and executive officers.

Annual Incentive Program

The AIP is a short-term annual cash incentive that incentivizes and rewards our executive officers for achieving critical
company financial and operational goals, as well as individual goals. Each of our executives has an AIP target opportunity,
set as a percentage of their base salary, which is reviewed annually to assure that both our performance and pay
opportunities are aligned with competitive practices and that our rewards are reflective of Company and individual
performance.

In 2022, our executive officers’ awards under the AIP were determined as follows:

• Financial and operational performance: 70% for our CEO and CFO and 50% for otff her executives;

• Strategic scorecard performance: 30% for our CEO and CFO and 50% for other executives; and

• Individual Modifier (0.8x-1.2x): Based on Board/people and compensation committee or CEO discretion, as
appropriate including but not limited to leadership, employee engagement, diversity & inclusion, collaboration,
business process improvement, strategic contributions and business context.

Long-term Incentive Programs

We maintain a number of long-term incentive plans (the “Long-term Incentive Plans”), including the GlobalFoundries Inc.
Share Incentive Plan (the “2017 Plan”) the GlobalFoundries 2018 Share Incentive Plan (the “2018 Plan”) and the
GlobalFoundries 2021 Equity Compensation Plan (the “2021 Plan”) to enable our executives and other high performing andrr
high potential participants to share in the value creation of the company as we execute our business plan and deliver returns
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to our shareholders. Our Long-Term Incentive Plans are administered by the people and compensation committee, which
was delegated authority to administer these plans by our board of directors.

Our Long-term Incentive Plans consist of non-qualified stock options, RSUs and PSUs for eligible participants.

In 2022, our executive officers received a combination of PSU and RSU awards as follows:

• 70% PSU and 30% RSU for our CEO and CFO; and

• 60% PSU and 40% RSU for other executive officers

◦ The final number of PSUs will range from 0% to 200% of the PSUs granted, based on achievement
of performance targets related to absolute Return on Invested Capital (“ROIC”) and relative Total
Shareholder Return (“TSR”) versus the SOX Index, and will vest as to 33.33% of the PSUs after two
years and 66.67% of the PSUs after three years, subject to continued employment through the end of
the applicable performance period.

◦ RSUs will generally vest in three annual installments, with 33.33% vesting on each one-year
anniversary of the vesting commencement date subject to the employee’s continued employment with
the Company.

Additional information on our Long-Term Incentive Programs are as follows:ff

2017 Plan

A small number of current employees continue to hold vested share options that were granted under the 2017 Plan. Share
options granted under the 2017 Plan became exercisable upon the first anniversary of our IPO following the vesting date
but during the term of the share option. In connection with the establishment and adoption of the 2018 Plan, we ceased
making awards under the 2017 Plan. As of December 31, 2022, there are 10,535 non-qualified share options to buy ordinary
shares outstanding under the 2017 Plan.

2018 Plan

Awards under the 2018 Plan may be granted in the form of non-qualified share options (“options”), share awards, or share
unit awards.

Participants in the 2018 Plan typically received a one-time grant upon hire or promotion into an eligible role. The majority of
options granted in 2019 vest over five years, with 20% of the options vesting on the later of December 31 of the first five
years following the grant date and the six-month anniversary of the consummation of our IPO, subject to continued
employment through the applicable vesting date (with limited exceptions for certain qualifying terminations). Gff enerally,
awards of options granted in 2020 or later vest over four years, with 25% of the options vesting on the later of December 31
of the first four years following the grant date and the six-month anniversary of the consummation of our initial public
offering, subject to continued employment through the applicable vesting date (with limited exceptions for certain qualifying
terminations). Options held by U.S. taxpayers that vested on the six-month anniversary of our initial public offering were
exercisable for a period commencing on the vesting date and ending on December 2, 2022. Any outstanding in the money
exercisable options not exercised as of December 2, 2022, were automatically exercised on that date. All other outstanding
options held by U.S. taxpayers will become exercisable for a period commencing on January 1 of the year following the year
in which such options vest and ending on a fixed date in such year, with any outstanding exercisable options not exercised
as of the end of such period being automatically exercised as of a fixed date in that year. Options held by non-U.S.
taxpayers will become exercisable on the date such options vest and will remain exercisable, pursuant to normal option
exercise procedures under the terms and conditions of the 2018 Plan for the duration of the term of the option, with any
outstanding exercisable options not exercised before the expiration of such options in accordance with their terms being
automatically exercised as of the expiration date of the options by means of “net exercise” in order to satisfy the exerciseff
price and applicable taxes due in respect of such options.

Awards of restricted share units vest over foff ur years, with 25% of the share units vesting on each of the first four
anniversaries of the earlier of the grant date or the participant’s hire or promotion date, subject to continued employment
through the applicable vesting date (with limited exceptions for certain qualifying terff minations). Certain restricted share unit
grants made to certain current and former non-employee members of our board of directors in connection with our initial
public offering generally vest over three years, with 33% of the share units vesting on the first three anniversaries of the
grant date, subject to their continued provision of services (whether as a non-employee director or otherwise) to the
company through the applicable vesting date.

Under the 2018 Plan, as of December 31, 2022, there are 6.2 million options to buy ordinary shares and 579,114 restricted
share unit awards to our employees outstanding.
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In addition, under the 2018 Plan there are 2.8 million ordinary shares that remain available for grant. No awards may beff
granted under the 2018 Equity Plan after our board of directors terminates the 2018 Equity Plan or ten years from its
effective date, whichever is earlier.

Shareholder Proceeds Bonus Program

Between 2019 and 2021, we maintained a bonus program (the “Shareholder Proceeds Bonus Program”) pursuant to which
eligible option holders under our 2018 Equity Plan may receive cash awards depending on financial results linked to annual
operating cash flow and other financial metrics.

During those years, if our board of directors determined that any amounts are to be paid under the Shareholder Proceeds
Bonus Program, the aggregate amount of the cash payment to be received by any participant is based on the per share
bonus payment amount, a multiple determined by the board and the number of outstanding share options to which the
award under the Shareholder Proceeds Bonus Program relates, with the aggregate cash payment pro-rated based on the
number of vested share options as of each payment date over the vesting schedule of the share option. Payment of any
amounts under the Shareholder Proceeds Bonus Program is independent of and not contingent upon the exercise of any
share options.

No new awards were granted under the Shareholder Proceeds Bonus Program during calendar year 2022 and no new
awards will be granted after 2022. All existing awarff ds will continue to be paid out on their current payment schedule.

2021 Plan

In connection with our IPO, our board of directors adopted, and Mubadala approved, the 2021 Plan. The 2021 Plan provides
for the issuance of incentive share options, non-qualified share options, share awards, share units, share appreciation rights,
and other share-based awards.

In 2022, the Company granted RSUs and PSUs under the 2021 Plan. The RSUs have a time-based vesting requirement,
which provides that the RSUs will generally vest in three annual installments, with 33.33% vesting on each anniversary of
the vesting commencement date subject to the employee’s continued employment with the Company. The Company may
make awards with different vesting conditions to help the Company achieve its talent strategy. The PSUs vest subject to
achievement of performance targets based on an absolute return on invested capital (“ROIC”) and relative total shareholder
return (“TSR”) versus the SOX Index and will vest over 2 year to 3 year performance periods subject to the grantee
remaining employed by the Company through the end of the applicable performance period.

As of December 31, 2022, there are 2.6 million RSUs and 537,195 PSUs outstanding under the 2021 Plan. In addition, as
of December 31, 2022, there are 13.6 million ordinary shares that remain available for grant under the 2021 Plan.

Employee Stock Purchase Plan

In connection with, and prior to the consummation of the Company's IPO in 2021, the Company's board of directors adopted
the GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). The ESPP is administered by the
Company's board of directors or, as applicable, its delegate (the “ESPP Administrator”).

The ESPP provides eligible employees with an opportunity to purchase ordinary shares of the Company through payroll
deduction of up to 10% of their eligible compensation. A participant may purchase a maximum of 2,500 ordinary shares
during a purchase period. Amounts deducted and accumulated by the participant are used to purchase ordinary shares at
the end of each six-month purchase period. Participants in the ESPP receive a one-time grant of 50 RSUs upon first time
enrollment in the ESPP. The Company matches 20% of each employee’s contribution on an after-tax basis.

Subject to certain equitable adjustments in connection with certain events affecting the outstanding ordinary shares reserved
for issuance as awards, the maximum aggregate number of our ordinary shares that may be issued or transferred under the
ESPP with respect to awards is 7,500,000 ordinary shares; provided that the share reserve under the ESPP will, unless
otherwirr se determined by our board of directors, automatically increase on January 1 of each year for 8 years commenff cing
on January 1, 2023 and ending on (and including) January 1, 2031 in an amount equal to 0.25% of the total number of
ordinary shares outstanding on December 31 of the preceding year. In no event will the number of ordinary shares that may
be issued or transferred pursuant to rights granted under the ESPP exceed 18,750,000, in the aggregate, subject to the
adjustments described above.

As of December 31, 2022, of the Company has issued 533,591 shares under this plan reflecting employees’ contribution and
the 20% Company match.
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C. Board Practices

Composition of our Board of Directors

Our board of directors currently consists of eleven members, all of whom were elected pursuant to our Memorandum and
Articles of Association. The board is divided into three classes designated as Class I, Class II and Class III, with the
members of each class each serving staggered, three-year terms. The terms of our Class I directors will expire at the 2025
annual general meeting of shareholders; the terms of our Class II directors will expire at the 2023 annual meeting of
shareholders; and the terms of our Class III directors will expire at the 2024 annual meeting of shareholders. At the
expiration of the respective terms of the Class I, Class II and Class III directors, new Class I, Class II and Class III directors
will be elected to serve for a full term of the three years respectively.

Dr. Thomas Caulfield, Ahmed Saeed Al Calily, Tim Breen and Glenda Dorchak serve as Class I directors (with terms expiring
in 2025). Martin L. Edelman, David Kerko, Jack Lazar and Carlos Obeid serve as Class II directors (with terms expiring in
2023). Ahmed Yahia, Elissa E. Murphy and Bobby Yerramilli-Rao serve as Class III directors (with terms expiring in 2024).

Our nominating & governance committee and board of directors will consider a broad range of factors relating to the
qualifications and background of nominees, including those factors set out in the Statement on Diversity and Member
Section of our Board Charter (which include but are not limited to race, gender, sexual orientation, cultural background and
membership in underrepresented groups). Our nominating & governance committee’s and board of directors’ priority in
selecting board members is identification of persons who will further the interests of our shareholders through their
established record of professional accomplishment, the ability to contribute positively to the collaborative culture among
board members, knowledge of our business, understanding of the competitive landscape and professional and personal
experiences and expertise relevant to our growth strategy. Under a shareholder’s agreement entered into with Mubadala
through two of its subsidiaries holding our ordinary shares, Mubadala Technology Investment Company (“MTIC”) and MTI
International Investment Company LLC (“MTIIIC”) (the “Shareholder’s Agreement”) prior to the consummation of our IPO in
2021, we agreed to nominate for election to our board of directors a certain number of designees selected by Mubadala.
See “Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions—Certain Relationships and Related Party Transactions—
Shareholder’s Agreement.”

There is no Cayman Islands law requirement that a director must hold office for a certain term and stand for re-election
unless the resolutions appointing the director impose a term on the appointment. We do not have any age limit requirements
relating to our director’s term of office.

The Shareholder’s Agreement provides that, for so long as MTIC, MTIIIC and certain of their affiliates (the “Mubadala
Entities”), in the aggregate, beneficially own 50% or more of the ordinary shares held by the Mubadala Entities upon
consummation of our initial public offering, MTIC will be entitled to nominate a number of designees (the “Mubadala
Designees”) to our board of directors representing a majority of our directors. MTIC designated the following directors as
Mubadala Designees as of the date of our initial public offering: Ahmed Yahia, Ahmed Saeed Al Calily, Tim Breen, Martin L.
Edelman, and Carlos Obeid. By making such designation, MTIC retains the right to appoint any additional Mubadala
Designees in accordance with the Shareholder’s Agreement and the Memorandum and Articles of Association.

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association also provide that our directors may only be removed for cause by an
affirmative vote of 75% of our shareholders, provided that (1) a Mubadala Designee may only be removed with or without
cause by MTIC, and (2) as long as the Mubadala Entities beneficially own in the aggregate at least 50% of our outstanding
ordinary shares, directors other than Mubadala Designees may be removed with or without cause by a majority of
shareholders. Any vacancy resulting from an enlargement of our board of directors (which shall not exceed any maximum
number stated in our Memorandum and Articles of Association), may be filled by ordinary resolution or by vote of a majority
of our directors then in office; provided that any vacancy with respect to a Mubadala Designee may only be filled by a
decision of majority of the Mubadala Designees then in office, or if there are none, by MTIC.

Boardrr ’s Role in Risk Oversight’

Our board of directors oversees the management of risks inherent in the operation of our business and the implementation
of our business strategies. Our board of directors performs this oversight role by using several different levels of review. In
connection with its reviews of our operations and corporate functions, our board of directors addresses the primary risks
associated with those operations and corporate functions. In addition, our board of directors reviews the risks associated
with our business strategies periodically throughout the year as part of its consideration of undertaking any such business
strategies.

Each of our board committees also oversees the management of our risk that falls within the committee’s areas of
responsibility. In performing this function, each committee has full access to management, as well as the ability to engage
advisors. Our Chief Financial Officer provides reports to the audit, risk and compliance committee and is responsible for
identifying, evaluating and implementing risk management controls and methodologies to address any identified risks. In
connection with its risk management role, our audit, risk and compliance committee meets privately with representatives
from our independent registered public accounting firm and our Chief Financial Officer. The audit, risk and compliance
committee oversees the operation of our risk management program, including the identification of the primary risks
associated with our business and periodic updates to such risks, and reports to our board of directors regarding these
activities.
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The board met nine times in 2022. From the time each director became a member of the board, attendance or participation
at board meetings in 2022 was 100%.

Board Committees

Our board of directors has established an audit, risk and compliance committee, a people and compensation committee, a
strategy and technology committee and a nominating and governance committee, each of which operates pursuant to a
separate charter adopted by our board of directors.

Audit, Risk and Compliance Committee

Glenda Dorchak, Jack Lazar and Elissa E. Murphy currently serve on the audit, risk and compliance committee, which is
chaired by Jack Lazar. Our board of directors has determined that each member of the committee is “independent” for audit,
risk and compliance committee purposes as that term is defined in the rules of the SEC and the applicable rules of the
Nasdaq. The audit, risk and compliance committee’s responsibilities include:

• appointing our independent registered public accounting firm, and approving the audit and permitted non-audit
services to be provided by our independent registered public accounting firm;

• evaluating the performance and independence of our independent registered public accounting firm;

• monitoring the integrity of our financial statements and our compliance with legal and regulatory requirements as
they relate to our financial statements or accounting matters;

• reviewing the adequacy and effectiveness of our accounting and internal control policies and procedures;

• establishing and overseeing procedures for the receipt, retention and treatment of accounting-related complaints
and concerns;

• reviewing and discussing with the independent registered public accounting firm the results of our year-end audit,
and recommending to our board of directors, based upon such review and discussions, whether our financial
statements shall be included in our Annual Report on Form 20-F;

• reviewing all related party transactions for potential conflict of interest situations and approving all such
transactions;

• overseeing the Company’s director conflict of interest policy;

• overseeing the Company’s ESG programs and periodically reporting to the board of directors; and

• overseeing and reviewing major corporate risks and periodically reporting to the board of directors.

We have one financial expert as of the date hereof. Our board of directors has determined that Jack Lazar qualifies as an
“audit committee financial expert” as defined in SEC rules and satisfies the financial sophistication requirements of the
Nasdaq.

The audit, risk and compliance committee met nine times in 2022. From the time each director became a member of the
committee, attendance or participation at audit, risk and compliance committee meetings in 2022 was 100%.

People and Compensation Committee

Ahmed Saeed Al Calily, Tim Breen, David Kerko and Elissa E. Murphy currently serve on the people and compensation
committee, which is chaired by David Kerko. The people and compensation committee’s responsibilities include:

• establishing and reviewing the goals and objectives of our executive compensation plans;

• establishing the goals and objectives relevant to Chief Executive Officer compensation, and making
recommendations to our board of directors in evaluating our Chief Executive Officer’s performance in light of these
goals and objectives;

• evaluating the performance of our executive officers in light of the goals and objectives of our executive
compensation plans and making recommendations to our board of directors with respect to the compensation of
our executive officers, including our Chief Executive Officer;

• making recommendations to our board of directors with respect to improvement of existing, or adoption of new,
employee compensation plans and programs; and

• retaining and approving executive compensation advisors and other advisors advising the people and
compensation committee.
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The people and compensation committee met nine times in 2022. From the time each director became a member of the
committee, attendance or participation at people and compensation committee meetings in 2022 was 100%.

Strategy and Technology Committee

Ahmed Yahia, Dr. Thomas Caulfield, Tim Breen, David Kerko and Bobby Yerramilli-Rao currently serve on the strategy and
technology committee, which is chaired by Ahmed Yahia. The strategy and technology committee’s responsibilities include:

• assisting our board of directors in reviewing significant investments, divestment, joint ventures, partnerships, and
other strategic agreements;

• providing guidance to our board of directors on long range strategy and business plans;

• assisting our board of directors in reviewing our technology road map; and

• assisting our board of directors in reviewing strategic long-term customer and supplier agreements.

The strategy & technology committee met four times in 2022. From the time each director became a member of the
committee, attendance or participation at strategy & technology committee meetings in 2022 was 100%.

Nominating and Governance Committee

Ahmed Yahia, Glenda Dorchak, Martin L. Edelman and David Kerko currently serve on the nominating & governance
committee, which is chaired by Martin L. Edelman. The nominating & governance committee’s responsibilities include:

• assisting our board of directors in identifying prospective director nominees and recommending nominees for
election by the shareholders or appointment by our board of directors;

• reviewing and assessing the adequacy of our corporate governance guidelines and recommending proposed
changes to our board of directors; and

• overseeing the evaluation of our board of directors.

The nominating & governance committee met four times in 2022. From the time each director became a member of the
committee, attendance or participation at nominating & governance committee meetings in 2022 was 100%.

D. Employees

We have a highly-skilled employee base and as of December 31, 2022, we employed approximately 14,000 employees
primarily located at our manufacturing sites. As of December 31, 2022, approximately 42% of our employees were located in
North America, approximately 25% in EMEA, and approximately 33% in APAC. We also engage temporary employees and
consultants. Overall, we believe we have good relations with our employees. As of December 31, 2022, approximately 70%
of our employees were engineers or technicians.

E. Share Ownership

Refer to “Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions” below for information on share ownerff ship.

See “Item 6. Directors, Senior Management and Employees—B. Compensation” for information on our arrangements for
involving employees in the capital of the Company.
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ITEM 7. MAJOR SHAREHOLDERS AND RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

A. Major Shareholders

The following table sets foff rth certain information with respect to the beneficial ownership of our ordinary shares as of
December 31, 2022 for (i) each person known by us to be the beneficial owner of more than 5% of our outstanding shares of
ordinary shares and (ii) all of our directors and executive officers as a group. Our majority shareholder, Mubadala, does not
have different voting rights from those of other shareholders. As discussed below, prior to the consummation of our IPO in
2021, we entered into a Shareholder’s Agreement with Mubadala through two of its subsidiaries.

Name of Beneficial Owner

Number of
Ordinary
Shares Owned

Percentage of
Ordinary
Shares Owned

Mubadala 469,501,994 85.72 %
FMR LLC(1) 31,904,940 5.82 %
Directors and named executive officers:
Dr. Thomas Caulfield * *
David Reeder * *
Kay Chai (KC) Ang * *
Saam Azar * *
Juan Cordovez * *
Pradheepa Raman * *
Ahmed Yahia * *
Ahmed Saeed Al Calily * *
Tim Breen * *
Glenda Dorchak * *
Martin L. Edelman * *
David Kerko * *
Jack Lazar * *
Elissa E. Murphy * *
Carlos Obeid * *
Bobby Yerramilli-Rao * *

(1)According to report on Scheduled 13G filed with the SEC on February 9, 2023, by FMR LLC.

*Represents beneficial ownership of less than 1% of our issued and outstanding ordinary shares.

B. Related Party Transactions

Mubadala

Secondmedd nts

Between January 1, 2019 and the date of this Annual Report, Mubadala has seconded a limited number of persons to us,
including Tim Breen, who is a member of our board of directors and previously served as an executive officer of the
company and continues to be seconded to us as of the date of this Annual Report. From January 1, 2019 to December 31,
2022, we paid Mubadala an average annual amount of approximately $3 million in consideration of the services provided by
the secondees.

Sharerr holder’s Agreement’

Prior to the consummation of our IPO in 2021, we entered into the Shareholder’s Agreement with Mubadala through two of
its subsidiaries holding our ordinary shares, MTIC and MTIIIC. The Shareholder’s Agreement provides that, for so long as
the Mubadala Entities, in the aggregate, beneficially own 50% or more of the ordinary shares held by the Mubadala Entities,
MTIC is entitled to nominate a number of Mubadala Designees to our board of directors representing a majority of our
directors. The Shareholder’s Agreement specifies how such nomination rights decrease as the Mubadala Entities’ beneficial
ownership of our ordinary shares decreases. Specifically, for so long as the Mubadala Entities, in the aggregate, beneficially
own (i) 40% or more, but less than 50%, (ii) 30% or more, but less than 40%, (iii) 20% or more, but less than 30%, and (iv)
5% or more, but less than 20%, of the ordinary shares held by the Mubadala Entities, MTIC shall be entitled to Mubadala
Designees on our board of directors representing at least 50%, 40%, 30% and 20%, respectively, of our directors. The

66



Shareholder’s Agreement provides that for so long as MTIC is entitled to nominate at least 30% of our directors, the
chairman of our board of directors shall be appointed by a majority vote of the Mubadala Designees directors.

The Shareholder’s Agreement specifies that, where there is a vacant board position in respect of a Mubadala Designee
director, such vacancy shall be filled only by a decision of a majority of the Mubadala Designee directors then in office or, if
there are no such directors then in office, by MTIC. Additionally, we will include the Mubadala Designees on the slate that is
included in our proxy statement relating to the appointment of directors of the class to which such persons belong and
provide the highest level of support for the appointment of each such person as we provide to any other individual standing
for appointment as a director.

The Shareholder’s Agreement also specifies that until such time as the Mubadala Entities no longer beneficially own at least
30% of our outstanding ordinary shares, we will not, nor will we permit our subsidiaries, to take certain significant actions
specified therein without the prior consent of MTIC. These actions include:

• amendments or modifications to, or repealing of, (whether by merger, consolidation or otherwise) any provisions
of our organizational documents in a manner that would adversely affect the Mubadala Entities beneficially owning
outstanding ordinary shares;

• issuances of equity securities, subject to customary exceptions;

• acquisitions or dispositions in an amount exceeding $300 million in any single transaction or $500 million in any
calendar year, other than pursuant to ordinary course transactions;

• mergers, consolidations, or other transactions that would involve a change of control of our company;

• incurring financial indebtedness in an amount exceeding $200 million, subject to certain exceptions;

• hiring or terminating our Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer or Chief Legal Officer or designating any
replacement thereto;

• liquidation, dissolution or winding up of our company;

• any material change in the nature of the business of our company and our subsidiaries, taken as a whole; or

• changes to the size of our board of directors.

The Shareholder’s Agreement entitles the Mubadala Entities to certain information rights. The Mubadala Entities are
permitted to share such disclosed information with other Mubadala Entities and their directors, officers, employees,
consultants, advisers, and financing providers, provided that the recipient maintain the confidentiality of such disclosed
information.

We will use our reasonable best efforts, if permitted by applicable law and regulation (including, in particular, our audit, risk
and compliance committee’s responsibilities under U.S. securities laws and regulations) and if in the best interests of the
company, to select the same independent certified public accounting firm, or auditor, used by Mubadala (or an affiliate of
such auditor) and to provide to Mubadala as much prior notice as reasonably practical of any change in our auditor until the
first fiscal year end occurring after the date on which Mubadala and any entities owned by the Government of Abu Dhabi,
together with their subsidiaries, no longer own in aggregate at least 25% of the voting power of our then outstanding
securities. When selecting our auditor, we have agreed that we will give due consideration to the benefits arising to our
company from the use of the same auditor as Mubadala (or an affiliate of such auditor).

The Shareholder’s Agreement is governed by Cayman Islands law and will terminate on the earlier to occur of (i) such time
as the Mubadala Entities, in aggregate, cease to beneficially own 5% or more of our outstanding ordinary shares, and (ii)
upon the delivery of a written notice by MTIC to us requesting its termination.

Certain of the provisions of the Shareholder’s Agreement have been included in our Memorandum and Articles of
Association.

Regisii trtt arr tion Rights Agreement

Prior to the consummation of our IPO in 2021, we entered into a registration rights agreement with MTIC and MTIIIC,
pursuant to which those holders of ordinary shares are entitled to demand the registration of the sale of certain or all of our
ordinary shares that they beneficially own (the “Registration Rights Agreement”). Among other things, under the terms of the
Registration Rights Agreement:

• Each holder has an unlimited right, subject to certain conditions and exceptions, to request that we file registration
statements with the SEC foff r one or more underwritten offerings of all or part of our ordinary shares that the holder
beneficially owns, and we are required to cause any such registration statements (a) to be filed with the SEC as
promptly as practicable and (b) to use commercially reasonable efforts to cause such registration statements to
become effective as soon as reasonably practicable;

• If we propose to file certain types of registration statements under the Securities Act with respect to an offering of
equity securities by us, we are required to use commercially reasonable efforts to offer the other parties to the
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Registration Rights Agreement, if any, the opportunity to register the sale of all or part of their shares on the terms
and conditions set forth in the Registration Rights Agreement (customarily known as “piggyback rights”); and

• All expenses of registration under the Registration Rights Agreement, including the legal fees of one counsel
retained by or on behalf of the holders, will be paid by us.

The registration rights granted in the Registration Rights Agreement are subject to customary restrictions such as minimum
offering sizes, blackout periods and, if a registration is underwritten, any limitations on the number of shares to be included
in the underwritten offering as reasonably advised by the managing underwriter. The rights of the holders under the
Registration Rights Agreement are assignable to certain transferees of the holders’ ordinary shares. The Registration Rights
Agreement also contains customary indemnification and contribution provisions. The Registration Rights Agreement is
governed by New York law.

SMP

Silicon Manufacturing Partners Pte Ltd. (“SMP”) is a joint venture with LSI Technology (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. We hold a 49%
interest in SMP and manage all aspects of its manufacturing operations. In the year ended December 31, 2022 we
purchased products, primarily wafers, from SMP for an aggregate of $60 million. We also reimbursed expenses of and
contributed tools to SMP in that period, with an aggregate expense of $52 million.

C. Interests of Experts and Counsel.

Not applicable.

ITEM 8. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A. Consolidated Financial Statements and Other Financial Information

Please see “Item 18. Financial Statements”. Other than as disclosed elsewhere in this Annual Report, no significant change
has occurred since the date of the Annual Consolidated Financial Statements.

Legal Proceedings

On April 28, 2021, IBM sent us a letter alleging for the first time that we did not fulfill our obligations under the contracts we
entered into with IBM in 2014 and 2015 associated with our acquisition of IBM’s Microelectronics division. IBM asserted that
we engaged in fraudulent misrepresentations during the underlying negotiations, and claimed we owed them $2.5 billion in
damages and restitution. On June 7, 2021, the Company filed a complaint with the New York State Supreme Court (the
“Court”) seeking a declaratory judgment that the Company did not breach the relevant contracts. IBM subsequently filed its
complaint with the Court on June 8, 2021. On September 14, 2021, the Court granted our motion to dismiss IBM’s claims of
fraud, unjust enrichment and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing. IBM appealed the dismissal of its
fraud claim, and on April 7, 2022, the New York Appellate Division reversed the Court’s decision. The Company believes,
based on discussions with legal counsel, that the Company has meritorious defenses against IBM’s claims. The Company
disputes IBM’s claims and intends to vigorously defend against IBM. We do not currently anticipate this proceeding to have a
material impact on our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

In addition to the foregoing proceeding, from time to time, we become involved in legal proceedings arising in the ordinary
course of our business, such as claims brought by our customers in connection with commercial disputes, product liability
claims, employment claims made by our current or former employees or claims of infringement raised by intellectual
property owners, in connection with the technology used in our manufacturing operations. Based on the information currently
available to us, we believe that the outcome of these proceedings would not have a material impact on our results of
operations, financial condition, business and prospects.

Dividends and Dividend Policy

We currently intend to retain all available funds and any future earnings to fund the development and growth of our
business. Therefore, we do not anticipate declaring or paying any cash dividends to our shareholders in the foreseeable
future. Any future determination as to the declaration and payment of dividends, if any, will be at the discretion of our board
of directors, subject to applicable laws, and will depend on a number of factors, including our business prospects, results of
operations, financial condition, cash requirements and availability, debt repayment obligations, capital expenditure needs,
covenants in the agreements governing our current and future indebtedness, other contractual restrictions, industry trends
and any other factors or considerations our board of directors may regard as relevant.

Under Cayman Islands law, dividends may be declared and paid only out of funds legally available therefor, namely out of
either profit or distributable reserves, including our share premium account, and provided further that a dividend may not be
paid if this would result in us being unable to pay our debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business.
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For additional information, see “Item 3. Key Information—Rf isk Factors—We do not expect to declare or pay any dividends
on our ordinary shares for the foreseeaf ble future.”

B. Significant Changes

None.

ITEM 9. THE OFFER AND LISTING

A. Offer and Listing Details

On November 1, 2021, we completed our IPO. The principal trading market for our ordinary shares is the Nasdaq. Ourff
ordinary shares have been listed on the Nasdaq under the symbol “GFS” since October 28, 2021.

B. Plan of Distribution

Not applicable.

C. Markets

See “—Offer and Listing Details” above.

D. Selling Shareholders

Not applicable.

E. Dilution

Not applicable.

F. Expenses of the Issue

Not applicable.

ITEM 10. ADDITIONAL INFORMATION

A. Share Capital

Not applicable.

B. Memorandum and Articles of Association

The information required to be disclosed under this item is incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 to this Annual Report on
Form 20-F.

Differences in Corporate Law

The Cayman Companies Act was modelled originally after similar laws in England and Wales but does not follow
subsequent statutory enactments in England and Wales. In addition, the Cayman Companies Act differs from laws
applicable to U.S. corporations and their shareholders. Set forth below is a summary of the significant differences between
the provisions of the Cayman Companies Act applicable to us and the laws applicable to companies incorporated in the
United States and their shareholders.

Mergers and Similar Arrarr ngements

The Cayman Companies Act permits mergers or consolidations between two Cayman Islands companies, or between a
Cayman Islands company and a company incorporated in another jurisdiction (provided that is facilitated by the laws of that
other jurisdiction).
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Where the merger or consolidation is between two Cayman Islands companies, the directors of each company must
approve a written plan of merger or consolidation, which must then be authorized by (a) a special resolution of the
shareholders of each company; and (b) such other authorization, if any, as may be specified in such constituent company’s
articles of association. No shareholder resolution is required for a merger between a parent company (i.e., a company that
owns at least 90% of the issued shares of each class in a subsidiary company) and its subsidiary company. The consent of
each holder of a fixed or floating security interest of a constituent company must be obtained, unless the court waives such
requirement. If the Cayman Islands Registrar of Companies is satisfied that the requirements of the Cayman Companies Act
(which includes certain other formalities) have been complied with, the Registrar of Companies will register the plan of
merger or consolidation. Where the merger or consolidation involves a foreign company, the procedure is similar, save that
with respect to the foreign company, the director of the Cayman Islands company is required to make a declaration to the
effect that, having made due inquiry, the director is of the opinion that the requirements set out below have been met: (i) that
the merger or consolidation is permitted or not prohibited by the constitutional documents of the foreign company and by the
laws of the jurisdiction in which the foreign company is incorporated, and that those laws and any requirements of those
constitutional documents have been or will be complied with; (ii) that no petition or other similar proceeding has been filed
and remains outstanding or order made or resolution adopted to wind up or liquidate the company in any foreign
jurisdictions; (iii) that no receiver, trustee, administrator or other similar person has been appointed in any jurisdiction and is
acting in respect of the foreign company, its affairs or property or any part thereof; and (iv) that no scheme, order,
compromise or similar arrangement has been entered into or made in any jurisdiction whereby the rights of creditors of the
fof reign company are and continue to be suspended or restricted.

Where the surviving company is the Cayman Islands company, the director of the Cayman Islands company is further
required to make a declaration to the effect that, having made due inquiry, the director is of the opinion that the requirements
set out below have been met: (i) that the foreign company is able to pay its debts as they fall due and that the merger or
consolidated is bona fide and not intended to defraud unsecured creditors of the foreign company; (ii) that in respect of the
transfer of any security interest granted by the foreign company to the surviving or consolidated company (a) consent or
approval to the transfer has been obtained, released or waived; (b) the transfer is permitted by and has been approved in
accordance with the constitutional documents of the foreign company; and (c) the laws of the jurisdiction of the foreign
company with respect to the transfer have been or will be complied with; (iii) that the foreign company will, upon the merger
or consolidation becoming effective, cease to be incorporated, registered or exist under the laws of the relevant foreign
jurisdiction; and (iv) that there is no other reason why it would be against the public interest to permit the merger or
consolidation.

Where the above procedures are adopted, the Cayman Companies Act provides for a right of dissenting shareholders to be
paid a payment of the fair value of his shares upon their dissenting to the merger or consolidation if they follow a prescribed
procedure. In essence, that procedure is as follows:

a. the shareholder must give the shareholder’s written objection to the merger or consolidation to the
constituent company before the vote on the merger or consolidation, including a statement that the
shareholder proposes to demand payment for the shareholder’s shares if the merger or consolidation is
authorized by the vote;

b. within 20 days foff llowing the date on which the merger or consolidation is approved by the shareholders,
the constituent company must give written notice to each shareholder who made a written objection;

c. a shareholder must within 20 days following receipt of such notice from the constituent company, give the
constituent company a written notice of the shareholder’s intention to dissent including, among other
details, a demand for payment of the fair value of his shares;

d. within seven days following the date of the expiration of the perioff d set out in paragraph (c) above or seven
days following the date on which the plan of merger or consolidation is filed, whichever is later, the
constituent company, the surviving company or the consolidated company must make a written offer to
each dissenting shareholder to purchase the shareholder’s shares at a price that the company determines
is the fair value and if the company and the shareholder agree the price within 30 days following the date
on which the offer was made, the company must pay the shareholder such amount; and

e. if the company and the shareholder fail to agree a price within such 30-day period, within 20 days
following the date on which such 30-day period expires, the company (and any dissenting shareholder)
must file a petition with the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands to determine the fair value and such
petition must be accompanied by a list of the names and addresses of the dissenting shareholders with
whom agreements as to the fair value of their shares have not been reached by the company. At the
hearing of that petition, the court has the power to determine the fair value of the shares together with a
fair rate of interest, if any, to be paid by the company upon the amount determined to be the fair value.

Any dissenting shareholder whose name appears on the list filed by the company may participate fully in all proceedings
until the determination of fair value is reached. These rights of a dissenting shareholder are not available in certain
circumstances, for example, to dissenters holding shares of any class in respect of which an open market exists on a
recognized stock exchange or recognized interdealer quotation system at the relevant date or where the consideration for

70



such shares to be contributed are shares of any company listed on a national securities exchange or shares of the surviving
or consolidated company.

Moreover, Cayman Islands law also has separate statutory provisions that facilitate the reconstruction off r amalgamation of
companies. In certain circumstances, schemes of arrangement will generally be more suited for complex mergers or other
transactions involving widely held companies, commonly referred to in the Cayman Islands as a “scheme of arrangement,”
which may be tantamount to a merger. In the event that a merger is sought pursuant to a scheme of arrangement (the
procedures of which are more rigorous and take longer to complete than the procedures typically required to consummate a
merger in the United States), the arrangement in question must be approved by a majority in number of each class of
shareholders and creditors with whom the arrangement is to be made, and, in the case of a creditors’ scheme who must in
addition represent three-fourths in value of each such class of creditors, that are present and voting either in person or by
proxy at a meeting, or meetings summoned for that purpose. The convening of the meetings and subsequently the terms of
the arrangement must be sanctioned by the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands. While a dissenting shareholder would have
the right to express to the court the view that the transaction should not be approved, the court can be expected to approve
the arrangement if it satisfies itself that:

• we are not proposing to act illegally or beyond the scope of our corporate authority and the statutory
provisions as to majority vote have been complied with;

• the shareholders have been fairly represented at the meeting in question;

• the arrangement is such as a businessman would reasonably approve; and

• the arrangement is not one that would more properly be sanctioned under some other provision of the
Cayman Companies Act or that would amount to a “fraud on the minority.”

If a scheme of arrangement or takeover offer (as described below) is approved, any dissenting shareholder would have no
rights comparable to appraisal rights, which would otherwise ordinarily be available to dissenting shareholders of U.S.
corporations, providing rights to receive payment in cash for the judicially determined value of the shares.

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that until such time as the Mubadala Entities no longer beneficially
own at least 30% of our outstanding ordinary shares, the board of directors shall not cause our company to merge or
consolidate with another entity without the prior written approval of MTIC.

Squeeze-out Provisions

When a takeover offer is made and accepted by holders of 90% of the shares to whom the offer is made within four months,
the offeror may, within a two-month period, require the holders of the remaining shares to transfer such shares on the terms
of the offer. An objb ection may be made to the Grand Court of the Cayman Islands but is unlikely to succeed unless there is
evidence of fraud, bad faith, collusion or inequitable treatment of the shareholders.

If the arrangement and reconstruction is thus approved, the dissenting shareholder would have no rights comparable to
appraisal rights, which might otherwise ordinarily be available to dissenting shareholders of United States corporations and
allow such dissenting shareholders to receive payment in cash for the judicially determined value of the shares. However,
appraisal rights would also not be available to shareholders of a Delaware target in a business combination transaction if the
shares of the target were listed on a national securities exchange and target shareholders receive only shares of a
corporation which shares are also listed on a national securities exchange.

Further, transactions similar to a merger, reconstruction and/or an amalgamation may in some circumstances be achieved
through other means to these statutory provisions, such as a share capital exchange, asset acquisition or control, through
contractual arrangements, of an operating business.

Sharerr holdersrr ’ Suits

A shareholder of a Delaware corporation has the right to bring a derivative action on behalf of the corporation if the
shareholder was a shareholder of the corporation at the time of the transaction in question. Derivative actions have been
brought in the Cayman Islands courts, and the Cayman Islands courts have confirmed the availability for such actions. In
most cases, we will be the proper plaintiff in any claim based on a breach of duty owed to us, and a claim against (for
example) our officers or directors usually may not be brought by a shareholder. However, based on English authorities,
which would in all likelihood be of persuasive authority and be applied by a court in the Cayman Islands, exceptions to the
foregoing principle apply in circumstances in which:

• a company is acting or proposing to act illegally or beyond the scope of its authority;

• the act complained of, although not beyond the scope of the authority, could be effected if duly authorized
by more than the number of votes which have actually been obtained; and

• those who control the company are perpetrating a “fraud on the minority.”
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A shareholder may have a direct right of action against us where the individual rights of that shareholder have been infringed
or are about to be infringed.

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that each shareholder agrees to waive any claim or right of action he
or she might have, whether individually or by or in the right of our Company, against any director or officer on account of any
action taken by such director or officer, or the failure of such director to take any action in the performance of their dutiesrr
with or for our company. However, such waiver shall not extend to any matter in respect of any dishonesty, actual fraud or
willful default which may attach to such director or officer.

Maples and Calder (Cayman) LLP, our Cayman Islands counsel, is not aware of any reported class action suits having been
brought in a Cayman Islands court. However, a class action suit could nonetheless be brought in the United States courts
pursuant to an alleged violation of the securities laws of the United States.

Directorsrr ’ Fiduciary Duties

As a matter of Cayman Islands law, a director of a Cayman Islands company is in the position of a fiduciary with respect to
the company. Accordingly, directors and officers owe the following fiduciary duties:

• duty to act in good faith in what the director or officer believes to be in the best interests of the company
as a whole;

• duty to exercise powers for the purposes for which those powers were conferred and not for a collateral
purpose;

• directors should not improperly fetter the exercise of future discretion;

• duty to exercise powers fairly as between different sections of shareholders;

• duty to exercise independent judgment; and

• duty not to put themselves in a position in which there is a conflict between their duty to the company and
their personal interests.

However, this obligation may be varied by the company’s articles of association, which may permit a director to vote on a
matter in which the director has a personal interest provided that the director has disclosed that nature of his interest to the
board of directors. With respect to the duty of directors to avoid conflicts of interest, our Memorandum and Articles of
Association vary from the applicable provisions of Cayman Islands law mentioned above by providing that a director must
disclose the nature and extent of the director’s interest in any contract or proposed contract or arrangement, and following
such disclosure and subject to any separate requirement under applicable law or applicable listing rules, and unless
disqualified by the chairman of the relevant meeting, such director may vote in respect of any transaction or arrangement in
which the director is interested and may be counted in the quorum at the meeting.

In addition to the above, under Cayman Islands law, directors also owe a duty of care which is not fiduciary in nature. This
duty has been defined as a requirement to act as a reasonably diligent person having both the general knowledge, skill and
experience that may reasonably be expected of a person carrying out the same functions as are carried out by that director
in relation to the company and the general knowledge skill and experience which that director has.

As set out above, directors have a duty not to put themselves in a position of conflict and this includes a duty not to engage
in self-dff ealing, or to otherwise benefit as a result of their position. However, in some instances what would otherwise be a
breach of this duty can be forgivff en and/or authorized in advance by the shareholders provided that there is full disclosure by
the directors. This can be done by way of permission granted in the Memorandum and Articles of Association or alternatively
by shareholder approval at general meetings. The Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that, to the fullest extent
permitted by applicable law: (i) no individual serving as a director or an officer shall have any duty, except and to the extent
expressly assumed by contract, to refrain from engaging directly or indirectly in the same or similar business activities or
lines of business as us; and (ii) we renounce any interest or expectancy in, or in being offered an opportunity to participate
in, any potential transaction or matter which may be a corporate opportunity for any director or officer, on the one hand, and
us, on the other. Accordingly, as a result of multiple business affiliations, our officers and directors may have similar legal
obligations relating to presenting business opportunities meeting the above-listed criteria to multiple entities. In addition,
conflicts of interest may arise when our board evaluates a particular business opportunity with respect to the above-listed
criteria. However, under our Memorandum and Articles of Association, we renounced our interest in any corporate
opportunity offered to any director or officer. Additionally, any such director or officer shall be permitted to pursue competing
opportunities without any liability to us. Furthermore, each of our officers and directors may have pre-existing fiduciary
obligations to other businesses of which they are officers or directors.

A director of a Cayman Islands company also owes to the company duties to exercise independent judgment in carrying out
his functions and to exercise reasonable skill, care and diligence, which has both objective and subjb ective elements. Recent
Cayman Islands case law confirmed that directors must exercise the care, skill and diligence that would be exercised by a
reasonably diligent person having the general knowledge, skill and experience reasonably to be expected of a person acting
as a director. Additionally, a director must exercise the knowledge, skill and experience which the director actually
possesses.
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A general notice may be given to the board of directors to the effect that:

• the director is a member or officer of a specified company or firm and is to be regarded as interested in
any contract or arrangement which may after the date of the notice be made with that company or firm; or

• the director is to be regarded as interested in any contract or arrangement which may after the date of the
notice to the board of directors be made with a specified person who is connected with the director, will be
deemed sufficient declaration of interest.

This notice shall specify the nature of the interest in question. Following the disclosure being made pursuant to our
Memorandum and Articles of Association and subject to any separate requirement under applicable law or applicable listing
rules, a director may vote in respect of any transaction or arrangement in which the director is interested and may be
counted in the quorum at the meeting.

In comparison, under Delaware corporate law, a director of a Delaware corporation has a fiduciary duty to the corporation
and its shareholders. This duty has two components: the duty of care and the duty of loyalty. The duty of care requires that a
director act in good faith, with the care that an ordinarily prudent person would exercise under similar circumstances. Under
this duty, directors must infof rm themselves of, and disclose to shareholders, all material information reasonably availableff
regarding a significant transaction. The duty of loyalty requires that directors act in a manner they reasonably believe to be
in the best interests of the corporation. They must not use their corporate position for personal gain or advantage. This duty
prohibits self-dealing by a director and mff andates that the best interest of the corporation and its shareholders take
precedence over any interest possessed by a director, officer or controlling shareholder and not shared by the shareholders
generally. In general, actions of a director are presumed to have been made on an informed basis, in good faith and in the
honest belief that the action taken was in the best interests of the corporation. However, this presumption may be rebutted
by evidence of a breach of one of the fiduciary duties. Should such evidence be presented concerning a transaction by a
director, a director must prove the procedural fairness of the transaction, and that the transaction was of fair value to the
corporation.

Shareholder Action by Written Consent

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a corporation may eliminate the right of shareholders to act by written
consent by amendment to its certificate of incorporation. Cayman Islands law and our Memorandum and Articles of
Association provide that shareholders may approve corporate matters by way of a unanimous written resolution signed by or
on behalf of each shareholder who would have been entitled to vote on such matter at a general meeting without a meeting
being held.

Shareholder PrPP orr posals

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a shareholder has the right to put any proposal before the annual meeting of
shareholders, provided it complies with the notice provisions in the governing documents. The Delaware General
Corporation Law does not provide shareholders an express right to put any proposal before the annual meeting offf
shareholders, but Delaware corporations generally afford sharff eholders an opportunity to make proposals and nominations
provided that they comply with the notice provisions in the certificate of incorporation or bylaws. A special meeting may be
called by the board of directors, or any other person authorized to do so in the governing documents, but shareholders may
be precluded from calling special meetings.

The Cayman Companies Act does not provide shareholders with rights to requisition a general meeting, and does not
provide shareholders with any right to put any proposal before a general meeting. However, these rights may be provided in
a company’s articles of association. Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that upon the requisition of one or
more shareholders representing not less than one-third of the voting rights entitled to vote at general meetings, the board
will convene an extraordinary general meeting and put the resolutions so requisitioned to a vote at such meeting. Our
Memorandum and Articles of Association provide no other right to put any proposals before annual general meetings or
extraordinary general meetings.

Cumulative Votinii g

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, cumulative voting for elections of directors is not permitted unless the
corporation’s certificate of incorporation specifically provides for it. Cumulative voting potentially facilitates the representation
of minority shareholders on a board of directors since it permits the minority shareholder to cast all the votes to which the
shareholder is entitled on a single director, which increases the shareholder’s voting power with respect to electing such
director. As permitted under Cayman Islands law, our Memorandum and Articles of Association do not provide for cumulative
voting. As a result, our shareholders are not afforded any less protections or rights on this issue than shareholders of a
Delaware corporation.
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Removal of Directors

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a director of a corporation may be removed with the approval of a majority ofa
the outstanding shares entitled to vote, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Under our Memorandum
and Articles of Association, directors can be removed for cause by an affirmative vote of at least 75% of shareholders,
provided that (1) Mubadala Designees may only be removed with or without cause by MTIC and (2) as long as the
Mubadala Entities beneficially own in the aggregate at least 50% of the outstanding shares, directors other than the
Mubadala Designees may be removed with or without cause by a majority of shareholders.

The notice of general meeting must contain a statement of the intention to remove the director and must be served on the
director not less than ten calendar days before the meeting. The director is entitled to attend the meeting and be heard on
the motion for his removal.

The office of a director will be vacated automatically if the director:

• becomes prohibited by law from being a director;

• becomes bankrupt or makes an arrangement or composition with the director’s creditors;

• dies or is in the opinion of all the director’s co-directors, incapable by reason of mental disorder of
discharging his duties as director;

• resigns the director’s office by notice to us; or

• has for more than six months been absent without permission of the directors from meetings of the board
of directors held during that period, and the remaining directors resolve that the director’s office be
vacated.

Our Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that any vacancy on the board of directors in respect of a Mubadala
Designee may only be filled by a decision of majority of the Mubadala Designees then in office, or if there are none, by
MTIC.

Proceedings of the Board of Directors

Our business is to be managed and conducted by the board of directors. The quorum necessary for any meeting of our
board of directors shall consist of a simple majority of the members provided that, for so long as the Mubadala Entities are
entitled to nominate one Mubadala Designee to our board of directors, the presence of at least one Mubadala Designee
shall be required on first call to a meeting of the board of directors.

Subjeb ct to the provisions of our Memorandum and Articles of Association, the board of directors may regulate its
proceedings as they determine is appropriate.

Subject to the provisions of our Memorandum and Articles of Association, to any directions given by ordinary resolution of
the shareholders and applicable listing rules, the board of directors may from time to time at its discretion exercise all of our
powers, including, subject to the Cayman Companies Act, the power to issue debentures, bonds and other securities of the
company, whether outright or as collateral security for any debt, liability or obligation of our company or of any third party.

TrTT arr nsactitt ons with Interested Shareholders

The Delaware General Corporation Law contains a business combination statute applicable to Delaware corporations
whereby, unless the corporation has specifically elected not to be governed by such statute by amendment to its certificate
of incorporation, it is prohibited from engaging in certain business combinations with an “interested shareholder” for three
years following the date that such person becomes an interested shareholder. An interested shareholder generally is a
person or group who owns or owned 15% or more of the target’s outstanding voting shares within the past three years. This
has the effect of limiting the ability of a potential acquiror to make a two-tiered bid for the tff arget in which all shareholders
would not be treated equally. The statute does not apply if, among other things, prior to the date on which such shareholder
becomes an interested shareholder, the board of directors approves either the business combination or the transaction
which resulted in the person becoming an interested shareholder. This encourages any potential acquiror of a Delaware
corporation to negotiate the terms of any acquisition transaction with the target’s board of directors.

Cayman Islands law has no comparable statute. As a result, we cannot avail ourselves of the types of protections afforded
by the Delaware business combination statute. However, although Cayman Islands law does not regulate transactions
between a company and its significant shareholders, it does provide that the board of directors owes duties to ensure that
these transactions are entered into bona fide in the best interests of the company and for a proper corporate purpose and,
as noted above, a transaction may be subject to challenge if it has the effect of constituting a fraud on the minority
shareholders.
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Dissolution; WinWW ding Up

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, unless the board of directors approves the proposal to dissolve, dissolution
must be approved by shareholders holding 100% of the total voting power of the corporation. If the dissolution is initiated by
the board of directors, it may be approved by a simple majority of the corporation’s outstanding shares. Delaware law allows
a Delaware corporation to include in its certificate of incorporation a supermajority voting requirement in connection with
dissolutions initiated by the board. Under Cayman Islands law, a company may be wound up by either an order of the courts
of the Cayman Islands or by a special resolution of its members or, if the company resolves by ordinary resolution that it be
wound up because it is unable to pay its debts as they fall due. The court has authority to order winding up in a number of
specified circumstances including where it is, in the opinion of the court, just and equitable to do so.

Under the Cayman Companies Act, we may be dissolved, liquidated or wound up by a special resolution of shareholders
(requiring a two-thirds majority vote of those shareholders attending and voting at a quorate meeting). Our Memorandum
and Articles of Association also give our board of directors the authority to petition the Cayman Islands Court for our wind up.

Varirr aii titt on of Rights of Shares

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a corporation may vary the rights of a class of shares with the approval of a
maja ority of the outstanding shares of such class, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Under Cayman
Islands law and our Memorandum and Articles of Association, if our share capital is divided into more than one class of
shares, we may vary the rights attached to any class without the consent of the holders of the issued shares of that class
where such variation is considered by the directors not to have a material adverse effect upon such rights. Otherwise, all or
any of the special rights attached to any class of shares may be varied with either the written consent of the beneficial
holders of two-thirds of the issued shares of that class, or with the approval of a special resolution passed at a general
meeting of the holders of the shares of that class.

The rights conferred upon the holders of the shares of any class issued with preferred or other rights shall not, subject to any
rights or restrictions for the time being attached to the shares of that class, be deemed to be materially adversely affected by
the creation, allotment or issuance of further shares (whether ranking in priority to, pari passu or subordinated to them)
pursuant to the board of director’s ability to issue preference shares. The rights of the beneficial holders of the issued shares
shall not be deemed to be materially adversely varied by the creation, allotment or issuance of shares with preferred or other
rights including, without limitation, the creation of shares with enhanced or weighted voting rights.

Amendment of Governing Documents

Under the Delaware General Corporation Law, a corporation’s governing documents may be amended with the approval of a
majority of the outstanding shares entitled to vote, unless the certificate of incorporation provides otherwise. Under Cayman
Islands law, our Memorandum and Articles of Association generally (and save for certain amendments to share capitalff
described in this section) may only be amended by special resolution of shareholders (requiring a two-thirds majority vote of
those shareholders attending and voting at a quorate meeting).

InII demnification of Directors and Execurr tive Officers antt d Limitation of Liability

The Cayman Companies Act does not limit the extent to which a company’s articles of association may provide forff
indemnification of directors and officers, except to the extent that it may be held by the Cayman Islands courts to be contrary
to public policy, such as to provide indemnification against civil fraud or the consequences of committing a crime. Our
Memorandum and Articles of Association provide that we shall indemnify and hold harmless our directors and officers
against any liability, action, proceeding, claim, demand, costs, damages or expenses, including legal expenses, whatsoever
which they or any of them may incur as a result of any act or failure to act in carrying out their functions in connection with
the company other than such liability (if any) that they may incur by reason of their own actual fraud, dishonesty, willful
neglect or willful default. We will also bear the expenses of any reasonable attorneys’ fees and other costs and expenses
incurred in connection with the defense of any action, suit, proceeding or investigation involving such director or officer, upon
such person’s undertaking to repay any amounts paid, advanced, or reimbursed by us if it is ultimately determined that any
such person shall not have been entitled to indemnification. No director or officer shall be liable to our company for any loss
or damage incurred by our company as a result (whether direct or indirect) of the carrying out of their functions unless that
liability arises through the actual fraud, dishonesty, willful neglect or willful default of such officer or director. This standard of
conduct is generally the same as permitted under the Delaware General Corporation Law for a Delaware corporation.

Insofar as indemnification for liabilities arising under the Securities Act may be permitted to our directors, officers or persons
controlling us under the foregoing provisions, we have been informed that, in the opinion of the SEC, this indemnification is
against public policy as expressed in the Securities Act and is therefore unenforceable.ff
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Enforcement of Civil Liabilities

We have been advised by Maples and Calder (Cayman) LLP, our Cayman Islands legal counsel, that the courts of the
Cayman Islands are unlikely (i) to recognize or enforce against us judgments of courts of the United States predicated upon
the civil liability provisions of the federal securities laws of the United States or any state in the United States; and (ii) in
original actions brought in the Cayman Islands, to impose liabilities against us predicated upon the civil liability provisions of
the federal securities laws of the United States or any state in the United States, so far as the liabilities imposed by those
provisions are penal in nature. In those circumstances, although there is no statutory enforcement in the Cayman Islands of
judgments obtained in the United States, the courts of the Cayman Islands will recognize and enforce a foreign money
judgment of a foreign court of competent jurisdiction witff hout retrial on the merits based on the principle that a judgment of a
competent foreign court imposes upon the judgment debtor an obligation to pay the sum for which judgment has been given
provided certain conditions are met. For a foreign judgment to be enforced in the Cayman Islands, such judgment must be
final and conclusive and for a liquidated sum, and must not be in respect of taxes or a fine or penalty, inconsistent with a
Cayman Islands judgment in respect of the same matter, impeachable on the grounds of fraud or obtained in a manner, or
be of a kind the enfoff rcement of which is, contrary to natural justice or the public policy of the Cayman Islands (awards of
punitive or multiple damages may well be held to be contrary to public policy). A Cayman Islands court may stay
enforcement proceedings if concurrent proceedings are being brought elsewhere.

C. Material Contracts

For information concerning certain contracts important to our business, see “Item 4. Information on the Company—B.
Business Overview—Raw Materials” and “Item 7. Major Shareholders and Related Party Transactions—Related Party
Transactions.”

2021 SGD EDB Loan—On September 3, 2021, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Singapore Economic
Development Board (“EDB”), which provided loan facif lities with maximum drawdown of $1,149 million (SGD 1,541 million) at
a fixed nominal interest rate of 1.4%. The difference between the nominal interest rate of the loan and the market interest
rate for an equivalent loan is recognized as a government grant. The loan matures on June 3, 2041, with interest-only
payments for the first 5 years and principal repayments commence thereafter, payable on a semi-annual basis.

Except as otherwise described in this Annual Report on Form 20-F (including the documents filed as exhibits to this Annual
Report on Form 20-F), we have not entered into any material contracts other than in the ordinary course of business.

D. Exchange Controls

The Cayman Islands currently has no exchange control restrictions.

E. Taxation

Cayman Islands Tax Considerations

The following summary contains a description of certain Cayman Islands tax consequences of the acquisition, ownership
and disposition of our ordinary shares, but it does not purport to be a comprehensive description of all the tax considerations
that may be relevant to a decision to purchase our ordinary shares. The summary is based upon the tax laws of Cayman
Islands and regulations thereunder as of the date hereof, which are subject to change. If you are considering the purchase
of our ordinary shares, you should consult your own tax advisors concerning the particular tax consequences to you of the
purchase, ownership and disposition of our ordinary shares, as well as the consequences to you arising under the laws of
your country of citizenship, residence or domicile.

The following is a discussion of certain Cayman Islands income tax consequences of an investment in our ordinary shares.
The discussion is a general summary of present law, which is subject to prospective and retroactive change. It is not
intended to be tax advice, does not consider any investor’s particular circumstances, and does not consider tax
consequences other than those arising under Cayman Islands law.

UnUU der Existing Cayman Islands Laws

Payments of dividends and capital in respect of our ordinary shares will not be subject to taxation in the Cayman Islands and
no withholding will be required on the payment of interest and principal or a dividend or capital to any holder of our ordinary
shares, as the case may be, nor will gains derived from the disposal of our ordinary shares be subject to Cayman Islands
income or corporation tax. The Cayman Islands currently has no income, corporation or capital gains tax and no estate duty,
inheritance tax or gift tax.

No stamp duty is payable in respect of the issue of ordinary shares or on an instrument of transfer in respect of an ordinary
share.
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We were incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands as an exempted company with limited liability and, as such,
has received an undertaking from the Governor in Cabinet of the Cayman Islands in substantially the following form:

The Tax Concessions Law

(1999 Revision)

Undertaking as to Tax Concessions

In accordance with Section 6 of the Tax Concessions Law (1999 Revision) the Governor in Cabinet undertakes with
GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc.:

(a) that no Law which is hereafter enacted in the Islands imposing any tax to be levied on profits, income, gains or
appreciations shall apply to us the company or our operations; and

(b) in addition, that no tax to be levied on profits, income, gains or appreciations or which is in the nature of estate
duty or inheritance tax shall be payable:

a. on or in respect of the shares, debentures or other obligations of the company; or

b. by way of the withholding in whole or part, of any relevant payment as defined in Section 6(3) of the Tax
Concessions Law (20181 Revision).

These concessions shall be for a period of TWENTY years from 21st day of October 2008.

United States Federal Income Taxation

The following is a summary of material U.S. federal income tax considerations that are likely to be relevant to the purchase,
ownership and disposition of our ordinary shares by a U.S. Holder (as defined below).

This summary is based on provisions of the Code, and regulations, rulings and judicial interpretations thereof, in force as of
the date hereof. Those authorities may be changed at any time, perhaps retroactively, so as to result in U.S. federal income
tax consequences different from those summarized below.

This summary is not a comprehensive discussion of all of the tax considerations that may be relevant to a particular
investor’s decision to purchase, hold, or dispose of ordinary shares. In particular, this summary is directed only to U.S.
Holders that hold ordinary shares as capital assets and does not address particular tax consequences that may be
applicable to U.S. Holders who may be subject to special tax rules, such as banks, brokers or dealers in securities or
currencies, traders in securities electing to mark to market, financial institutions, life insurance companies, tax-exempt
entities, regulated investment companies, real estate investment trusts, entities or arrangements that are treated as
partnerships for U.S. federal income tax purposes (or partners therein), holders that own or are treated as owning 10% or
more of our stock by vote or value, persons holding ordinary shares as part of a hedging or conversion transaction or a
straddle, persons whose functional currency is not the U.S. dollar, or persons holding our ordinary shares in connection with
a trade or business outside the United States. Moreover, this summary does not address state, local or foreign taxes, the
U.S. federal estate and gift taxes, the Medicare contribution tax applicable to net investment income of certain non-corporate
U.S. Holders, or alternative minimum tax consequences of acquiring, holding or disposing of ordinary shares.

For purposes of this summary, a “U.S. Holder” is a beneficial owner of ordinary shares that is a citizen or resident of the
United States or a U.S. domestic corporation or that otherwise is subject to U.S. federal income taxation on a net income
basis in respect of such ordinary shares.

You should consult your own tax advisors about the consequences of the acquisition, ownership, and disposition of the
ordinary shares, including the relevance to your particular situation of the considerations discussed below and any
consequences arising under foff reign, state, local or other tax laws.

Taxation of Distributions

Subjb ect to the discussion below under “—Passive Foreign Investment Company Status,” the gross amount of any
distribution of cash or property with respect to our shares that is paid out of our current or accumulated earnings and profits
(as determined for U.S. federal income tax purposes) will generally be includible in your taxable income as ordinary dividend
income on the day on which you receive the dividend and will not be eligible for the dividends-received deduction allowed to
corporations under the Code.

We do not expect to maintain calculations of our earnings and profits in accordance with U.S. federal income tax principles.
U.S. Holders therefore should expect that distributions generally will be treated as dividends for U.S. federal income tax
purposes.
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Subject to certain exceptions for short-term positions, dividends received by an individual with respect to the shares will be
subject to taxation at a preferential rate if the dividends are “qualified dividends.” Dividends paid on the shares will be treated
as qualified dividends if:

• the shares are readily tradable on an established securities market in the United States, or we are eligible for the
benefits of a comprehensive tax treaty with the United States that the U.S. Treasury determines is satisfactory for
purposes of this provision and that includes an exchange of informff ation program; and

• we were not, in the year prior to the year in which the dividend was paid, and are not, in the year in which the
dividend is paid, a passive foreign investment company (a “Pff FIC”).

The ordinary shares are listed on the Nasdaq, and will qualify as readily tradable on an established securities market in the
United States so long as they are so listed. Based on our financial statements and relevant market and shareholder data, we
believe that we were not treated as a PFIC for U.Sf . federal income tax purposes with respect to our 2021 and 2022 taxable
years. In addition, based on our financial statements and our current expectations regarding the value and nature of our
assets, the sources and nature of our income, and relevant market and shareholder data, we do not anticipate becoming a
PFIC for our current taxable year or in the foreseeable future. Holders should consult their own tax advisors regarding the
availability of the reduced dividend tax rate in light of their own particular circumstances.

Dividend distributions with respect to our shares generally will be treated as “passive category” income from sources outside
the United States foff r purposes of determining a U.S. Holder’s U.S. foreign tax credit limitation.

U.S. Holders that receive distributions of additional shares or rights to subscribe for shareff s as part of a pro rata distribution
to all our shareholders generally will not be subject to U.S. federal income tax in respect of the distributions, unless the U.S.
Holder has the right to receive cash or property instead, in which case the U.S. Holder will be treated as if it received cash
equal to the fair market value of the distribution.

TaTT xaxx tiott n of Dispositions os f Shares

Subjb ect to the discussion below under “—Passive Foreign Investment Company Status,” upon a sale, exchange or other
taxable disposition of the shares, U.S. Holders will realize gain or loss for U.S. federal income tax purposes in an amount
equal to the difference between the amount realized on the disposition and the U.S. Holder’s adjusted tax basis in the
shares, as determined in U.S. dollars as discussed below. Such gain or loss will be capital gain or loss, and will generally be
long-term capital gain or loss if the shares have been held for more than one year. Long-term capital gain realized by a U.S.
Holder that is an individual generally is subject to taxation at a preferential rate. The deductibility of capital losses is subject
to limitations.

Gain, if any, realized by a U.S. Holder on the sale or other disposition of the shares generally will be treated as U.S. source
income.

Passive Foreign Investment Company Statt tus

Special U.S. tax rules apply to companies that are considered to be PFICs. We will be classified as a PFIC in a particular
taxable year if either:

• 75% or more of our gross income for the taxable year is passive income; or

• the average percentage of the value of our assets that produce or are held for the production of passive income is
at least 50%.

For this purpose, passive income generally includes dividends, interest, gains from certain commodities transactions, rents,
royalties and the excess of gains over losses from the disposition of assets that produce passive income.

We believe, and this discussion assumes, that we were not a PFIC for our taxable year ending December 31, 2022 and that,
based on the present composition of our income and assets and the manner in which we conduct our business, we will not
be a PFIC in our current taxable year or in the foreseeable future. Whether we are a PFIC is a factual determination made
annually, and our status could change depending, among other things, upon changes in the composition of our gross
income and the relative quarterly average value of our fassets. If we were a PFIC fC for any y yy taxable year in which you hold
ordinary y g yy shares, you generally would be su jbject to additional taxes on certain distributions a y gnd any gain reali fzed from the
sale or other taxabl fe disposition of the ordinary gy shares regardl fess of whether we continued to be a PFIC in any subsequenther we continued to be a PFIC in any subsequent
y g yyear. You are encouraged to consult your own tax advisor as to our stat Cus as a PFIC, the tax conseque ynces to yo fu of such

ystatus, and the availability and desirability of making a msirability of making a mark-to-market election to mit gig fate the unfavorable rules mentioned
in the pre gceding sentence.

FoFF rerr igi n Financial Asset Reportrr ingtt

Individual U.S. Holders that own “specified foreign fividual U.S. Holders that own “specified foreign financial assets” wi gg gth an aggregate valu f S$e in excess of US$50,000 on the
last dayy off the taxable year or US$75,000 at any tie taxable year or US$75,000 at any time du gring the taxab yle year a gre gen yerally require fd to file an i fnformation

gstatement along with their ta yx returns, currently on Form 8938, with respect to such assets. “Specified foreign financialct to such assets. “Specified foreign financial
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assets” include any finassets” include any finan S fcial accounts held at a non-U.S. financial institution, as well as securities issue yd by a no Sn-U.S.
issuer that are not held in accounts maintained by financial ints maintained by financial institution g gs. Higher reporting thresho ylds apply to certain
individuals livi gng abroad and to certain married individua g gls. Regulations extend this reporting requirement to certain entities
that are treated as formed or availed of to hold direct or indirect interests in specified foreign financial asset are treated as formed or availed of to hold direct or indirect interests in specified foreign financial assets based on
objjb e S fctive criteria. U.S. Holders who fa fil to report the required information could b je subject to substantial penalties. In
addition f f f, the statute of limitations for assessment of tax would be suspended, in whole or part. Prospective investors are
encouragged to consult with their own tax advisors regarding the possible application of ths regarding the possible application of th gese rules, including the application
off the rules to their particular circumstances.

Backup Withholdindd g and Information Reportine g

Dividends paid on, and proceeds from the sale or other disposition of, the shares to a U.S. taxpayer generally may be
subject to the information reporting requirements of the Code and may be subject to backup withholding unless the U.S.
taxpayer provides an accurate taxpayer identification number and makes any other required certification or otherwise
establishes an exemption. Backup withholding is not an additional tax. The amount of any backup withholding from a
payment to a U.S. taxpayer will be allowed as a refund or credit against the U.S. taxpayer’s U.S. federal income tax liability,
provided the required information is furnished to the U.S. Internal Revenue Service in a timely manner.

A holder that is not a U.S. taxpayer may be required to comply with certification and identification procedures in order to
establish its exemption from information reporting and backup withholding.

F. Dividends and Paying Agents

Not applicable.

G. Statements by Experts

Not applicable.

H. Documents on Display

The SEC maintains a website www.sec.gov that contains reports and other information regarding registrants, including the
Company, that file electronically with the SEC. Please note that copies of the Company’s annual reports on Frr orm 20-F and
reports on Form 6-K filed by us can be inspected at the website set forth above and are also available on our website at
www.gf.com (the website does not form part of this Annual Report on Form 20-F).

I. Subsidiary Information

Not applicable.

ITEM 11. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISKS

We are exposed to market risks in the ordinary course of our business. Market risk represents the risk of loss that may
impact our financial position due to adverse changes in financial market prices and rates. Our market risk exposure is
primarily the result of fluctuations in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. See Note 32 to our Annual
Consolidated Financial Statements for additional details.

FoFF rerr ign Currency Risk: As a result of foreign operations, we have costs, assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies, primarily the Euro, the Singapore dollar and the Japanese yen. Therefore, movements in exchange rates could
cause foreign currency-denominated expenses to increase as a percentage of net revenue, which are denominated in U.S.
dollars, affecting profitability and cash flows. We use foreign currency forward contracts to reduce exposure to foreign
currency fluctuations. We also incur a certain portion of our interest expenses in Euro and Singapore Dollar, exposing us to
exchange rate fluctuations between U.S. dollar and Euro and Singapore Dollar. We use cross currency swaps to reduce our
exposure to variability from foreign exchange impacting cash flows arising from our foreign currency-denominated debt cash
flows to the extent that it is practicable and cost effective to do so. As of December 31, 2022, we do not believe that a
hypothetical 10% change in the relative value of the U.S. dollar to currencies other than the Euro, Japanese Yen, and
Singapore Dollar would have a material effect on our operating results.

Interest Rate Risk—The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to interest-
earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities. The Company’s interest-earning financial assets are mostly
highly liquid investments and includes money market funds, marketable securities and time deposits. As these financial
assets have weighted-average maturity of less than one year with majority of the assets in fixed-rate instruments, the
Company’s exposure to interest risk is not material. The Company’s interest-bearing financial liabilities include fixed and
floating rate loans and lease obligations. Floating rate loans bear interest at Base Rate or LIBOR or EURIBOR plus a
premium, which is fixed. The Company uses pay-fixed / receive-float interest rate swaps to protect the Company against
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adverse fluctuations in interest rates and to reduce its exposure to variability in cash flows on the Company’s forecasted
floating-rate debt facility to the extent that it is practicable and cost effective to do so. As of December 31, 2022, a
hypothetical 10% change in existing interest rates would not have a material impact on our consolidated financial statements
(See Note 30).

ITEM 12. DESCRIPTION OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN EQUITY SECURITIES

None.

PART II

ITEM 13. DEFAULTS, DIVIDEND ARREARAGES AND DELINQUENCIES
None.

ITEM 14. MATERIAL MODIFICATIONS TO THE RIGHTS OF SECURITY HOLDERS AND USE OF PROCEEDS

A. Material Modifications to Instruments
Not applicable.

B. Material Modifications to Rights
Not applicable.

C. Withdrawal or Substitution of Assets
Not applicable.

D. Change in Trustees or Paying Agents
Not applicable.

E. Use of Proceeds

On October 27, 2021, our registration statement on Form F-1, as amended (File No. 333-260003) was declared effective by
the SEC in relation to our IPO. Additionally, we participated in a concurrent private placement for 1,595,744 ordinary shares
(the “Private Placement”). We issued and sold an aggregate 31,845,744 ordinary shares in our IPO and the Private
Placement at the IPO price of $47.00 per share, after deducting underwriting commissions of $43 million and estimated
offering expenses payable by us of $30 million, for approximately $1.ff 4 billion of net proceeds.

Morgan Stanley & Co. LLC, BofA Securities, Inc. and J.P. Morgan Securities LLC were the representatives of the
underwriters for our IPO. We did not receive any proceeds from the initial sale of 24,750,000 ordinary shares by Mubadala,
the selling shareholder in our IPO, nor from the sale of 5,748,006 additional ordinary shares pursuant to the underwriters’
exercise of their option to purchase additional ordinary shares from Mubadala, for an aggregate price of approximately $1.4
billion. We paid affiliates of Mubadala, First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC and Abu Dhabi Commercial Bank PJSC, a fee of $0.7
million and $0.7 million, respectively, for acting as our Gulf Cooperation Council (“GCC”) Markets Advisors in connection with
the IPO.

For the period from the closing of our IPO on November 1, 2021 to December 31, 2022, we used a portion of the net
proceeds from our IPO and the Private Placement to support construction related to our fabrication facility in Singapore and
capacity expansion projects in certain other facilities. We still intend to use the remainder of the proceeds from our IPO and
Private Placement as disclosed in our registration statement on Form F-1.

ITEM 15. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

A. Disclosure Controls and Procedures.

At the end of the period covered by this report, we performed an evaluation of the effectiveness of our disclosure controls
and procedures that are designed to ensure that the information required to be disclosed by the Company in the report that
we file or submit pursuant to Rule 13(a)-15(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), is
accumulated and communicated to our management, including our chief executive and chief financial officer, as appropriate
to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our CEO and CFO, has evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and
procedures as of December 31, 2022, which is the end of the period covered by the Annual Report on Form 20-F. Based on
such evaluations, our CEO and CFO have concluded that as of December 31, 2022, our disclosure controls and procedures
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were designed at a reasonable assurance level and were effective to provide reasonable assurance that information we are
required to disclosed in reports that we file or submit to the SEC is recorded, processed, summarized and reported within
the time periods specified in the rules and forms of the SEC.

Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over our financial reporting as
defined in Rule 13a-15(f) or 15d-15(f) under the Exchange Act. Internal control over financial reporting is a process designed
under the supervision of our principal executive and principal financial officers to provide reasonable assurance regarding
the reliability of our financial reporting and the preparation of consolidated financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (“IASB”). Our internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that:

• Pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the Company;

• Provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial
statements in accordance with IFRS, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the Company; and

• Provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use of
disposition of the Company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements.
Projections of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Management has documented and evaluated the effectiveness of the internal control over Financial Reporting of the
Company as of December 31, 2022, in accordance with the criteria established in the Internal Control - Integrated
Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (“COSO”).

Based on our assessment, management believes that as of December 31, 2022 our internal control over financial reporting
is effective based on these criteria.

The effectiveness of the Company’s internal control over financial reporting has been audited by KPMG LLP, independent
registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report on the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2022, which is included herein.

B. Attestation Report of the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm.

Our independent registered public accounting firm’s attestation report on our internal control over financial reporting is
included in the “Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm” in Item 18 of this report.

D. Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting.

There were no changes in our internal control over financial reporting tharr t occurred during the period covered by this annual
report that have materially affected, or that are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial
reporting.

ITEM 16A. AUDIT COMMITTEE FINANCIAL EXPERT
We have one financial expert serving on our audit, risk and compliance committee as of the date hereof. Our board of
directors has determined that Jack Lazar qualifies as an “audit committee financial expert” as defined in SEC rules and
satisfies the financial sophistication requirements of the Nasdaq. In addition, our board of directors has determined that Jack
Lazar is “independent” for audit, risk and compliance committee purposes as that term is defined in the rules of the SEC and
the applicable rules of the Nasdaq.

ITEM 16B. CODE OF ETHICS
Our board has adopted a code of conduct that applies to all of our directors, officers and employees (the “Code of
Conduct”). Our board has also adopted a code of ethics applicable to our executive officers and senior finance executives
(the “Code of Ethics”), who must also comply with the Code of Conduct. Both the Code of Conduct and the Code of Ethics
are available on our website: www.gf.com. We intend to disclose any amendments to the Code of Ethics, and any waivers of
the Code of Ethics or the Code of Conduct for our directors, executive officers and senior finance executives, on our website
to the extent required by applicable U.S. federal securities laws and the corporate governance rules of the Nasdaq.
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ITEM 16C. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES

The following table sets forth the fees billed to us by KPMG LLP (PCAOB ID 1051), our ind gependent registered public
accounting firm during the years ended Dccounting firm during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

(in thousands) 2022 2021
Audit fees $ 4,744 $ 4,900
Audit-related fees 61 —
Tax fees — 152
All other fees — 29
Total $ 4,805 $ 5,081

Audit fees

Audit fees are fees billed for professional services rendered by the principal accountant for the audit of the registrant’s
annual combined financial statements or services that are normally provided by the accountant in connection with statutory
and regulatory filings or engagements for those fiscal years. It includes the audit of our financial statements, interim reviews
and other services that generally only the independent accountant reasonably can provide, such as comfort letters, statutory
audits, consents and assistance with and review of documents filed with the SEC.

Audit-dd rerr latell d fees

Audit-related fees are fees billed for assurance and related services by the principal accountant that are reasonably related
to the performance of the audit or review of the registrant’s financial services.

Tax fees

Tax fees are fees billed for professional services for tax compliance, tax advice and tax planning.

All other fees

All other fees are fees billed for payroll processing, human resources administration and immigration services.

Audit Committee Pre-Approval Policies and Procedures

In accordance with applicable requirements of the U.S. Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002 and rules issued by the SEC, the policy
of our audit committee is to pre-approve all audit and non-audit services provided by KPMG LLP since their appointment as
the independent registered public accounting firm, including audit-related services, tax services and other services.

ITEM 16D. EXEMPTIONS FROM THE LISTING STANDARDS FOR AUDIT COMMITTEES

Not applicable.

ITEM 16E. PURCHASES OF EQUITY SECURITIES BY THE ISSUER AND AFFILIATED PURCHASERS

There were no purchases of equity securities by us or by any affiliated purchaser during the period covered by this Annual
Report.

ITEM 16F. CHANGE IN REGISTRANT’S CERTIFYING ACCOUNTANT

Not applicable.

ITEM 16G. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

We are a “foreign private issuer” under the securities laws of the United States and the rules of Nasdaq. Nasdaq listing rules
include certain accommodations in the corporate governance requirements that allow foreign private issuers, such as us, to
follow “home country” corporate governance practices in lieu of the otherwise applicable corporate governance standards of
the Nasdaq. The application of such exceptions requires that we disclose each Nasdaq corporate governance standard that
we do not follow and describe the Cayman Islands corporate governance practices we do follow in lieu of the relevant
Nasdaq corporate governance standard. We currently follow Cayman Islands corporate governance practices in lieu of the
corporate governance requirements of the Nasdaq in respect of the folff lowing:

• the requirement under Section 5605(e) of Nasdaq listing rules that director nominees be selected or recommended
for selection by either a majority of the independent directors or a nominations committee comprised solely of
independent directors; and
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• the Shareholder Approval Requirements under Section 5635 of the Nasdaq listing rules.

On a voluntary basis, we have adopted corporate governance principles, policies and practices, which are set out primarily
in our Corporate Governance Framework, Board Charter, committee charters, Code of Conduct, Code of Ethics and Director
Conflict of Interest Policy, the current versions of which are published on our Investors Relations website
(www.investors.gf.com). We note in particular the following policies and practices that we have voluntarily adopted to align
more with the corporate governance standards of the Nasdaq for domestic issuers:

• A majority of our board of directors is comprised of independent directors pursuant to applicable Nasdaq rules.

• Our independent, non-executive directors who are not affiliated with or appointed by Mubadala have begun to meet
in executive sessions at board meetings. Our lead independent director presides over such executive sessions.

• We have a separation of the CEO and board chairman roles, with our CEO focused on managing the Comff pany
and our board chairman driving accountability to shareholders at the board level.

• Annually, the board of directors, its committees and individual directors undertake a self-evaluation, including,
beginning in 2022, one-on-one interviews.rr

• Our board of director consists of both underrepresented minority and female board members. Our board diversity
matrix is available at www.investors.gf.com.

• We have updated our Board Charter to address (i) periodic meetings among committee chairs and the board
chairman, (ii) overboarding, (iii) duties of the lead independent director, (iv) diversity, (v) periodic assessment of
processes facilitating communications between shareholders and directors and financial and non-financial
infof rmation, (vi) effective implementation and operation of information and reporting systems or controls designed
to inform of material risks, (vii) the board being apprised of the Company’s positions on corporate social
responsibility, public policy and philanthropy, (viii) change in director circumstances, (ix) the minimum number of
times the board of directors would meet each year, (x) each committee chair setting an annual schedule of
meetings for their respective committees, and (xi) each director’s ability to provide input on the board or any
committee agenda.

• Our board members are subject to stock ownership guidelines that help align their interests with GF’s long-term
perfof rmance.

• We recently adopted a Director Conflict of Interest Policy, which complements GF’s Code of Conduct.

• In April 2022, rating agency ISS recognized GF for “Prime” coff rporate ESG performff ance. GF’s ESG efforts were
also recently evaluated by Morningstar Sustainalytics, which recognized GF with a “Low Risk” rating and included
the Company in its 2023 “ESG Industry Top-rated” list for the semiconductor industry group.

• Our Chief Audit Executive reports to the audit, risk and compliance committee. Any employee concerns regarding
questionable accounting or auditing matters may be submitted anonymously through our third-party operated
Ethics Whistleblower hotline. The audit, risk and compliance committee oversees the ethics and compliance
program and reviews claims submitted through the hotline

ITEM 16H. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURE

Not applicable.

ITEM 16I. DISCLOSURE REGARDING FOREIGN JURISDICTIONS THAT PREVENT INSPECTIONS

Not applicable.
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PART III

ITEM 17. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See “Item18” - Financial Statements

ITEM 18. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

See pages F-1 through F-51, incorporated herein by reference.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and Board of Directors
GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc.:

Opinions on the Consolidated Financial Statements and Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

We have audited the accompanying consolidated statements of financial position of GLOBALFOUNDRIES, Inc. and subsidiaries
(the Company) as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the related consolidated statements of operations, other comprehensive
income (loss), changes in equity, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes (collectively, the consolidated
financial statements). We also have audited the Company’s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2022,
based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of the Company as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the years then ended,
in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting Standards Board. Also in our
opinion, the Company maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2022 based on criteria established in Internal Control – Integrated Framework (2013) issued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

Basis for Opinions

The Company’s management is responsible for these consolidated financial statements, for maintaining effective internal control
over financial reporting, and for its assessment of the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting, included in the
accompanying Management’s Annual Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an
opinion on the Company’s consolidated financial statements and an opinion on the Company’s internal control over financial
reporting based on our audits. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in accordance with the U.S. federal
securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audits to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements are free of material misstatement,
whether due to error or fraud, and whether effective internal control over financial reporting was maintained in all material
respects.

Our audits of the consolidated financial statements included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks.
Such procedures included examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. Our audits also included evaluating the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements. Our audit of internal control
over financial reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk that a
material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the
assessed risk. Our audits also included performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We
believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinions.

Definition and Limitations of Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

A company’s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions
of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit
preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also,
projeo ctions of any evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate
because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.
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Critical Audit Matter

The critical audit matter communicated below is a matter arising from the current period audit of the consolidated financial
statements that was communicated or required to be communicated to the audit committee and that: (1) relates to accounts or
disclosures that are material to the consolidated financial statements and (2) involved our especially challenging, subjective, or
complex judgments. The communication of a critical audit matter does not alter in any way our opinion on the consolidated
financial statements, taken as a whole, and we are not, by communicating the critical audit matter below, providing a separate
opinion on the critical audit matter or on the accounts or disclosures to which it relates.

Determination of useful life of 300mm production equipment

As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financial statements, the Company reported $3,765 million of equipment which
included 300mm production equipment as at December 31, 2022. Management estimated the useful life of production equipment
including 300mm based on production equipment current use, historical age patterns, as well as an analysis of industry trends
and practices. We identified the determination of the useful life of 300mm production equipment as a critical audit matter. To
evaluate management’s judgement in determining the useful life of ten years for the 300mm production equipment, we usedff
significant auditor judgement, subjectivity and effort in performing prrr ocedures to evaluate the reasonableness of the significant
assumptions used in determining the useful life.

The following are the primary procedures we performed to address this critical audit matter. We evaluated the design and tested
the operating effectiveness of certain internal controls related to the determination of the useful life of 300mm production
equipment and related data used for that determination. We also tested management’s process for determining a ten year useful
life and assessed the reasonableness of the significant assumptions used by management, which included (1) testing the
completeness, accuracy, and relevance of the underlying data used in management’s historical length of service assessment, and
(2) evaluating the completeness, accuracy, and relevance of the useful lives utilized by peer companies and used in
management’s assessment.

/s/ KPMG LLP

We have served as the Company’s auditor since 2021.

Singapore, Singapore
April 14, 2023
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Shareholders and the Board of Directors of GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc.

Opinion on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. (the “Company”), which
comprise the statements of operations, other comprehensive income (loss), cash flows, and changes in equity for the year enf ded
December 31, 2020, and the related notes (collectively referred to as the consolidated financial statements). In our opinion, the
consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all material respects the results of its operations and its cash flows for the year
ended December 31, 2020, in conformity with International Financial Reporting Standards issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board.

Basis for Opinion

These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on
the Company’s financial statements based on our audit. We are a public accounting firm registered with the Public Company
Accounting Oversight Board (United States) (PCAOB) and are required to be independent with respect to the Company in
accordance with the U.S. federal securities laws and the applicable rules and regulations of the Securities and Exchange
Commission and the PCAOB.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the PCAOB. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement, whether due to
error or fraud. Our audit included performing procedures to assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to error or fraud, and performing procedures that respond to those risks. Such procedures included examining, on a
test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. Our audit also included evaluating the
accounting principles used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the
financial statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinff ion.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

We served as the Company’s auditor from 2016 to 2021.

San Jose, Califof rnia

August 6, 2021,

Except for the effects of the 1-for-2 reserve share split discussed in the first paragraph of Note 19, as to which the date isr

September 13, 2021
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G O O S CGLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
COCONSO S S O C OS OSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

(Dollars in m(Dollars in millions)ions)
As of December 31,

2022 2021
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 2,352 $ 2,939
Marketable securities 622 —
Receivables, prepayments and other assets 1,487 1,231
Inventories 1,339 1,121
Total current assets 5,800 5,291
Non-current assets:
Property, plant and equipment, net 10,596 8,713
Goodwill and intangible assets, net 363 377
Marketable securities 372 —
Deferred tax assets 292 353
Receivables, prepayments and other assets 281 254
Other non-current financial assets 137 40
Total non-current assets 12,041 9,737
Total assets $ 17,841 $ 15,028

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Trade payables and other current liabilities $ 2,849 $ 2,586
Current portion of long-term debt 223 297
Current portion of lease obligations 75 135
Provisions 102 116
Current portion of deferred income from government grants 110 29
Total current liabilities 3,359 3,163
Non-current liabilities:
Non-current portion of long-term debt 2,288 1,716
Other non-current liabilities 1,474 1,445
Non-current portion of lease obligations 270 291
Provisions 196 233
Non-current portion of deferred income from government grants 294 147
Total non-current liabilities 4,522 3,832
Total liabilities $ 7,881 $ 6,995

Equity:
Share capital
Ordinary shares, $0.02 par value, 547,755 thousand and 531,846 thousand
shares issued and outstanding as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively $ 11 11
Additional paid-in capital 23,831 23,487
Accumulated deficit (14,021) (15,469)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss 92 (54)
Equity attributable to the shareholders of GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC. 9,913 7,975
Non-controlling interests 47 58
Total equity 9,960 8,033
Total liabilities and equity $ 17,841 $ 15,028

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
COCONSO S S O O O SSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

((SShare amounts and dollars in millions)hare amounts and dollars in millions)

2022 2021 2020
Net revenue $ 8,108 $ 6,585 $ 4,851
Cost of revenue 5,869 5,572 5,563
Gross profit (loss) 2,239 1,013 (712)
Research and development expenses 482 478 476
Selling, general and administrative expenses 496 595 445
Restructuring charges 94 — —
Operating expenses 1,072 — 1,073 — 921
Impairment charges — — 23
Other operating expenses — — 23
Income (loss) from operations 1,167 (60) (1,656)
Finance income 51 6 3
Finance expenses (111) (114) (154)
Gain on sale of East Fishkill (“EFK”) business 403 — —
Other income (expense), net 22 (8) 442
Income (loss) before income taxes 1,532 (176) (1,365)
Income tax (expense) benefit (86) (78) 12
Net income (loss) for the year $ 1,446 $ (254) $ (1,353)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC. $ 1,448 $ (250) $ (1,350)
Non-controlling interests (2) (4) (3)
Net income (loss) for the year $ 1,446 $ (254) $ (1,353)
Net income (loss) per share attributable to the equity
holders of the Company:

Basic weighted average common shares outstanding 539 506 500
Diluted weighted average common shares outstanding 552 506 500

Basic earnings (loss) per share $ 2.69 $ (0.49) $ (2.70)
Diluted earnings (loss) per share $ 2.62 $ (0.49) $ (2.70)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)

(Dollars in m(Dollars in millions)ions)

For the year ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

Net income (loss) for the year $ 1,446 $ (254) $ (1,353)
Attributable to:
Shareholder of GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC. 1,448 (250) (1,350)
Non-controlling interest (2) (4) (3)
Net income (loss) for the year $ 1,446 $ (254) $ (1,353)

Other comprehensive income (loss), net of tax:
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Share of foreign exchange fluctuation reserve of joint ventures $ (23) $ (12) $ —
Effective portion of changes in the fair value of cash flow
hedges 187 (45) (23)
Fair value (loss) on investments measured at fair value through
other comprehensive income (9) — —
Income tax effect (18) 3 (2)

137 (54) (25)
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or
loss:
Remeasurement of existing equity interests — — 7
Share of foreign exchange fluctuation reserve of joint ventures
and associates — — 14

$ 137 $ (54) $ (4)
Total other comprehensive income (loss)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC. $ 146 $ (50) $ (9)
Non-controlling interests (9) (4) 5
Total other comprehensive income (loss) for the year $ 137 $ (54) $ (4)

Total comprehensive income (loss)
Attributable to:
Shareholders of GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC. $ 1,594 $ (300) $ (1,359)
Non-controlling interests (11) (8) 2
Total comprehensive income (loss) for the year $ 1,583 $ (308) $ (1,357)

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

(Dollars in millions)

Years Ended December 31,
2022 2021 2020

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net income (loss) $ 1,446 $ (254) $ (1,353)
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to net cash
provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization 1,623 1,618 2,522
Share-based payments 181 223 1
Interest and income taxes paid, net(1) (68) (107) (170)
Impairment charges — — 23
Finance income (51) (6) (3)
Finance expenses 111 114 154
Amortization of deferred income from government grants (28) (33) (51)
Deferred income taxes 82 93 (38)
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and other (103) (39) (140)
Gain on the sale of a business (403) — —
Change in assets and liabilities:
Receivables, prepayments and other assets 35 (387) 753
Inventories (261) (202) (560)
Trade and other payables 60 1,819 (134)
Net cash provided by operating activities $ 2,624 $ 2,839 $ 1,004

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant and equipment and intangible
assets (3,059) (1,767) (592)
Advances and proceeds from sale of property, plant and
equipment and intangible assets 41 324 109
Purchase of investment in marketable securities (1,302) — —

Proceeds from sale of marketable securities 306 — —
Proceeds from sale of fabrication facilities and ASIC
business — — 111
Other investing activities (44) (7) 6
Net cash used in investing activities $ (4,058) $ (1,450) $ (366)

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issuance of equity instruments 168 1,444 —
Repayments of shareholder loan — (568) (487)
Repayments of borrowings from shareholder — — (112)
Net proceeds from borrowings 971 617 2,801
Repayments of debt and finance lease obligations (390) (960) (3,246)
Proceeds from government grants 93 83 312
Increase (decrease) in restricted cash — 34 (1)
Net cash provided by financing activities $ 842 $ 650 $ (733)
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash and cash
equivalents 5 (8) 6
Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents $ (587) $ 2,031 $ (89)
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 2,939 908 997
Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year $ 2,352 $ 2,939 $ 908
Noncash investing and financing activities:
Amounts payable for property, plant and equipment $ 901 $ 428 $ 202
Property, plant and equipment acquired through lease $ 66 $ 97 $ 9
Amounts payable for intangible assets $ 89 $ 89 $ 159

(1)Includes interest paid of $96 million, $101 million and $146 million for years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively, and interest
received of $32 million, $1 million and $4 million for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

See accompanying notes to consolidated financial statements
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GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEARS ENDED December 31, 2022, 2021 AND 2020
(Dollars in millions)

1. Organization

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. (“GLOBALFOGLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. (“GLOBALFOUNDRIES”) is an exempted company wiIES”) is an exempted company with limited lia ybility incorporated under the
laws of the Cayman Islands. The address of GLOBALFOUNDRIES’ registered office is P.O. Box 309ws of the Cayman Islands. The address of GLOBALFOUNDRIES’ registered office is P.O. Box 309 g, Ug Gland House, Grand
Cayman, KYCayman, KY1-1104 Cayman Islands.1-1104 Cayman Islands.

GLOBALFOUNDRIES and its subsidiaries (togGLOBALFOUNDRIES and its subsidiaries (together referred to as the “Company”) is one of the world’s largest pure-playether referred to as the “Company”) is one of the world’s largest pure-play
fsemiconductor foff undries and offer a full range of ms and offer a full range of mainstrea f fm wafer fabrication services and technologgi Ces. The Comp yany

fmanufactures a broad range of semicod range of semiconducto gr devices, including microprocessors, mobile application processors, baseband
processors, networ fk processors, radio freque yncy modems, microcontrollers, and power man gagement units.

GLOBALFOUNDRIES is a majority ownedGLOBALFOUNDRIES is a ysubsidiary of Mubadala Technology Investments LLC (“Shaf Mubadala Technology Investments LLC (“Shareholder”) through itsder”) through its
gysubsidiaries, Mubadala Technology Investment Company and MTI Iment Company and MTI International Investment Company LLC. Mubal Investment Company LLC. Mubadala

Technology Investments LLC is a subsidiary of Mamoura DiversifTechnology Investments LLC is a subsidiary of Mamoura Diversified Global Holding PJSC (ied Global Holding PJSC (“MDGH”). Mubadala In“MDGH”). Mubadala Investment
Company PJSC (“MIC”) is the ultimate pCompany PJSC (“MIC”) is the ultimate parent company. See Note 2mpany. See Not 8 for further discussion of the Company’s related paf the Company’s related pa yrty
disclosures.

The Company previously entered into an agreement with Semiconductor Components Industries, LLC (“ON
Semiconductor”) to sell the Company’s business in East Fishkill, New York, including buildings, facilities, certain equipment,
inventories, and certain contracts. Under the agreement the Company will manufacture 300mm wafers for ONf
Semiconductor until the end of 2023 for additional fees, allowing ON Semiconductor to increase its 300mm production at the
East Fishkill fab over several years. Under the agreement, ON Semiconductor committed to minimum fixed cost payments in
each year through 2023. On December 31, 2022, the Company completed the sale of the EFK business for a total purchase
price of $406 million, of which $170 million was received in prior years, and the remaining $236 million received in January
2023. The Company recognized a gain upon the completion of the sale amounting to $403 million.

Th fe consolidated finan ycial statements were authorized by th G Oe GLOBAL OFOUNDRIES’ Board of Directors on AS’ Board of Directors on pril 14, 2023 to
be issued and subsequent events have been evaluated for their potential effect on the consolidated financial statements
through April 14, 2023.

2. Basis of Preparation

SStatement of Cf Compliance—The consolidate fd financial statements of the Company have been prepared in accordance withs of the Company have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standarl Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRS”) as issues (“IFRS”) as issue yd by the International Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).rnational Accounting Standards Board (“IASB”).
Th fe consolidated financial statements compr f f Gise the financial statements of G OLOB OALFOUNDR SIES and its subsidiaries.

fBasis of Measurement f—These financial statements have been prepared on the historical cost basis except as otherwise
described in the notes below.

Functional and Presentation Currencyl and Presentation Currency—The consolid fated financial statements are presented in United States (U.S.)n United States (U.S.)
dollars ($), ws ($), which is the Company’s functional and prich is the Company’s functional and presentation curre yncy.

Foreiggn Currency Tn Currency Translation—Assets and liabilities of foreign ope—Assets and liabilities of foreign operations having a functional currrations having a functional curr yency o Sther than the U.S.
dollar are translated at the rate of exchange prer are translated at the rate of exchange pre gvailing a gt the reporting date and revenue and expenses at the rat fe of
e gxchange prevailing at the dates of the transavailing at the dates of the transactions during the period. Gains or losses on tctions during the period. Gains or losses on translation of ff foreiggn operations
are included in other comprehensive income (loss).n other comprehensive income (loss).

In preparing the consolidated financial statements of tng the consolidated financial statements of the company, foreign currency-denominated monetary assets andhe company, foreign currency-denominated monetary assets and
liabilities are translated in fto the functional curren y g gcy using the closing rate at the applicable consolidated sta ftement of
ffinan ycial position dates. Non-monetary assets and liabil fities, denominated in a foreign currency and measured at fair value,reign currency and measured at fair value,
are tran fslated at the rate of e gxchange prevailing at the date when the fg at the date when the f yair value was determined and non-monetary assets
measured at historical cost are translated at the historical rate. Revenue and e fxpenses are measured in the functional
currency at the rates of exchange prevacy at the rates of exchange prevailingg at t fhe dates of t ghe transactions with gains or losses included in income.

f CBasis of Consolidation f—The consolidated financial statements comprise t fhe financi f G Oal statements of GLOBAL O SFOUNDRIES
an Sd its subsidiaries. Subsidiaries are fully consolidatsidiaries are fully consolidat fed fro fm the date of acq guisition, being the date on which
G O O SGLOBALFOUNDRIES obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until the date when such control ceases. All
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interco ympany transactions, balances, income and expenses are elimina fted in full on consolidation. W yholly owned
subsidiaries and controlled entities included in these consolidat fed financial statemen otts are disclosed in N e 28.

Control is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rightControl is achieved when the Company is exposed, or has rights, to variable ret furns from its involvement wit yh the subsidiary
and has the ability to affect those rd has the ability to affect those returns thr gough its power over the subsidiary. Spiary. Specifically, the Company controecifically, the Company controls a
subsidiary if the Comsubsidiary if the Company (a) has power over the suy (a) has power over the subsidiary, (b) iary, (b) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with subsidiaryy, and (c) has the abid (c) has the abili yty to use the p ffower to affect its returns.

f fProfit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (loss) (“OCI”) are attribncome (loss) (“OCI”) are attributed to the equity holder of theuted to the equity holder of the
Company and to the non-coCompany and to the non-con gtrolling interests.

A change in the ownA change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.ership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity transaction.

Iff the Company loses control over a subsidiary, it dee Company loses control over a subsidiary, it de grecognizes the related assets (ited assets (incl g guding goodwill), liabilities, non-), liabilities, non-
gcontrolling interest and other components of equity, while any resulting gain or loss is recognf equity, while any resulting gain or loss is recognized in the consolidated

statements of operations. Any investmstatements of operations. Any investment retained is recognized at fair value.nt retained is recognized at fair value.

fReclassification C—Certain prior period amoun f fts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation.

3. Summary of Accounting Policies, Judgements, Estimates and Assumptions

Investments in Joint Ventures—Joint ventures are those entities over whose activities the Company has joint control,se activities the Company has joint control,
e ystablished by contractua g gl agreement and requiring unan fimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions.gic financial and operating decisions.

Investment j ys in jointly controlled entitie fs are accounted for using the equity method of accountinr using the equity method of accounting (herein after referg (herein after referred to as
““equi yty accounted investees”) and are rd investees”) and are recognized initially at cost. The consolidated financial statements icognized initially at cost. The consolidated financial statements include the
Company’s share of tCompany’s share of the income and e yxpenses and equity movements of equity accounted investees, after adts of equity accounted investees, after adjjustments to
al gig gn the accounting policies wit f Ch those of the Company, from the date tompany, from the date t jhat joint control commences until the date t jhat joint
control ceases. A gt each reporting date C, the Compa yny determines whether the jre is objective evidence that the investment in
th je joint venture is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company calculare is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Company calculates t f ffhe amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as a share of proe amount of the joint venture and its carrying value, and then recognizes the loss as a share of proffit
((loss) of joiss) of joint ventures and associates in the consolidated statements of operations).nt ventures and associates in the consolidated statements of operations).

When the Company’s share of losses exceeds iWhen the Company’s share of losses exceeds its i ynterest in an equity accounted investee, the carrying amount of thate carrying amount of that
intere g y gst, including any long-term investments, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is dirm investments, is reduced to zero, and the recognition of further losses is discontinued except
to the extent that the Company has an oe Company has an obliggatio f fn on behalf of the investee.

C CCash and Cash Equivalents C—Cash and cash equivalents includes cash on hand and balances at banks, deposits held on
fcall with banks, and financial instruments that are not subject to significant risk of changes in value, are readily convertiblebject to significant risk of changes in value, are readily convertible

into cash and have o grigina fl maturities of three mon fths or less at the time of purchase.

Trade Accounts Receivable—Trade accounts receivable ar ge recognized initially at fnized initially at fai fr value. A provision for impairme fnt of
trade accounts receivable is established when there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect alen there is objective evidence that the Company will not be able to collect all
amounts due according to the original terms of the receivabccording to the original terms of the receivable.

Financial Instruments:

Category of financial instruCategory of financial instrum tents and measurement

Recognition and Initial Measurerr ment y g—Trade receivables are initially recog ynized when they are originated. All other financialre originated. All other financial
a fssets and financial liabilities a y gre initially recognized when the Company bnized when the Company become ys a party to the contractual provisions off
the instrument.

A financial asset or financial liability is initially mA financial asset or financial liability is initially m feasured at fair val gue including transaction costs t yhat are directly attributable
to its acquisition or issuance, and are recognized at facognized at fair value in the profit and loss (“FVPL”) are expensed in consolidatedr value in the profit and loss (“FVPL”) are expensed in consolidated

fstatements of operations. A trade receivable without a significande receivable without a significan ft finan gcing component is initiallyy measured at the transaction
price.

C fClassification and Measurement—All recoggnize fd financial assets are measured based on amortized cost o fr fair value. The
fclassification is based on two criteria, the Company’s business model for managn two criteria, the Company’s business model for managi gng the assets and whether the instrument’s

fcontractual cash flows represen yt solely payments of principal anayments of principal and interest (“SPPI”).est (“SPPI”).

Th fe assessment of whether contractua fl cash flows on debt instruments ar ye solely compri fsed of principal and interest is
made based o fn the facts and circumstances at the initial recognition of aecognition of assets.

GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Financial assets include trade and other receivables. These are recorde fd at amortized cost when such financial assets are
held with t jhe objective t f So collect contract cash flows that meet the SPPI criterion.

Financial assets recorded at FVPL comprise un yquoted equity instrum Cents which the Compa yny had not irrevocablyy elected,
a gt initial recognition, to class fify at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).y at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”).fff

Financial assets recorded at F OCVOCI comprise marketable securities that are quoted debt instruments wh fen such financial
assets are held with the objectives of collecting contractue held with the objectives of collecting contractual ca f Ssh flows and meets the SPPI criterion. Movements in the
carry gying amount are taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gough OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains or losses and interest income which
ar ge recognize f f fd in the consolidated statements of operations. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate methg the effective interest rate method.

I f fmpairment of financial assetII sstt

The Company will record an allowae Company will record an allowa fnce for expected credit losses (“ECcted credit losses (“ECL”) for alL”) for all loans to related parties, marketable
securities (that are quoted debt instruments), contract assets, ansecurities (that are quoted debt instruments), contract assets, and trade receivables and other receivables not recorded at
FV C ffPL. ECLs are based on the difference between the con ftractual cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the Company expects to receive. Tcash flows that the Company expects to receive. The sho frtfall is then discounted to the asset’s original effective interest rate.he asset’s original effective interest rate.

The Company estimated ie Company estimated its expected credit lo fsses for its contract assets and trade receivables at an amount equal to
liffetime credit losses, while marketable securities and other receivables are measured at 12-months ECL if they areceivables are measured at 12-months ECL if they are
determined to ha gve low credit risk at the reporting date.

Off fOffsetting of Financial Instrutt mentstt f—Financial assets and financial liabili ffties are offset and the net amount reported in the
consolidated state f fments of financial position when there is a fn enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amountrceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts, and
there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabili yties simultaneously.

FaFF i fr Value of Financial Instii rutt mentstt f—The fair value of ff financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each
reporti gng date is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer pry reference to quoted market prices or dealer price quotations (bid price for long positions andce quotations (bid price for long positions and
a fsk price for short pff ositions), without any deducttions), without any deducti fon for transaction costs.

Fo fr financial instruments not traded in an active market, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techarket, the fair value is determined using appropriate valuation techniques.
Such techniques may include using rSuch techniques may include using recent arm’s-l gength market transactions; r fefer f fence to the current fair value of another
instrument that i ys substantially the same; a discounted cash flow analysis oed cash flow analysis or other valuation models.

Derivative Financial Instruments and Hedge Ad ccounting—The Company uses d—The Company uses d ferivative financial instruments, such as
ffof reign currency forward contracts, interest rate swign currency forward contracts, interest rate swaps, cr yoss currency swaps and commodity forward coodity forward cont gracts to mitigate
the risks associated with changges in foreign currency exchanges in foreign currency exchange, interest rates and commodity price. The Company does ny price. The Company does not
u f fse derivative financial instruments foff gr trading or speculative purposes. Deri fvative financial instruments are initial yly
re gcognize fd at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at faintly remeasured at fair
value at each reporting date. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as finavalue at each reporting date. Derivatives are carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial
liabilities when the fair value is negative.he fair value is negative.

In applying its strategy, from tin applying its strategy, from time to time, the Company uses foreign cume to time, the Company uses foreign currency forward concy forward contracts to hedge certain forecastedo hedge certain forecasted
expenses denominated in foreign currencies, primarses denominated in foreign currencies, primari yly the E Suro and Singgapore Dollar. The Company har. The Company hedges future cashedges future cash
fflows for capital expenditures denominated in foreign cuws for capital expenditures denominated in foreign currencies, prima yrily the Euro. In addition, th Ce Company uses pay-any uses pay-
ffi /xed/recei fve-float interest rate swaps an yd cross-currency swaps to protect the Company against adverps to protect the Company against adver fse fluctuations in
interest rates and foreign currency rates and to reduce its exposure to variability in cash flows on the Comst rates and foreign currency rates and to reduce its exposure to variability in cash flows on the Company’s forecastedpany’s forecasted
ffloatingg-ra fte debts and foreigg yn currency- denominated debts. The Company also uses commodity forwaed debts. The Company also uses commodity forward contracts to
hedgg fe forecaste yd electricity consumptio fn to minimize the impact of commo ydity price movements on the reported earnings ofrice movements on the reported earnings of
the Company and on fue Company and on fu fture cash fl fows related to fluctuation fs of the contractually specifiede contractually specified, separately identifiable a, separately identifiable and
reliably yy measurable commodity risk component.

At the inception of the hedge relatAt the inception of the hedge relationship, the Company documents the rionship, the Company documents the relationship b g getween the hedging instrument and the
hedgge gd item along with i gts risk management objectives and its strategy for undertaking vat objectives and its strategy for undertaking va grious hedge transactions.
Furthermore, at the inception of the hedge, and on an ongoinrmore, at the inception of the hedge, and on an ongoing basis, the Company documents whether a hedgingg basis, the Company documents whether a hedging
relationship meets the hedgg ffe effectiveness requirem Sents under IFRS 9 and whether there continues to be an economic
relationship between the hedgg g ged item and the hedging instrument. The Company designates these conhe Company designates these contracts and swaps as

fcash flow hedges of forecasted expenses, capiges of forecasted expenses, capital expenditures or floating-rate anes or floating-rate and foreign currency denominated foreign currency denominated debts, as
applicable, and evaluates hedge effs hedge effectiveness prospectivelyy.

As such, the effectiAs such, the effective portion of the gain or loss oon of the gain or loss on these contracts and swaps is reported as a componen f OCt of OCI and
re fclassified to the consolidated statements off operations in the same line item as the associate fd forecast fed transaction for
expen gses and in the same period during which th ge hedged item affffects e garnings. For hedges of capital expenditures, ther hedges of capital expenditures, the
amoun Ot in OCI is incorporated into the initial carrying amounCI is incorporated into the initial carrying amounts off the non f-financial assets and depreciated over the ave grage
usefful life of the underlying assets. Any ineffl life of the underlying assets. Any ineffef ctive portion of hedgctive portion of hedg fes for expenses or capital expenditures is immediatelyy
record fed in the consolidated statements of operations.

gHedge accountingg is discontinued when the h g gedging instrument expires or is sold, terminated, or exercised, or when it no
longger meets the criteria for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognr meets the criteria for hedge accounting. Any gain or loss recognized in the cash flow hedge reserve remains in equityized in the cash flow hedge reserve remains in equity

GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
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and is recognized in the consolidated statements of operd is recognized in the consolidated statements of oper fations when the forecast transaction is ultima y gtely recognized in the
consolidated statements of ff operations. When a forecasted transaction is n go longer expected to occur, th ge gain or loss
a yccumulated in equity is re gcognized immediatelyy in the consolidated statemen fts of operations.

Derecognition of financial assetsDerecognition of financial assets

The Company derecognizes a financial asse Company derecognizes a financial ass yet only when the contr gactual rights to the ca f f fsh flows from the financial asset
expire f f, or when it transfers the financial asse yt and substantially all the risks and rewar f f fds of ownership of the financial asset
to another entity. On derecognition of a financiao another entity. On derecognition of a financial asset at amortized cost in its entirety, the difference between the asset’sty, the difference between the asset’s
carry gying amount and th fe sum of the consideration received and receivable i gs recognized in the consolidated statem fents of
operations.

On derecognition of an iOn derecognition of an investment in a debt instrume OC ffnt at FVOCI, the difference between the a y gsset’s carrying amount and
th fe sum of the con gsideration received and receivable and the cumulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCI isn recognized in OCI is
re gcognized in the consolid fated statements of opera gtions. However, on derecog fnition of an investm yent in an equity
instrument at FVOOCCI, the cu gmulative gain or loss that had been recognized in OCI is tad been recognized in OCI is t fransfe yrred directly to retained
earningg ys, without recycling gg through the consolidated statemen fts of operations.

Intanggible Assets gy—Technology, patent, sofftware licenses and similar rig yghts acquired separately are stated at cost or are
adjjusted t fo fair valu ge when impaired. Intangible assets acquired th grough business combinations which include customer
relationships and manufacturing and process techs and manufacturing and process tech gynology, are recor fded at estimated f fair values at the date of acquisition.
Intanggible assets are amortized based on the pattern in which the economic ben f fefits of the respective intanggible asset are

g gconsumed, which is in general on a straight-line basis over their estimate fd useful lives of between 3 and 10 yeaul lives of between 3 and 10 years. The
amortization peri fod and the amortization method for an intangible asset with a finite uangible asset with a finite u fseful l fife are reviewed at least at the
en fd of ea gch reporting period ff, with the effect of any changes if any changes in estimate being accounted for ong accounted for on a prospective basis.

I fmpairment of Non-Financial Assets—The Company r—The Company reviews, at each report ging date, the carrying amount of thte, the carrying amount of the
Company’s property, plant aCompany’s property, plant and equipment and finite lived intangible assets to detend finite lived intangible assets to determin ye whether there is any indication that
tho ffse assets have suffered an impairment loss.

If any indication exists, tf any indication exists, the recoverab fle amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent, if any, of theo determine the extent, if any, of the
impairment loss. Where it is not possibl fe to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual assets, the Company estiual assets, the Company estimates
the recoverable amount of the cash gmount of the cash generating unit (“CGU”) to which tg unit (“CGU”) to which t ghe asset belongs. The recoverable amount off an asset
or CGU is estimated to be the higher of an asser CGU is estimated to be the higher of an asse CG ft’s or CGU’s fair value less costs to dispose and its value in use. When the
carry gying a f CGmount of an asset or CGU exceeds its r CGecoverable amount, the asset or CGU is considered impaired and is
written down to its recoverable a Cmount. The Comp yany also evalua jtes, and adjusts iff appropriate, the asset’s usefful lives, at
ea gch reporting date or when impairment indicators exist.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future pon assessing value in use, the estimated future post-ta fx cash flows are discounted to their present value usi gng a post-tax
discount rate that r feflects current market assessments of the time value of money and thssments of the time value of money and the risks sp f fecific to the asset for

f fwhich the estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted. The Company bature cash flows have not been adjusted. The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed
budgge fts and forecast calcula ytions, which may include an approved formal five-year management plaroved formal five-year management pla f f CGn for each of the CGUs
to which the individual assets are allocated. In determining fmining fair value less costs to sell, recent market transactions are taken
into account. Iff no such transactions can be identiffied, an appropriate valuation model is used.

I gmpairment losses are recognized in t fhe consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) to theme (loss) to the
e fxtent of the recoverable amount, measured at the present val f fue of discounted cash flows attributable to the assets, is less
than their car y grying value.

Iff the recoverable amount subseque yntly increases, the impairment loss previo y gusly recognized will be reversed to the extent
of the increase in the recoverable amount, provided that the increased carrying amount does nf the increase in the recoverable amount, provided that the increased carrying amount does not excee y gd the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognized for the asseen recognized for the asse yt in prior years. The
impairment loss reversal is recoggni yzed immediately in the co fnsolidated statements of operations.

Provisions—Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of pastvisions are recognized when the Company has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
event fs; it is probable that an outflow off resources will be required to se gttle the obligation; and the amount has been r yeliably
estimated. Provisions are mainly made up of site restoration obligations, as well as restructuring chary made up of site restoration obligations, as well as restructuring chargges. The associated
site restoration costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the underlyisite restoration costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amount of the underlyi gng asset and depreciated over the
e fstimated useful life of the related long-fe of the related long-lived assets.

A provision fA provision fof g gr restructuring is recognized when the Company has approved a detd when the Company has approved a det failed and formaff l restructur ging plan, and
th ge restructuring either has commenced or has been anno y gunced publicly. Future operating losses are not p frovided for.

GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
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The Company records site Company records sit ge restoration obligations in the period in w yhich they are incurred at the f Sir estimated fair value. Site
restoration obligations consist of tstoration obligations consist of t fhe present value of the estim fated costs of dismantlement, removal, site reclamation and
similar act fivities associated with facilities built on land held under l gong- gterm operating leases. The site restora gtion obligations
ar ye recorded as a liability at th fe estimated present value as of the rela gted long-lived asset’s inception discounte gd using a
pre-ta fx rate that reflects the current market assessment of the time value of money and risks spent of the time value of money and risks sp fecific to the site restoration
obliggations. After initial recogns. After initial recognition y, the liability is incre fased for the passage of time, with thssage of time, with th ge increase being r feflected as
accretion expense in the lin “fe item “finance expenses” in the consolidated statemen fts of operations and comprehensive
income (loss). The associated site restoration costs are cacome (loss). The associated site restoration costs are capitalized as part of the carrying amopitalized as part of the carrying amount of the underlying assetunt of the underlying asset
an fd depreciated over the estimated useful lif ffe of the related lo gng-lived asset. Subsequent adjustments in the discount r. Subsequent adjustments in the discount rates,
e gstimated amounts, timing and probability of the estimated future cobility of the estimated future costs and changes resulting from the passage of time areanges resulting from the passage of time are
re gcognized as an increase or decrease i y gn the carrying amo funt of the li yability and the related site restoration cost capitalized
as par ft of the car yrying amount of the related long-lived asset og amount of the related long-lived asset on a prospective basis. If the decrease in the liability exceedssis. If the decrease in the liability exceeds
th g y ge remaining carrying amoun ft of the related lo gng-lived assets, t ghe excess is recognized in the consolidated statement fs of
operations.

Property, Plant and EquipmentProperty, Plant and Equipment C—Construction in p grogress, propertyy, plant and equipment are stated at historical cost, net
off accumulated depreciation. The assets’ residual va f flues and useful life are reviewe jd, and adj fusted if appropriate, at each
balan jce sheet date. Major additions and improvements are capitalized as appropriate, only when it is probable that falized as appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economi fc benefits associated with the item and the co fst of the item can be measured rel yiably; minor replacements and
repair gs are charged to the consolidated statements of operations. The Company also capitalizes interest on borrowints of operations. The Company also capitalizes interest on borrowi gngs
related to eligible capital expenditures. Capitalizeed to eligible capital expenditures. Capitalized interest is added to the cost of qualified assets and depreciated toge cost of qualified assets and depreciated together

Cwith that asset cost. The Co y g gmpany also records capital-related government grants, not subject to fbject to f forfefff iture, as a reduction to
prope yrty, plant and equipment.

g y gDepreciation generally begins when the asset is in the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating iny for it to be capable of operating in
the manner intended by management (available fy management (available for use). Depreciatior use). Depreciatifff on is calcu glated on a straight-line basis over the
e fstimated useful lif f ffe of the assets as follows:

Building and leasehold/land improvements Up to 26 years (or the remaining lease term of related land
on which the buildings are erected, if shorter)

Equipment 2 to 10 years
Computers 5 years

During the first quarter oDuring the first quarter of 2021f , we revised the estim f f fated useful life of certain production equipment and machinery fry frr om a
rangge of 5 to 8 years, to 1e of 5 to 8 years, to 0 years. We made this ch gange to bett fer reflect the expected pattern off economic b fenefit fs from the
u fse of the equipment and machinery over time, based on an analysis of production equipment’s current use, histery over time, based on an analysis of production equipment’s current use, hist gorical age
pattern fs, and future plans and technol gyogy roadmaps, as well as an analysis of industry trends and practices. The analysisl as an analysis of industry trends and practices. The analysis

fconcluded that an increase in useful lives w Cas warranted, and consistent with the Compa yny’s continui gng p fortfol f fio shift from
leadingg-edge to fea-edge to feature-rich trailing gg edg ge technologies. The change in estimated useful life is a change in acce change in estimated useful life is a change in acc gounting
estimate that was applied prospectively from January 1, 2021.ectively from January 1, 2021.

Leasingg C—The Company determines if ay determines if a gn arrangement is a lease or contains a lease at inception. Tha ft is, if the contract
yconveys the riggh ft to control the use of an identif ffied asset for a period of time in exchange for consideriod of time in exchange for consideration.

Right-of-use assetsRight-of-use assets—The Company recognizes rig—The Company recognizes right-off-use assets at the commencement date of the lease (i.e. the dt date of the lease (i.e. the date the
under ylying asset is available for use). Right-of-ug asset is available for use). Right-of-use assets are repor yted within property, plant and equipment, and are

ymeasured at cost, less any accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasuremd impairment losses, and adjusted for any remeasurem fent of lease
liabilities. The cost of right-of-use asses. The cost of right-of-use assets includes the am fount of lease liabilities recoggnized, initial direct costs incurred, and
lea yse payments made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Rights made at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives received. Righ ft-of-use assets are
depreciate gd on a straight-line basis over th fe shorter of the lease term and t f fhe estimated useful lives of the assets.

If ff ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term od asset transfers to the Company at the end of the lease term or the cost ref fflects the exercise of a
purchase option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of tng the estimated useful life of the asset.

Lease liabilities—At the commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the presente commencement date of the lease, the Company recognizes lease liabilities measured at the present
value of the lease paymenf the lease payments to be made over the lease term. Only leats to be made over the lease term. Only lea yse payments that ar fe fixed and determinable are

fconsidered at the time of commencement. The le yase payment includes fixed payments (including in-subcludes fixed payments (including in-subst fance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives, variable leayments) less any lease incentives, variable lea yse payments that depend on an index or a rate, and amounts expected to
b ge paid under residual value guarantees. The lease p yayments also incl fude the exercise price of a purchase option
reasona y ybly certain to be exercised by th Ce Company yy and payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if tf penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term
refflects the Company es the Company e gxercising the option to terminate. Variable lea yse payments that do not depend on an index or a rate
are recognized as expenses (unless they are incucognized as expenses (unless they are incurred to produce inventories) in the period in which the event or conditis) in the period in which the event or condition
tha gg yt triggers the payment occurs.
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I gn calculating the present value of lease paymene of lease payments, the Company uts, the Company uses its incremental borrowi gng rate at the lease
commencement date because the interest rate impli ycit in the lease is not readily determinab fle. After the commencement
date, the amou fnt of lea fse liabilities is increased to reflect th fe accretion of interest and reduced for the lease payments made.educed for the lease payments made.
In addition, the carrying amount of lease liabn addition, the carrying amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, ameasured if there is a modification, a change in the lease term, a

g ychange in the lease payments (e.gs (e.g., changes to fu, changes to fu yture payments resulting from a change in an index or rsulting from a change in an index or rate used to
deter ymine such lease payments) or a change its) or a change in the assessm fent of an option to purchase the under y glying assets.

The Company’s lease le Company’s lease liabilities a yre separately reported i f fn the consolidated statements of financial position u -nder non-
current portion of lease obligations and current pt portion of lease obligations and current portion of lease oblign of lease obligations.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assetsShort-term leases and leases of low-value assets—The Company ap—The Company applies the short-term lea gse recognition exemption to
leases that have a lease term not exceeding 12 months, or for leases of low-value assets. The payment for such leases isase term not exceeding 12 months, or for leases of low-value assets. The payment for such leases is
re gcognized in the Company’s consolidated statements of operationd in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations on a st graight-line basis over the lease term.

Earnings Per ShareEarnings Per Share—Basic earninggs per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) attributed by dividing the net income (loss) attributable to equi yty holders
of the Company by the weighted af the Company by the weighted a gverage numbe fr of ordi ynary shares outstandi g g yng during the year.

gDiluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) attribre is calculated by dividing the net income (loss) attributab yle to equity hold fers of the Company byhe Company by
th g ge weighted average number of ordinary shares outmber of ordinary shares outstanding, adjusted for the effects of all poanding, adjusted for the effects of all potential yly dilu ytive ordinary

g gshares. The weighted average number of ordinary shares of ordinary shares outstanding is increased by the number of additional ordinaryutstanding is increased by the number of additional ordinary
shares that would have been issued by the Company assuming exercise oshares that would have been issued by the Company assuming exercise off all options with exercise prices below the
average market price for the year.rage market price for the year.

G GGovernment Grants—Government g—Government grants are re gcognized when there is reasonable assurance t ghat the grant will be
received and all attached conditions will be co gmplied with. When the grant relates to an expense item or relates to
acquisitio fn of assets, it i gs recognized as d feferred income and released to the co fnsolidated statements of operations over the
period nece yssary to ma g ytch the grant on a systematic basis to the costs that it is intended to compensate and is presented as
a reduction off those costs. Where th ge grant relates to investment tax credits, it is recognized as a reduction in the basis oft is recognized as a reduction in the basis of
the asset and released as a reduction to depreciation expense in equal amounts over the exp f f fected useful life of the related
a G Csset. Grants the Companyy received are primari yly provided in connection with construction and operation of the Company’son and operation of the Company’s
manufacturing facilitiemanufacturing facilitie ys, employment, research and development.

CResearch and Development Costs—Research costs are expensed as incurre gd. Development costs are recognized as
intanggibl ye assets only when it is probable that expecte f fd future economic benefits, attributable to the development activities,
will accrue t Co the Companyy.

Borrowing CostsBorrowing Costs—Borrowing costs directly attributable to the construction phase of properrowing costs directly attributable to the construction phase of proper yty, plr ant and equipment are
capitalized as pa f frt of the cost of assets which are constructed by the Company and fd by the Company and for which a considff erable period off time
((at least six months) is planned for construction. Borrowing costs are capitalized from the start of construction until the dast six months) is planned for construction. Borrowing costs are capitalized from the start of construction until the date
the asset is ready for its inte asset is ready for its intended use. All other borrowing gg costs are recognized as an expense in the p yeriod in which they
are incurred.

CCurrent Income Tax C—Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to b fe recovered from
or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or

ysubstantively enacte yd by the balance sheet date.

Deferred Tax —Deferred Tax — Deferred income tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward of unused
tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilized except in
respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries, associates and interests in joint
ventures, deferred income tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the temporary differences will
reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary differences can be utilized.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be
utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.
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Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the year when the
asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
at the balance sheet date.

Recent Accountingg Pronouncements, Adopted:

Amendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark ReAmendments to IFRS 7, IFRS 9 and IAS 39 Interest Rate Benchmark Refform —

Phase 1 Amendments - On 1 January 2020, the Compan- On 1 January 2020, the Companyy adopted the Phase 1 amendments arising fsing from the Interbank
Offered Rate (“IBOOffered Rate (“IBOR”) reform amendments issued in S) reform amendments issued in September 2019, which provides temporary relief fromber 2019, which provides temporary relief fro ym applyi gng
specific hedge accounting requiremspecific hedge accounting requireme gnts to hedge relationships directly affected by IBOR reform, such ths directly affected by IBOR reform, such th ffat the effect is that
I O fBOR reform shou gld not genera ylly cause hedgg ge accounting to terminate.

Phase 2 Amendments - On 1 January 2- On 1 January 2021, the Company adopted the Phase 2 amendments arising from the I1, the Company adopted the Phase 2 amendments arising from the I O fBOR reform
i gssued in August 2020. The Phase 2 amendme fnts address issues that arise from the implemen f O ftation of the IBOR reform,
including the replacement of an interest rate benchcluding the replacement of an interest rate benchmark with an alternative benchmark rate. The key reliefs provirk rate. The key reliefs provided to the
Company are as fCompany are as foff llows:

• financial instruments measured at amortized cost are allowed to account for changes in the basis for determining
contractual cash flows as a direct consequence of the IBOR reform by updating the effective interest rate, provided
that the new basis is economically equivalent to the previous basis, such that there is no immediate gain or loss
recognized; and

• most IFRS 9 hedge relationships that are directly affected by the IBOR reform are allowed tf o continue.

The Company he Company has evaluated the extent to which its ca fsh flow hedg gging relati jonships are subject to uncertai y ynty driven by
I O f fBOR reform as of De Ccember 31, 2022. The C y gompany’s hedg g ged items and hedging instruments continue to be indexed to
th ffe Euro Interbank offered rate (“EUd rate (“EURI OBOR”) and th”) and the Lo Offndon Inter-bank Offered Rate (“d Rate (“LIBOOR”). These benchma). These benchmark rates
ar ye quoted each day and the IBOO fR cash flows are exch ganged with counterpartie Cs as usual. The Comp yany has also
eva fluated the extent to which contracts reference IBOO fR cash flows, and whether such contracts will need to be amended as
a re fsult of I OBOR refform. There has been communicati O fon about IBOR reform with the counterparties. However, no
amendments have been made to the Company’s ements have been made to the Company’s existi gng IBOOR- freferenced lo fan and derivative contracts as of December
31, 2022.

As of DecemAs of Decemb yer 31, 2022, there is still uncertainty about when and how r yeplacement may occur with respect to the relevant
hedgged items and hedggi gng instruments. Accordingly, the Companngly, the Company yy will continue to apply the Phase 1 amendments until the
uncertainty arising from the IBOR reform with respect tinty arising from the IBOR reform with respect to the timing and the amount of the timing and the amount of the underlying cash flows that thehe underlying cash flows that the
Company is expoCompany is expo gsed to is no longer present. Thi ys uncertainty will not end until the Company’s contracts that reference IBORhe Company’s contracts that reference IBOR
are amended to specify the alternative benchmark ratfy the alternative benchmark rate and the relevant adjustment, if alevant adjustment, if a yny. This will, in part, be dependent
o gn the negotiation with the counterparties and the introduction of ff fall-back clauses wh yich have yet to be added to the
Company’s contracts.Company’s contracts.

The Company has a limited exposue Company has a limited exposure to changes in the IBOR benchmark. The Come to changes in the IBOR benchmark. The Company has $795 million of interest ratepany has
swaps which are in a cash flow hedge relationship of USD Equipment Financing and USD Term Loan A. Also, the Company
has EUR $475 million of cross currency swaps which are in cash flow hedge relationships of EUR Equipment Fi gnancing and
EUR Term Loan A.

The table below indicates the nominal amount and weigghted averagge maturity of deurity of derivatives in hedg gging relationships that will
b ffe affected by IBOR refcted by IBOR ref form as finff ancial instrume fnts transition to risk-free rates, analy yyzed by interest rate basis. The
derivat g give hedging instruments provide a close approximation to the ext fent of the risk exp Cosure the Company gy manages
througg g gh hedging relationships.

As of December 31, 2022 Interest rate swaps (in millions USD) Currency Nominal
amount Maturity

Three-month LIBOR USD 19 2023
Three-month LIBOR USD 624 2024
Six-month LIBOR USD 152 2026
Total USD 795

Cross currency swaps (in millions Euro)
Three-month LIBOR EUR 83 2024
Six-month LIBOR EUR 335 2024
Six-month LIBOR EUR 57 2026
Total EUR 475

GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F-16



Recent Accountingg Pronouncements, Not Adopted:

Th Ce Companyy has not adopted the following new, revised or amt adopted the following new, revised or amended IF SRS standards that have been issued by the IASBt have been issued by the IASB
bu yt not ye fft effective:

• Disclosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 and IFRS Practice Statement 2) - Effective for annual
periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023;

• Definition of Accountintt g Estimates (Amendments to IAS 8) - Effective for annual periods bett ginning on or afterii
January 01, 2023;

• Defeff rred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction - Amendments to IAS 12 -i
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023;

• Non-current Liabilities with Covenants - Amendments to IAS 1 - EfII fective for annual periods beff ginning oii n or after
January 01, 2024; and

• Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback - Amendments to IFRS 16 - Effective for annual periods beginning on or
aftff er January 01, 2024.

As of the date the accompanying financial statements were authorized for issue, the Company continues to evaluate the
impact on its financial position and performance as a result of the initial adoption of the aforementioned standards or
interpretations and related applicable period. The Company does not anticipate the impacts of the standards effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 01, 2023 to have a material impact on the financial statements.

gRevenue Recognition—The Company derives revenue primarily from fabricating semiconductor wafers using the—The Company derives revenue primarily from fabricating semiconductor wafers using the
Company’s manufacturing pCompany’s manufacturing proce f Csses for the Com y ypany’s customers based on their own or third parties’ proprietary
int gegrated circuit designs and, to a lesser extent, from design, marcuit designs and, to a lesser extent, from design, ma g g gsk making, bumping, probing, asse ymbly and t gesting
services.

The Company recognizes revenue from contracts wite Company recognizes revenue from contracts with customers by applying the folloh customers by applying the following steps: (i) idewing steps: (i) identify the contractsntify the contracts
with the customers; (ii) identify perwith the customers; (ii) identify perfforr rmance obligations in the contracts; (iii) detmance obligations in the contracts; (iii) determine the transaction price; (iv) allocate then price; (iv) allocate the
transaction price t fo the performff ance obligations per the contracts; and (v) recognize revenue whce obligations per the contracts; and (v) recognize revenue when (or as) the enten (or as) the entity satisfity satisfies
a performance obligation.a performance obligation.

The majority of the Coe majority of the Company’s revenue is derived from conmpany’s revenue is derived from contracts with customers for wafer fabrication and engineering andth customers for wafer fabrication and engineering and
other pre-fabrication services such as rendering of non-recur pre-fabrication services such as rendering of non-recurring engineering (“NRE”) services anrring engineering (“NRE”) services and mask production. The
Company accounts for a contract wiCompany accounts for a contract with a customer when i ft has approval and commitment from part gies, the rights and
obliggation fs of the parties are identified, payments terms are itified, payments terms are ident fified, the contract has commercial substance, and
collectability of consideration is probable.collectability of consideration is probable.

The Company generally requires a pure Company generally requires a purcha f fse order from all of its customer Cs, to which the Com ypany responds with an order
acknowledgement and a copy of the Company’s standard termcknowledgement and a copy of the Company’s standard terms and conditions. The Company also enters into masters and conditions. The Company also enters into master

y gsupply agreements (“MSA”) witts (“MSA”) with certain off its customers that may specify additiots customers that may specify additional terms and co gnditions, such as pricing
ffof rmulas based on volume, volume discounts, calculation of yiels, calculation of yield adjustments, indemnificationd adjustments, indemnifications, tra fnsfer off title a fnd risk of
loss, an y gd payment terms. Under these agreements, volumes are usuallyy n got guaranteed. The Company also re Company also requires a
purchase orde fr fro S f fm its customers with which it has MSAs for specific products and quantities. As a result, the Company hase Company has

fconcluded that the combination of a purchase order and order ackno gwledgement, including the Company’s standard tuding the Company’s standard terms
and conditions, an S fd the MSA, if applicable, create enforceable rights and obligate enforceable rights and obligations between the Company and ietween the Company and its
customers.

As discussed in Note 4As discussed , a change in cancellation terms in certain wafer orders during thrtain wafer orders during th ye year ended December 31, 2020,
resulted in the Company no longer meeting the critern the Company no longer meeting the criteria to account for revenue recogia to account for revenue recogni ftion from contracts with customers
over time. As such, the Company recognizes revenue for such mr time. As such, the Company recognizes revenue for such m fodified waffer orders at the point at which con ftrol of the
f fwafers is transferred to the customer, which is determined to be at the p f foint of wafer shipme fnt fr Com the Company’s facilitiespany’s facilities

o yr delivery to the customer location.

The Company ee Company estimates the variable consideration related to volume rebates and yield adjustments for certain contnd yield adjustments for certain contracts that
may be refundable to customers thrmay be refundable to customers througg fh the issuance of a credit note, and accord g y gingly, recognizes revenue in accordance

fwith the pattern applicable to the performance obl gigation, subject to a constraint. The Cation, subject to a constraint. The Comp yany determines the amounts to
b ge recognized based on the amount of potential refund required by the con the amount of potential refund required by the contract, historical experi gence and other surrounding
ffact js and circumstances. These potential revenue adjustments are accrued and net gted against accounts receivable on the

f fconsolidated statements of financial position.

A contract asset (“unbilled accounts receivables”) is recognized when the Company has recognized revenue, but not iA contract asset (“unbilled accounts receivables”) is recognized when the Company has recognized revenue, but not issued
an invoice for paymen invoice for payme Cnt. The Companyy has determined that unbilled receivables are not considered a significanred a significant financingt financing
component of the Company’s cocomponent of the Company’s con Ctracts. Contra yct assets are included in receivables, prepayments and other assets and
tran fsferred to receivables when invoiced (See Nod to receivables when invoiced ( te 15).

GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F-17



A contract liability is recognized when the Company receives payments in advance of the satisfaction of performance
obligations and are included in deferred revenue on the consolidated statements of financial position (See Note 24).This
includes upfront non-refundable capacity access fees under certain long-term supply agreements with customers which are
accounted for as additional wafer price considerations and recognized as revenue upon satisfaction of performance
obligations for wafers over the expected term of the agreements.

CCosts to obtain a contract are incremental direct costs incurred to obtain a contract with a customer, includ ging sales
f Ccommissions, and are capitalized if material. Cost f fs to fulfill a contract include costs directlyy related to a contra fct or specific

anticipated contract (e.g., certain dicipated contract (e.g., certain design costs) thasign costs) tha gt generate or enhance the Company’s abiliance the Company’s abili yty to satisfy the Company’stisfy the Company’s
perfforr rmance o g ybligations under these contracts. These costs are capitalized to the extent they are expected to be recovered
ffrom the associated contract and are material.

Inven ytory Valuation—Inventories are stated at standard cost adjjusted to the lower off cost or net realizable value. The
Company measures the cost of its inventory based on a stanCompany measures the cost of its inventory based on a standard cost process with appropriate adjjustments for purchasingnts for purchasing
and manufacturing variances, which approximad manufacturing variances, which approxima gtes weighted ave grage cost.

Inventory yy allowances are made on an item-by-item b y gasis, except where it may be appropriate to group similar or related
items. An allowance i fs made for the estimated losses due to obsolescence based on exp fected future demand and market
conditions. Net realizable value is the estimated selli gng price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs ofy course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and the estimated costs nece yssary to make the sale.

SShare-based compensation S—Share-based compensation expense related to share awards is recognized based on the fairrds is recognized based on the fair
value of the awards granted. The fair value of each award is estimated on the grant date using the Blvalue of the awards granted. The fair value of each award is estimated on the grant date using the Bl Sack-Scholes option
pricing model for options and the Mog model for options and the Mon Cte Carlo simul fation model for the P ferforma Snce Share Units (“ts (“PSUs”). BoPSUs”). Both models
require managgement to make certain assumptio f fns of future expectations based on historical and curr Theent data.
assumptions include the expected term of the awards, expected volatility, dividend yield, and risk-free interest rate. The
expected term represents the amount of time that awards granted are expected to be outstanding, based on forecasted
exercise behavior. gThe option pricing model requires the input of highly subjectf highly subjective assumptions, includ ging the est fimated fair
value of the Company’s stock, expected term of the option, expectvalue of the Company’s stock, expected term of the option, expected volatility of ted volatility of the price of the Company’s shaf the Company’s sha fres, risk free
interest rate and the expected dividend yield of ordinary shares. Td yield of ordinary shares. The assumptions used to determi fne the fai fr value of the
option awards represen gt management’s best estimates. These estimates involve inherent uncertainties and the application
of management’s judgment. The Compaf management’s judgment. The Company estimates the expected forfeiture for options utilizing historical data, and only estimates the expected forfeiture for options utilizing historical data, and onlyy
re gcognizes expense when a defined liquidity event (change in control or IPOs expense when a defined liquidity event (change in control or IPO) is deemed probable on the n) is deemed probable on the n fumber of awards
that are expected to vest. After applying a forfeicted to vest. After applying a forfeiture est gimate during each reporting period for when the optting period for when the options are probable
of vestingf vesting C, the Company g gy recognizes expense on a graded attribution basi fs for each t franche of the award over the period
ffrom the grant date to the later of the one-year anniversary of estimated timm the grant date to the later of the one-year anniversary of estimated time following a liquidity event or the legal vestinge following a liquidity event or the legal vesting
dates (see Note 29).s (see

The grant date fair value of equity-e grant date fair value of equity-settled share-based p yayment award gs granted to e ymployee i gs recognized as an e ymployee
beneffit expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period of the awards, The amount recognit expense, with a corresponding increase in equity, over the vesting period of the awards, The amount recognized as
an expense is adjusted to reflected the number on expense is adjusted to reflected the number off a fwards for which the service and non-m farket performance conditions are
expe ycted to be met, such that the amount ultimately r gecognized a fs an expense is based on the number of awards that meet
the service and non-market pe frformance conditions at the vest ging dat ye. For share-based paym gent awards with non-vesting

gconditions, the gran f ft date fair value of the share-ba ysed payment is m feasured to reflect such conditions and there is n -o true-
u f ff fp for differences between expected and actual performance.

The principles of modification accounting are appe principles of modification accounting are applied when new share-based p y gayment is granted as a r feplacement for
another share-based payment that is cancelled. When modificatior share-based payment that is cancelled. When modificatio gn accounting is a ypplied, the entity accounts for anynts for any
incremental fair value in addition to the grant-date fair value of the origicremental fair value in addition to the grant-date fair value of the origi fnal award. In the case of a replacement, the
in fcremental fair value is th ffe differen f fce between the fair value of the replacement award an fd the net fai fr value of the
cancelled award, both measured at the date on which the replacement award is issue f fd. The net fair value is the fai fr value of
the cancelled award measured immediately beford award measured immediately befor y ye the cancellation, less any payment made to the empl yoyees on
cancellation.

A package of modifications mA package of modifications might include several changes to the terms of a granight include several changes to the terms of a grant, so f fme of which are favorable to the
employyee and some not. In the even fft the net effect is not beneficial to the employee, cat beneficial to the employee, ca gncellation accounting will be applied.
CCancellations or settlements of equity-setments of equity-settled share-ba ysed payments duri g gng the vesting period by the Company areiod by the Company are
a fccounted foff r as accelerated vesting; therefore, the amount that would othr as accelerated vesting; therefore, the amount that would oth gerwise have been recog fnized for services
received is recoggni yzed immediately.

Th f fe preparation of the consolidated financial statements in co fnformity with IFRS requires management to make judgments,ty with IFRS requires management to make judgments,
e ff fstimates and assumptions that affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of aunting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities,
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income and expenses as well as the disclosur fe of commitments and co gntingencies. Actual results may diffees. Actual results may diffe fr from these
e ffstimates and such difference ys may be material to the consolidate fd financial statements.

Enterprise Value G—Given the ab fsence of a public tr gading marke f Ct of the Compa yny’s or ydinary shares prior to the initial public
offering, and in accordance with thffering, and in accordance with the American Institut f C fe of Certified Public Accountants Practi fce Aid, Valuation of Privately-ivately-
Held Company Equity SecuritieHeld Company Equity Securitie Cs Issued as Compensation, the Company’s bohe Company’s bo fard of directors exercised reasonable
jjudggment and considered numerous objjb ective and subjective factors to detve and subjective factors to determi f f fne the best estimate of the fair value of the
Company’s ordinary shares at eCompany’s ordinary shares at ea gch grant date. Th fese factors include:

• valuations of the Company’s ordinary shares pevaluations of the Company’s ordinary shares performed by independent third-party spformed by independent third-party spr ecialists;

• la fck of marketability of the Company’s orty of the Company’s ordi ynary shares;

• the Company’s actual operating and financial pee Company’s actual operating and financial perfformance;

• current business conditio jns and projections;

• hiring of key personnel and the experience of the Company’s management;g of key personnel and the experience of the Company’s management;

• the history of the Company and the introduction oe history of the Company and the introduction off new products;

• the Company’s stage of development;e Company’s stage of development;

• the market perfforman fce of comparable publi ycly traded companies; and

• the U.S. and global capital market conde U.S. and global capital market conditions.

In valuing the Company’s ordinary shares, management determined the equity value of tn valuing the Company’s ordinary shares, management determined the equity value of the Company’s business usinghe Company’s business using
various valuation methods including combinations of income and market approaches. The inon methods including combinations of income and market approaches. The income approach estimates value
ba f fsed on the expectation of future cash flows that a company will generate. These future cash flows are diure cash flows that a company will generate. These future cash flows are discounted to their
present values using a discount rate derived from an analysis of the cost ot values using a discount rate derived from an analysis of the cost off cap fital of comparable p yublicly traded companies
in the Company’s industry or similar business on the Company’s industry or similar business operations as of each valuation date and is adjusted to reflect the risksperations as of each valuation date and is adjusted to reflect the risks
inherent in the Company’s cat in the Company’s cash flows. For the market approach, the Company reviews thsh flows. For the market approach, the Company reviews the perf fformance of a ser t of guidelinet of guideline

gcomparable public companies, and considers the guideli fne companies’ various financial characteristics, inclu gding size,
proffitabilityy, balance sheet strength, and diversification as compared to trength, and diversification as compared to the Company. She Company. Subsequ O fent to IPO, the fai fr value of
th ye ordinary shares is determined based on market share price.

Application of these approaApplication of these approaches involve fs the use of e jstimates, judggment, and assumptions that are hig yghly complex and
j g gsubjective, such as those regarding t Che Companyy’s e fxpected future revenue, expenses, an fd future ca fsh flows, discount

rate fs, market multiples, and the selection of comparable companies. Changes in aarable companies. Changes in a yny or al fl of these estimates and
assumptions or the relation Cships between those assumptions impact the Comp yany’s valuation fs as of each valuation date
an yd may have a material impact on the valuation of the Companyation of the Company y’s ordinary shares.

I fmpairment Assessment of Non-Financial Assets—Impairment exists when the carrying value of an asset or Cying value of an asset or CGGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, which is the higher of itt, which is the higher of it fs fair value less cost f fs of disposal and its value in use. The fair value
less costs to sell calculation is based on a discounted cash flow analysis thsh flow analysis that a pote yntial buyer would perform in determiningform in determining

f CGa transaction value of the CGU less incremental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculatimental costs for disposing of the asset. The value in use calculation is based on a
di fscounted cash flow model. When preparingg the discounted cash flow analysis, the Company mted cash flow analysis, the Company m j j gakes subjective judgments
in determining the independent cash flows that can determining the independent cash flows that ca f CGn be related to a specific CGU based on i gts asset usage model and
manufacturing capabmanufacturing capabilities in addition to the discount rate used in the analyysis. In addition, becau j j gse subjective judgments
are made regarding the remaining usefe made regarding the remaining useful lives off assets and e fxpected future revenue and expenses associated with the
a gssets, changes in these estima gtes based on changes in economic conditions or business strateggies could result in material
impairment charges in future periods.mpairment charges in future periods.

Inco f fme Taxes and Realization of Deferred Income Tax Asset—In determining taxable income for financial statementn determining taxable income for financial statement
reporti g g j gng purposes, management makes certain estimates and judgme fnts specific to taxation issues. These estimates and
jjudggments are applied in the calculation of certain tax liabilities and in the determination of the recoverability of deferrts are applied in the calculation of certain tax liabilities and in the determination of the recoverability of deferred tax
assets, wh fich arise from te ymporary difffferences between the recognition of assets and liween the recognition of assets and li fabilities for income ta fx and financial

gstatement reporting purposes.

fDeferred taxes are recoggnized for unused losses, among other factod for unused losses, among other factors, to the extent tha ft it is probable that taxable profit will
b ge available against which the losses can be utilized.

This evaluation requires the exercise of judgment wis the exercise of judgment wi gth respect to, among other things, benefits that cor things, benefits that could be reali fzed from
available tax strategies and futurle tax strategies and future taxable income, as well as other positive and negative fr positive and negative factors. The ultimf fate realization of
defferred ta gx assets is dependent upon, among other things, the Cher things, the Comp yany’s ability gy to gener fate future taxable income that is
ffsufficient to utilize loss carry-frry-fof r fwards or tax credits befrr Core their expiration or the Comfff y ypany’s ability to implement prudent

and feasible tax planning strategies.d feasible tax planning strategies.
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If ff estimates of pr jojected future taxable income and benefits from available tax strategies arcted future taxable income and benefits from available tax strategies are reduced as a result of a changeesult of a change
in the assessment o fr due to other factors, or if changes is, or if changes in current tax r gegulations are enacted that impose restrictions on the
timingg or extent of the Company’s ability to uf the Company’s ability to u gtilize net operating losses and tax credit ca yrry-fforwards in t fhe future, the
Company may be requCompany may be required to reduce the amou fnt of total deferred tax assets resulting in a decreotal deferred tax assets resulting in a decre fase of total assets. Likewise,
a changge in the tax rates applicable in the var jious jurisdictio f fns or unfavorable outcomes of a yny o g gngoing tax audits could
have a materia fl impact on the future tax provisio gns in the periods in which these changes could occur.

In addition, the calcul fation of tax liabilities involves dealingg with uncertainties in the application off complex tax rules and the
potential for future adjustment of uncertain tl for future adjustment of uncertain tax positions byy the tax authorities in the countries in which the Companys in the countries in which the Company
operate f fs. If estimates of these taxe gs are greater or less than actual results, an additional tax benefit or charge may result.efit or charge may result.

Changes in estimates—We regularly assess the estimated useful live— s of our property, plant, and equipment. Based on our
assessment of the longer product life cycles, the versatility of production equipment to provide better flexibility to meet
changes in customer demands, and the ability to re-use production equipment over several technology cycles, we revised
the estimated useful lives of our 200mm and 300mm production equipment from 5 and 8 years, respectively, to 10 years,
beginning the first quarter of 2021. As a result, this benefited loss before income taxes by approximately $628 million for the
year ended December 31, 2021. This change increased the Company’s total basic and diluted earnings per share by
approximately $1.24 for the year ended December 31, 2021.

4. Net Revenue

The following table presents the Company’s revenue disaggregated based on revenue source and timing of revenue
recognition. The Company believes these categories best depict how the nature and timing of revenue.

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Type of goods and services:yp g
Wafer fabrication $ 7,627 $ 6,204 $ 4,440
Engineering and other pre-fabrication services 481 381 411

$ 8,108 $ 6,585 $ 4,851

Timing of revenue recognition:g g
Revenue recognized over time $ 445 $ 357 $ 4,228
Revenue recognized at a point in time 7,663 6,228 623

$ 8 $ 6,585 $ 4,851,108

During the year ended December 31, 2020, due to operational and commercial reasons, the Company modified the
cancellation terms of its contracts with customers that are applicable to wafer fabrication products.

As a result, the Company no longer has an enforceable right to payment covering cost incurred plus a reasonable profit
margin for work completed to date when a customer cancels its wafers purchase order at any stage of production. The
change was effective to all wafer outstanding purchase orders as at the date of contract modification and future purchase
orders thereafter. The contract modification had no impact on the originally agreed wafer volume, the related wafer price,
and other terms and conditions of its existing contracts with customers. Likewise, the modification did not have an impact to
its contracts to provide NRE services to the customers’ specifications; therefore, the Company continuously recognizes
revenue as it delivers the NRE service as a percentage of costs incurred over total expected costs. Prior to the contract
modification, the Company satisfied its perfoff rmance obligations over time because of the customer’s contractual obligation
to pay for work completed to date with a reasonable profit. The change in cancellation terms substantively modified the
contracts with customers. As a result, the Company no longer meets the criteria to account for revenue recognition from
contracts with customers over time on the outstanding purchase orders at the contract modification date and future orders
thereafter. Consequently, the Company recognizes revenue on the impacted outstanding wafers orders and future orders at
the point at which control of the wafers is transferred to the customer, which is determined to be at the point of wafer
shipment from the Company’s facilities or delivery to the customer location, as determined by the agreed shipping terms.

In 2020, the Company recognized a cumulative decrease in revenue of $315 million and a corresponding decrease in
unbilled accounts receivable, and a cumulative decrease in cost of revenue of $226 million and a corresponding increase in
inventories, with a net decrease in gross margin of $60 million on the impacted outstanding purchase orders on the date of
contract modification.
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5. Cost of Revenue

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Depreciation of PPE and amortization of intangible assets (1) $ 1,468 $ 1,422 $ 2,187
Inventory changes and materials costs and other 1,834 1,726 1,187
Staff costs, maintenance costs, and utilities(2) 2,567 2,424 2,189

$ 5,869 $ 5,572 $ 5,563

(1) Amounts are net of amortization of government grants relating to assets. See Note 12 for the detailed movements of property,
plant and equipment.

(2) Staff costs, maintenance costs, and utilities costs include share-based compensation of $64 million, $55 million and $0 for
share options for the year ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

6. Research and Development Expenses

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Staff costs, maintenance costs, and utilities(1) $ 247 $ 257 $ 230
Depreciation of PPE and amortization of intangible assets 110 147 220
Other (2) 125 74 26

$ 482 $ 478 $ 476

(1) Staff costs, maintenance costs, and utilities costs include share-based compensation of $27 million, $22 million and $0 for
share options for the year ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

(2) Other primarily includes material costs and net (income) expenses related to research funding agreements and wafer, labor,
software license costs allocated (to) and from cost of revenue.

7. Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Staff costs, maintenance costs, and utilities (1) $ 417 $ 537 $ 340
Depreciation of PPE and amortization of intangible assets 45 49 115
Other (2) 34 9 (10)

$ 496 $ 595 $ 445

(1) Staff costs, maintenance costs, and utilities costs include share-based payments of $92 million, $152 million and $1 million for
share options for the year ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. See Note 3 for further discussion on the
timing of expense recognition.

(2) Other primarily includes net professional charges, marketing expenses and facility costs. Real estate transfer taxes are also
included in Other.

8. Restructuring

In the fourth quarter 2022, the Company’s management approved and commenced a restructuring plan aimed to realign the
Company’s business and strategic priorities. This worldwide restructuring plan included a reduction in the number of full-time
employees, as well as a reduction in leased workspaces and engagement of consultants for strategic support.

The Company incurred $94million of restructuring charges in 2022 which includes $3 million of accelerated share-based
compensation expense. These expenses are included in restructuring charges in the Company’s consolidated statements of
operations, and unpaid amounts are included in provisions within current liabilities on the consolidated statements of
financial position. The accelerated share-based compensation of $3 million impacted equity.

The changes to the restructuring provisions recorded on the consolidated statements of financial position as of December
31, 2022, are summarized as follows:

(in millions) 2022

Beginning balance as of December 31, 2021 —

Provision $ 91

Amounts paid $ (5)

Ending balance as of December 31, 2022 $ 86
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The actual costs that the Company will incur may differ from these estimates based on the timing required to complete the
restructuring plan, the number of people invoiced and the final termination benefits. The Company expects to complete the
restructuring initiative over the next twelve months.

9. Finance Expenses

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Interest on long-term debt $ 69 $ 72 $ 98
Interest on lease obligations 23 27 35
Commitment fees and amortization of debt issuance costs 13 12 18
Accretion costs and other 6 3 3
Total finance expenses $ 111 $ 114 $ 154

10. Gain on Sale of a Business

In April 2019, the Company entered into an Asset Purchase Agreement with Semiconductor Components Industries, LLC
(“ON Semiconductor”) pursuant to which the Company agreed to transfer substantially all the assets and employees related
to our East Fishkill (“EFK”) business. On December 31, 2022, the Company completed the sale of the EFK business for a
total purchase price of $406 million, of which $170 million was received in prior years, and the remaining $236 million
received in January 2023. The Company recognized a gain upon the completion of the sale amounting to $403 million after
derecognition of net liabilities of $9 million.

The following is the breakdown of the net liabilities that were derecognized:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
Property, plant and equipment $ 83
Inventories 43
Total Assets 126
Lease liabilities (47)
Other current and non-current liabilities (88)
Total Liabilities (135)
Net Liabilities $ (9)

11. Other Income (Expense), Net

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Gain on legal settlement(1) $ — $ — $ 294
Gain on remeasurement of existing equity interests — — 38
Other(2) $ 22 (8) 110
Total other income (expense), net $ 22 $ (8) $ 442

(1) On April 10, 2020, under the terms of a settlement agreement, the Company received a settlement and recorded total gains of
$294 million related to this settlement for the year ended December 31, 2020.

(2) Relates primarily to share of profits of joint ventures, gains and losses related to hedging activities and gains on the sales of
property, plant and equipment and intangible assets.
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12. Property, Plant And Equipment

(in millions)

Land and
Land

Improvements

Building and
Leasehold

Improvements Equipment Computer
Construction
in Progress Total

Cost
As of December 31, 2020 $ 104 $ 7,441 $ 22,039 $ 411 $ 451 $ 30,446
Additions(1) 26 71 33 1 1,794 1,925
Transfers from construction in
progress — 116 677 28 (821) —
Disposals — (46) (371) (5) (1) (423)
Effects of exchange rate
changes — (6) (28) — — (34)
As of December 31, 2021 130 7,576 22,350 435 1,423 31,914
Additions(1) — 67 27 — 3,564 3,658
Transfers from construction in
progress 1 409 935 21 (1,366) —
Disposals (8) (182) (725) (17) (237) (1,169)
Effect of exchange rate
changes (1) (3) (18) — — (22)
As of December 31, 2022 $ 122 $ 7,867 $ 22,569 $ 439 $ 3,384 $ 34,381
Accumulated Depreciation
and Impairment
As of December 31, 2020 $ 31 $ 3,866 $ 17,952 $ 364 $ 7 $ 22,220
Additions(1) 6 444 936 25 — 1,411
Disposals — (44) (362) (5) — (411)
Effects of exchange rate
changes — — (19) — — (19)
As of December 31, 2021 $ 37 $ 4,266 $ 18,507 $ 384 $ 7 $ 23,201
Additions(1) 6 443 975 23 — 1,447
Disposals (4) (164) (674) (16) — (858)
Effect of exchange rate
changes — (1) (4) — — (5)
As of December 31, 2022 $ 39 $ 4,544 $ 18,804 $ 391 $ 7 $ 23,785

Net book value as of
December 31, 2021 $ 93 $ 3,310 $ 3,843 $ 51 $ 1,416 $ 8,713

Net book value as of
December 31, 2022 $ 83 $ 3,323 $ 3,765 $ 48 $ 3,377 $ 10,596

(1) The Company earned investment tax credits related to the Company’s construction of a wafer fabrication facility in Saratoga
County, New York (which were netted against additions relating to Building and Leasehold Improvements and Equipment).
These credits were generally earned based on when the related assets were placed in service. The Comrr pany recorded the
investment tax credits as a reduction of property and equipment costs. As of December 31, 2022, and 2021, the investment tax
credits included in property and equipment amounted to $179 million and $214 million, respectively.

The gross amount of assets recorded under right-of-use (“ROU”) leases, which are included in property, plant and
equipment amounted to $888 million and $907 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. The net carrying
value of ROU leases amounted to $282 million and $305 milliod $305 n as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.
Amortization of ROU assets is included in depreciation expense. Depreciation expense for the years ended December 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020 for all ROU assets was $82 million, $81 million and $57 million respectively.
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Depreciation expenses on property, plant and equipment are as follows:

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Cost of revenue $ 1,309$ 1,377 $ 2,087
Research and development expenses 40 73 121
Selling, general and administrative expenses 30 29 30
Total $ 1,447 $ 1,411 $ 2,238

13. Goodwill and Intangible Assets

ost (in millions)

Technology,
Licenses and
Similar Rights Software Patents Goodwill Others Total

As of December 31,
2020 $ 1,249 $ 280 $ 234 $ 18 $ 132 $ 1,913
Additions 33 4 — — — 37
Disposals (80) — (5) — — (85)
As of December 31,
2021 1,202 284 229 18 132 1,865
Additions 62 96 — — 5 163
Disposals (47) (12) (3) — — (62)
As of December 31,
2022 $ 1,217 $ 368 $ 226 $ 18 $ 137 $ 1,966

Accumulated
Amortization
As of December 31,
2020 $ 785 $ 263 $ 186 $ — $ 131 $ 1,365
Additions 162 15 30 — — 207
Disposals (80) — (4) — — (84)
As of December 31,
2021 867 278 212 — 131 1,488
Additions 150 10 16 — — 176
Disposals (46) (12) (3) — — (61)
As of December 31,
2022 $ 971 $ 276 $ 225 $ — $ 131 $ 1,603

Net book value as of
December 31, 2021 $ 335 $ 6 $ 17 $ 18 $ 1 $ 377

Net book value as of
December 31, 2022 $ 246 $ 92 $ 1 $ 18 $ 6 $ 363

Amortization expenses on intangible assets are as follff ows:

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Cost of revenue $ 91 $ 113 $ 100
Research and development expenses 70 74 99
Selling, general and administrative expenses 15 20 85
Total $ 176 $ 207 $ 284

14. Income Taxes

For tax reporting purposes, the Company consolidates its entities under GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc., a Cayman Islands entity
as described in Note 1. Accordingly, the Company has presented the domestic portion of the disclosures below based on its
country of domicile in the Cayman Islands.

As a Cayman Islands corporation, the Company’s domestic statutory income tax rate is 0.00%. The difference between the
Company’s domestic statutory income tax rate and its (provision) benefit for income taxes is due to the effect of the tax rates
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in the other jurisdictions in which the Company operates. Principally, for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, the
Company is subject to United States’ federal and state taxes with a combined statu ytory t f % %ax rate of 22.1% and 22.1%,
respectively; German corporactively; German corporation and trade taxes with a combined statutory tax rate of 31.6%; and Sinry tax rate of 31.6%; and Sing ygapore’s statutory tax
rate of 17%.te of 17%

Income tax benefit (expense) consisted of the following:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
Current income tax expense:

Current income tax benefit (expense) $ (14) $ 2 $ (29)
Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous year (5) (1) —

Deferred tax
Net operating and investment allowance carryforwardsff (44) (78) 35
Currency effect on non-monetary assets of subsidiary (12) (37) 43
Other change in temporary differences (11) 36 (37)

Income tax benefit (expense) reported in the consolidated
statements of operations $ (86) $ (78) $ 12

A reconciliation between tax benefit and accounting profit multiplied by the Company’s statutory rate of 0.0% is as follows:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
Income (Loss) before income taxes $ 1,532 $ (176) $ (1,365)
Tax at Enacted Statutory Rate $ — $ — $ —
Foreign tax rate differential (98) (75) 59
Adjustments in respect to current income tax of previous years (5) (1) —
Government grants exempt from tax 7 5 13
Deductible expense for tax purpose — (1) (8)
Impact of unrecognized deferred tax assets 57 9 (63)
Non-deductible expenses for tax purposes (21) (4) —
Effects of foreign exchange gains (loss) (14) (22) 40
Impact of change in liability for uncertain tax positions 1 7 9
Withholding Tax (11) — (34)
Other effects (2) 4 (4)
Income tax benefit (expense) $ (86) $ (78) $ 12
Effective income tax rate (5.6)% 44.3 % (0.9)%

( )( ) ( )( )

The Company has determined that it is probable that 100% of deferred tax assets can be realized in Singapore. The
Company has determined that realization of deferred taxes associated with loss carryforwards is limited to reserves for
uncertain tax positions in the United States that would generate future taxable income, and deferred tax assets resulting
from consolidation of AMTC and BAC.

In 2020, Singapore recorded a tax benefit of $64 million (included under “Foreign tax rate differential” of $59 million) relating
to a revaluation of deferred tax liabilities after satisfying investment conditions necessary for an extension of a lower tax rate
incentive during the year. The conditions that were required for the reduced tax rate related to fixed asset investment,
increased wafer production, targeted research projects, and increased employment.

In 2020, the Company recorded withholding tax amounting to $34 million, triggered primarily from a legal settlement.
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Components of the Company’s deferred tax assets and liabilities are attributable as follows:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment $ (18) $ (458)
Losses, credits and investment allowances available for offsetting against future taxable
income 277 394
Accrued expenses 16 349
Inventory 1 65
Other comprehensive income (8) —
Currency effect — (8)
Deferred income — 10
Other (2) (1)
Net deferred tax assets $ 266 $ 351

The net deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2022 have been adjusted to reflect a change in classification methodology
primarily impacting accrued expenses and accelerated depreciation on property, plant and equipment. There is no change to
presentation for balances as of December 31, 2021.

The classification of the net deferred tax assets (liabilities) in the statements of financial position is as follows:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021

Deferred tax assets $ 292 $ 353

Deferred tax liabilities(1) (26) (2)

Net deferred tax assets $ 266 $ 351

(1) Included in Other non-current liabilities in the statements of financial position.

Total unrecognized deferred tax assets as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 w $ $as $3,708 million and $3,355 million,
respectively. The Company does not anticipate any significant chctively. The Company does not anticipate any significant changes to the total amounts of unrecognized deferred taxanges to the total amounts of unrecognized deferred tax
assets within the next 12 months of the reporting dassets within the next 12 months of the reporting da fte. Deferred tax assets have not been re gcognized in respect to these
items becau f fse it is not probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the Company can utilize tgainst which the Company can utilize the
beneffits.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the CoAs of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Co ympany has accumulate Gd corporate losses in Germany of $1,132 million andny of $1,132 million and
$$1,182 million, respectively, and trade tax losses in Germany of $851 million and $898 million, r2 million, respectively, and trade tax losses in Germany of $851 million and $898 million, respectively. Except for a fullyespectively. Except for a fully
deductible base amount, utilizatio f Gn of Germ gan net operating loss carryforryforwarr rds is limited to 60%of taxable income in anyted to 60%of taxable income in any
one year. German net operating losses de year. German net operating losses do not expire with the passage of time, bo not expire with the passage of time, but may forfeit partut may forfeit partial yly or compl yetely as a
result of legal entity restrut of legal entity restru gcturings.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has unutilized capital allowances on the property and equipment held in
Singapore of $Singapore of $713 million and $1,169 million, respectively, and unutilized tax losses available for carryforward of $58 million3 million and $1,169 million, respectively, and unutilized tax losses available for carryforward of $58 million
and $58 million, respectively. Under Singapore tax law, unud $58 million, respectively. Under Singapore tax law, unutilized capital allowances and unutilized tax losses are
deductibl fe to the extent of income available. Unutilized capital allowances and unu ftilized tax losses can be carried forward
indeffinitely jy subject to compliance with the conditions that there is no substant gial change in shareh golders and no change in
the Company’s principal ae Company’s principal activities, where applicable. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company hctivities, where applicable. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has investment
allowan f $ $ces of $843 million and $843 million, respectively in Siectively in Si gngapore which can b fe carried f forward indefinfff yitely. These
carryforward tax atyforward tax attributes have been fully recognized as deferred ttributes have been fully recognized ax assets.

As of December 31, 2As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company ha2 and 2021, the Company has gross operating loss carryforwars gross operating loss carryforwards in the Unit Sed State f $s of $7,307
million an $d $8,066 million, respectively; $5,7ctively; $5,762 million wil yl expire in year 2029s through 2037ugh f. As of December 31, 2022 and
2021, the Company has $822 million and $8he Company has $822 million and $854 million, respectively of Cal4 million, respectively of California gross opfornia gross operati gng loss carryfyforwards and, inff
the other states in which it op g gerates, it has gross operating loss carryforwards of $885 million and $963 million, respectiveloss carryforwards of $885 million and $963 million, respectivelyy.
The state carryforwards expire bee state carryforwards expire begginningg in 2023. In addit Cion, the Company has U.Spany has U.S. research and development tax credit
carryforwards of $157 million and $146 million for the years Dyforwards of $157 million and $146 million for the years December 31, 2022 and 2021, re yspectively, that will expire in
yyears 2030 th grough 2042. The Company has California research and development tax cre. The Company has California research and development tax cre f $ $dits of $17 million and $15 million
a fs of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectivelyy, that do not expire. In addition, the Company has non, the Company has nonreffundable New York
Empire Zone credit carryforwardEmpire Zone credit carryforward f $s of $ $1,115 million and $1, f115 million as of December 31, 2022 and 2 y021, respectively, that
do not expire. Five other states have research and de Cvelopment tax credits, Texas, Minnesota, Vermont, North Carolina, and
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New Jersey for which the Company has carsey for which the Company has calculated a total credit carryforculated a total credit carryforwarr rd of $8 million and $8 million for the yearsrd of $8 million and $8 million for the years
December 31, 2022 and 2021 y, respectively. These credits have a carryforward that expirese credits have a carryforward that expire betwe gen 2030 through 2042.
These carryforward ase carryforward attributes have not been recognized as deferred tax assetutes have not been recognized as deferred tax assets.

At December 31, 2022 and 202 f1, no deferred tax liabilities were recorde fd for taxes that would be paff yyable on the
undistributed earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries. It is the Company’s intention to indefinitely reinvest the undistributeded earnings of the Company’s subsidiaries. It is the Company’s intention to indefinitely reinvest the undistributed
earningg f fs of its fore gign subsidiaries. Th ye cash that is permanently r y yeinvested is typically used to expand operations.

A reconciliation of deferred taxes, net is as follows:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021

Beginning balance $ 351 $ 435
Tax expense recognized to consolidated statements of operations (67) (79)
Tax benefit (expense) recognized to other comprehensive income (loss) (18) 3
Uncertain tax positions and others — (8)
Ending balance $ 266 $ 351

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s current tax receivables were $$1 million and $0, respectively, relation and $0, respe ed to
its subsidiaries in Europe.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s currf December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company’s current income tax payable of $ent income tax payable of $ $14 million and $14 million, respective yly,
is compose f $ $d of $2 million, $3 milli $ $ $ $ fon, $9 million and $2 million, $3 million, $9 million for entities incorporated in Europe, the

S /United States/Cayman Islands aCayman Islands and Singaporend Singapore, respectivelyy. The current income tax payyable amounts include the followinge following
uncerta $ S f $ fin tax provisions: $0 in the United States for December 31, 2022 and $0 for December 31, 202 $ $1; $8 million and $9
million in Singamillion in Singapore for December 31, 2022 and 2ore for 021; $3 million and $0 in Europe for December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively, foctively, for exposure arising from unr exposure arising from unutilized capital allowances and domestic related partyy transactions. Europe had no
current income taxable amounts included in uncertain tax provisio fns for either December 31, 2022 or 2021.

15. Receivables, Prepayments and Other Assets

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Current:
Trade receivables, other than related parties(1) $ 824 $ 872
Other receivables 497 238
Unbilled accounts receivable(2) 24 43
Receivables from government grant 52 47
Receivables from related parties (Note 28) 11 8
Other current financial assets 79 23
Total $ 1,487 $ 1,231
Non-current:
Advances to suppliers(3) 235 199
Non-trade receivables 10 13
Payment in Lieu of Tax (“PILOT”’) Bonds 11 8
Other 25 34
Total $ 281 $ 254

(1) The Company’s trade receivables, other than related parties, are all classified as current and are expected to be collected within
one year. The Company’s provision for sales returns was not material for either for the years ended December 31, 2022 or 2021.
See the table below for the aging of the Company’s trade receivables, other than related parties.

(2) Unbilled accounts receivable represents amounts recognized on revenue contracts less associated advances and
progress billings. These amounts will be billed in accordance with the agreed-upon contractual terms or upon shipment of
products or rendering services.

(3) Primarily represents advances to supplier to offset against future purchases.
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The following table presents the activities in unbilled accounts receivable as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Beginning balance $ 43 $ 62
Revenue recognized during the year 87 44
Amounts invoiced (106) (69)
Other — 6
Ending balance $ 24 $ 43

The following table presents the aging of accounts receivable as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Receivables neither past due nor impaired $ 708 $ 830
Receivables past due—not impaired individually:
Less than 30 days 83 41
31 to 60 days 22 —
61 to 90 days 11 —
90 to 120 days — 1

$ 824 $ 872

16. Inventories

The Company records inventories at the lower of cost or net realizable value for finished goods, work-in-progress, raw
materials, and supplies. The Company makes inventory write-downs on an item-by-item basis, except where it may be
appropriate to group similar or related items.

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Work in progress $ 1,079 $ 961

Raw materials and supplies 375 260

Inventory reserves (115) (100)
Total $ 1,339 $ 1,121

The following table presents the movement in the inventory reserves:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Beginning balance $ 100 $ 243
Additions(1) 88 126
Written-off and scrapped (35) (29)
Elimination of reserves upon sale of inventory (38) (240)
Ending balance $ 100$ 115

(1) This includes additional inventory reserve of $26 million arising from the adjustment to cost of revenue recorded by the Company
in 2021 in conjunction with the modification of its customer contracts as discussed in Note 4.
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The foff llowing table presents the fair values and locations of these derivative instruments recorded in the consolidated
statements of financial position:

Fair Value of Derivative Instruments
Assets Derivatives Liabilities Derivatives

(in millions)
Statement of
Financial
Position
Location Fair Value

Statement of
Financial
Position
Location Fair Value

As of December 31, 2021:
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
- foreign currency forward contracts Other current

financial assets $ 6
Other current
financial liabilities $ (46)

- interest rate swaps Other non-current
financial assets

Other non-current
financial liabilities (8)

- cross currency swaps Other non-current
financial assets —

Other non-current
financial liabilities (8)

- commodity hedge Other current
financial assets 14

Other current
financial liabilities (1)

Other non-current
financial assets 2

Other non-current
financial liabilities (1)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
- foreign currency forward contracts Other current

financial assets 3
Other current
financial liabilities (2)

Total derivatives $ 25 $ (66)
As of December 31, 2022:
Derivatives designated as hedging instruments
- foreign currency forward contracts Other current

financial assets $ 69
Other current
financial liabilities $ (52)

Other non-current
financial assets 3

- interest rate swaps Other non-current
financial assets 42

Other non-current
financial liabilities —

- cross currency swaps Other non-current
financial assets 53

Other non-current
financial liabilities (3)

- commodity hedge Other current
financial assets —

Other current
financial liabilities (8)

Other non-current
financial assets —

Other non-current
financial liabilities (2)

Derivatives not designated as hedging instruments
- foreign currency forward contracts Other current

financial assets 10
Other current
financial liabilities (1)

Total derivatives $ 177 $ (66)
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The following table presents the effect of derivatives designated as hedging instruments on the consolidated statements of
operations and comprehensive income (loss) (net of tax):

As of December 31, 2022, the estimated amount of loss from cash flow hedges currently retained in consolidated
statements of comprehensive income (loss) expected to be reclassified into consolidated statements of operations within the
next 12 months is approximately $17 million.

(in millions)

Amount of
Gains
(Losses)

Recognized in
Accumulated

OCI
on Derivatives
(effective
Portion)

Amount of
Gains
(Losses)

Reclassified
from

Accumulated
OCI to cost of
Property,
Plant and
Equipment

Location of
Gains
(Losses)

Reclassified
from

Accumulated
OCI into
Income
(Effective
Portion)

Amounts of
Gains
(Losses)

Reclassified
from

Accumulated
OCI into
Income
(Effeff ctive
Portion)

Location of
Gains
(Losses)
Recognized

into
Income

(Ineffective
Portion)

Amount of
Gain

(Losses)
Recognized

into
income

(Ineffective
Portion)

Year ended December 31, 2021

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments—
Forward currency forward contracts $ (76) $ (6)

Cost of revenue
and operating
expenses $ 11

Selling, general
and
administrative
expenses $ 1

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments—
Interest rate swaps 21 —

Finance
expense (5)

Selling, general
and
administrative
expenses —

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments—
Cross currency swaps (2) —

Cost of revenue
and operating
expenses (10)

Selling, general
and
administrative
expenses (1)

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments –
Commodity hedge 29 —

Cost of revenue
and operating
expenses 24

Selling, general
and
administrative
expenses —

Year ended December 31, 2022

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments—
Forward currency fof rward contracts $ (105) $ (93)

Cost of revenue
and operating
expenses $ (76)

Other income
(expense) (5)

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments—
Interest rate swaps 55 —

Finance
expense 6

Other income
(expense) —

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments—
Cross currency swaps 72 —

Cost of revenue
and operating
expenses —

Other income
(expense) 4

Derivatives designated as hedging instruments –
Commodity hedge (5) —

Cost of revenue
and operating
expenses 26

Other income
(expense) (8)

The following table presents the effect of derivatives not designated as hedging instruments on the consolidated statements
of operations and comprehensive income (loss):

(in millions)

Location of Gains
(Losses) Recognized

in Income on
Derivative

Amount of Gains
(Losses) Recognized

in Income on
Derivative

Year ended December 31, 2020
Derivatives not designed as hedging instruments—foreign currency
forwards contracts

Selling, general and
administrative expenses $ 6

Year ended December 31, 2021
Derivatives not designed as hedging instruments—foreign currency
forwards contracts

Selling, general and
administrative expenses $ (17)

Year ended December 31, 2022
Derivatives not designed as hedging instruments—foreign currency
forwards contracts Other income (expense) $ (22)
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18. Cash And Cash Equivalents

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Cash balances on hand and at banks 990 764
Investments in money market funds 953 2,150
Time deposits 401 25
Other cash and cash equivalents 8 —
Total $ 2,352 $ 2,939

Movements in cash and cash equivalents are presented in the Company’s consolidated statements of cash flows.

The following are the reconciliation of assets, liabilities and equity arising from financing activities:

Non-cash changes

(in millions)

As of
December 31,
2020 Assets
(Liabilities
and Equity)

Cash
Flows
Inflows/
(Outflows) Addition

Foreign
exchange
movement Others

As of
December 31,
2021 Assets
(Liabilities
and Equity)

Restricted cash $ 36 $ (34) $ — $ — $ (1) $ 1
Government grants receivable(1) 30 (41) 60 (2) — $ 47
Other receivables 42 (41) 1 (1) (2) $ (1)
Debt (2,338) 264 — 51 10 $ (2,013)
Lease obligations (465) 78 (52) 12 1 $ (426)
Loan from shareholder (10,681) 568 — — 10,113 $ —
Share capital (10) (1) — — — $ (11)
Additional Paid-In Capital (11,708) (1,443) (10,113) — (223) $ (23,487)
Total $ (25,094) $ (650) $ (10,104) $ 60 $ 9,898 $ (25,890)

Non-cash changes

(in millions)

As of
December 31,
2021 Assets
(Liabilities
and Equity)

Cash
Flows
Inflows/
(Outflows) Addition

Foreign
exchange
movement Others

As of
December 31,
2022 Assets
(Liabilities
and Equity)

Restricted cash $ 1 $ — $ — $ — $ — $ 1
Government grants receivable(2) 47 (93) 18 (1) 81 $ 52
Other receivables (1) — — — — $ (1)
Debt (2,013) (670) (6) 10 168 $ (2,511)
Lease obligations (426) 89 (18) 9 1 $ (345)
Share capital (11) — — — — $ (11)
Additional Paid-In Capital(3) (23,487) (168) — — (176) $ (23,831)
Total $ (25,890) $ (842) $ (6) $ 18 $ 74 $ (26,646)

(1) Government grant receivable amounting to $47 million is included in receivables, prepayments and other assets in the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2021

(2) Government grant receivable amounting to $52 million is included in receivables, prepayments and other assets in the
consolidated statements of financial position as of December 31, 2022

(3) On October 1, 2021, the Company’s board approved the conversion of the Shareholder Loans (defined below) to additional paid-
in-capital, and on October 3, 2021, the Company executed an agreement with Mubadala Investment Company PJSC
(“Mubadala”) to convert the remaining $10.1 billion of the Shareholder Loan balance into additional paid-in-capital (“the
Conversion”). The Conversion did not have an impact on shares outstanding or have any dilutive effects, as no additional shares
were issued.
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Geographical concentration of cash and cash equivalents is as follows:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
United States of America $ 484 $ 1,357
Republic of Singapore 1,775 1,485
Other 93 97
Total $ 2,352 $ 2,939

19. Issued Capital and Reserves

Share Capital— On September 12, 2021, the Company effected a 1-for-2 reverse share split, which was approved by our
board of directors on September 9, 2021.

On October 27, 2021, the Company completed an initial public offering, issuing 30,250,000 ordinary shares, as well as
1,595,744 ordinary shares in a concurrent private placement agreement.

As of December 31, 2022, there were 1,300 million ordinary shares and 200 million preferred shares with a par value of
$0.02 authorized, and 548 million ordinary shares issued and outstanding.

Additional Paid-In Capital—Additional paid-in capital represents the excess of assets less liabilities contributed to
GLOBALFOUNDRIES by shareholders over the share capital issued in exchange for those contributions and share-based
compensation charges for share-based payments.

Reserves

All other reserves as star ted in the consolidated statements of changes in equity:

Hedgd ing Reserve—The cash flow hedge reserve contains the effective portion of the cash flow hedge relationships incurred
as at the reporting date.

FoFF reign Currency Translation Reservei —The foreign currency translation reserve is used to record exchange differences
arising from the translation of AMTC and BAC’s financial statements for consolidation purpose.

20. Long-Term Debt

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Current:
Term loans $ 297$ 223

Non-current:
Term loans 2,288 1,716

Total $ 2 $ 2,013,511

The above balances are net of $12 million and $18 million of unamortized debt issuance costs for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Movements in interest bearing borrowings during the reporting period were as follows:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Opening balance $ 2,013 $ 2,338
New loans and borrowings 971 618
Repayments (301) (882)
Other (172) (61)
Ending balance $ 2,013$ 2,511
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Terms and Debt Repayment Schedule

The following table summarizes term loan facilities. The below arrangements are all considered to be secured.

Description Currency
Nominal Interest

Rate

Interest
Payment
Terms

Principal
Payment
Terms

Year
of

Maturity

2022
Carrying
Amount

2021
Carrying
Amount

2018 Tool Equipment Purchase and Lease
Financing(1) USD LIBOR + 1.60% Quarterly Quarterly 2023 7519
2019 Tool Equipment Purchase and Lease
Financing(2) USD LIBOR + 1.75% Quarterly Quarterly 2024 8485
2019 USD Dresden Equipment
Financing(3) USD LIBOR + 1.75% Semi-Annual Semi-Annual 2024 3636
2020 USD Equipment Financing(4) USD LIBOR + 1.90% Quarterly Quarterly 2025 5959
2019 EUR Dresden Equipment
Financing(3) EUR

EURIBOR +
1.75% Semi-Annual Semi-Annual 2026 1413

Various(5)
EUR,
USD Various Various Various 2024-2026 11 29

Current total 297223
Non-current:
2019 Tool Equipment Purchase and Lease
Financing(2) USD LIBOR + 1.75% Quarterly Quarterly 2024 10621
2019 USD Dresden Equipment
Financing(3) USD LIBOR + 2.25% Semi-Annual Semi-Annual 2026 144108
2020 USD Equipment Financing(4) USD LIBOR + 1.90% Quarterly Quarterly 2025 15293
USD Term Loan A USD LIBOR + 2.90% Quarterly Semi-Annual 2025 647649

EUR Term Loan A EUR
EURIBOR +
2.60% Quarterly Semi-Annual 2025 9489

2019 EUR Dresden Equipment
Financing(3) EUR

EURIBOR +
1.75% Semi-Annual Semi-Annual 2026 4387 23

2021 SGD EDB Loan SGD 1.40% Semi-annual Semi-annual 2041 90923

Various
EUR,
USD Various Various Various 2024-2027 18 60

Non-current total 2,288 1,716
Total $ 2,51 $ 2,1 013

(1) On March 2, 2018, GLOBALFOUNDRIES SINGAPORE PTE, LTD. (“GFS”) entered into several Equipment Purchase and Lease
Agreements with four banks to sell and leaseback certain semiconductor manufacturing equipment located in GFS’ Fabs in
Singapore for a total of $375 million. The total minimum lease payments amount to $375 million, to be paid in equal quarterly
installments through March 1, 2023.

(2) On January 21, 2019, GFS entered into several Equipment Purchase Agreements and Lease Agreements with five banks to sell
and leaseback certain semiconductor manufacturing equipment located in GFS’ Fabs in Singapore for a total of $425 million.

(3) On October 31, 2019, the Company, GLOBALFOUNDRIES Dresden Module One Limited Liability Company & Co., KG. and
GLOBALFOUNDRIES Dresden Module Two Limited Liability Company & Co. KG. entered into a term facilities agreement with
Bank of America Merrill Lynch International Designated Activity Company and ING Bank, a branch of ING-DIBA AG, as
coordinating mandated lead arrangers, and Bank of America Merrill Lynch International Designated Activity Company as facility
and security agent, which provides a maximum incremental facility commitment totaling $750 million secured by certain qualifying
equipment assets.

(4) On April 23, 2020, GLOBALFOUNDRIES SINGAPORE PTE, LTD. entered into several Equipment Purchase Agreements and
Lease Agreements with four banks to sell and leaseback certain semiconductor manufacturing equipment located in GFS’
fabrication facilities in Singapore for a total of $300 million.

Accounts Receivable Factoring—On February 17, 2021, the Company entered into agreements to amend and restate the
terms of the original Accounts Receivable Factoring arrangements to factor certain of its accounts receivable up to a
maximum outstanding amount of $92 million. The Company agreed to pay financing costs of LIBOR plus 0.90%. The
balance as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 was $0 and $16 million, respectively.

2021 SGD EDB Loan—On September 3, 2021, the Company entered into a loan agreement with Singapore Economic
Development Board (“EDB”), which provided loan facilities with maximum drawdown of $1,149 million (SGD 1,541 million) at
a fixed nominal interest rate of 1.4%. The difference between the nominal interest rate of the loan and the market interest
rate for an equivalent loan is recognized as a government grant. The loan matures on June 1, 2041, with interest-only
payments for the first 5 years and principal repayments commence thereafter, payable on a semi-annual basis.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company’s total draw down was $1,082 million, of which $111 million was drawn down in
2021.

As of December 31, 2022, $923 million was recorded in long-term debt based on an effective interest rate of 3.2% and $184
million was recorded in deferred income from government grants.
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5-year Revolving and Letter of Credit Facilities Agreement—On October 13, 2021tt , the Company entered into an
amendment to the 5-year Revolving and Letter of Credit Facilities Agreement to increase the commitment to $1,000 million.

The following table summarizes unutilized credit facilities available to the Company to maintain liquidity to fund operations:

+

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
SGD EDB Loan 42 1,029
Revolving Credit Facility 1,012 1,009
Singapore Factoring — 75
Uncommitted Credit Facilities(1) 64 31
Total $ 2,144$ 1,118

(1) Credit facility made available to the Company, but the lender is not obligated to loan funds.

Assets pledged as security—yy Various assets have been pledged to secure borrowings under pledged agreements for the
Company. Cash and cash equivalents, trade accounts receivables, property, plant and equipment, inventories, and financial
assets have been pledged to secure borrowings unve been pledged to secure borrowings u der pledged agreements for the Company. The Company is not allowedff
to pledge these assets as security for other borrowings or to sell them outside normal course of business.

21. Leases

The Company has various lease agreements for certain of its offices, facilities, and equipment. Leases may include one or
more options to renew. Renewals are not in the determination of the lease term unless the renewals are deemed to be
reasonably certain at lease commencement. The Company’s lease agreements do not contain any material residual value
guarantees or material restrictive covenants. All leases were measured under a single criterion with the exception of those
with terms not exceeding 12 months and low-value leases.

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Amortization of right-of-use assets $ 81$ 82
Interest expense on lease liabilities 23 27
Short-term and low-value leases expense 1 1
Total net lease cost $ 109$ 106
Weighted average remaining lease term 6.51 years7.18 years
Weighted average discount rate 64.75 % .65 %

The following is a schedule, by years, of maturities of lease liabilities as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

(in millions)

Minimum
Lease

Payments

Present
Value of
Payments

Minimum
Lease

Payments

Present
Value of
Payments

Within 1 year $ 157 $ 135$ 92 $ 75
2-5 years 184 146 232 191
After 5 years 151 124 123 100

$ 4 $ 527 $ 345 12 $ 426
Less: amounts representing

finance charges (82) — (86) —
Present value of minimum

lease payments $ 3 $ 4$ 34545 26 $ 426
Current 75 135
Non-current 270 291

$ 345 $ 426
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Supplemental cash flow information related to leases is as follows:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Cash flows used in operating activities:
Payments of short-term and low-value leases $ $(1) (1)
Interest paid (23) (27)
Cash flows used in financing activities:
Payment of lease obligations (89) (78)

The following table summarizes the movement of right-of-use assets which primarily relates to building and leasehold
improvements during the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 is as follows:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Beginning balance $ 305 $ 292
Additions $ 59 94
Amortization (82) (81)
Ending balance $ 282 $ 305

22. Provisions

The movement in provision for asset retirement obligations and restructuring charges during the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021 is as follows:

(in millions) December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

Beginning balance $ 349 $ 353
Arising during the period 2 —
Accretion cost (4) (1)
Restructuring charges 91 —
Utilized(1) (52) (3)
Released to the consolidated statements of operations(2)

$ (88) —
Ending balance $ 298 $ 349

(1) Includes $40 million related to asset retirement obligations,$7 million related to sale of the EFK business, and $5 million related to
restructuring charges.

(2) Relates to the derecognition of asset retirement obligation related to the sale of the EFK business.

The Company records a provision for site restoration costs as required by legal and contractual obligations if assessed to be
probable that it will incur such costs. Because of the long-term nature of the liability, the greatest uncertainty in estimating
the provision is the costs that will be incurred. The Company has estimated costs based on currently available informff ation
provided by experts about the extent of restoration work required.

The provision has been calculated using a discount rate of 1.58% to 4.04% (2021: (1.59)% to 1.95%), which is the risk-free
rate in the jurisdiction of the liability. The site restoration costs are expected to be incurred on site abandonment for its
owned property and on lease expiration for its leasehold land. The expected timing of incurring site restoration costs is
consistent with the remaining useful lives of the underlying property, plant and equipment.

See Note 8, Restructuring, for information related the Company’s restructuring initiative.
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23. Government Grants

The following table presents the movement in deferred income from government grants for the years ended December 31,
2022 and 2021:

(in millions) December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

Beginning balance $ 176 $ 169
Received/receivable during the period 270 40
Released to the consolidated statements of operations (42) (33)
Ending balance $ 404 $ 176
Current 110 29
Non-current 294 147

$ 404 $ 176

Government grants were recognized in the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) as
follows:

(in millions) December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

Cost of revenue $ 30 $ 33 $ 49
Research and development expenses 11 — 2
Selling, general and administrative 1 — —
Total balance $ 42 $ 33 $ 51

The Company has received government support in the form of investment grants, research and development subsidies,
refundable credits and miscellaneous receipts for employee support. Amount receivable from government but not yet
received has been included in receivables, prepayments and other assets. Certain investment grants are subject to forfeiture
in declining amounts over the life of the agreement if the Company does not maintain agreed upon conditions specified in
the relevant subsidy agreements. The Company continues to comply with the government grant conditions mainly relating to
qualifying property, plant and equipment and employment lff evels.

24. Trade Payables and Other Liabilities

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
Current:
Trade payables $ 532 $ 551
Accrued expenses 573 603
Contract liabilities(1) 592 533
Advances and deposits(2) 93 309
Payable for PPE and Intangible Assets 961 472
Other(3) 98 118

$ 2,849 $ 2,586
Non-current:
Payable for Intangible Assets 92 45
Contract liabilities(1) 1,326 1,368
Deferred tax liabilities 26 2
Other(3) 30 30

$ 1,474 $ 1,445

(1) Contract liabilities comprises contract liabilities for payments received in advance of the satisfaction of performance obligations for
wafers, as well as non-recurring engineering services.

(2) Advances and deposits include advances from customers of $73 million (2021: $118 million) collected for purchase orders.
(3) Other includes other financial liabilities and non-current advances and deposits. See Note 17 for further details on other financial

liabilities.
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.

The following table presents the activities in accounts payable as of December 31, 2022 and 2021:

(in millions) December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

Beginning contract liabilities balance $ 1,901 $ 135
Cash receipts in advance of satisfaction of performance obligations 1,189 1,894
Released to the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income
(loss)(1) (951) (128)
Amounts credited to customers (221) —
Ending contract liabilities balance $ 1,918 $ 1,901
Current 592 533
Non-current 1,326 1,368

$ 1,918 $ 1,901

(1) Of revenue released to the consolidated statements of operations and comprehensive income (loss) for the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, $522 million and $48 million, respectively were included in the beginning balance of the contract
liabilities.

25. Employee Benefits Plans

Retitt rii err ment Savings PlaPP ns—The Company has a ress tirement savings plan, commonly known as a 401(k) plan, which allows
participating employees in the United States to contribute a portion of their pre-tax salary up to Internal Revenue Service
limits. The Company matches employee contributions dollar for dollar for the first 3% of participants’ contributions and $0.50
cents on each dollar of additional 3% of participants’ contributions, to a maximum of 4.5% of eligible compensation. The
Company’s contributions to the 401(k) plan were $32 million, $31 million and $32 million for the years ended December 31,
2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

The Company also has an employee benefits plan that requires the Company to make monthly contributions based on the
statutory funding requirement into a Central Provident Fund (“CPF”) for substantially all Singapore citizens aff nd permanent
residents. The Company’s contributions under this plan were $31 million, $29 million and $22 million for the years ended
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively.

See Note 29 Share-based compensation foff r our Employee Stock Purchase Plan.

26. Commitments and Contingencies

Commitments—The Company’s unconditional purchase commitments are as follows:

(in millions) December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

Contracts for capital expenditures $ 2,774 $ 2,995
Contracts for operating expenditures 3,587 3,405

$ 6$ 6,361 ,400
Due within the next 12 months $ 3$ 2,732 ,543

In addition to the above, the Company obtained letters of credit to primarily guarantee payments for utility supplies and
foreign statutory payroll related charges. The Company has obtained letters of credit of $20 million and $20 million at
December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and bank guarantees of $4 million and $3 million at December 31, 2022 and
2021, respectively.

The Company has a patent license agreement with LSI Technology Corporation (“LSI”) under which the parties grant to one
another a license to use certain of each other’s patents. Under the terms of the patent license agreement, the Company may
provide wafer capacity in lieu of payment for royalties. Such royalties under the patent license agreement are waived until
such time the interest of LSI in SMP falls below 49%. In exchange, the Company has waived capacity shortfall obligations
from LSI. Should the interest of LSI in SMP fall below 49%, the Company may be required to make royalty payments to LSI
under this patent license agreement. The Company has not made any royalty payments to LSI. The patent license
agreement continues for as long as the joint venture agreement between the parties remains.

In 2017, we entered into a set of agreements with a joint venture partner related to the establishment of a joint venture in
China to establish and operate a greenfield wafer production site. The parties contemplated that the manufacturing
operations would be implemented in two phases. Due to a variety of factors, including unanticipated market conditions, the
manufacturing operations did not proceed as planned and the parties have been working to wind-down operations of the
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joint venture. On April 26, 2021, we received a letter from our joint venture partner requesting that we share in its alleged
losses and related costs incurred to support the joint venture. We recorded a provision of $34 million in June 2021. We
engaged in negotiations with our joint venture partner to settle the claim and on November 2021 we resolved the claims
consistent with the recorded provision. In August 2022, all shares owned by our joint venture partner have been transferred
to GF Asia Investment.

On April 28, 2021, IBM sent us a letter alleging for the first time that we did not fulfill our obligations under the contracts we
entered into with IBM in 2014 and 2015 associated with our acquisition of IBM’s Microelectronics division. IBM asserted that
we engaged in fraudulent misrepresentations during the underlying negotiations, and claimed we owed them $2.5 billion in
damages and restitution. On June 7, 2021, the Company filed a complaint with the New York State Supreme Court (the
“Court”) seeking a declaratory judgment that the Company did not breach the relevant contracts. IBM subsequently filed its
complaint with the Court on June 8, 2021. On September 14, 2021, the Court granted our motion to dismiss IBM’s claims of
fraud, unjust enrichment and breach of the implied covenant of good faith and fair dealing. IBM appealed the dismissal of its
fraud claim, and on April 7, 2022, the New York Appellate Division reversed the Court’s decision. The Company believes,
based on discussions with legal counsel, that the Company has meritorious defenses against IBM’s claims. The Company
disputes IBM’s claims and intends to vigorously defend against IBM. We do not currently anticipate this proceeding to have a
material impact on our results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects

27. Earnings Per Share

Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share has been calculated for the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021, and 2020 as
follows:

2022 2021 2020

(in millions)

Net income (loss) available to equity shareholders of the Company $ 1,448 $ (250) $ (1,350)

Weighted average common shares outstanding
Basic 539 506 500
Diluted 552 506 500

Total basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to equity
shareholders

Basic $ 2.69 $ (0.49) $ (2.70)

Diluted $ 2.62 $ (0.49) $ (2.70)

For the years ended December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, there were 6 million, 22 million and 22 million share options
outstanding, respectively. Share options for the years ended December 31, 2021 and 2020 were not included in the
calculation of diluted earnings per share as their inclusion would have been anti-dilutive.

28. Related Party Disclosures

The consolidated financial statements include the following subsidiaries which are all wholly owned, except for Advanced
Mask Technology Centre GmbH & Co. KG, Maskhouse Building Administration GmbH & Co. KG, Advanced Mask
Technology Center Verwaltrr ungs GmbH, and Maskhouse Building Administration Verwaltungs GmbH:
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Subsidiary
Jurisdiction of
Incorporation or
Organization

December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

December 31,
2020

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Dresden Module One LLC United States X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Dresden Module Two LLC United States X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Innovation Investments LLC United States X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Investments LLC United States X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES U.S. Inc. United States X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES U.S. 2 LLC United States X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Borrower LLC United States X X X

Hudson Valley Research Park Sewage Works Corporation United States X X X

Hudson Valley Research Park Water-Works Corporation United States X N/A N/A

GF Power LLC United States X N/A N/A

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Finance Inc. Cayman Islands X N/A N/A

GLOBALFOUNDRIES France SAS France X N/A N/A

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Dresden Module One Holding GmbH Germany X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Dresden Module One LLC & Co. KG Germany X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Dresden Module Two LLC & Co. KG Germany X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Dresden Module Two Holding GmbH Germany X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Management Services LLC & Co. KG Germany X X X

Advanced Mask Technology Centre GmbH & Co. KG (50%) Germany X X N/A

Maskhouse Building Administration GmbH & Co. KG (50%) Germany X X N/A

Advanced Mask Technology Center Verwaltungs GmbH (50%) Germany X X N/A

Maskhouse Building Administration Verwaltungs GmbH (50%) Germany X X N/A

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Europe Sales & Support GmbH Germany X X N/A

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Engineering Private Limited India X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Japan Ltd. Japan X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Malaysia SDN. BHD. Malaysia X N/A N/A

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Netherlands Cooperatief U.A. The Netherlands X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Netherlands Holding B.V. The Netherlands N/A N/A X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Netherlands B.V. The Netherlands N/A N/A X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Bulgaria EAD Bulgaria X X X

GF Asia Investments Pte. Ltd. Singapore X X X

GF Asia Sales Pte. Ltd. Singapore X X N/A

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Singapore Pte. Ltd. Singapore X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Taiwan Ltd. Taiwan X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Europe Ltd. United Kingdom X X X

GA (Chengdu) Technology Co., Limited China X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES China (Beijing) Co., Limited China X X X

GLOBALFOUNDRIES China (Shanghai) Co., Limited China X X X

Nanjing APD Technologies Co. Ltd. China N/A X X

Related parties represent associated companies, the shareholder, directors and key management personnel of the
Company and entities controlled, or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions
are approved by the audit, risk and compliance committee or the Company’s management, as applicable.
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Below are the related parties which the Company has entered into transactions with:

December 31,
2022

December 31,
2021

Related Party Name
SMP Joint venture Joint venture
Mubadala Treasury Holding Company (“MTHC”) Shareholder entity Shareholder entity
Mubadala Technology Investments LLC (“Mubadala Technology”) Shareholder entity Shareholder entity

Related parties represent associated companies, the shareholder, directors and key management personnel of the
Company and entities controlled, or significantly influenced by such parties. Pricing policies and terms of these transactions
are approved by the Company’s management.

Balances with related parties included in the consolidated statements of financial positions are as follows:

December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

(in millions)

Due from
Related
Parties

Due to
Related
Parties

Due from
Related
Parties

Due to
Related
Parties

SMP $ 11 $ 10 $ 8 $ 9
Total(1) $ 11 $ 10 $ 8 $ 9

(1) The total amounts of $11 million and $8 million due from related parties as of the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,rr
respectively, has been included in receivables, prepayments and other assets (see Note 15). The total amounts of $10 million and
$9 million due to related parties’ balance for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively, has been included in
trade and other payables (see Note 24).

The following table presents the related party transactions included in the consolidated statements of operations:

(in millions)
December 31,

2022
December 31,

2021
December 31,

2020
Purchases and recharges from:
SMP(1) $ 60 $ 60 $ 58

$ 60 $ 60 $ 58

Other transactions with:
SMP (reimbursement of expenses and contribution of tools) $ 52 $ 45 $ 47
Mubadala Technology (reimbursement of expenses) $ — $ 3 $ 1

$ 52 $ 48 $ 48

(1) Purchases from SMP were primarily comprised of wafers.

Terms and Conditions of Transactions with Related Parties

Outstanding balances at the year-end are unsecured, interest free, repayable on demand and settlement occurs in cash.
The Company has not recorded any allowance of receivables relating to amounts owed by related parties for the years
ended December 31, 2022 and 2021. This assessment is undertaken each financial year through examining the financial
position of the related party and the market in which the related party operates.

Transactions with Shareholder:

Shareholder Loan Agreement—The Company, as a borrower, entered into loan facilities with its shareholder in 2012 to 2016
(collectively the “Shareholder Loans”). The Shareholder Loans were non-interest bearing and principal repayment, in whole
or in part, was entirely at the Company’s discretion as explicitly stated in the loan agreement. The Shareholder Loans were
subordinated to any claims of other unsubordinated and subordinated creditors, including beneficiaries under guarantees
issued, of the Company. The loans had no maturity date and remained outstanding until the loans were paid in full. Further,
there were no contingent settlements in the agreements. Since the Shareholder Loans did not contain any contractual
obligations to deliver cash, but rather allowed the Company to make repayment at its absolute discretion and further
prohibited the shareholder from demanding repayment, the Company treated the Shareholder Loans as equity.
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The Company repaid $568 million during the year ended December 31, 2021.

On October 1, 2021, the Company’s board approved the conversion of the Shareholder Loans to additional paid-in-capital,
and on October 3, 2021, the Company executed an agreement with Mubadala Investment Company PJSC (“Mubadala”) to
convert the remaining $10.1 billion of the Shareholder Loan balance into additional paid-in-capital (the ”Conversion”). The
Conversion did not have an impact on shares outstanding or have any dilutive effects, as no additional shares were issued.

Compensation of Key Management Personnel

The compensation of key management personnel during the following years were as follows:

(in millions) 2022 2021 2020
Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
Short-term benefits $ 5 $ 8 $ 11
Share-based payments 19 42 —

Board of Directors 5 3 1
$ 29 $ 53 $ 12

29. Share-Based Compensation

The Company incurred share-based compensation expense of $173 million, $223 million, and $1 million the years ended
December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, respectively. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the additional paid-in capital related
to the share proceeds amounted to $163 million and $0, respectively. The Company incurred $10 million and $5 million of
payroll taxes associated with the share-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021,
respectively.

As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the Company has 2,826,758 shares and 2,457,663 shares respectively, available for
future grant under the 2018 Share Incentive Plan.

Under the 2021 Equity Compensation Plan, the Company has 13,648,116 shares available for future grant as of December
31, 2022.

RSUs

In 2022, the Company granted RSUs under the 2021 Equity Compensation Plan. The RSUs have a time-based vesting
requirement, which provides that the RSUs will generally vest in three annual installments, with 33.33% vesting on each
one-year anniversary of the vesting commencement date subject to the employee’s continued employment with the
Company.

In 2021, the Company granted restricted share units (“RSUs”) under the 2018 Share Incentive Plan. The RSUs have a time-
based vesting requirement, which provides that the RSUs will generally vest in four annual installments, with 25% vesting on
each one-year anniversary of the vesting commencement date subject to the employee’s continued employment with the
Company. In addition, the RSUs had a liquidity event vesting requirement which was satisfied on the six-month anniversary
of our IPO.

Number of
RSUs

Weighted
average

grant date fair
value

Outstanding as of December 31, 2020 — $ —
Granted 851,530 $ 39.56
Forfrr eited (4,100) $ 34.46
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021 847,430 $ 39.59
Granted 3,416,545 $ 57.09
Forfeited (314,158) $ 55.36
Exercised (738,387) $ 49.51
Outstanding as of December 31, 2022 3,211,430 $ 54.39

Prior to the IPO, the value of the RSUs was determined by the Company’s Board of Directors. Because there had been no
public market for the ordinary shares, the Board of Directors determined the fair value at the time of grant of the RSU by
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contemporaneous valuations performed by unrelated third-party valuation firms as well as a number of objective and
subjective factors including valuation of comparable companies, operating and financial performance, the lack of liquidity of
capital stock and general and industry specific economic outlook, among other factors.

As of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, there was $88 million, $26 million, and $0, respectively, of total unrecognized
compensation cost related to outstanding RSUs.

PSUs

In 2022, the Company granted performance stock units (“PSUs”) under the 2021 Equity Compensation Plan. to certain
senior level employees. Each PSU represents a contingent right to receive shares of the Company’s stock if the Company
meets certain performance measures over the requisite performance period. The PSU awards entitle recipients to receive,
upon vesting, a number of shares that ranges from 0% to 200% of the number of PSUs awarded, depending on the level of
achievement of the specified perforr rmance conditions.

The PSUs vest subject to achievement of a performance tff arget based on an absolute return on invested capital (“ROIC”)
and relative total shareholder return (“TSR”) versus the SOX Index and will vest over 2 year and 3 year performance periods
subject to the grantee remaining employed by the Company through the end of the applicable performance period.

Number of
PSUs

Weighted
average

grant date fair
value

Outstanding as of December 31, 2021 — $ —
Granted 571,277 70.85
Forfeited (34,082) $ 70.91
Outstanding as of December 31, 2022 537,195 $ 70.91

The Company uses the Monte Carlo simulation model to estimate the fair value of the PSUs at the date of grant. The equity
volatility was determined based on the historical volatilities of comparable publicly traded companies over a look back period
of 2.74 years, commensurate with the remaining term of the PSUs. The risk-free interest rate is based on the United States
Treasury with a remaining term equivalent to the remaining performance measurement period. Dividends are not paid on the
Company’s stock.

The assumptions used to value the Company’s PSUs granted during the period presented and their expected lives were as
follows:

December 31, 2022
Expected dividend yield —
Expected volatility 45.50%
Risk-free interest rate 2.55%

Compensation expense is recognized for the PSU awards based on a graded attribution basis over the vesting period. As of
December 31, 2022, there was $24 million of total unrecognized compensation expense related to the PSUs.

Share Options

In 2017, the Company approved the Share Incentive Plan, which was intended to attract and retain talented employees and
align shareholder and employee interests. Share options under the Share Incentive Plan vested over a five-year period.

In 2019 the Company offered to exchange the share options under the Share Incentive Plan with new share options under
the “2018 Share Incentive Plan,” under which the Company may grant up to 25 million options to purchase shares in the
Company with an exercise price of $10.00 per share. The options vest based on service over four or five years, depending
on the timing of the grant, and contingent upon a liquidity event (change in control or IPO) with the earliest vesting date on
the one-year anniversary of a liquidity event. On April 19, 2019, the Company issued the share options subjb ect to the tender
offer. The exchange of 2017 plan options into 2018 plan options resulted in a total incremental fair value of $64 million, of
which $39 million was recognized in the second quarter of 2021 when an IPO became probable. The remainder was
attributed prospectively. In the fourth quarter of 2021, the Company modified the earliest vesting date from one year post-
anniversary of a liquidity event to six-months post-anniversary of a liquidity event, and shortened the contractual term for
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options held by US taxpayers to be the calendar year end after or within the year of vest. The options that remain
outstanding at expiration will be auto-exercised through the broker.

The share options are effective for a term of 10 years from the grant date. Because the vesting and exercisability of these
share options were dependent on a qualified liquidity event, the Company had to assess the probability of such an event in
order to determine the expenses related to the share-based payments for the period. On June 30, 2021, the Company
deemed an IPO to be probable under IFRS.

Upon the tender offer, the Company measured the pre-modification value of the old share options and compared that to the
fair value of the new share options using the Black-Scholes option pricing model. The equity volatility was determined based
on the historical volatilities of comparable publicly traded companies over a period equal to the expected average share-
based payments life. The risk-free rate of interest was interpolated from the U.S. Constant Maturity Treasury rate curve to
reflect the remaining expected life of share options. The fair value of the ordinary shares underlying the stock options has
historically been determined by the Company’s Board of Directors. Because there had been no public market for the
ordinary shares, the Board of Directors determined the fair value of the ordinary shares at the time of grant of the option by
contemporaneous valuations performed by unrelated third-party valuation firms as well as a number of objective and
subjective factors including valuation of comparable companies, operating and financial performance, the lack of liquidity of
capital stock and general and industry specific economic outlook, among other factors.

The Company did not grant any stock options in 2022.

The assumptions used to value the Company’s options granted and their expected lives during 2021, were as follows:

December 31, 2021
Expected volatility 45.00 %
Expected term 4.5 years
Risk-free interest rate 0.56 %
Estimated ordinary shares valuation $24.64 - $26.04

The following table shows a summary of the share option’s activity for the year ended December 31, 2022 and 2021.

Number of
Share options

Weighted
average
exercise
price

per Share
Outstanding as of December 31, 2020 22,286,278 $ 10.04
Granted 995,409 $ 10.00
Forfeited (1,532,129) $ 10.00
Outstanding as of December 31, 2021 21,749,558 $ 10.03
Exercised (14,956,321) $ 10.00
Forfeited (532,634) $ 10.00
Outstanding as of December 31, 2022 6,260,603 $ 10.02
Exercisable balance as of December 31, 2022 4,873,406 $ 10.02

The following table summarizes information about employees’ share options outstanding as of December 31, 2022:

Outstanding

Range of exercise prices
Number

Outstanding

Weighted
average
remaining

contractual life
(in years)

$ 10.02 6,250,068 2.13
$ 19.07 4,515 4.04
$ 22.54 4,515 4.04
$ 26.00 1,505 4.04

The weighted average remaining contractual life is calculated based on the 10-year contract terms of the options. And the
weighted average exercise price is calculated using the exercise price of the outstanding options, which pertain to the 2018
Share Incentive Plan.
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As of December 31, 2022, 2021 and 2020, there was $7 million, $63 million and $251 million, respectively, of total
unrecognized compensation cost related to outstanding stock options.

ESPP

In connection with, and prior to the consummation of the Company's initial public offering in 2021, the Company's board of
directors adopted the GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (the “ESPP”). The ESPP is
administered by the Company's board of directors or, as applicable, its delegate (the “ESPP Administrator”).

The ESPP provides eligible employees with an opportunity to purchase our ordinary shares through payroll deduction of up
to 10% of their eligible compensation. A participant may purchase a maximum of 2,500 ordinary shares during a purchase
period. Amounts deducted and accumulated by the participant are used to purchase ordinary shares at the end of each six-
month purchase period. Participants in the ESPP receive a one-time grant of 50 RSUs upon enrollment in the ESPP. The
Company matches 20% of each employee’s contributions on an after-tax basis.

Subject to certain equitable adjustments in connection with certain events affecting the outstanding ordinary shares reserved
for issuance as awards, the maximum aggregate number of our ordinary shares that may be issued or transferred under the
ESPP with respect to awards is 7,500,000 ordinary shares; provided that the share reserve under the ESPP will, unless
otherwirr se determined by our board of directors, automatically increase on January 1 of each year for 8 years commencing
on January 1, 2023 and ending on (and including) January 1, 2031 in an amount equal to 0.25% of the total number of
ordinary shares outstanding on December 31 of the preceding year. In no event will the number of ordinary shares that may
be issued or transferred pursuant to rights granted under the ESPP exceed 18,750,000, in the aggregate, subject to the
adjustments described above.

As of December 31, 2022, of the Company has issued 533,591 shares under this plan reflecting employees’ contribution and
the 20% Company match.

30. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

GLOBALFOUNDRIES has implemented a cash investment policy which determines the overall objectives of the Company’s
investment strategy. This policy is aimed to ensure the preservation of capital and the maintenance of sufficient liquidity
necessary to fund operations while balancing the needs for appropriate returns. The cash investment policy limits
permissible investments and credit quality.

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a healthy capital ratio in order to
support its business and maximize shareholder value.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it in light of changes in economic conditions. There
are no regulatory imposed requirements on the level of share capital which the Company has to maintain.

The Company monitors capital using a gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total capital plus net debt. The Company’s
policy is to keep the gearing ratio within a range to meet the business needs of the Company.

The Company includes within net debt, interest bearing loans and borrowings and obligations under lease less bank
balances, cash and marketable securities. Capital includes total equity including non-controlling interests less cumulative
changes in fair value.

The Company’s interest-bearing loans and borrowings have certain financial covenants. Restrictive covenants in the
Company’s credit facilities may prevent the Company from pursuing certain transactions or business strategies, including by
limiting the Company’s ability to, in certain circumstances:

• incur additional indebtedness;

• pay dividends or make distributions;

• acquire assets or make investments outside of the ordinary course of business;

• sell, lease, license, transfer or otherwise dispose of assets;

• enter into transactions with the affiliates;

• create or permit liens;

• guarantee indebtedness; and

• engage in certain extraordinary transactions.

As of December 31, 2022, the Company is in compliance with the financial covenants.
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Risks Arising from Financial Instruments—The main risks arising from the Company’s financial instruments are market
risk (including foreign currency risk and interest rate risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Board of Directors reviews and
approves policies foff r managing each of these risks which are summarized below.

Market Risk—Market price risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market prices. Market prices comprise the following types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency
risk and market price risk.

Interest Rate Risk—The Company’s exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to interest-
earning financial assets and interest-bearing financial liabilities. The Company’s interest-earning financial assets are mostly
highly liquid investments and includes money market funds, marketable securities and time deposits. As these financial
assets have weighted-average maturity of less than one year with majority of the assets in fixed-rate instruments, the
Company’s exposure to interest risk is not material. The Company’s interest-bearing financial liabilities include fixed and
floating rate loans and lease obligations. Floating rate loans bear interest at Base Rate or LIBOR or EURIBOR plus a
premium, which is fixed. The Company uses pay-fixed / receive-float interest rate swaps to protect the Company against
adverse fluctuations in interest rates and to reduce its exposure to variability in cash flows on the Company’s forecasted
floating-rate debt facility to the extent that it is practicable and cost effective to do so.

Cash Flow Sensitivity Analysis for Variablii e Rate Instruments—ss The sensitivity of net income (loss) in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income (loss) is the effect of the assumed changes in interest rates on the Company’s net
income (loss) for one year, based on the floating rate financial assets and financial liabilities held on December 31, 2022.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity of net income (loss) in the consolidated statements of operations to
reasonably possible changes in interest rates, with all other variables held constant.

Increase/
(Decrease)

in Percentages

Effects on
Loss

before Tax
December 31, 2020 10 % $ 19

(10)% $ (19)
December 31, 2021 10 % $ —

(10%) $ —
December 31, 2022 10 % $ 1

(10)% $ (1)

FoFF rerr igi n Currency Risk—kk As a result of for— eign operations, the Company has costs, assets and liabilities that are
denominated in foreign currencies, primarily the Euro, the Japanese Yen and the Singapore Dollar. Therefore, movements inEuro, the Japanese Yen and the Singapore Dollar.
exchange rates could cause foreign currency denominated expenses to increase as a percentage of net revenue, affecting
profitability and cash flows. The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to reduce exposure to foreign currency
fluctuations. The Company also incurs certain portion of its interest expense in Euro and Singapore Dollars, exposing the
Company to exchange rate fluctuations between USD and EUR and SGD. The Company uses cross-currency swaps to
reduce its exposure to variability from foreign exchange impacting cash flows arising from Company’s foreign currency
denominated debt cash flows to the extent than it is practicable and cost effective to do so.

Exposure to Currency Risk—kk The Company’s exposure to foreign currency risk against financial assets and financial
liabilities was as follows, based on notional amounts:

(in millions) EUR JPY SGD
December 31, 2021
Receivables and prepayments $ 161 $ — $ 13
Cash and cash equivalents 45 2 4
Loans and borrowings (14) — (91)
Trade and other payables (254) (73) (147)

$ (62) $ (71) $ (221)
December 31, 2022
Receivables and prepayments $ 120 $ — $ 16
Cash and cash equivalents 48 4 420
Loans and borrowings 45 — —
Trade and other payables (388) (73) (149)

$ (175) $ (69) $ 287

Credit Risk—Credit risk can be defkk ined as the risk of suffering financial loss from financial instruments due to the failure by a
counterparty to fulfill an obligation. Financial instruments that subject the Company to concentrations of credit risk include
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investments and cash equivalents and foreign exchange transactions. With respect to credit risk arising from the Company’s
cash and cash equivalents, the Company’s exposure to credit risk arises from default of the counterparty, with maximum
exposure equal to the carrying amount of these instruments.

The Company generally does not require collateral to secure accounts receivable. The risk with respect to trade receivables
is mitigated by credit evaluations the Company performs on the Company’s customers, the short duration of the Company’s
payments terms for the significant majority of the Company’s customer contracts and by the diversification of the Company’s
customer base. The expected credit losses of trade and other receivables are not significant.

The Company’s five largest customers account for approximately 57% and 61%ely 57% and of tof he outstanding trade receivables
balance as of December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively.

Exposure to Credit Risk—EE The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was:

The aging of financial assets including trade receivables is as follows:

Past Due but Not Impaired

(in millions) Total

Neither
past

Due Nor
Impaired < 30 Days 31-90 Days

91-120
Days

Great
than

120 days
December 31, 2021 $ 1,067 $ 1,023 $ 42 $ 1 $ 1 $ —
December 31, 2022 $ 2,254 $ 2,137 $ 84 $ 33 $ — $ —

Liquididd ty Risk—t The Company monitors its risk to a shortage of funds by monitoring its cash flow situation. Ongoing cash
fof recasting and review processes have been set up to determine the amount of external funding needed. The Company has
set up a process of mid- and long-term financial planning. The Company’s financing structure, including maturities of debt, is
determined in response to the financing requirements identified with the long-term business planning process.

The table below summarizes the maturity profile of the Company’s financial liabilities:

(in millions)
Carryrr ing
Value

Contractual
Cash Flows

1 Year or
Less

1 to 5
Years

Greater
than
5 Years Total

December 31, 2021
Loans and borrowings $ 2,013 $ 2,205 $ 349 $ 1,736 $ 120 $ 2,205
Lease obligations 426 512 157 232 123 512
Derivative financial liability 66 66 49 17 — 66
Trade payables and other liabilities 1,895 1,895 1,848 47 — 1,895

$ 4,400 $ 4,678 $ 2,403 $ 2,032 $ 243 $ 4,678
December 31, 2022
Loans and borrowings $ 2,51 $ 1,443 $ 1,034$ 1,443 $ 1,034 $ 2,706$ 229$ 2,7061
Lease obligations 345 427 151151 427184 15192
Derivative financial liability 66 66 61 5 — 66

2,22,265Trade payables and other liabilities 2,17165 63 31 2,265
$ 5,464$ 1,216$ 1,695$ 2,553$ 5,464$ 5,187

In preparing the maturity profile, undiscounted payments are calculated based on contractually agreed interest rates where
these are fixed, or, in the case of discounted liabilities for leases, where the interest rate is implicit in the financing
arrangement. For variable interest arrangements undiscounted payments are determined based on the interest rate
prevailing at the reporting date.

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value—The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing
the fair value of financial instruments by valuation technique:

Level 1—observable inputs such as quoted prices in active markets for ideff ntical assets or liabilities

Level 2—inputs other than quoted prices in active markets in Level 1, such as quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities in active markets, quoted prices for similar assets or liabilities that are not active; or other inputs that are
observable or can be corroborated by observable market data frr or substantially tff he full term of the asset or liability; and

Level 3—unobservable inputs for which little or no market data exists, therefore requiring management judgment to
develop the Company’s own models with estimates and assumptions.
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Cash Equivalents - Cash equivalents include investments in government obligation-based money market funds, other
money market instruments and interest-bearing deposits with initial or remaining terms of three months or less. The fair
value of cash equivalents approximates its carrying value due to the short-term nature of these instruments.

MaMM rkrr ekk tatt ble Securities - Marketable securities utilizing Level 1 inputs include U.S. Treasury Securities, U.S. Government
Sponsored Enterprises, floating rate securities, money market mutual funds, corporate debt instruments and other Notes,
bonds or debt securities issued by non-U.S. sovereign or multilateral entities, as these securities all have quoted prices in
active markets.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized at fair value on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether transfers
have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. Foreign currency forward contractsff
are classified within Level 2. The fair values of foreign currency forward contracts are determined using quantitative models
that require the use of multiple market inputs, including interest rates, prices and maturity dates to generate pricing curves,
which are used to value the positions. The market inputs are generally actively quoted and can be validated through external
sources. For foreign currency forward contract asset and liability positions with maturity dates whff ich fall between the dates
of quoted prices, interpolation of rate or maturity scenarios are used in determining fair values. During the years ended
December 31, 2022 and 2021, there were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and Level 3 fair value measurements.

Financial Instruments Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following table presents the Company’s assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis:

Fair Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using

(in millions) Total

Quoted
Prices
Identical
Assets/
Liabilities
(Level 1)

Significant
Other Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

December 31, 2021
Assets:

Cash equivalents(1) $ 2,175 $ 2,150 $ 25 $ —

Investments in equity instruments(2) $ 17 $ 1 $ — $ 16

Derivatives(3) $ 25 $ — $ 25 $ —

Liabilities:

Derivatives(3) $ 66 $ — $ 66 $ —
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r Value Measurement at Reporting Date Using

(in millions) Total

Quoted
Prices
Identical
Assets/
Liabilities
(Level 1)

Significant
Other Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

December 31, 2022
Assets:

Cash equivalents (1) $ 961 $ 961 $ — $ —

Investments in equity instruments (2) $ 15 $ — $ — $ 15

Investments in marketable securities(3) $ 994 $ 994 $ — $ —

Derivatives(4) $ 177 $ — $ 177 $ —

Liabilities:

Derivatives(4) $ 66 $ — $ 66 $ —

(1) Included in cash and cash equivalents on the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position.
(2) Included in current and non-current receivables, prepayments and other assets on the Company’s consolidated statements of

financial position.
(3) Included in current and non-current marketable securities on the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position.
(4) Consists of foreign currency forward contracts, interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps and commodity hedge. Included in

other current and non-current financial assets on the Company’s consolidated statements of financial position.

Financial Instruments Not Recorded at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

Financial instruments not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis include non-marketable equity securities (that have not
been re-measured or impaired in the current period), grants receivable, loans receivable, lease obligations and the
Company’s short-term and long-term debt.

The carrying and fair values of the Company’s financial instruments not recorded at fair value on a recurring basis are
presented in the foff llowing table, classified according to the categories of loans and receivables (“LaR”) and financial
liabilities at amortized cost (“FLAC”):

(in millions) December 31, 2022 December 31, 2021

Financial Liability Category
Carryingrr
Amount Fair Value

Carrying
Amount Fair Value

Other long-term debt FLAC 2,511 2,414 2,013 2,006
Total $ 2,41$ 2,511 $ 2,013 $ 24 ,006

Estimated fair values of loans and borrowings is based on quoted prices for similar liabilities for which significant inputs are
observable and represents a Level 2 valuation. The fair values are estimated based on the type of loan and maturity. The
Company estimates the fair value using market interest rates for the Company’s debts with similar maturities.

31. Operating Segments Information

(a) Operating segments, segment revenue, operating results

The Company’s chief operating decision-maker is the Company’s Chief Executive Officer who makes resource allocation
decisions and assesses performance based on financial information presented on a consolidated basis. There are no
segment managers who are held accountable by the chief operating decision-maker, or anyone else, for operations,
operating results, and planning for levels or components below the consolidated unit level. Accordingly, the Company has
determined that the Company has a single reportable segment and operating segment structure.

GLOBALFOUNDRIES INC.
Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

F-49



(b) Revenue based on customers headquarters, non current assets by geography and maja or customers’ representing
at least 10% of revenue based on customer’s headquarters were as follows:

For the year ended December 31,
Revenue by Geography 2022 2021 2020
(in millions)
United States $ 4,898 $ 3,975 $ 3,368
Europe, the Middle East, and Africa 1,182 805 451
Other 2,028 1,805 1,032

$ 8,108 $ 6,585 $ 4,851

Non-current Assets by Geography 2022 2021

(in millions)
United States $ 5,149 $ 5,433
Germany 2,462 1,989
Singapore 3,508 1,547
Other 532 412
Total $ 11,651 $ 9,381

Non-current assets include property, plant, equipment, right-of-use assetff s, intangible assets, investments in joint venture
and associates, restricted cash (non-current) and receivables, prepayments and other assets (non-current).

For the year ended December 31,
Revenue by Major Customer 2022 2021 2020
(in millions) Amount % Amount % Amount %
Customer A 9$ 746 21$ 1,00112$ 811
Customer B $ 1,32 19 16 $ 995 11$ 5375

32. Customer And Supplier Concentration

Significant customers and suppliers are those that account for greater than 10% of the Company’s revenue and purchases
in any of the years presented.

The Company earned a substantial portion of revenue from two customers in 2022 , 2021 and 2020: Customer A amounted
to 9%, 12% and 21% of total revenue, respectively, and Customer B amounted to 16%, 15%, and 11% of total revenue,
respectively. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the amounts due from Customer A included in accounts receivable were
$71 million and $179 million, respectively, and the amounts due from Customer B included in accounts receivable were $163
million and $160 million, respectively. The loss of the significant customers or the failure to attract new customers could have
a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition for the Company.

The Company purcha % %sed 54%, 46% and 52%, of its SOI wafers, a key input into its pro%, of its SOI wafers, a key input into its pro fducts, from a singgle supplier in 2022,
2021 and 2020, respectively. As of Decemd 2020, respectively. As of December 31, 2022 and 2021, the net amount due to the sup $plier was $56 million and
$$63 million, respectively. Any failure in the supplier’s aly. Any failure in the supplier’s abil yity t SO fo provide SOI wafers could material yly and adversely affect thed adversely affect
Company’s results of operations, financial condition, business and prospects.
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ITEM 19. EXHIBITS
Documents filed as exhibits to this Form 20-F:

1.1 Second Amended and Restated Memorandum and Articles of Association of the Registrant (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form S-8 (File No. 333-260674)
filed with the SEC on November 2, 2021)

2.1 Shareholder’s Agreement among the Registrant and other parties thereto (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Annual Report on Form 20-F (File No.001-40974) filed with the SEC on
March 31, 2022)

2.2 Registration Rights Agreement among the Registrant and other parties thereto (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 2.2 of the Annual Report on Form 20-F (File No.001-40974) filed with the SEC on March 31,
2022)

2.3 Description of the Registrant’s Securities Registered Pursuant to Section 12 of the Securities Exchange
Act of 1934 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 2.3 of the Annual Report on Form 20-F (File
No.001-40974) filed with the SEC on March 31, 2022)

4.1 2017 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.7 of the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021)

2 2018 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.8 of the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021)

3 2021 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Registrant’s Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021)

4 2021 Amendment of the GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. 2018 Share Incentive Plan Share Option Agreement
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No.
333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021)

4.5 2021 Amendment of the GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc. 2018 Share Incentive Plan (incorporated by reference
to Exhibit 10.10 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with
the SEC on October 4, 2021)

4.6 2021 Employee Stock Purchase Plan (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.11 of the Registrant’s
Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021)

4.7† Materials Supply Agreement, dated April 25, 2017, between the Company and Soitec S.A. (incorporated
by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003)
filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021)

4.8† Addendum to Materials Supply Agreement, dated November 2, 2020, between the Company and Soitec
S.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.4 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1
(File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021)

9† Amended and Restated Exhibit 3 to the Long Term Addendum, dated July 1, 2021, between the Company
and Soitec S.A. (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.5 of the Registrant’s Registration Statement on
Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4, 2021)

4.10* Amendment #1 to the Amended and Restated Exhibit 3 to the Long Term Addendum, dated September
11, 2017 between the Company and Soitec S.A.

4.11* 2023 Addendum to Materials Supply Agreement, dated November 10, 2022, between the Company and
Soitec S.A.

4.12 Term Loan Facility Agreement, dated September 3, 2021, between GLOBALFOUNDRIES Singapore Pte.
Ltd., the Company and Economic Development Board (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.6 of the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4,
2021)

4.13 2019 Revolving and L/C Facilities Agreement, dated October 18, 2019, between the Company and
Citibank, N.A., London Branch and DBS Bank Ltd.(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.11 of the Annual
Report on Form 20-F (File No.001-40974) filed with the SEC on March 31, 2022)

4.14 2020 Amendment Agreement to Revolving and L/C Facilities Agreement, dated November 11, 2020,
between the Company and Bank of America, N.A., Citibank, N.A., DBS Bank Ltd. and JPMorgan Chase
Bank, N.A, Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A., London Branch, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., Deutsche Bank
AG, ING Bank, Commerzbank AG and Credit Suisse AG, Cayman Islands Branch (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.12 of the Annual Report on Form 20-F (File No.001-40974) filed with the SEC on
March 31, 2022)
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4.15 2021 Amendment to Revolving and L/C Facilities Agreement, dated October 13, 2021, between Bank of
America, N.A., DBS Bank Ltd., Intesa Sanpaolo S.p.A., London Branch, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A.,
Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., Citibank, N.A., Deutsche Bank AG, Credit Suisse AG, Cayman
Islands Branch, HSBC Bank USA, National Association and First Abu Dhabi Bank PJSC (incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 4.13 of the Annual Report on Form 20-F (File No.001-40974) filed with the SEC on
March 31, 2022)

4.16 Share Purchase Agreement by and between the Company and Silver Lake, dated as of October 18, 2021
(incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Registrant’s Amendment No. 1 to Registration
Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 19, 2021)

4.17 Form of Director and Officer Indemnification Agreement (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the
Registrant’s Registration Statement on Form F-1 (File No. 333-260003) filed with the SEC on October 4,
2021)

8* List of subsidiaries of the Registrant (as of 12/31.2022)

12.1* CEO Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

12.2* CFO Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a)

13.1* Certification pursuant to Rule 13a-14(b)/15d-14(b) and 18 U.S.C. §1350

15.1* Consent of KPMG LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

15.2* Consent of Ernst & Young LLP, Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm

101.INS* Inline XBRL Instance Document (the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File
because its XBRL tags are embedded within the Inline XBRL document)

101.SCH* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document

101.DEF* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document

101.PRE* Inline XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document

104* Cover Page Interactive Data File (formatted as Inline XBRL and contained in Exhibit 101)

* Filed herewith.
† Pursuant to Item 601(b)(10) of Regulation S-K, certain confidential portions of this exhibit have been omitted by

means of marking such portions with asterisks [***] as the identified confidential information is both (i) not material
and (ii) is the type that the registrant treats as private or confidential.
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SIGNATURE
The registrant hereby certifies that it meets all of the requirements for filing of n Form 20-F and that it has duly caused

and authorized the undersigned to sign this Annual Report on its behalf.

GLOBALFOUNDRIES Inc.

Date: April 14, 2023 By: /s/ Dr. Thomas Caulfield

Name: Dr. Thomas Caulfield

Title: President & Chief Executive Officer
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